
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JUNE 24, 2014 - 10:00 A.M.
           

1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A. Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in Washington, D.C. by
Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group.

 

B. Presentation of information from the Southern Gila County Economic
Development Corporation regarding a 2014-2016 work plan and
accomplishments to date.  (Neal Jensen)

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 14-06-05 to name a
previously unnamed section of road in Tonto Basin as E. Hunter Lane.
(Steve Stratton)

 

B. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-14-03, an application
submitted by Randy D. Nations for a person to person transfer of a Series 6
bar license with an interim permit to operate for Sidewinders Saloon located
in Pine.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A. (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene
as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Annual
Tentative Budget for the Gila County Library District.  (Jacque Griffin) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

B. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Annual
Tentative Budget in the amount of $94,444,905, authorize the publication of
the summary budget, and set the public hearing for July 15, 2014, to adopt
the Final Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.  (Don McDaniel)

 

C. Information/Discussion/Action to provide an update on the activities of the

  

  



C. Information/Discussion/Action to provide an update on the activities of the
Town of Miami's Cobre Valley Community Transit System; approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Economic Development Grant) between Gila
County and the Town of Miami in the amount of $31,500, to be paid from the
County's 2014-2015 fiscal year budget in order to assist the Town of Miami
with its Cobre Valley Community Transit System, specifically, the Dial-A-Ride
Program; and further, the Board determines this is for the benefit of the
public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of
Gila County.  (Jerry Barnes)

 

D. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Professional Services
Contracts for the various attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila County
utilizes on an annual basis.  (Jonathan Bearup)

 

E. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-06 whereby the
Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for
Gila County to remain in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona
(Southern Region) geographical service area for the upcoming HF332025 -
Greater Arizona Behavioral Health Services Request for Proposal.
(John Marcanti)

 

F. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-07 whereby the
Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for
Cenpatico of Arizona to remain as the Regional Behavioral Health Authority
for Gila County and be awarded the upcoming HF332025 – Greater Arizona
Behavioral Health Services Contract.  (John Marcanti)

 

G. Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the submission of a grant application
by the Community Services Division, Housing Services to Freeport-McMoRan
Copper & Gold (Freeport), which was submitted on February 28, 2014; and to
accept a grant award from Freeport in the amount of $10,000 which will be
used during the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, to provide
minor home repairs to eligible citizens residing in Globe, Miami, and
Claypool.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

H. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-08 which
authorizes the execution of Amendment No. Two to an Intergovernmental
Agreement (JPA File No. IGA/JPA 10-230I) between Gila County and the State
of Arizona, Department of Transportation for the construction of pedestrian
sidewalks along the westerly side of Six Shooter Canyon Road.  (Steve
Sanders)

 

I. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation
for Bid No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for the Gisela Road Project. 
(Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

 

J. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation
for Bid No. 060214 for the truck haul of asphalt millings to Forest Road
417-Gisela Road.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

 

K. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation

  

  



K. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation
for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR chip seal oil for Gila County repair and
maintenance.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

 

L. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Proposals No. 042314 for janitorial services for northern Gila County, which
includes but is not limited to: the Payson Administration Building; the Gila
County Court Complex in Payson; the Health/Rabies/Environmental office;
the Community Action and Co-op Extension offices; the Assessor's and
Recorder's Offices; and the Payson Sheriff's Office/Jail Administration
Building and Justice of the Peace Court.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

 

M. Information/Discussion/Action to continue this proposal to purchase the
NAPA auto parts property at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an
amount not to exceed $450,500, until after the July 29, 2014, Board of
Supervisors' Work Session at which time additional information regarding the
Countywide square footage needs will be presented and discussed. 
(Don McDaniel/Steve Stratton)

 

N. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09, a
resolution providing funding to be used for highway and street purposes
including costs of right of way acquisitions and expenses related thereto and
construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside development
of county, city and town roads, streets and bridges and payment of principal
and interest on highway and street bonds, and for regional transportation
projects that are included in the regional transportation plan of the County
prepared by the County, any city, town or regional planning agency; and
levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said purposes.
(Don McDaniel)

 

O. (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene
as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal
Amendment GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y3 San Carlos Apache Parent Outreach
and Awareness which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount
of $70,000 for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.
(Jacque Griffin)

 

P. Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal
Amendment GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-Y2 Gila Parent Outreach and
Awareness which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of
$85,000 for the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015. (Jacque Griffin) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors
and re-convene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors)

 

Q. Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for
Bids No. 041414 for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel and lubricants;
award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning
bidder.  (Jeff Hessenius)

 

  

  



R. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Stipulated Judgments in Rim
Country Express LLC. v. Gila County, TX 2011-000854, TX 2012-000780,
and TX 2013-000666.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) the Board may
vote to go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney. 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) the Board may vote to go into executive
session in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding
the Board’s position in settlement discussion to resolve the lawsuit. 
(Bryan Chambers)

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent Agenda
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted upon
as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the Board
of Supervisors.)

 

 

A. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between the
Gila County Recorder's Office and the Town of Payson to provide "Vote by
Mail" election services on August 26, 2014, and, if needed, run-off  election
services on November 4, 2014.

 

B. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No.
062813-Medical Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A.
Fischione, M.D., PLC, to increase the contract amount from $30,000 to
$70,000 to cover the remainder of the original contract term which expires on
January 6, 2015. 

 

C. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai County
and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for one year from
July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015, with the option for three (3) one (1) year
renewals upon mutual agreement of the Parties.

 

D. Approval of the amended amount to the Emergency Management Performance
Grant Fund Application in the amount of $110,000 for FFY2014 for
re-submission to Arizona Division of Emergency Management, and approval of
the Chairman's signature on the Application.

 

E. Approval of the revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan
for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2017, of which said revisions were
requested by the Arizona Department of Economic Security.

 

F. Approval of revisions to the Bylaws of the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment
Board.  

 

G. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101 between Gila
County and Central Arizona College for Program Year 2014, to add carryover
funds in the amount of $590,000 bringing the total contract amount to
$1,432,587, and to extend the contract period to July 1, 2014, through June
30, 2015.

 

H. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 between Gila

  

  



H. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 between Gila
County and Central Arizona Governments for Program Year 2014 to add
carryover funds to provide Workforce Investment Act Adult Services in the
amount of $400,000 bringing the total contract amount to $1,273,579, and to
extend the contract period to July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

 

I. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement (Contract No. LW-ESA-2182-02Y4) between the State of Arizona,
Governor's Office of Energy Policy and Gila County amending the contract to
provide up to $99,692 to be used to provide weatherization services to eligible
citizens residing in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30,
2015.

 

J. Approval of Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. DE111073001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security
and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community
Action/Housing Services, to provide funding in the amount of $319,381 for
the service of Case Management and $150,000 for the service of Community
Services, to be used to provide assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County for the period beginning July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

 

K. Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

 

L. Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

M. Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office. 

 

N. Approval of the May 6, 2014, and May 13, 2014, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

 

O. Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by
the County Manager for the weeks of May 19, 2014 to May 23, 2014; May 26,
2014 to May 30, 2014; and June 2, 2014 to June 6, 2014.

 

P. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 10,
2014, June 17, 2014, and June 24, 2014.

 

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the
jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant
to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call
to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond
to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to
review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

  

  



7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-2315     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Reporting
Period:

June 2014

Submitted For: Don
McDaniel
Jr.

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
Update of legislative activity in Washington, D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public
Affairs Group

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in Washington, D.C. by Patricia
Power of Bose Public Affairs Group.



Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

June 2014

Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors



   

ARF-2586     Presentation Agenda Item      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Don
McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By:
Sarayl Shunkamolah, Management Associate,
County Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation by the Southern Gila County Economic Development Corporation
(SGCEDC)

Background Information
At the March 25, 2014, work session, the Board of Supervisors provided support to
the Southern Gila County Economic Development Corporation (SGCEDC) by adopting
Resolution No. 14-03-08 in support of the SGCEDC Wayfinding and Signage Project. 

The SGCEDC will present an update to the Board of Supervisors regarding a
2014-2016 work plan and accomplishments to date.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information from the Southern Gila County Economic Development
Corporation regarding a 2014-2016 work plan and accomplishments to date.  (Neal
Jensen)

Attachments
SGCEDC Presentation



Southern Gila County Economic 
Development Corporation 

The mission of the Southern Gila County Economic 
Development Corporation (SGCEDC) is to enhance and 

diversify the economy of Southern Gila County while also 
implementing Quality of Life Initiatives.  SGCEDC also 

serves as a clearinghouse for organizations with 
complementary missions serving the area.   

 



Collaborating Community and Economic Development Organizations 
SGCEDC does not perform community and economic development activities in a vacuum. 
Rather, it is the vision of SGCEDC to coordinate and collaborate with many such 
organizations.  A listing of these collaborators is provided in the table below.  

 
SGCEDC Collaborators 

Apache Gold Casino Arizona Commerce Authority 

Asarco LLC Banks (Bank of America, Bank of the West, Great Western Bank, Wells Fargo Bank,) 

Capstone Mining Corp Central Arizona Governments 

City of Globe The Cobra Valley Regional Medical Center  

Copper Corridor Economic Development Coalition Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold 

Gila Community College Gila County Cattle Growers Assoc. 

Gila County Fair and Racing Commission Gila County Schools (Globe Unified School District #1, Hayden-Winkelman School District 
#41, Miami Unified School District, San Carlos Unified School District #20,) 

Gila County Globe Main Street Program 

Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce Miami Genesis Committee 

Resolution Copper Mining San Carlos Economic Development 

Town of Miami Town of Winkelman 

Town of Hayden Tri-City Regional Sanitation District 

University of Arizona Cooperative Extension Arizona Public Service 

Industrial Development Authority of Gila County Genesee Wyoming/ Arizona Eastern Railway 



  
Transformation of SGCEDC = Increase the 
organization’s capacity 
 
• Establish clear and transparent goals, policies and records for the 

organization 
• Create a long-term operations plan that articulates the roles and 

expectations of staff, board members and partners  
• Define the role of SGCEDC in the broader community and 

economic development context of Southern Gila County 
• Position, brand and operate SGCEDC  
• Proactively communicate the activities and accomplishments of 

SGCEDC 
 



Community and Economic Development Context 
 

 
 

Strategies 

Strategy Name Globe Miami 

Business Retention and Expansion S (Secondary) P (Primary) 

Downtown Development S S 

Infrastructure Development S S 

Local/Regional Tourism S S 

Pass-through Visitor Services S S 

Value-added Mining P S 

Cultural Tourism S - 

Attracting Retirees S - 

Education Development S - 

Workforce Retention S - 

Attracting Government Funding - S 

Quality of Life Initiatives 

Housing P S 

Healthcare/Wellness S* P 

Child Care S - 

Recreation S - 

Walkability S - 

Crime/Substance Abuse S - 

Volunteerism S - 

Blight - S 

Lack of Businesses and Services - S 

Walking Path, Amphitheater, Museum, Raising 
Expectations - S 



2014-2016 Work Plan 

Administrative Tasks 
• Organizational Development and By-Laws 
• Development of Organizational/Regional Brand 
• Prospect Management System (including a current 

asset inventory) 
 



2014-2016 Work Plan 

Development Activities 
• Business Retention and Expansion  

• Revolving Loan Fund 
• Copper Circle Wayfinding and Signage Project 

• Value-Added Mining 
• Housing 
• Workforce Attraction and Retention 

• Community Beautification Initiative 
• Infrastructure (including transportation and wastewater treatment in 

unincorporated areas) 
 

 



Accomplishments to date 

• Strategic Plan coordinated with Globe General Plan and Miami 
Economic Development Plan 

• New By-laws and organizational structure 
• Prospect Management System 
• Two Grant applications – One awarded directly to Globe for 

$360,000. One awarded to the SGCEDC for $55,000. 
• Three official Prospect RFI responses on behalf of Globe 
• Six revolving loan accounts totaling $135,000 directly to 

businesses in Globe, Miami and Payson. 
• Assistance with successful location of one new business in Globe 
• Business Retention and Expansion survey 

 



What’s Ahead? 

• One active prospect - Project Valor 
• Inventory of available land/business within Globe 
• Leadership role in Infrastructure Development for Freeport 

Community Panel Priority 
• Freeport CIF – Wayfinding and Signage Project 
• Branding and Marketing Campaign 

 



   

ARF-2589     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division
Director

Submitted By: Steve McGill, Rural Addressing
Analyst, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution 14-06-05 to name a previously unnamed section of road in Tonto Basin as
E. Hunter Lane.

Background Information
On April 30, 2014, Gila County resident Darin Denning contacted Rural Addressing to
inquire about naming an easement adjacent to his property.  A road naming petition
was provided requiring 75% of the affected parcel owners in agreement.  On May 15,
2014, Mr. Denning returned the petition with 100% of affected parcel owners in
agreement of the name Hunter Lane.

Evaluation
The unnamed road branches east off of S. Grimes Road in the Tonto Basin area and is
identified as PT NW 1/4 Section 13 T6N R10E.  The County Rural Addressing Analyst
determined the GPS location and appropriately mapped the roadway.  A map is
attached.

Conclusion
Per the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No. 11-03, a
public notice was mailed to property owners.  Included in the public notice was the
proposed name of E. Hunter Lane, map of the area, date for filing objections and the
date scheduled for the Board of Supervisors hearing.  No objections were received.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
Resolution 14-06-05 naming a previously unnamed section of road in Tonto Basin as
E. Hunter Lane.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 14-06-05 to name a previously
unnamed section of road in Tonto Basin as E. Hunter Lane.
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Resolution 14-06-05
Signed Petition



Letter to Residents
Public Notice
Map



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-06-05 
      

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA NAMING ONE ROAD TO BE CALLED E. 
HUNTER LANE 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street 
Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 28, 
2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 
property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 
safety of Gila County residents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 806, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 
provides guidelines for the naming of existing unnamed streets; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the following street name and location substantially complies with the provisions 
of Article 8 of the Ordinance: 

 
E. Hunter Lane – PT NW ¼ SEC 13 T6N R10E 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 
officially recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the 
numbering of properties along said street and directs the appropriate County departments to 
incorporate this name uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June 2014. 

 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
____________________________  ________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
____________________________ 
Bryan Chambers  
Deputy Attorney Principal 





Voice: (928) 402-8597 smcgill@gilacountyaz.gov Fax: (928) 425-8104 

 
 
May 15, 2014 
 
 
Dear Gila County Resident: 
 
 
Gila County is in the process of naming a road in your area based on a petition submitted to our office.   
 
Our purpose is to comply with the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No. 
11-03.  In order to accomplish this, Gila County Rural Addressing has included a public notice informing 
you of the proposed name of E. Hunter Lane, a sketch of the road in question, a date for filing objections 
and the date scheduled for the hearing. 
 
Please feel free to contact our Rural Addressing Analyst, Steve McGill at (928) 402-8597 with any 
questions or concerns.  Our offices are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to review this letter.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Steve McGill 
Rural Addressing Analyst 
 
cc/file 

   

TOMMIE MARTIN, District I 
P.O. Box 2297,  Payson AZ 85547  DON E. McDANIEL Jr. 

County Manager 
  
MICHAEL A. PASTOR, District II 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE STRATTON 
Director 

  
JOHN D. MARCANTI, District III  
1400 East Ash Street, Globe AZ 85501 

STEVE SANDERS 
Deputy Director 

   
Gila County Public Works Division 

9-1-1 Rural Addressing  
745 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe Arizona 85501 

 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will 
hold a public hearing for the naming of unnamed road in the Tonto Basin area.  The 
road will be named to: E HUNTER LANE. 
 
To file an objection to the proposed name change, residents must file an alternative 
petition in writing to the Rural Addressing Department by Monday, June 2nd, 2014 per 
Gila County Street Naming Ordinance No. 11-03. 
 
The public hearing to name E HUNTER LANE is scheduled for June 24, 2014 at 10:00 
a.m., or thereafter, located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Steven McGill/Rural Addressing  
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe AZ 85501 
1(928) 402-8597 
 

 





   

ARF-2534     Public Hearing      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk
of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Public Hearing-Order No. LL-14-03, a Liquor License Application for Sidewinders
Saloon

Background Information
Randy D. Nations has submitted an application to the State Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control (Department) for a person to person transfer of a Series 6 bar
license with an interim permit to operate for Sidewinders Saloon located in Pine. The
current license owner is Carol Lee Gianndrea, Owner.  Part of the statutory process is
once the Department accepts and processes the license, it is sent to the local
governing body in which city, town or county the establishment is located.  Upon the
local governing body's review of the application, a recommendation is then issued by
the local governing, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors (Board), to the
Department to either approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the
establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any person residing or
owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of the establishment regarding
this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board's Department has not received any
objections to this application.

Evaluation
This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors' Department for submission to the Board.  An internal review has been
conducted by both the Gila County Planning and Zoning Department and the Health
Department.  Both departments have submitted paperwork stating there are no issues
related to this application with regard to their departmental policies/procedures.

Conclusion
All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this application; no
one has submitted a written objection to this application; therefore, a public hearing
should be held by the Board to entertain any comments from the public with regard to
this application before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation to the
Department.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an approval
recommendation to the Department.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-14-03, an application
submitted by Randy D. Nations for a person to person transfer of a Series 6 bar
license with an interim permit to operate for Sidewinders Saloon located in Pine.  
(Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
LL-14-03 Liquor License Application
Interoffice Memorandums
Affidavit of Posting

































   

ARF-2617     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Library District FY 2014-2015 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget
Process outlines the budget requirements and timelines for each county's and
incorporated city's and town's budgets. 

For the Gila County Library District, the process includes the Library District Board
of Directors adopting a tentative budget and; thereafter, at a future Board
meeting, adopting a final budget.  

The Library District's budget is included in the entire budget for Gila County.

Evaluation
In Gila County, the Board of Supervisors acts as the Board of Directors for the Gila
County Library District.  In order to adopt the Library District's annual tentative
budget for fiscal year 2014-2015, the Board of Supervisors must adjourn as the Board
of Supervisors, convene as the Library District Board of Directors and then take an
official action to adopt that tentative budget.  

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative budget will be given by Jacque Griffin, Gila
County Assistant Manager/Librarian, to the Board of Directors.  After a discussion,
the Library District Board of Directors will consider adopting the proposed tentative
budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the



(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the
Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)  Information/Discussion/Action
to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County
Library District.  (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library
District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors.)



   

ARF-2582     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

FY 2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County FY 2014-2015 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget
Process outlines the budget requirements and time lines for each county's and
incorporated city's and town's budgets.

The budget process is for the Board of Supervisors to first adopt a tentative budget
and at a future meeting to adopt the final budget. There are also statutory newspaper
publication requirements to be applied after the tentative budget has been adopted
and before the final budget is adopted.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative fiscal year 2014-2015 budget for Gila County
will be presented by Don McDaniel, County Manager. After a discussion, the Board of
Supervisors will consider adopting the proposed tentative budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Annual Tentative
Budget in the amount of $94,444,905, authorize the publication of the summary
budget, and set the public hearing for July 15, 2014, to adopt the Final Fiscal Year
2014-2015 Gila County Budget.  (Don McDaniel)



Attachments
FY 2015 Gila County Tentative Budget



















































































































































































   

ARF-2584     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Town of Miami's FY 2014-2015 Economic Development Grant Request for its Cobre
Valley Community Transit System's Dial-A-Ride Program and annual report of the
Program's activities.

Background Information
On August 20, 2012, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA)-Economic Development Grant with the Town of Miami in the amount
of $74,700 so that the Town of Miami could purchase the Cobre Valley Community
Transit (CVCT) building located in Miami, AZ.

On November 13, 2012, the BOS approved the issuance of a one-time economic
development grant in the amount of $25,000 to the Town of Miami for the continued
operation and expansion of its CVCT System, in particular its Dial-A-Ride Program,
providing that an IGA was presented to the BOS for signature at a future BOS
meeting.  Granting of these funds was allowed per the requirements outlined in A.R.S.
§ 11-254.

On February 5, 2013, the BOS and the Town of Miami entered into an IGA in order to
release a $25,000 economic development grant to the Town of Miami for its CVCT
System.

Evaluation
The Town of Miami is requesting the Board of Supervisors' approval of an
Intergovernmental Agreement between both entities in order to provide the Town with
an economic development grant in the amount of $31,500 to assist with the continued
operation of its CVCT Dial-A-Ride Program.  The requested funds would be provided
utilizing fiscal year 2014-2015 budgeted funds.

Conclusion
Without continued support from Gila County, the continuation of the Cobre Valley
Community Transit System's Dial-A-Ride Program will be in jeopardy. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Manager of the Town of Miami provide the Board of



It is recommended that the Manager of the Town of Miami provide the Board of
Supervisors with an annual update on the activities of the CVCT Dial-A-Ride Program
per the requirements of the IGA executed by both parties on February 5, 2013, and a
request for economic development funds to assist with the continuation of the
Dial-A-Ride Program.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to provide an update on the activities of the Town of
Miami's Cobre Valley Community Transit System; approve an Intergovernmental
Agreement (Economic Development Grant) between Gila County and the Town of
Miami in the amount of $31,500, to be paid from the County's 2014-2015 fiscal year
budget in order to assist the Town of Miami with its Cobre Valley Community Transit
System, specifically, the Dial-A-Ride Program; and further, the Board determines this
is for the benefit of the public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the
inhabitants of Gila County.  (Jerry Barnes)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 060314-2 with Town of Miami for Dial-A-Ride
Program 2014-2015
Request from Town of Miami for an Economic Development Grant for CVCT programs
Intergovernmental Agreement with Town of Miami for Dial-A-Ride program 2013-2014
Legal Explanation





















GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY
Bradley D. Beauchamp

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant toA.R.S. § 11-952(D).

To whom it may concern:

The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).  

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) Review

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 
procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 
submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 
procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 
proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 
the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 
unit.

In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 
they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 
contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 
requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 
does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 
objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 
agency through its elected body.   



Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 
executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 
the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 
requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 
executed.

Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 
properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 
applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 
extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 
agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 
by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 
wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 
in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 
action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 
directed to the County Attorney’s Office.

Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 
“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 
approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 
person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 
the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 
of payment.” 

The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 
obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  
This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 
the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 
actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 
does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 
will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 
the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance.

Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 
Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 
the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 
IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 
IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 
review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 
review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 
greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 
agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 
Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.



   

ARF-2554     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne,
Court
Administrator

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 to
June 30, 2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Approval of Various Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to provide
professional legal services, such as representation for indigent citizens in the
categories of felony and misdemeanor criminal actions, delinquency, dependency, and
mental health cases, as well as mediation services.  These attorneys have, in prior
years, executed a Letter of Understanding between themselves and the Superior
Court.  

Evaluation
The Professional Services Contracts, offered to the attorneys utilized by the Superior
Court in Gila County will meet and satisfy compliance requirements of Gila County
procurement procedures and Board approved policies. In addition to being an
appropriate business practice, the contracts will allow for a Purchase Order to be
issued, which will facilitate the accounting and payment processes.

The contracts will also serve to clearly identify and set expectations for the
performance of the attorneys.

Conclusion
In addition to identifying procurement procedures, the Gila County Statement of
Operating Procedures for the Procurement Group was designed to facilitate the flow of
issuing contracts, issuing purchase orders and issuing payment to Gila County
vendors, while maintaining State mandated due diligence procedures.  By entering
into Professional Services Contracts with the various attorneys for the Superior Court
in Gila County, the policies and procedures adopted by the Board of Supervisors for
procurement processes will be satisfied.

Recommendation
The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County recommends approving



The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County recommends approving
the Professional Services Contracts with the various attorneys, which the Court
utilizes on an annual basis.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Professional Services Contracts for the
various attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila County utilizes on an annual
basis.  (Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-4- Ronald DeBrigida
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-8 - Carrie Canizales
Professional Services Contract 042514 -Anna Ortiz
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-5 - Tait Elkie
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-6 - David Bell
Professional Services Contract No. 042614 - Michael Freeman
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-10 - Carolyn Clark
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-2 - Barry Standifird
Professional Services Contract No. 042514-1 - Timothy Nelson
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-7 - Jamie Myers
Professional Services Contract No. 041514 - Steven Burk
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-1 - Michael Bernays
Professional Services Contract No. 042614-3 - Jonathan Warshaw
Legal Explanation



























































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2612     Regular Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: John Marcanti,
Member, Board
of Supervisors

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Executive Assistant,
Board of Supervisors-District 3

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 14-06-06 to Declare Support for Gila County to Remain in the
Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) Service Area.

Background Information
Created in 1986, the Arizona Department of Health Services/Division of Behavioral
Health Services (ADHS/DBHS) serves as the single state authority to provide
coordination, planning, administration, regulation and monitoring of all facets of the
state public behavioral health system.  The Division contracts with community-based
organizations, known as Regional Behavioral Health Authorities (RBHAs), to
administer behavioral health services.  RBHAs operate much like a health
maintenance organization. 

Each RBHA contracts with a network of service providers similar to health plans to
deliver a range of behavioral health care services, treatment programs for adults with
substance abuse disorders, adults with serious mental illness and children with
serious emotional disturbances as well as members enrolled in Medicaid, KidsCare,
the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) and Medicare
Advantage programs.

Arizona is divided into geographical service areas served by the RBHAs; namely,
Mercy Maricopa Integrated Care which serves Maricopa County; Community
Partnership of Southern Arizona which serves Pima County; Northern Arizona
Behavioral Health Authority which serves Mohave, Coconino, Apache, Navajo and
Yavapai Counties; and Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (aka Southern Region)
which serves La Paz, Yuma, Greenlee, Graham, Cochise, Santa Cruz, Gila and Pinal
Counties.  The Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) service area
also provides services to persons living on the San Carlos Apache Reservation.

Gila County has been located in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern



Gila County has been located in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern
Region) service area.  ADHS/DBHS is proposing to move Gila County into the
Northern Arizona Behavioral Health Authority service area.  ADHS/DBHS is also
proposing to move the entire San Carlos Apache Reservation to the Northern Arizona
Behavioral Health Authority service area, including the part that is located in Graham
County.  The people of Bylas will no longer be able to go into Safford for services, but
rather will have to go to Show Low or Flagstaff.  The people on the San Carlos Apache
Reservation located on the Gila County side and all other residents of Gila County will
no longer be able to receive services in Globe or in Phoenix, but will also have to go
north if these services are no longer offered in Globe.  All of these agencies--Horizon
Human Services, Southeastern Arizona Behavioral Health Services and Community
Bridges--which have been funded by Cenpatico of Arizona in the past would then be
funded by a different agency.  People from Kearny and Superior (both in Pinal County)
who also come to Globe at times for services would have to go elsewhere.

Evaluation
In order to provide quality services for the residents of Gila County and the San
Carlos Apache Reservation, it is believed it would be in the best interest of Gila
County to keep Gila County in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern
Region) service area.

Conclusion
It would be the most beneficial for the residents of Gila County if Gila County remains
in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) service area.

Recommendation
It is being recommended that it would be in the best interest of the residents of Gila
County for Gila County to remain in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona
(Southern Region) service area.  Graham County has also adopted a similar resolution.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-06 whereby the Gila
County Board of Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for Gila County to
remain in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) geographical
service area for the upcoming HF332025 - Greater Arizona Behavioral Health Services
Request for Proposal.
(John Marcanti)

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-06-06



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-06-06 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, EXPRESSING CONTINUED SUPPORT FOR GILA 
COUNTY TO REMAIN IN THE CENPATICO BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
OF ARIZONA (SOUTHERN REGION) GEOGRAPHIC SERVICE AREA 
FOR THE UPCOMING HF332025 – GREATER ARIZONA 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has historically been in the same service 
area with Pinal County for behavioral health services; and,   
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors recognizes the importance of collaboration 
with many organizations and agencies that serve both Gila and Pinal Counties; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors recognizes the significance of the more 
recent collaboration with Graham County in providing services for our residents on the San 
Carlos Apache Reservation; and,   
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors understands that most of our residents travel 
south for services that are not available in Gila County.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the full body of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for Gila County to remain in the Cenpatico 
Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) Geographic Service Area for the upcoming 
HF332025 – Great Arizona Behavioral Health Services Request for Proposal. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June 2014, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy Attorney Principal 



   

ARF-2613     Regular Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: John Marcanti,
Member, Board
of Supervisors

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Executive Assistant,
Board of Supervisors-District 3

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 14-06-07 To Declare Support for Cenpatico of Arizona to Remain as the
Regional Behavioral Health Authority For Gila County.

Background Information
Cenpatico of Arizona has been providing excellent behavioral health services to the
people of Gila  County for many years.  Recently, the Arizona Department of Health
Services has decided to allow for the possibility of other organizations to begin
providing behavioral health services in Gila County. 

Evaluation
Being an important collaborative partner with the people of Gila County for many
years, Cenpatico of Arizona has proven to be successful in building valuable
relationships in our communities and providing excellent behavioral health services.

Conclusion
Cenpatico of Arizona has proven to be a valued partner in providing quality behavioral
health services to the people of Gila County and should continue to be the chosen
provider by the Arizona Department of Health Services. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 14-06-07
expressing continued support for Cenpatico of Arizona to remain as the contracted
Regional Behavioral Health Provider for Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-07 whereby the Gila
County Board of Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for Cenpatico of
Arizona to remain as the Regional Behavioral Health Authority for Gila County and be
awarded the upcoming HF332025 – Greater Arizona Behavioral Health Services
Contract.  (John Marcanti)

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-06-07



Resolution No. 14-06-07                                                                                                                                                      Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-06-07 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, EXPRESSING CONTINUED SUPPORT FOR 
CENPATICO OF ARIZONA TO REMAIN AS THE REGIONAL 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AUTHORITY FOR GILA COUNTY AND BE 
AWARDED THE UPCOMING HF332025 – GREATER ARIZONA 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES CONTRACT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has supported Cenpatico of Arizona in their 
provision of services for our residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors recognizes the importance of quality 
behavioral health services for our residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors recognizes the significant role that 
Cenpatico of Arizona has played in the health and wellness of community members with both 
services to eligible members and support of local organizations; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Cenpatico of Arizona has made a significant impact with their community 
reinvestment into events, cultural celebrations, organizations and programs that benefit the 
residents of Gila County; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors understands the importance of Cenpatico of 
Arizona’s collaboration in implementing the county crisis protocols; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors understands the importance of Cenpatico of 
Arizona’s commitment to bring two Rural Detox Centers to Gila County communities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the full body of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for Cenpatico of Arizona to remain as the 
Regional Behavioral Health Authority for Gila County and be awarded the upcoming HF332025 
– Greater Arizona Behavioral Health Services Contract.   
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 14-06-07                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 of 2 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June 2014, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy Attorney Principal 



   

ARF-2609     Regular Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Freeport-McMoRan Copper and Gold Grant Application and Award.

Background Information
Freeport-McMoRan Copper and Gold has established Community Investment Funds (CIFs) in
communities near their operations in Colorado, New Mexico and southeastern Arizona.  The CIFs
engage community leaders in cultivating and assessing community projects that address identified
priorities, and allow them to allocate Freeport-McMoRan Copper Foundation funds to projects that have
a positive, sustainable impact.

Each CIF is governed by a committee of 7 to 10 community representatives as well as two company
representatives.  The committee reviews all proposals and determines which projects best address the
community's priorities, while also producing a sustainable benefit or contributing to overall community
sustainability.

Evaluation
Gila County Community Services Division, Housing Services, submitted a grant application on February
28, 2014, to be considered for funding in the amount of $10,000, from Freeport-McMoRan Copper &
Gold, Community Investment Funds. On June 5, 2014, Freeport-McMoRan held their awards ceremony
to announce the recipients of the grants.  Gila County Housing Services received funding in the amount
of $10,000.  As noted in the application, these funds will be used to provide emergency minor home
repair to eligible persons residing in Globe, Miami, or Claypool, age 60 years of age and over or disabled
persons of any age. 

Conclusion
Funds received from said grant award will be used  to provide minor emergency home repair to eligible
persons residing in Globe, Miami, and Claypool.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends ratifying the grant application and
accepting the grant award from Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the submission of a grant application by the Community
Services Division, Housing Services to Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold (Freeport), which was
submitted on February 28, 2014; and to accept a grant award from Freeport in the amount of $10,000
which will be used during the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, to provide minor home
repairs to eligible citizens residing in Globe, Miami, and Claypool.  (Malissa Buzan)



Attachments
Freeport-McMoRan Application
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold Award letter and check



















   

ARF-2601     Regular Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Deputy Director, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 through
Dec. 31, 2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. Two to ADOT File No. IGA/JPA 10-230I

Background Information
On April 5, 2011, Gila County adopted Resolution No. 11-04-05 authorizing the County to
enter into IGA/JPA 10-230I with ADOT for a Transportation Enhancement Project for a
sidewalk along Six Shooter Canyon Road from Remington Road to Cherokee Road. On October
9, 2012, Gila County adopted Resolution No. 12-10-01 and approved Amendment No. One
amending IGA/JPA 10-230I. That amendment was for ADOT to oversee and administer the
project.

Evaluation
ADOT is now requesting the County's approval of Amendment No. Two to the IGA/JPA. This
amendment would add $27,000 to the project for ADOT Project Management and Design
Review (PMDR) fee. Gila County would be responsible for 5.7% of this amount.

The initial fee in the IGA/JPA was $3,000 for ADOT's Design Review.  Some time after the last
amendment ADOT has decided it needs to increase their PMDR fee from a range of $30,000 to
$50,000 for PMDR. For this specific project, ADOT wants an additional $27,000.  The cost to
Gila County will be $1,539.

Conclusion
It is possible that if the amendment is not approved, the project will not be built or that ADOT
will attempt to collect the PMDR fee from the County. To date Gila County has over $24,000
invested in the project. 

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Public Works for the Board of Supervisors
to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-08 which authorizes the execution of Amendment No. Two to
JPA/IGA 10-230I to increase ADOT's PMDR fee from $3000 to $27,000 with Gila County
paying a 5.7% match in the amount of $1539.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-08 which authorizes the



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-08 which authorizes the
execution of Amendment No. Two to an Intergovernmental Agreement (JPA File No. IGA/JPA
10-230I) between Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation for the
construction of pedestrian sidewalks along the westerly side of Six Shooter Canyon Road.  (Steve Sanders)
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-06-08
Amendment Two JPA/IGA 10-230I
Amendment One JPA/IGA 10-230I
IGA_JPA 10-230-I
Legal Explanation



 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-06-08 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT NO. 
TWO TO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (AG CONTRACT 
NO. P0012011000387) BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND THE STATE OF 
ARIZONA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALKS ALONG SIX SHOOTER 
CANYON ROAD IN GLOBE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking the construction 
of pedestrian sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road in Globe; and 
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. Two to the existing the Intergovernmental Agreement requires a 
resolution of Gila County to authorize execution of the agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
authorizes the execution of Amendment No. Two to an Intergovernmental Agreement (AG 
Contract No. P0012011000387) between Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of 
Transportation, for the construction of pedestrian sidewalks along Six Shooter Canyon Road in 
Globe, beginning at Remington Road and running north to Cherokee Road.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June 2014, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy Attorney Principal 













































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2603     Regular Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance Director

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-05-14 to
12-02-14

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise for Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 Milling of Asphalt for
Gisela Road Project.

Background Information
To save time for other maintenance projects in the County this year, the Public Works
Department is hiring a contractor to mill the existing asphalt on the Gisela Road.  The
road is in bad repair and needs a double chip seal.

Evaluation
The contractor will save the County time on this project by milling up the old asphalt,
which can then be used to mix with the other millings being hauled in from the
Payson Event Center site to make a good base for the double chip seal.

Conclusion
Having portions of this chip seal project contracted out will save the County valuable
time in the overall maintenance schedule for FY 2015.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends the Board of Supervisors' authorization to
advertise Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for the Gisela Road
Project.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bid
No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for the Gisela Road Project. 
(Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Request to Advertise



Solicitation
Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project











































































   

ARF-2587     Regular Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014/2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-05-14 to
12-02-14

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 060214 for Hauling of Asphalt Millings to
Forest Road 417-Gisela Road.

Background Information
Gisela Road is in need of some major maintenance.  In order to complete the schedule
of maintenance this year, the County is contracting out this portion of the project to
haul millings from the Payson Event Center to the Gisela Road project.

Evaluation
The millings are being stored at the Payson Event Center.  Gila County has been given
approval to use them on the Gisela Road project.  The contractor will haul the millings
from the Payson Event Center to the Gisela Road project to be used in the County's
double chip seal.

Conclusion
To accomplish more maintenance this year throughout the County, the Public Works
Department will hire a contractor to haul the asphalt millings to the Gisela Road
project.

Recommendation
Public Works is requesting the advertisement of Bid No. 060214 for the truck haul of
asphalt millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bid
No. 060214 for the truck haul of asphalt millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela Road.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)
(Jeff Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

Attachments



Attachments
Request to Advertise
Solicitation
Invitation for Bid 060214 Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Service Road 417-Gisela
Road















































































   

ARF-2590     Regular Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

8-05-14 to
3-04-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil.

Background Information
The current contract for MC-800TR chip seal oil for road repair and maintenance
expired on April 5, 2014. 

Evaluation
The Consolidated Roads Department requires MC-800TR chip seal oil in order to
maintain roads in Gila County.  The request to advertise will allow the Roads
Department the ability to contract a supplier to provide the MC-800TR chip seal oil.

Conclusion
Invitation for Bid No. 060314 will allow suppliers the opportunity to provide the
County with a proposal in order to supply MC-800TR chip seal oil for road
maintenance and repair.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
request to advertise Invitation for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR chip seal oil.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bid
No. 060314 for MC-800TR chip seal oil for Gila County repair and maintenance.  (Jeff
Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Solicitation



Invitation for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil



































































   

ARF-2560     Regular Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

8-18-2014 to
8-17-2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise for Request for Proposals No. 042314 for Janitorial Services in
Northern Gila County.

Background Information
In the past, Gila County has hired a contractor to perform the evening custodial
duties, five nights a week, for various locations in northern Gila County.  The previous
contract was issued on May 3, 2011, for a period of one year from the date of approval
by the Board of Supervisors with the option to renew for two (2) additional one- (1)
year periods.  The final one-year extension to the contract expired on May 3, 2014.  

Evaluation
The advertisement of Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 042314 will allow contractors
the opportunity to submit proposals for Gila County's consideration for the janitorial
services at various locations in northern Gila County.

Locations to be serviced are:  Payson Courthouse - 714 S. Beeline Highway, Payson,
AZ
                                                Health/Rabies/Environmental and Community
Action/Co-op Extension offices - 107 W. Frontier Street, Payson, AZ
                                                Admin Building - 608 & 610 E. Highway 260,
Payson, AZ
                                                Assessor and Recorder's offices - 201 W. Frontier
Street, Payson, AZ
                                                Sheriff's Office, Jail Admin and JP Court - 108 W.
Main Street, Payson, AZ

Conclusion
The advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 042314 will result in the possible



The advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 042314 will result in the possible
hiring of a contractor to provide janitorial services, five nights a week, to various
County facilities in northern Gila County.

RFP No. 042314 will be advertised in the July 2, 2014, and July 9, 2014 editions of
the Arizona Silver Belt. Proposals will be due on July 23, 2014, by 3:00 P.M./M.S.T.
with an award date of August 18, 2014.

Recommendation
The Facilities Management Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 042314, for Janitorial Services
for northern Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Proposals No. 042314 for janitorial services for northern Gila County, which includes
but is not limited to: the Payson Administration Building; the Gila County Court
Complex in Payson; the Health/Rabies/Environmental office; the Community Action
and Co-op Extension offices; the Assessor's and Recorder's Offices; and the Payson
Sheriff's Office/Jail Administration Building and Justice of the Peace Court.  (Jeff
Hessenius/Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Solicitation
Request for Proposals No. 042314 for Janitorial Services in Northern Gila County







 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
042314 

 
 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR NORTHERN GILA COUNTY 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 

John D. Marcanti, Member 
 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 

Don E. McDaniel Jr. 
 
 

 



 1 

                                                           GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314 

JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR NORTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to provide 
Janitorial Services for County facilities located in Northern Gila County. 
 
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE: July 23, 2014             3:00 PM 
 
RETURN PROPOSAL TO: Gila County Procurement 
 Guerrero Complex          
 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ 85501 
     
MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING:           Wednesday, July 16, 2014               10:00 AM  

Gila County Payson Administration Building 
610 E. Highway 260 
Payson, AZ 
Meeting will begin at Administration Building and continue to 
locations provided in complete RFP packet. 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive Proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Procurement Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Interested Bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling Gila County Procurement at 928-402-8612, 
or by clicking on the link to the County website: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php. Bidders are strongly 
encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Proposal. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the 
Guerrero Building Conference Room, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, or other site, which may be designated.  Any 
proposals received later than the date and time specified above will not be considered.   
 
The County takes no responsibility for informing recipients of changes to the original solicitation document.  It 
is the Offeror’s responsibility to obtain a copy of any amendment relevant to this solicitation.   
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, 
Globe, AZ. 
 

Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   July 2 and July 9, 2014 

 
Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  ________________ 
  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

 

Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  _________________  
 Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal 
                  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php


 2 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
 
Solicitation Notice ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Scope of Services.......................................................................................................................................................................... 3-9 
 
Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ............................................................................................................................... 10-11  
 
General Terms and Conditions ................................................................................................................................................ 12  
 
Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ...................................................................................................................... 13-16 
  

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications/Information.................................................................................................. 17-18 
  
Insurance Provisions ............................................................................................................................................................ 19-20 
 
Required Contract Forms ................................................................................................................................................... 21-30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

It is the intention of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for janitorial services at several of 
its facilities in Northern Gila County.  The Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, supervision, equipment, 
transportation and all effort necessary to perform the required services at the designated locations. 
 

 
Building  
Address 

Square 
Footage 

 
Floors 

 
Restrooms 

Mop  
Closets 

Storage 
 Closets 

Payson Courthouse                        

     714 S. Beeline Highway 

     Payson, AZ  85541 

 

13,983 

1st 

2nd 

 

5 

2 

 

0 

0 

 

1 

0 

 

Health, Rabies, Environmental                  

     107 W. Frontier St. 

     Payson, AZ  85541 

 

4,298 

 

1 

 

 

2 

 

0 

 

0 

Community Action/Co-op Ext      

     107 W. Frontier St. 

    Payson, AZ  85541 

 

1,100 

 

 

1 

 

1 

 

0 

 

0 

Admin Building                                   

     608 & 610 E. Hwy 260 

     Payson, AZ  85541 

 

6,500 

1 Floor 
BOS Side 

Comm Dev Side  

 

3 

2 

 

 

0 

1 

 

1 

0 

Assessor/Recorder                          

     201 W. Frontier Street 

     Payson, AZ  85541 

 

1,896 

 

 

1 

 

1 

 

0 

 

0 

Sheriff’s Office                                  

     108 W. Main Street 

     Payson, AZ  85541      

 

*7,340 

 

1  

 

3 

(1 with tub) 

 

0 

 

1 

Sheriff’s Office Jail Admin                             

     108 W. Main Street 

     Payson, AZ  85541      

 

*Included in 

above 

 

1  

 

2 

 

 

0 

 

0 

JP Court                             

     108 W. Main Street 

     Payson, AZ  85541      

 

*Included in 

above 

 

1  

 

1 

 

 

0 

 

0 

  
 
SCHEDULE 

The contract will require cleaning services five (5) nights a week (excluding those weeks with an official 
holiday), Monday through Friday, after 5:00 P.M., unless otherwise noted.  Cleaning services will not be 
required on days in which a declared State of Emergency has been made by the Governor or in the event of any 
other unforeseen type of emergency where County offices are closed.  There are ten (10) County holidays, and 
services will not be provided on these days unless the County agency makes such request and pays for these 
additional services. 
 
 
ADOSH GUIDELINES 

Contractor must be familiar with and operate within guidelines set forth by the Arizona Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health (ADOSH) guidelines, which affects custodial and housekeeping operations.  
Contractor must ensure that all employees assigned to this contract are knowledgeable of the current ADOSH 
guidelines affecting custodial and housekeeping operations. 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
CONTRACTORS PERSONNEL 

All individuals working for the awarded Contractor will be carefully screened and must pass a background 
check prior to working on Gila County property under this contract.  Investigation will include criminal record, 
and driving record.  All questionable findings of background checks will be discussed with special panel of Gila 
County Management and Law Enforcement.  As a minimum, individuals with prior felony convictions within the 
past ten (10) years, those who are currently facing misdemeanor or felony charges, and those currently on any 
criminal probation will be prohibited from performing any services under this contract in the County 
Attorney’s Office, Superior or Justice of the Peace Courts, Probation Offices, or Constable’s Office.  There will be 
no cost to the Contractor for the background investigations. 
 
Contractor must provide trained qualified personnel, at least 18 years or older, to perform the duties required 
under this contract.  A list of persons, and their phone numbers, performing the work shall be provided by the 
Contractor to the County should the need arise in case of an emergency. 
 
Any person assigned to this contract found to be in possession of or under the influence of intoxicants or 
narcotics shall be removed from assignment to this Contract.  Any person found guilty of the use of narcotics or 
intoxicants shall not perform services on County property. 
 

 Job Supervisor 
The Contractor shall provide a job supervisor for this contract who will be responsible to the County for 
the competent performance of all custodial work. The supervisor shall be trained and instructed in proper 
methods and systems of custodial maintenance.   
 
The supervisor shall make sufficient daily routine inspections to insure work is performed as specified.  In 
addition, Contractor supervisor shall direct the cleaning activities of the custodial staff.  Contractor 
supervisor shall inspect the building prior to employees leaving and any deficiencies will be corrected.   
 
The Contractor shall provide to the County the name and phone number of the supervisor and alternate(s) 
who shall act for the Contractor when the supervisor is absent.  This information shall be designated in 
writing to the Gila County Facilities and Land Management Manager prior to contract start date and at any 
time there is a change during the term of the contract. 

 
 

EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 

 County Provided Equipment 
Gila County reserves the right to control all janitorial products and chemicals that will be used in each 
designated building.  Copies of Material Safety Data Sheets on each chemical shall be kept on file.    
 
The County Facilities Management is responsible for ordering Janitorial Supplies and will control inventory 
of the paper products, chemicals and cleaning products and shall be responsible for storage of these 
products and chemicals.  
 
 Training:  Chemical use training is a requirement of the Contractor and will be provided through Gila 

County by the Supplier. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

 
 

 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
 Contractor Provided Equipment 

Contractor shall provide their own equipment to perform the scope of work under this contract.  
Contractor’s equipment must be in good operating condition at all times and must meet Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) standards.  The appearance, cleanliness, and suitability for the 
job of all equipment must be acceptable to the County Facilities Manager or designee at all times. 
 
 Safety:  For all operations requiring the placing and movement of the Contractor’s equipment, 

Contractor shall observe and exercise, and compel his employees to observe and exercise, all 
necessary caution and discretion so as to avoid injury to persons, damage to property of any 
and all kinds, and annoyance to or undue interference with the movement of the public and 
County personnel. 

 
All ladders, scaffolding, or other devices used to reach the surface of objects not otherwise 
accessible for the required cleaning operations, shall be of sound construction, firm and 
stable, and shall be maintained in good condition.  All such equipment shall be moved onto 
the areas where they are required, placed, shifted where necessary, and removed from the 
areas in such manner as to provide maximum safety to persons and property in and around 
areas of cleaning operations. 

 
 
DAMAGES 
In the event that the Contractor or its employees cause damage to a structure, equipment or other items, the 
Contractor shall repair or replace the items damaged at actual replacement value and be responsible for all 
labor and materials expended by the County or another Contractor in connection with the repair or 
replacement.  These specific damages do not limit the Contractor’s liability for other unspecified potential 
damages. 
 

SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Building Areas and Janitorial Standards 

 Sweeping and Dust Mopping Standards:  Sweeping shall leave the surfaces uniformly clean of all surface 
dirt including corners and places inaccessible to the mop.  Surface accumulation of hardened dirt that 
cannot be loosened with the broom shall be loosened sufficiently to permit removal by sweeping or if 
necessary, shall be washed.  It is intended that all dust and surface contamination except deeply embedded 
dirt and stains shall be removed by sweeping or mopping with a treated mop.  Dirty mops are not 
acceptable for use.  

 
1. Sweeping and Dust Moping (Uncarpeted Areas) 

a. Vestibules, lobbies and entries 
b. Corridors 
c. Stairwells, stars and landings (interior) 
d. Elevators and elevator vestibules 
e. Offices, Courtrooms and Conference rooms 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
 Dusting and Vacuuming Standards: Dusting shall be accomplished by means of vacuum cleaners 

supplemented by chemically treated clean cloths.  Oil treatment for cloths will not be permitted.  Surfaces 
shall be cleaned and free from dust after dusting is completed.  Dust shall be removed and not scattered 
around the room.  Low dusting includes all surfaces not over six feet from the floor.  Venetian blinds shall 
be dusted with a treated dust cloth by hand or with a vacuum cleaner attachment especially designed for 
cleaning Venetian blinds.  Office equipment such as typewriters, adding machines, calculators and similar 
instruments shall not be dusted because of possibility of damage.  Tops of desks will also be excluded from 
dusting. 

 
1. Vacuuming (Carpeted Areas) 

a. Lobbies and entries (interior) 
b. Stairwells, stairs and landings (interior) 
c. Corridors 
d. Offices, Courtroom and Conference rooms 

2. Dusting and Vacuuming (Low Cleaning-Under 6’) 
a. All furniture and fixtures (i.e.) file cabinets, tables, etc. 
b. Window sills, ledges, etc. 
c. Vending Machines 
d. Stairwells, stairs, landings and railings (interior) 

 
3. Dusting and Vacuuming (High Cleaning-Over 6’) 

a. Door casings 
b. Partitions, wood paneling, etc. 

 

 Trash Removal Standards:  All waste baskets shall be emptied and boxes, cans, paper, etc. marked trash 
which is placed near the trash cans for disposal shall be removed in a manner that will not cause dispersion 
of dust.  Trash shall not be allowed to blow around.  Any trash dropped shall be immediately retrieved by 
the custodian or contractor and properly placed in the trash receptacle. 

 

1. Trash Removal 
a. Empty all trash containers, replace liners as needed; DO NOT place leaking trash bags on 

carpet. 
b. Dispose of trash in sealed and/or tied plastic bags in outside dumpsters. 
 

 Washing Standards:  Washed surfaces shall be clean and free from all dirt, grease and film including 
embedded dirt and grease.  All small and narrow openings shall be cleaned to the same degree as other 
surfaces.  Surfaces shall be dried and left clean. 

 
1. General Washing 

a. Clean and sanitize urinals inside and out 
b. Clean and sanitize commodes inside and out. 
c. Clean mirrors 
d. Clean and sanitize miscellaneous restroom and toilet fixtures. 
e. Clean and sanitize restroom and toilet floors. 
f. Clean and sanitize restroom wash basin wall area and toilet wall area. 
g. Clean and sanitize shower rooms. 
h. Damp wipe all restroom and locker room ledges and sills. 
i. Spot clean walls, doors and trim. 
j. Clean and sanitize water fountains. 
k. Windows inside and outside of building 
l. Wash baseboards, doors, and door handles 
m. Clean light switches 



 7 

 
 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
2. Washing Glass 

a. Glass shall be washed by application of glass cleaner, rubbed with a cloth and finally polished 
with a clean soft dry cloth or textile disposable wipers.   

b. Use only soft cloths on Plexiglas.   
c. The washing shall not contaminate adjacent non-glass areas.   
d. Glass shall be left clean and dry, free from film or streaks and any contamination visible when 

looking through the glass towards natural light source.   
e. Sill and frames shall be damp wiped. 

 
3. Washing Except Glass 

a. All surfaces shall be washed with a mild neutral detergent or quaternary disinfectant-
detergent solution following manufacturer’s dilution ration.   

b. Surface shall be left clean without streaks.   
c. Scrub brush or scour pad shall be used where necessary to loosen the dirt. 

 
4. Washing in Restroom, Public and Patient Areas 

a. Restroom floors, chairs, tables and mirrors shall be cleaned as specified with quaternary 
disinfectant-detergent.   

b. Commodes and urinals shall be washed clean with disinfectant-detergent and toilet brush 
then wiped dry with textile disposable wipers or clean cloths. 

 

 Damp Wiping Standards:  Surfaces shall be left clean and free from film or streaks upon completion of 
damp wiping. 

 

 Disinfecting Standards:  Urinals and commode surfaces shall be disinfected with a concentration of 
quaternary disinfectant-detergent.  It shall be allowed to stand in the fixtures for at least ten minutes.  Bowl 
cleaner shall be used once weekly for lime and iron stain removal except where water conditions require 
more frequent applications.  In these cases, bowl cleaner shall be used twice weekly. 
 

 Wet Mopping Standards:  After dust mopping, all floors shall be cleaned by wet mopping using 
quaternary ammonium germicide and shall be free from streaks, stains and film from dirt or soap.  There 
shall be no splashes on walls, baseboards, furniture and furnishings.  Wet mopping is also required on all 
stairwells, stars, landings & elevator hard floors. 

 

There shall be no mop strings left on the floor.  Surface should be dry in a reasonable amount of time.  
Corners and spaces inaccessible to the mop shall be carefully cleaned and dry.  Dirty mops are not 
acceptable for use. 

 
1. Wet Mopping 

a. All tile, wooden or hard surface floors. 
 

 Polishing Standards:  This shall be accomplished with metal polish and all surfaces shall be rubbed to a 
soft gloss with clean both or textile disposable wipers. 
 
1. Brass and Stainless Steel 

a.  Clean and polish all brass and stainless steel (i.e. railings, elevators, doorknobs, plumbing 
fixtures, kick plates, etc.) 

b. Chromium-plated, stainless steel and brass shall be polished with a dry cloth or textile 
disposable wipers. 

 

 Spray Buffing Standards (Hard Surfaced Floors):  Spray buffing all lobbies, corridors, and conference 
rooms, Spray buff product to be of the same manufacturer as floor finish. 



 8 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
 Spot Cleaning Carpets Standards:  A carpet adequately spot cleaned is free of all stains, deposits, or spills 

(Exceptions:  any stain, contractor has made every attempt to remove by industry standards, and such 
stain has become permanent to the surface).  Care will be taken to use a product or cleaning that will not 
harm or discolor the carpet fibers or backing. 

 
 

DAILY CLEANING SCHEDULE 

 Daily 
1.  Empty all wastebaskets; transport to specified area for removal.  Replace liners as needed. 
2. Clean all entryways and walkways six feet outside of entry. 
3. Sweep or dust mop all entrances, entryways, and lobbies. 
4. Spot clean all glass and interior partitions. 
5. Clean all restrooms. 

a. Clean and disinfect all drinking fountains. 
b. Clean and disinfect all sinks, toilets, and urinals. 
c. Remove all finger marks from walls, stalls, doors, and light switches. 
d. Damp wipe all ledges and sills. 
e. Clean all mirrors and ledges of mirrors. 
f. Sweep and mop all uncarpeted floors (Including Health Department Exam Rooms) 
g. Replenish all restrooms with paper towels, tissue, and soap. 
h. Empty and remove trash. 

6. Clean elevators, door tracks, and lobbies. 
7. Remove trash from all buildings to the garbage bin. 
8. Clean all kitchens by sweeping, mopping floors and removing trash only. 
9. Sweep and dust stairwells, stairs, and landings (interior).   Wet mop, as needed. 
10. Vacuum all courtrooms and offices with vacuum cleaner. 

 

 Two Times Weekly – (Minimum): 
1.  Vacuum all carpeted floors (including under desks) with a vacuum cleaner. 
2. Clean stairwells, steps and tread in the Courthouse using appropriate cleaning machine.  Wipe down 

hand rails. 
3. Dust furniture in lobby areas (top, side, and lower area), fixtures, ledges, and window sills using a 

treated dust cloth or feather duster. 
4. Remove all finger marks from furniture, fixtures, ledges and sills. 
5. Damp mop all quarry and tile floors. 

 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 Temporary Work Changes   
Locations and janitorial service at the locations may change from time to time pending on the needs of the 
County.  It is possible during the period of this Contract that new locations may be added and some 
locations removed from the schedule.  These location changes shall be processed as an amendment to the 
contract requiring Board approval and shall result in no penalties to the County. 
 
The County shall have the right to require Contractor’s personnel to perform other cleaning duties on the 
premises as the County shall deem desirable or necessary and Contractor shall promptly comply with such 
requirements, provided however, that only such of Contractor’s personnel who are performing cleaning 
services of a routine cleaning nature shall be utilized and provided further that the Contractor shall not be 
required to perform the effected routine cleaning services during such times.  No change in payment rate 
for routine work will be made due to temporary work changes. 
 
 



 9 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
 Contract Performance 

If at any time during the term of the contract the performance becomes unsatisfactory to the County, the 
Contractor will be directed to provide adequate personnel or otherwise correct the unsatisfactory 
performance.  Any cost to the County directly related to correction of unsatisfactory performance will be 
deducted from Contractor’s billing.  Contractor shall do all the work provided in the specifications and shall 
do additional extra and incidental tasks as may be considered necessary from time to time to complete the 
work in a satisfactory manner. 
 

 Storage Space 
Contractor shall store its supplies and equipment in storage areas and custodial closets designated by the 
County.  Contractor agrees to keep these areas neat and clean at all times in accordance with all applicable 
fire regulations.  Basins, sinks and drains will be wiped clean daily and sanitized at least weekly.   

 
 

BILLABLE WORK 

 Carpet Cleaning Per County Request 
Carpet cleaning shall be performed by shampooing or steam cleaning.  Carpets must be vacuumed 
thoroughly prior to shampooing or steam cleaning. 

 
 Stripping and Waxing of Floors per County Request 

Strip all tile floors, removing all dirt and old wax cleaning out door and baseboards, applying 3 coats of 
non-slip floor finish. 

 

 

INQUIRIES 

 
Requests for additional information relating to this RFP should be directed to the Purchasing Department at 
(928) 402-8612, or emailed to jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov .    Responses will be sent out to all plan holders in the 
form of an addendum. 

 

Any correspondence related to a Request for Proposals should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposals 
number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Contractor must not place the Request for Proposal 
number on the outside of an envelope containing questions, since such an envelope may be identified as a 
sealed Proposal and may not be opened until after the official Request for Proposal due date and time.  
Questions received after 3:00 pm, July 21, 2014, will not be answered.    

 

Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or 
clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


 10 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
Important:  Exhibit “A”, Instructions to Bidders and Exhibit “B”, Bidders Award Agreement, are basic content to 
Gila County Bid packages.  Individual bids may require different language for instructions and award 
agreements.  Where applicable, such changes will appear in Exhibit “C”, Minimum Product Specifications and 
Information and taken precedence over the language appearing in Exhibits “A & B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed Proposals will be received by the Gila County Purchasing Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified 
locations within Gila County.  The County seeks sealed Proposals only from qualified, experienced 
Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All 
Proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Sealed Proposal package.  It is permissible to 
copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 
 

B. Before submitting its Proposal and Qualification Form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 
Scope of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and 
difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a Proposal will constitute a 
representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, other 
than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the Proposal and Qualifications Forms provided in this Request for Proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Proposal and 
Qualifications Form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in 
the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature/Offer Page at 
time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the Contractor from further 
consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Proposal must also be legibly printed below the signature. 

Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 
E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Request for Proposal shall be listed on the 

Proposal. 
 
F. No alterations in Proposals, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise will 

be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the County 
may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Request for Sealed Proposal must be acknowledged by 
all Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 27. 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a Proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 

 

Offer & Acceptance Period 

In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the County requires an offer in response to this solicitation to be 
valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the proposal due date and time. 
 
 



 11 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
Discussions 

The County reserves the right to conduct discussion with offerors for the purpose of eliminating minor 
irregularities, informalities, or apparent clerical mistakes in the proposal in order to clarify an offer and assure 
full understanding of, and responsiveness to, solicitation requirements. 
 

Public Record 

All proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposals shall become the property of the County and 
shall become a matter of public record available for review after contract award notification. 
 
Proposal results ARE NOT provided in response to telephone or written inquires.  A tabulation of proposals 
received is on file in the Gila County Board of Supervisors Office, and Gila County Website, and available for 
review after contract award. 
 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the Notice of Request for Proposal will not be 
considered. 
 

Submittal Proposal Format 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies (3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all required 
RFP documents be submitted.  The County will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of 
Proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these 
forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.  Failure to include all required 
documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page 28, Contractor certifies: 

A. The submission of the proposal did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, State, 
County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the 
contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the Proposal.  Delivery charges 
may differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at 

the place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Proposals. 
 

3. The County is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 
confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
Proposal deadline. 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope as follows: 

1. A minimum of Three (3) copies, all with original signatures shall be provided by the bidder.   

2. The bidder’s company name shall be written on the outside front of the sealed envelope. 

3. The Proposal Title “Janitorial Service for Northern Gila County”, RFP No., “042314”, Date “July 23, 2014”, 

and time “3:00 PM” of Proposal opening shall be written on the outside of the sealed envelope.   

4. The Bidder shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the Notice.  

Late deliveries will not be considered for award. 
 

 

 

 



 12 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award the Proposal which is deemed to be 
in the best interest and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the RFP, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the lowest, 

responsive, most qualified, and responsible Contractor.  To ensure that all Contractors are 
experienced, reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a 
determination of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract 
award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Proposal of any Contractor who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Request for Proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County Attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractors who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Proposals are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a bid proposal for this RFP have the right to protest.  A protest of 
an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in 
writing and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash 
Street, Globe, Arizona  85501. 
 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Contractor shall 
maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the 
business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal 
regulations under the act. 
 
 

 
 



 13 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
EXHIBIT “B” BIDDER AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Contractor, their agents, and/or representatives, 
awarded this, or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Proposals to this or any other 
solicitation requiring sealed Proposals, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance of 
these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on page 28, Bidders Offer Page, and Exhibit “D” 
Bidders Qualification and Certification Forms(s) pages 21-22. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract is based upon the Request for Proposal, Attached Exhibits and Forms, issued by the County and 
the offer submitted by the Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the 
terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP and attached 
exhibits.  All other conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP, 
attached exhibits and forms are incorporated by this reference into this contract.  The county reserves the right 
to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-
conformity in the offer, as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer 
rejected.  The contract and incorporated RFP with attached exhibits and forms shall contain the entire 
agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and shall prevail over any 
and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreement in any 
form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after the Gila County 
Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services 
awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without express written 
approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract amendment.  Any attempt to 
alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency is a violation of the County Procurement Code.  
Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not 
limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 

 

Independent Contractor 

Contractor is an independent contractor of the County.  Contractor represents that he has or will secure, at his 
own expense, all personnel required in performing the services under this contract. Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the County.  All personnel engaged in work under this 
contract shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to perform such 
services.  Contractor warrants that he has obtained or will obtain Worker’s Compensation Insurance for his 
employees working on this contract.  It is further agreed by Contractor that he shall obey all state and federal 
statutes, rules, and regulations which are applicable to provisions of the services called for herein.  Neither 
Contractor nor any employee of the Contractor shall be deemed an officer, employee, or agent of the County. 
 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 

 

Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
 
 
 
 



 14 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
1. If  the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the 

times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may 
treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

 Payment:  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon 
receipt and acceptance of goods and services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice 
for payment from the County within thirty (30) days.  Invoices shall be submitted monthly for services 
performed under this contract. 

 
 Payment of Taxes:  The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes. 
 
 Tax Indemnification:  Contractor shall pay all Federal, state and local taxes applicable to its operation and 

any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall hold the County harmless from any 
responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or 
state and local laws and regulations any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment 
compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker’s Compensation. 

 
 IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment the Contractor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with 

the County, unless not required by law. 
 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and 
regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Use of Subcontractors 

The use of subcontractors is not permitted under this contract. 
 

 

 

 



 15 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate 
this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment 
under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the 
County before the effective date of termination. 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services/specifications required in the contract. 
 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

 
3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the 

contract. 
 

4. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 
requirements of the contract and/or give the County a positive indication that Contractor will not or 
cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State and 
Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 

Force Majeure 

Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in default under this 
Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of Force 
Majeure.  The term “Force Majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and 
occurs without its fault or negligence.  Force Majeure shall not include late performance unless the delay arises 
out of a Force Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force Majeure term and conditions. 
 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the delayed party shall 
notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practical, of the commencement thereof and shall 
specify the causes of such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be hand-delivered or mailed certified-return 
receipt and shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party 
shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has 
done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by contract modification for a period of time equal to the 
time that results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party from performing in accordance with this 
Contract. 
 

 

 

 



 16 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or 
loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, or 
employees.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that Contractor will 
be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 
applicable.  In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work 
performed by the Contractor for the County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 17 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

 
EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 

It is the intent of this Invitation for Proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
janitorial services for Northern Gila County facilities. 
 

General Purpose 

1. All product specifications are minimum.   
 
2. Contractor should have adequate manufacturing/stocking facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 
 
3. All Proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise stated 

in the Proposal specifications. 
 
4. Contractor shall review its Proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

a. One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures shall be 

submitted 

b. Qualification and Certification Forms  

c. Price Sheet  

d. References List  

e. No Collusion Certification  

f. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance  

g. Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment   

h. Offer Page   

i. Background Investigation Authorization 

 

Term and Renewal 
The term of the Contract shall commence upon award and remain in effect for a period of one (1) year, unless 
terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The Contractor agrees that the County shall 
have the right, at its sole option, to renew the Contract for three (3) more additional one-year periods or 
portions thereof.  In the event the County exercises such rights, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the 
original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period with the possible exception of 
price and/or minor scope additions and and/or deletions. 
 

Price Adjustment 

The County may review a fully documented request for a price increase only after the Contract has been in 
effect for one (1) year.  A price increase adjustment shall only be considered at the time of a contract extension 
and shall be a factor in the extension review process.  The Board of Supervisors shall determine whether the 
requested Contract price increase or an alternate option is in the best interest of the County.  Any agreed upon 
Contract price changes will be applied to each specific location under the contract and documented on the 
renewal amendment as requested. 
 

Evaluation of Proposal  
Award shall be made to the responsible Offeror whose proposal is determined in to be the most advantageous 
to the County based upon the evaluation criteria listed below.  The evaluation factors are listed in their relative 
order of importance and percentage weight. 
 

a.    Cost  (30%) 
b.    Qualifications and Prior Experience  (40%) 
c.    Conformity to Submittal Requirements  (10%) 
d.    References  (20%) 

 



 18 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
Negotiations with Individual Contractors 
 Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of a 

Contractors Price or any information derived from competing Proposal Prices or any information derived 
from competing Proposals is prohibited.   

 
a.    Any Response to a request for Clarification of a Proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all Negotiations. 

 
 For the purposes of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the following 

methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with Responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or Contract Award.  

 
b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Director to enter into exclusive 

Negotiations with the Responsible Contractor whose Proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most Advantageous to the County. 

 
 Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be conducted 

without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract Award nor shall 
it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

 
b. If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County may enter 

into exclusive Negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to repeat the 
formal Solicitation process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 19 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any 
warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
Contractor, his agents, representatives or employees.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits 
contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance 
of the work under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, or employees and Contractor is 
free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary.  
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 
 
 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 
 General Aggregate $2,000,000 
 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall be endorsed to include master key coverage. 
b. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The 

County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

c. Policy shall be endorsed to include coverage for "care-custody-control". 
 

2. Automobile Liability 
  Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the 

performance of this Contract. 
  Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The 
County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including automobiles 
owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 

3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 
 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 
a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 

following provisions: 
1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 

shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect 
to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 

 



 20 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this 

Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in 
coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to 
the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 
85501, and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance 

(ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for 
each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.   

 
 Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal 

is a material breach of contract. 
 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing, 1400 E. Ash 

St., Globe, AZ 85501.  The County project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the 
certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be 

made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal 
Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 21 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Contractors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 042314 Janitorial Service for Northern Gila County 
 
The applicant submitting this Proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Physical Address, E-Mail Address and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons 

Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 

contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors disqualification, and whether this disqualification 

remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Contractor prior to contract expiration date 

(under your Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details 

including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the narrative 

part of this Contract. 

 

5. CONTRACTOR  MUST ALSO PROVIDE AT LEAST THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION ALONG WITH 

THEIR PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL:   

a. A brief history of the Company. 

b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 

c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the Scope 

of Services described herein, shall be submitted on the Reference List, attached hereon and 

made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 

e. Sealed list of “equipment used” in performing the services must accompany proposal submitted 

by Contractor. 

f. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 

 

 



 22 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
 

6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  ___________________________________________ 
                                              (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed loss ratio 
and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate 
may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business License Number:  ___________________________________________________________ 
                    (If Applicable) 

 

8. Contractor must provide copies of all required Arizona Certifications and Licenses in performing the 
scope of services provided in this request for proposals. 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ____________________________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ____________________________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 23 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 042314 Janitorial Service for 
Northern Gila County. 
 
Contractor Name:  ____________________________________________________            Phone No.:  _____________________________ 

 
 

Location 
Square  

Foot 
Annual Cost  
Per Location 

 
Payson Courthouse 

 
13,983 

 
   $ 

 
Health, Rabies, Environmental 

 
4,298 

 
   $ 

 
Community Action/Co-op Extension 

 
1,100 

 
   $ 

 
Administration Building 

 
6,500 

 
   $ 

 
Assessor/Recorder 

 
1,896 

     
   $ 

 
Sheriff’s Office 

 
7,340 

 
   $ 

Sheriff’s Office Jail Administration Included in 
Sheriff’s 

office footage 
 

 
  $ 

 
Justice of the Peace Court 

 
Included in 

Sheriff’s 
office footage 

 

 
  $ 

   

 
TOTAL ANNUAL COST FOR JANITORIAL SERVICE 

   
   $ 

 
 

BILLABLE WORK:  (page 9) Cost Per Square Foot 

 
Cost for Carpet Cleaning 

       
     $            

 
Cost for Stripping & Waxing Floors 

      
     $ 

 
 
 
 
 

*Each location shall be billed separately with location identified on invoice when submitted to Gila County 
Accounts Payable Department for payment.  County Terms “Net 30”.  Services shall be billed monthly 

 
All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 

 



 24 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
REFERENCE LIST 

 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts of similar size and scope as this Request for 
Proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible.  Bidder may attach 
further reference information as necessary. 
 
 
1. Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________     Address:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Job Length of Time:       _______________Months          _______________Years 

Job Description:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2. Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________     Address:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Job Length of Time:       _______________Months          _______________Years 

Job Description:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
3. Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________     Address:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Job Length of Time:       _______________Months          _______________Years 

Job Description:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
        ____________________________________________________________ 

           Company Name 
 

_____________________________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
           Title 
 



 25 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR 

CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 
IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 

 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________                                                                     
(Name of Individual) 
 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                 (Title)  

of___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 
 
That he is bidding on Gila County BID NO. 042314 JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR NORTHERN GILA 

COUNTY, GLOBE, AZ, and, 
 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said _______________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                      (Name of Business) 
 
 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 

 

        __________________________________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
__________________________________________________________  
By 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______________ day of ____________________________, 20____________. 

 
______________________________________________________________                My Commission expires: 
Notary Public   
                ________________________________________________ 

 

 



 26 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).   
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor in order to verify such 
party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any 
other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Contractor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract.   
 
 Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 
        Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
        __________________________________________________ 
        Printed Name 
 
        __________________________________________________ 
        Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 27 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 
BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and submitted with 
this Request for Proposals (RFP).  If Contractor fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid 
documents, all with original signatures, the RFP may be determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM                     _________________ 

PRICE SHEET                    _________________ 

REFERENCE LIST                    _________________ 

NO COLLUSION IN BIDDING                   _________________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE                _________________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT                _________________ 

OFFER PAGE                    _________________ 

BACKGROUND AUTHORIZATION                  _________________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

    #1  #2               #3             #4           #5 

INITIALS         _______________        _______________      _______________      _______________     _______________ 
 
DATE         _______________        _______________      _______________      _______________     _______________  
 

 

Signed and dated this __________________ day of ____________________________________, 2014 
 
 
               ____________________________________________________________ 
                                          Contractor: 

                 ____________________________________________________________ 
                                     By:   
 

 
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Purchasing Department and bearing 
the following statement on the outside of the envelope:  Company Name, Request for Sealed Proposals No. 
042314 Janitorial Service for Northern Gila County.  All proposals shall be filed with Gila County Procurement at 
1400 E. Ash St., Guerrero Building, Globe, AZ on or before July 23, 2014, 3:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 



 28 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 042314   

 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE 

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Request for Proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal: 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

Company Name 

__________________________________________________________ 

Address 

__________________________________________________________ 

City                                       State                     Zip 

__________________________________________________________ 

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign 

__________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name 

__________________________________________________________ 

Title 

For Clarification of this Offer, Contact: 

 

Name:  _________________________________________________ 

 

Title:  __________________________________________________ 

 

Phone No.: ____________________________________________ 

 

Fax:  ____________________________________________________ 

 

Email: __________________________________________________ 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 

The Contractor is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in RFP No.: 042314 including all terms 

and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Contractor’s Offer as accepted by County/public entity.  

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as Contract No. _______042314_______. 

 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
Awarded this ________ day of _____________________, 2014 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

ATTEST 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal 
  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 

 
 
 



 29 

 

 

 

 

Waiver of Liability and Release Form 

BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION AUTHORIZATION 

 

 

I _________________________.__________ hereby give the Gila County Purchasing Department the right   
               (Print First, Middle Initial, & Last Name) 

to make a thorough investigation of my background as part of the bidding proposal process for Bid No. 

042314. 

 

The term “back-ground investigation” as used in this document refers to any and all information and 

sources of information that may be deemed necessary to obtain or contact, to determine the offerors fitness 

as a bid award candidate. 

 

I understand that I do not have to agree to this background investigation, but that refusal to do so may 

exclude me from consideration for bid award. 

 

I understand that information collected during this investigation will be limited to that appropriate to 

determining my suitability for the project out for bids and that all such information collected during the 

investigation will be kept confidential. 

 

I hereby release from liability and promise to hold harmless, under any and all possible causes of legal 

action, any and all persons or entities who shall furnish any information or opinions to the Purchasing 

Department, its agents or employees. 

 

I hereby release from liability and promise to hold harmless, under any and all possible causes of legal 

action, the political subdivision, the Purchasing Department, its agents or employees for any statements, 

acts or omissions in the course of my background investigation. 

 

I release from liability given by me to the political division, its officers, agents and employees, all others as 

mentioned above, shall apply to any rights of action arising from the denial of bid award based on 

information received from the background investigation.    

 

 

Please read carefully before signing.      

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  _______________________________________  Date:  __________________ 

 

 

 

Date of Birth:  _____________________ 



   

ARF-2539     Regular Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton,
Public Works
Division
Director

Submitted By:
Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Public Works Division
Fiscal Year: 2014 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

N/A Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Acquisition of the NAPA Auto Parts Building at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, AZ.

Background Information
In 2007, Gila County began the process of developing a Long Range Facility
Management Plan to accommodate County managerial needs and growth.  It was
determined in 2007, that the acquisition of future properties would be needed as the
County Government expanded to meet the needs of the constituency. 

The Board of Supervisors discussed this issue at its meeting of May 6, 2014, and, at
that time, the Board voted to continue the discussion to the Board's June 24th
meeting.  The June 24th meeting includes an agenda item to adopt the County's
Tentative Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Budget, so the Board felt it was appropriate to decide
upon this proposed expense during the budget discussions.

Also, at the May 6th meeting the Board requested more information regarding all of
the alternatives to address our office space needs for County operations including
square footage requirements. Consultant Brevick has developed the inventory and
projection of square footage requirements which will be discussed at the July 29,
2014 Board Work Session.

Evaluation
The Long Range Facility Management Plan, conducted in 2007, has recently been



The Long Range Facility Management Plan, conducted in 2007, has recently been
updated to review the condition of current existing County facilities in the Globe and
Payson areas.  While there has not been a drastic rise in population in Gila County in
recent years, the business of providing programs and assistance that will benefit and
aid the residents of Gila County is an ongoing endeavor.  It takes staff and resources
to apply for grants, manage resources and implement programs that will assist Gila
County citizens. In particular, the facilities in the Payson area are sorely in need of
expansion. Parking continues to be an ongoing problem for residents needing to
access Gila County buildings. The purchase of the NAPA Auto Parts Building at 110
W. Main Street in Payson, AZ will aid in alleviating some of the space restraints Gila
County is currently experiencing in Payson.

In addition, other office and court space needs must be considered on a county-wide
basis.

Conclusion
Purchasing the NAPA Auto Parts Building will enable Gila County to expand the Gila
County Payson complex to acquire the land for future expansion of facilities as
referenced in the Amended Long Range Facilities Management Plan. 

The plan which was presented at the February 25, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Work
Session has been amended with the inclusion of building square footage availability
and future needs for the entire county. Additional discussion and consideration
should be given to the oveall space needs of the County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board continue the proposal to purchase the NAPA Auto
Parts building until after the Work Session of July 29th at which time you will
consider the additional square footage information provided by the consultant. While
purchasing the NAPA property for $450,500 would implement some of the
modifications suggested by the Long Range Facilities Management Plan and help
alleviate some of the space constraints currently being experienced by the County in
the Payson area, it is important to consider the county-wide space needs.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to continue this proposal to purchase the NAPA auto
parts property at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an amount not to exceed
$450,500, until after the July 29, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Work Session at which
time additional information regarding the Countywide square footage needs will be
presented and discussed. 
(Don McDaniel/Steve Stratton)



   

ARF-2606     Regular Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager,
County Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Transportation Needs and Tax Levy Resolution No. 14-06-09

Background Information
On October 29, 2013, the Board agreed to appoint a Citizens Committee to explore the
advisability of holding an election in November 2014 to get voter approval to continue
the 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax for an additional 20 years.

On January 7, 2014, a 16 member Citizens Committee was established by the Board.
The Committee met twice and after receiving a considerable amount of information
from County staff regarding the positive impact the tax has had for the last twenty
years and transportation needs in the future, they unanimously agreed to call for a
continuation of the tax.

On March 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors voted to: 1) receive the Transportation
Excise Tax Continuation Citizens Committee recommendation to adopt a resolution
calling for a November 4, 2014, election providing funding to be used solely for
highway and street purposes; 2) thank and acknowledge the following
sixteen Committee members with a certificate of appreciation: Gary Andress, Don
Ascoli, Robert Bleyl, Ed Carpenter, Darryl Dalley, Rex Hinshaw, Mitch Malkovich,
Ronnie McDaniel, Joe Miller, Dixie Mundy, Mickie Nye, Melvin Palmer, Marie Petroff,
Cliff Potts, Rick Powers and Joe Sanchez; and, 3) officially disband the Committee.

Since the Board accepted the Committee's recommendation in March, staff has been
working with consultants to develop a brochure of pertinent facts and plans and to
provide information to the public through community meetings and presentations to
various civic and community organizations. Staff has also prepared a needs and levy
resolution for Board approval. 

Evaluation
Resolution No. 14-06-09 is a resolution providing funding to be used for highway and
street purposes including costs of right-of-way acquisitions and expenses related
thereto and construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside
development of county, city and town roads, streets and bridges and payment of
principal and interest on highway and street bonds, and for regional transportation
projects that are included in the regional transportation plan of the County prepared
by the County, any city, town or regional planning agency; and levying a
transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said purposes.



The resolution is recommended pursuant to applicable sections of Arizona Revised
Statutes Title 42, Chapter 6, Article3, to provide funds for transportation needs of Gila
County including the unincorporated areas and the incorporated cities and towns
located therein. In order to adequately provide for those transportation needs for the
safety of the public, and in a manner which takes into consideration the population
growth of both the County and the cities and towns within the County during the
twenty (20) year period this Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax is in
effect, it is the intention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors that the funds
collected be used for any and all transportation uses authorized by statute. Currently,
uses are prescribed in Arizona Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 17, Article 3,
(Transportation Excise Tax Distribution in Less Populated Counties).

This Resolution will levy upon persons as a result of their business activities within
the County, cities and towns and shall be collected by the Arizona Department of
Revenue, Transportation Excise Taxes at rate equal to ten percent (10%) of the State
of Arizona transaction privilege tax rates applying to engaging or continuing in the
County, cities and towns in a business taxed under Arizona Revised Statutes Title 42,
Chapter 5, Article 1.

Conclusion
The Citizens Committee thoroughly reviewed uses to which this tax has been put in
the past 20 years and studied the future needs as set forth in the transportation
plans of the County and major population centers in the County and recommended
the Board call for an election to continue the tax.

The tax revenue would be collected by the State Department of Revenue and
distributed to Gila County for use within the unincorporated areas of the County and
to the incorporated cities and towns for use within their jurisdictions. The calculation
of the amounts to be distributed shall be made on the basis that the population of
each jurisdiction (Gila County, cities, towns) bears to the total population of the
County.

Each respective jurisdiction shall receive a minimum of 0.85% of the total amount to
be distributed. In addition, after the distribution of the minimum to each jurisdiction,
the remaining amount shall be distributed to each jurisdiction in the amount to be
determined by multiplying the total tax revenues remaining after the minimum
distribution, by a fraction, the numerator being the population of each respective
jurisdiction and denominator being the total population of Gila County including the
cities and towns in the County. The 2014 Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise
Tax Distribution Formula illustrates the way the revenue would be distributed based
upon the 2013 revenues. The 2014 revenues will likely be different.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09
establishing the uses, levying a 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax and prescribing
the method of distribution of the tax revenue to the County, cities and towns.  

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09, a resolution



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09, a resolution
providing funding to be used for highway and street purposes including costs of right
of way acquisitions and expenses related thereto and construction, reconstruction,
maintenance, repair and roadside development of county, city and town roads, streets
and bridges and payment of principal and interest on highway and street bonds, and
for regional transportation projects that are included in the regional transportation
plan of the County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional planning
agency; and levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said purposes.
(Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-06-09
Transporation Tax Distribution Formula per Resolution



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-06-09 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FUNDING TO BE USED FOR HIGHWAY AND 

STREET PURPOSES INCLUDING COSTS OF RIGHTS OF WAY ACQUISITIONS 

AND EXPENSES RELATED THERETO AND CONSTRUCTION, 

RECONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND ROADSIDE 

DEVELOPMENT OF COUNTY, CITY AND TOWN ROADS, STREETS AND 

BRIDGES AND PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON HIGHWAY AND 

STREET BONDS, AND FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS THAT 

ARE INCLUDED IN THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN OF THE 

COUNTY PREPARED BY THE COUNTY, ANY CITY, TOWN OR REGIONAL 

PLANNING AGENCY; AND LEVYING A TRANSPORTATION EXCISE TAX TO 

PROVIDE MONEYS FOR SAID PURPOSES. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Title. 
This resolution shall be known as the “2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax 
Resolution.” 
 
Section 2. Purpose. 
A. This resolution is adopted pursuant to applicable sections of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 

42, Chapter 6, Article 3, to provide funds for the transportation needs of Gila County 
including the unincorporated County areas and the incorporated cities and towns located 
therein.  In order to adequately provide for those transportation needs for the safety of the 
public, and in a manner which takes into consideration the population growth of both the 
County and the cities and towns within the County during the twenty (20) year period this 
Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax is in effect, it is the intention of the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors that the funds collected be used for any and all transportation 
uses authorized by statute. Currently, uses are prescribed in Arizona Revised Statutes Title 
28, Chapter 17, Article 3, and (Transportation Excise Tax Distribution in Less Populated 
Counties).  The revenues raised from the tax levied pursuant to the terms hereof shall be 
used for transportation purposes such as: 
 
1. Highway and street purposes including roadway construction, reconstruction, 

maintenance, repair and roadside construction of county, city or town roads, streets, 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 2 of 5 

 

bridges, and railroad crossings. 
2. Payment of principal and interest on highway and street bonds. 
3. Multi-modal transportation systems including single and multi-use trails, sidewalks and 

curbs, and pedestrian pathways. 
4. Regional transportation studies. 
5. Cooperative transportation projects and studies between the federal government and 

its agencies, the State government and its agencies, and the incorporated cities and 
towns within the County. 
 

B. It is the intention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors that any statutory changes 
affecting the transportation uses of the funds collected herefrom shall be applicable and 
included as authorized uses of the funds in addition to those uses presently included in the 
statute(s).  
 

C. The hereinabove described uses are severable.  Should any provision of this resolution be 
deemed by a Court to be illegal or invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, 
provisions, or any valid use of the revenues collected shall not be affected thereby, and said 
illegal or invalid part, term or provision shall not be deemed a part of this resolution and 
shall be severed therefrom, notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the 
contrary. 

 
Section 3. Definitions 
 
2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax. The tax imposed by this resolution. 
 
Board. The Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona. 
 
County. The County of Gila, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. 
 
Department. The Department of Revenue of the State of Arizona.  
 
Population. “Population” means the population determined in the most recent United States 
decennial census or the most recent special census as provide in § 28-6532 and revisions to the 
decennial or special census certified by the United States bureau of the census. 
Added by Laws 1995, Ch. 132 § 3, eff. Oct. 1, 1997. Amended by Laws 1996, ch. 76, § 245, eff. October 1, 1997. 

 
Transportation Excise Tax. The 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax. 
 
Section 4. Other Definitions. 
To the extent terms are not defined herein, the definition of terms set forth in Arizona Revised 
Statutes § 42-5001, a copy of which is on file in the Gila County Clerk’s office and is by this 
reference made a part hereof, are adopted herein. 
 
 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 3 of 5 

 

Section 5. Imposition of Tax. 
There is hereby levied upon persons as a result of their business activities within the County, 
cities and towns and shall be collected by the Department, Transportation Excise Taxes at rates 
equal to ten percent (10%) of the State of Arizona transaction privilege tax rates applying to 
each person engaging or continuing in the County, cities and towns in a business taxed under 
Arizona Revised Statutes Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1.  Such taxes shall be measured by the 
amount or volume of business transacted by persons on account of their business activities, 
and in the amounts to be determined by the application of rates against values, gross proceeds 
of sales or gross income, as the case may be, as prescribed by this resolution. 
 
Section 6. Schedule of Tax Rates. 
The Transportation Excise Taxes levied by this resolution are levied and shall be collected at the 
following rates applied to the values, gross proceeds of sale or gross income, as the case may 
be from the business of every person engaging or continuing in the County in the business 
classifications contained in Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1 as 
amended, copies of which are on file in the Gila County Clerk’s office and are by this reference 
made a part hereof, as follows: 
 
(a) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.a. 

Intrastate transportation of persons, freight or property as defined 
and described in A.R.S. § 42-1062 – Transportation classification. 

½ of 1% 
 

(b) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.b. 
Producing and furnishing electricity, natural or artificial gas and 
water to consumers as described in A.R.S. § 42-5063 – Utilities 
classification; definitions. 

½ of 1% 

(c) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.c. 
Telecommunication services, as described in A.R.S. § 42-5064 – 
Telecommunications classification; definition. 

½ of 1% 

(d) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.d. 
Intrastate operation of pipelines and conduits for transporting oil or 
natural or artificial gas from one point to another as defined and 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5067 – Pipeline classification. 

½ of 1% 

(e) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.e. 
Intrastate operation of private car lines as defined and described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5068 – Private car line classification and A.R.S. § 42-1430, 
et seq. 

½ of 1% 

(f) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.f. 
Publication of newspapers, magazines and other periodicals and 
publications if published in this state as defined and described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5065 – Publication classification; definition. 

½ of 1% 

(g) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.g. 
Job printing, engraving, embossing and copying as defined and 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5066 – Job printing classification. 

½ of 1% 

(h) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.h. ½ of 1% 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 4 of 5 

 

Prime contracting and dealership of manufactured buildings as 
defined and described in A.R.S. § 42-5075 – Prime contracting 
classification; exemptions; definitions. 

(i) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.i. 
Operating as an owner builder as described and defined in A.R.S. § 
42-5076 – Owner builder sales classification; definitions. 

½ of 1% 

(j) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.j. 
Operation of an amusement business as defined and described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5073 – Amusement classification. 

½ of 1% 

(k) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.k. 
Operation of a restaurant as defined and described in A.R.S. § 42-
5074 – Restaurant classification. 

½ of 1% 

(l) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.l. 
The leasing or renting of tangible personal property as defined and 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5071 – Personal property rental 
classification. 

½ of 1% 

(m) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.m. 
Retail sales as defined and described in A.R.S. § 42-5061. 

½ of 1% 

(n) A.R.S. § 42-5010.2. 
Engaging in the business of transient lodging classification as 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5070. 

11/20 of 1% 

(o) A.R.S. § 42-5010.3 
Engaging in continuing in the mining classification as described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5072 – Mining classification; definition. 

313/1000 of 1% 

(p) Any additional business classifications the State of Arizona may 
deem to be taxable. 

 

 
Section 7. Exemptions, Exclusions, Deductions and Definitions 
All exemptions, exclusions, deductions and definitions contained in A.R.S. Title 42, Chapter 5, 
shall apply to the categories of businesses listed in Section 6 hereinabove and to the 
transactions described therein.  Copies of these statutes are on file in the Gila County Clerk’s 
office and are made a part hereof by this reference.  
 
Section 8. Administration. 
Unless the context otherwise requires, the administration of the Transportation Excise Tax shall 
be governed by the provisions of A.R.S. Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1, except: 
1. A separate license is not required for the tax imposed by this resolution, and the tax due 

hereunder shall be included, reported and paid with the transaction privilege tax of the 
State of Arizona. 

2. A separate bond is not required of employees of the Department in administering the 
Transportation Excise Tax. 

3. The tax imposed by this resolution may be included without segregation in any notice and 
lien filed for unpaid transaction privilege tax of the State of Arizona. 

 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 5 of 5 

 

Section 9. Distribution of Revenues. 
The Department shall distribute the tax revenues raised, to Gila County for use within the 
unincorporated areas of the County, and to the incorporated cities and towns for use within 
their jurisdictions.  Any cities and towns hereafter incorporated shall be entitled to their share 
of the tax revenues distributable to the County, cities and towns beginning in the first quarter 
of the Arizona State fiscal year after their incorporation. The calculation of the amounts to be 
distributed shall be made on the basis that the population of each jurisdiction (Gila County, 
cities, towns) bears to the total population of the County.   
 
Each respective jurisdiction shall receive a minimum of 0.85% of the total amount to be 
distributed. In addition, after the distribution of the minimum to each jurisdiction, the 
remaining amount shall be distributed to each jurisdiction in amounts to be determined by 
multiplying the total tax revenues remaining after the minimum distribution, by a fraction, the 
numerator being the population of each respective jurisdiction and the denominator being the 
total population of Gila County including the cities and towns in the County. 
 
The revenues raised by this excise tax shall not be subject to the jurisdiction’s expenditure and 
revenue limitations. 
 
The cities, the towns and the County shall only use the tax revenues for the purposes 
authorized by this resolution. 
 
Section 10. Effective Date; Time in Effect. 
The 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax shall take effect on January 1, 2015, if 
theretofore a majority of the qualified electors voting at a countywide special election approves 
the 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax, and shall be in effect for a period of 20 
years from such effective date. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June, 2014. 
 
ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_________________________  __________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy Attorney Principal 



2014 Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax Distribution Formula (1)

Entity Population
0.85% Minimum 

Distribution

Population Based 

Percentage

Population Based 

Distribution

Total 

Distribution

Unincorporated 25,466 $25,533 47.51% $1,342,214 $1,367,747

Globe 7,532 $25,533 14.06% $397,212 $422,745

Hayden 798 $25,533 1.49% $42,094 $67,627

Miami 1,837 $25,533 3.43% $96,902 $122,435

Payson 15,301 $25,533 28.55% $806,571 $832,104

Star Valley 2,310 $25,533 4.30% $121,480 $147,013

Winkelman 353 $25,533 0.66% $18,646 $44,179

Total 53,597 $178,731 100.00% $2,825,119 $3,003,850

(1) Based upon 

Revenue Received in 

2013



   

ARF-2619     Regular Agenda Item      4. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approve and accept Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) Grant Renewal
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y3 for San Carlos Region Parent Outreach and Awareness for Early Literacy.

Background Information
On April 1, 2014, the Gila County Library Board of Directors gave authorization to apply for this Grant Renewal.
This is a continuation of the Library District's early literacy initiative. The total grant renewal award is for $70,000
to be used for parent education within each community and to enroll children ages birth to five in the Imagination
Library Program, which mails an age appropriate book each month to each enrolled child. In addition, children who
turn five during the grant year, will be registered to receive an age appropriate magazine mailed to their home for
one year.  This grant also provides for two temporary part time Community Outreach Liaison's to provide parent
contact and education throughout the service area, and a temporary part time Early Literacy Programming
Coordinator to conduct parent/child workshops throughout the region.

Evaluation
The current Early Literacy Grant from "First Things First" has been highly successful in providing curriculum
materials and educational training to the library and the community on the importance of early literacy skills and
the importance of reading to children.

The Community Outreach Liaison has worked throughout the region to contact parents and provide information
and enroll children in the program. To date, there are 584 children enrolled and receiving books monthly in the
San Carlos Region.
The Early Literacy Coordinator has held 52 workshops throughout the service area.

Conclusion
This grant allows the Library District the opportunity and ability to provide early literacy training and materials to
families and children ages birth through five years within the San Carlos Region.  This grant has a goal of providing
materials to 861 children.

Recommendation
Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve and accept this Grant Renewal
between the Gila County Library District and the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, and the Arizona
Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) in the amount of $70,000 for the period of July
1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors)  Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal Amendment
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y3 San Carlos Apache Parent Outreach and Awareness which is a "Community-Based
Literacy Grant" in the amount of $70,000 for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.
(Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Renewal San Carlos Early Literacy 2015
County Attorney Legal Explanation
Original Grant GRA-RC029-13-0533-01



Grant Application GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y2



Grant Renewal Amendment
• •• •--.L.I.L
• •

Page

1

of

1

Early Childhood Health and
Development Board (First

Things First)

4000 North Central
Avenue, Suite 800

Phoenix, Arizona 85012

(602) 771-5000
(602) 265-0009 fax

2015 Grant Award
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01- Y3

San Carlos Apache
Parent Outreach and Awareness

1. Pursuant to Special Terms and Conditions, "Contract Renewal", ofthe above referenced Grant
Agreement/Contract Award, the State of Arizona hereby exercises its sole option to renew the Grant
Agreement/Contract Award number referenced above. The renewal start date is July 1, 2014 and end
date is June 30, 2015.

FIRST THINGS FIRST
Ready for School. Set for Life.

CONTRACTOR:

Gila County Library District
1400 E.Ash St.
Globe, Arizona 85501

PURPOSEOFAMENDMENT:

2. Total award amount for the contract period is $70,000.00

3. The Grantee is responsible for all updated Standards of Practice located for reference in the First
Things First Grant Management System known as PGMS under Grantee Resources.

The above referenced amendment is hereby executed
effective July 1, 2014 once signed and dated below:

4. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

Contractor hereby acknowledges receipt and understanding
of the contract amendment.

Date

Name Michael A. Pastor
Josh Allen
CFO/COO

Date June 24, 2014

Approved as to form:

Signature. _

Title Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisolrs--------------------

Date: June 24, 2014
Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



GRANTEE AGREEMENT 

GRA-RC029-13-0S33-01 

Between The 
San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, 

Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board 
(First Things First) 

And 
Gila County Library District 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. Title 8, Chapter 13, Article 3 charges the Arizona Early Childhood Development and 
Health Board (also known as First Things First), the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council 
(hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR) with the responsibility of administering funds. 

THEREFORE, it is agreed that the GRANTOR shall provide funding to Gila County Library District 
(hereinafter referred to as the GRANTEE) for services under the terms of this Grant Agreement. 

I. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 

The purpose of this Agreement is to specify the responsibilities and procedures for the GRANTEE 
role in administering Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board grant funds. 

II. TERM OF AGREEMENT, TERMINATION AND AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement shall become effective on August 1, 2012 and shall terminate on June 30, 2013. 
This agreement is renewable for two (2) additional twelve (12) month extensions, based on 
satisfactory performance and continued available funding. 

III. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

The GRANTEE shall provide the following services for the GRANTOR as approved and 
summarized below: 

A. All parents and families of young children can benefit from an increased awareness of early 
childhood development including early language and emergent literacy and of how to best 
support development. (Refer to Section III Scope of Work, Exhibit A, Statement of need for a 
full description.) 

B. The First Things First Parent Outreach and Awareness strategy provides families of young 

children with information, materials or connections to resources and activities that increase 

awareness of early childhood development and health and the resources, supports or 

programs available for young children and their families. The San Carlos Apache Regional 

Partnership Council's intent is to implement the Imagination Library Book Club program 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 1 of 59 



through the Gila County Library District and services provided at the San Carlos Public 

Library on the reservation which is an affiliate of the County Library District. (Refer to 

Section III Scope of Work, Exhibit A, Description of the strategy including Standards of 

Practice for a full description.) 

C. This strategy will be implemented to deliver books to 800 children in the region through the 
Gila County Library District and services provided at the San Carlos Public Library on the 
reservation which is an affiliate of the County Library District. (Refer to Section III Scope of 
Work, Exhibit A, Target Population to serve.) 

D. Adhere to the First Things First Data Collection Target Service Unit Guidance Document 
(Exhibit C). 

E. Adhere to the First Things First Data Security Guidelines (Exhibit D). 
F. Comply with the Scope of Work Narrative Responses, Implementation Plan and Submit the 

Grant Management Forms provided by First Things First (Attachments A - H). 
NOTE: Narrative Responses, Implementation Plan, Line Item Budget, and Line Item Budget 
Narrative are required to be submitted prior to this agreement becomes final and is signed 
by First Things First. Submission is required by July 5, 2012. 
Agencies and Departments implementing FTF programming are required to coordinate and 
collaborate with all First Things First grant recipients. Collaboration is critical to developing a 
seamless service delivery system for children and families. 

IV. MANNER OF FINANCING 

The GRANTOR shall: 

a) Provide up to $36,663.00 to GRANTEE for services provided under Paragraph III. 

b) Payment made by the GRANTOR to the GRANTEE shall be on a reimbursement basis only 
and is conditioned upon receipt of applicable, accurate and complete reimbursement 
documents to be submitted by the GRANTEE via the First Things First on-line grants 
management system. Final payment will be contingent upon receipt of all fiscal and 
programmatic reports required of the GRANTEE under this Agreement. 

c) Prior to processing payment, a review of submitted quarterly program narratives and data 
submission reports will be conducted as well as a review of any other required submission of 
programmatic information by the grantor to ensure programmatic requirements have been 
fulfilled. Timely submission of these reports is also required for payment. 

V. FISCAL RESPONSBILITY 

It is understood and agreed that the total amount of the funds used under this Agreement shall 
be used for the project(s) and scope of work outlined in this Agreement. Therefore, should the 
project not be completed, be partially completed, or be completed at a lower cost than the 
original budget called for, the amount reimbursed to the GRANTEE shall be for only the amount 
of dollars actually spent by the GRANTEE. For any funds received under this Agreement for 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 2 of 59 



which expenditure is disallowed by an audit exception by the GRANTOR, the State, or Federal 
government, the GRANTEE shall reimburse said funds directly to the GRANTOR immediately. 

VI. FINANCIAL AUDIT 

GRANTEE agrees to terms specified in A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and 35-215. 

In addition, in compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act (31 U.S.C. par., 7501-7507), as 
amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104 to 156), GRANTEE must have an 
annual audit conducted in accordance with Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 
#A-133 ("Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations") if GRANTEE 
expends more than $500,000 from federal awards/dollars, a copy of the GRANTEE's audit report 
for the previous fiscal year must be submitted to the GRANTOR for review within thirty (30) days 
of signing this Agreement. Otherwise the annual audit review/statement must be provided to 
the GRANTOR within thirty (30) days. 

VII. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

The GRANTEE agrees to comply with the Federal Debarment and Suspension regulations as 
outlined in the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions". 

VIII. FUNDS MANAGEMENT 

The GRANTEE must maintain funds received under this Agreement in separate ledger accounts 
and cannot mix these funds with other sources. GRANTEE must manage funds according to 
applicable regulations for administrative requirements, costs principles and audits. 

The GRANTEE must maintain adequate business systems to comply with State of Arizona 
requirements. The business systems that must be maintained are: 

• Financial Management 

• Procurement 

• Personnel 

• Property 

• Travel 

A system is adequate if it is 1) written; 2) consistently followed - it applies in all similar 
circumstances; and 3) conSistently applied - it applies to all sources of funds. Rates for mileage, 
lodging and meals are limited to the rates established by the State of Arizona Travel Policy 
(http://gao.az.gov!travelldefault.asp). 

IX. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Regular reports by the GRANTEE shall include: 

Programmatic, Data Submission, and Financial Reports 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 3 of 59 



1. The GRANTEE shall provide quarterly program narrative & evaluation data reports to the 
GRANTOR within twenty (20) working days of the last day of the quarter in which 
services are provided. Reporting is submitted via the First Things First on-line grants 
management system known as Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS) and 
shall contain such information as deemed necessary by the GRANTOR. 

a. Quarterly Programmatic Narrative & Data Submission Reports are due: 

i. Period: July 1, 2012 - September 30, 2013 
Due: October 20, 2012 

ii. Period: October 1, 2012 - December 31,2012 
Due: January 20, 2013 

iii. January 1, 2013 - March 31, 2013 
Due: April 20, 2013 

iv. April 1, 2013 -June 30,2013 
Due: July 20, 2013 

v. The final programmatic report as submitted shall be marked FINAL 

b. Financial Reimbursement Reports 

i. The GRANTEE shall provide, as frequently as monthly but not less than 
quarterly, requests for reimbursement. Reimbursement requests shall be 
submitted using the First Things First online grants management system known 
as Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS). This submission includes a 
basic line item ledger to detail the type of expense relating to the approved line 
item budget and validates approved staffing assigned to the project, travel is 
within the approved state rate limitation, and other line item budget 
expenditure details. 

ii. The GRANTEE shall submit a final reimbursement request for expenses 
obligated prior to the end of the termination of this Agreement no more than 
forty-five (45) days after the end of the Agreement. Requests for 
reimbursement received later than the forty-five (45) days after the Agreement 
termination will not be paid. The final reimbursement request as submitted 
shall be marked FINAL. 

All reports shall be submitted to the contact person designated in Paragraph XLII, NOTICES, of 
this Agreement. 

X. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION 

GRANTEE may not assign any rights hereunder without the express, prior written consent of 
both parties. 

XI. AMENDMENTS 

Any change in this Agreement including but not limited to the Description of Services and 
budget described herein, whether by modification or supplementation, must be accomplished 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 4 of 59 



by a formal written Agreement amendment signed and approved by and between the duly 
authorized representative of the GRANTEE and the GRANTOR. 

Any such amendment shall: 1) specify an effective date; 2) specify any increases or decreases in 
the amount of the GRANTEE's compensation if applicable; 3) be titled as an "Amendment"; and 
4) be signed by the parties identified in the preceding sentence. The GRANTEE expressly and 
explicitly understands and agrees that no other method of communication, including any other 
document, correspondence, act, or oral communication by or from any person, shall be used or 
construed as an amendment or modification or supplementation to this Agreement. 

XII. SUBCONTRACTORS 

The GRANTEE may enter into written subcontract(s) for performance of certain of its functions 
under the contract in accordance with terms established in the State of Arizona procurement 
policy. 

The GRANTEE agrees and understand that no subcontract that the GRANTEE enters into with 
respect to performance under this Agreement shall in any way relieve the GRANTEE of any 
responsibilities for performance if its duties. The GRANTEE shall give the GRANTOR immediate 
notice in writing by certified mail of any action or suit filed and prompt notice of any claim made 
against the GRANTEE by any subcontractor or vendor which in the opinion of the GRANTEE may 
result in litigation related in any way to the Agreement with the GRANTOR. 

XIII. OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED 

Due to security and identity protection concerns, all services under this Agreement shall be 
performed within the borders of the United States. All storage and processing of information 
shall be performed within the borders of the United States. This provision applies to work 
performed by subcontractors at all tiers. 

XIV. PROHIBITION ON GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.06, the GRANTEE certifies that it does not have business operations in 
either Sudan or Iran. 

xv. AGREEMENT RENEWAL 

This Agreement shall not bind nor purport to bind the GRANTOR for any contractual 
commitment in excess of the original Agreement period. 

XVI. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE 

If the GRANTOR in good faith has reason to believe that the GRANTEE does not intend to, or is 
unable to perform or continue performing under this Agreement, the GRANTOR may demand in 
writing that the GRANTEE give a written assurance of intent to perform. Failure by the GRANTEE 
to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the demand may, at the 
GRANTOR's option, be the basis for terminating this Agreement under the terms of this 
Agreement or other rights and remedies available by law. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 50f59 



XVII. CANCELLATION FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The GRANTOR or the GRANTEE may, by written notice cancel this Agreement without penalty or 
further obligation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, 
negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf of the State or its 
subdivisions (unit of local government) is an employee or agent of any other party in any 
capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Agreement with respect to the subject matter 
of the Agreement. Such cancellation shall be effective immediately upon receipt of written 
notice from the GRANTOR or the GRANTEE, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

XVIII. THIRD PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS 

GRANTEE assigns to the State of Arizona, GRANTOR any claim for overcharges resulting from 
antitrust violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services supplied by 
third parties to GRANTEE toward fulfillment of this Agreement. 

XIX. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

Every payment obligation of the GRANTOR under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 
availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligations. If the funds 
are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, the GRANTOR may 
terminate this Agreement at the end of the period for which funds are available. No liability 
shall accrue to the GRANTOR in the event this provision is exercised, and the GRANTOR shall not 
be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of termination 
under this paragraph, including purchases and/or contracts entered into by the GRANTEE in the 
execution of this Agreement. 

XX. FORCE MAJEURE 

If either party hereto is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required in this 
Agreement due to acts of God, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, civil disorder, or other causes 
without fault and beyond the control of the party obligated, performance of or payment for 
such act will be excused for the period of the delay. 

XXI. ARBITRATION 

This agreement is subject to arbitration to the extent required by A.R.S. § 12-1518. 

XXII. GOVERNING LAW AND CONTRACT INTERPRETATION 

a) This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Arizona. First Things First follows all State of Arizona and Federal laws, State of Arizona Uniform 
Terms and Conditions and in particular abides by the Arizona Uniform Terms and Conditions and 
Uniform Instructions and are incorporated into this Agreement through reference. These laws 
include Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all other federal immigration laws 
and regulations related to immigration status of its employees. First Things First may request 
verification for any Grantee, Contractor, or Subcontractor performing work under the 
agreement. Anyone entering into an Agreement with First Things First is required to follow any 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 60f59 



and all State laws around immigration and English only. Should First Things First suspect that a 
grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws and First Things First may pursue any and 
all remedies allowed by law, including but not limited to: suspension of work, termination, and 
suspension and/or debarment of the grantee. All costs necessary to verify compliance are the 
responsibility of the grantee. 

b) This Agreement is intended by t he parties as a final and complete expression of their 
agreement. No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall 
supplement or explain any terms in this document. 

c) Either party's failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or 
acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and 
fails to object. 

XXIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement and its Attachments/Exhibits constitute the entire Agreement between the 
parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and may not be changed or added to 
except by a writing signed by all parties hereto in conformity with Section X Reporting 
Requirements of this Agreement; provided, however, that the GRANTOR shall have the right to 
immediately amend this Agreement so that it complies with any new legislation, laws, 
ordinances, or rules affecting this Agreement. All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understandings ofthe parties, oral, written, pertaining to the subject 
matter hereof, are herby superseded or merged herein. 

XXIV. RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING 

The GRANTEE shall not use funds made available to it under this Agreement to pay for, 
influence, or seek to influence any officer or employee of a State, Local or Federal government. 

XXV. LICENSING 

The GRANTEE, unless otherwise exempted by law, shall obtain and maintain all licenses, permits 
and authority necessary to perform those acts it is obligated to perform under this Agreement. 

XXVI. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

The GRANTEE shall comply with all state and federal equal opportunity and non-discrimination 
requirements and conditions of employment, including the American with Disability Act, in 
accordance with A.R.S. Title 41, Chapter 9, Article 4 and Executive Order 2009-09, which 
mandates that all persons, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability 
or political affiliation, shall have equal access to employment opportunities and all applicable 
provisions and regulations relating to Executive Order No. 13279 - Equal Protection of the Laws 
forFaith-based and Community Organizations. 

XXVII. SEqARIAN REQUESTS 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 7 of 59 



Funds disbursed pursuant to this Agreement may not be expended for any sectarian purpose or 
activity, including sectarian worship or instruction in violation of the United States or Arizona 
Constitutions. 

XXVIII. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable. Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid 
shall not affect any other term or condition of the Agreement. 

XXIX. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION OF AGREEMENT 

The GRANTEE shall not advertise or publish information for commercial benefit concerning this 
Agreement without the written approval of the GRANTOR. 

XXX. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION. PRINTED AND PUBLISHED MATERIAL 

The GRANTOR reserves the right to review and approve any publications and/or media funded 
or partially funded through this Agreement. All publications funded or partially funded through 
this Agreement shall recognize the GRANTOR, and GRANTOR shall have full and complete rights 
to reproduce, duplicate, disclose, perform, and otherwise use all materials prepared under this 
Agreement. 

The GRANTEE agrees that any report, printed matter, or publication (written, visual, or sound, 
but excluding press releases, newsletters, and issue analyses) issued by the GRANTEE describing 
programs or projects funded under this agreement in whole or in part with First Things First 
funds and shall follow the protocol and style guide provided by First Things First and normally 
located in the Partners and Grant Management System (PGMS). 

XXXI. INDEMNIFICATION 

Indemnification Language for Public Agencies ONLY. Each party (as 'indemnitor') agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other party (as 'indemnitee") from and against any 
and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as 'claims') arising out of bodily injury of any person 
(including death) or property damage but only to the extent that such claims which result in 
vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its' officers, officials, agents, employees, or 
volunteers." 

This indemnity shall not apply if the Grantee or sub-contractor(s) is/are an agency, board, 
commission or university of the State of Arizona. 

XXXII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS 

The GRANTEE shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the 
GRANTOR for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained 
from the State of Arizona or from a subcontractor under this Agreement shall be used by or 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 8 of 59 



disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as required, to efficiently perform 
duties under the Agreement. GRANTEE also agrees that any information pertaining to individual 
persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers of the GRANTEE as needed for 
performance of duties under this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in writing. 

XXXIII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF GRANTEE'S INFORMATION 

GRANTEE acknowledges that confidentiality provided in A.R.S. § §41-1505.06 (D) and 41-
1505.07(J) may be waived with the GRANTEE's consent, and GRANTEE consents to a total and 
complete waiver of confidentiality. In waiving confidentiality, GRANTEE understand and 
consents to disclosure of any information submitted to the GRANTOR that concerns the identify, 
background, financial status, marketing plans, or trade secrets or any other proprietary 
information related to the GRANTEE or any person or organization involved in the project(s), 
including the application and supporting materials, unless such information or materials are 
clearly marked as "confidential" . 

XXXIV. TERMINATION 

a) The GRANTOR reserves the right to terminate the Agreement in whole or in part due to the 
failure of the GRANTEE to comply with any term or condition of the Agreement, to acquire 
and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits or to make 
satisfactory progress in performing the Agreement. The GRANTOR staff shall provide 
written notice of the termination to the GRANTEE. 

b) The GRANTOR may, upon termination of this Agreement, procure, on terms and in the 
manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this 
Agreement. The GRANTEE shall be liable to the GRANTOR for any excess costs incurred by 
the GRANTOR in procuring materials or services in substitution for those due from the 

GRANTEE. 

XXXV. CONTINUATION OF PERFORMANCE THROUGH TERMINATION 

The GRANTEE shall continue to perform, in accordance with the requirements ofthe 
Agreement, up to the date of termination, as directed in the termination notice. 

XXXVI. PARAGRAPH HEADINGS 

The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not 
define, limit, enlarge, or otherwise affect the scope, construction, or interpretation of this 
Agreement or any of its provisions. 

XXXVII. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, copies, or duplicate originals. 
Each such counterpart, copy, or duplicate original shall be deemed an original, and collectively 
they shall constitute one agreement. 

XXXVIII. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 9 of 59 



Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the GRANTEE represents and warrants 

that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement. 

XXXIX. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

The GRANTEE shall comply with Executive Order 2005-30, which mandates as follows: 1) The 

GRANTEE shall, and by signing this agreement does, represents that it is in compliance with all 
federal immigration laws and regulations; 2) The GRANTEE shall take affirmative action to 

ensure that all subcontractors of the Contractor execute similar representation; 3) the breach of 

any such warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Contract, subject to monetary 

penalties or other penalties up to and including termination of the Contract; and 4) the State 
retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to 

ensure that the employer is in compliance with its representation. 

XL. Lelal Arizona Worker 

GRANTEE hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with 

all federal immigration laws applicable to GRANTEE employment of its employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). 

GRANTEE shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for GRANTEE 

under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 

XLI. NOTICES 

Any and all notices, requests, demands or communications by either party to this Agreement, 

pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered in 
person or shall be sent by the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the respective parties at the following addresses: 

The GRANTEE shall submit notices relative to this Agreement to: 

First Things First 

Attention: Finance 

4000 North Central, Suite 800 

Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

GRANTOR shall address all notices relative to this Agreement to: 
Gila County Library District 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 10 of 59 



XLII. IN WITNESS WHEREOF 
The parties hereto agree to execute this Agreement. 

FOR AND BEHALF OF 
Gila County Library District 

Tommie C. Martin 

Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Date 

Approved as to form: 

Bryan Chambers 
Deputy County Attorney 

GRA·RC029·13·0533-01 

FOR AND BEHALF OF THE 
Arizona Early Childhood Development 
And Health Board 

Rhian Evans Allvin 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date 

Page 11 of 59 



Grant Agreement Attachments & Exhibits 

Attachment A 

Attachment B 

Attachment C 

Attachment D 

Attachment E 

Attachment F 

Attachment G 

Attachment H 

Attachment I 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 

Exhibit D 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

Standard Agency Information Collection Form 

Personnel Overview 

Narrative Questions and Responses 

Implementation Plan 

Line Item Budget Form 

Budget Narrative Explanation 

Disclosure of Other Funding Sources 

Financial Systems Survey 

Data Collection Form 

Scope of Work Reference/Information 

Parent Outreach and Awareness Standards of Practice 

First Things First Target Service Unit Information 

Data Security Guidelines 

Page 12 of 59 



Attachment A 

FIRST THINGS FIRST STANDARD AGENCY INFORMATION COLLECTION FORM 

A. Agency Information: 

Program Name (if applicable) _______ __________________________ _ 

Agency Gila County Library District Contact Person~Ja,.,c""q""u"'"e..>:G""n!LJlfi"'m"__ ____ _____ _ 

Address1400 E Ash St POSition County Librarian 

Address ___ _______________ _ Email iariffin@co.qila.az.us 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 Phone (928J402-877Ox __ Fax 928-425-3462 

~ounty~G~/~1a~ ________________ ___ Employer Identification Number: 86-6000444 

Agency Classification: __ State Agency _X ___ County Government _ _ local Government _ _ Schools 

__ Tribal __ Faith Based __ Other 

Have you previously conducted business with First Things First using this EIN? _X_Y __ N 
If NO, please go to the following website, download the State of Arizona Substitute W-9 Form and submit with your 
Application: http:Uwww.gao.az.govNendor/account setup home.asp. 

In which Congressional (Federal) District is your agency? 
http://www.azredistricting.org (click on Final Maps) 

In which legislative (State) District is your agency? 
http:Uwww.azredistricting.org (clickon Final Maps) 

Enter District # 1,4 

Enter District # 6,7,8 

Approximately how much FEDERAL funding (from a Federal Source) will your organization expend in your current fiscal year? 
0.00 

What is your organization's fiscal year-end date? -=J""u""a""e""'3".,rf' ____ ___ 

Accounting Method: _X __ Cash __ Accrual 

Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133? ~y __ N 

Please provide contact information of the audit firm conducting your audit: 

Agency Criston Larson Allen LlP 

Address 1201 South Alma School Rd. Mesa, AZ 85210 

PhoneNumber~48~~~61=S~-2~3~0~0 ____________________________ _ 

B. Proposed Program Information I Description: 

Amount requested: _ .... $"'3""6"".6"'63=-_____ _ 

Service area of proposed program: The San Carlos Apache Indian Reservation 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 13 of 59 



Target population of proposed program: 861 children ages birth to five in the region to be registered and receive books through 
the Imagination library Book Club program 

Number of books distributed: _----'1".,0"",3<.:;3,....2 _ _____ _ 

Number of local resource guides distributed to be served: __ ----"'0 _______ _ 

Number of workshops held to be served: _ _ -----'3=6'---_____ _ 

Number of events held to be served: ___ .:::..0 ______ _ 

Please provide a BRIEF description of the proposed program in one or two paragraphs and this will be the source for a public 
description describing the nature of the program being Implemented that will be used by First Things First. 

Promote "Every Child Ready to Read" early literacy program that provides training to parents about the 
importance of early literacy development for young children birth through age five. 

As an incentive and reward, each month, each child whose parents enrolled in the early literacy program 
will receive a book in the mail addressed to the child provided by the Dolly Parton Foundation 
Imagination Library Book Program. 

C. Contact Information 

First Things First Partner and Grants Management System (PGMS) require four designated contacts for 
contact with First Things First related to this grant (the same person may be assigned to more than 
one of the roles, if appropriate). 

Main Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the Main contact 
for this grant award and this person can view all information related to this grant (financial. 
programmatic and data collection/evaluation in nature). This person will also be the primary contact for 
First Things First and should be the person responsible for ensuring the program plan is implemented. 
Primary correspondence from First Things First will be sent to this person. 

Main Contact Person..:::J.=.a.:::::cq~u::..:e~G~fI:.u·fflt..:.:in:..:....-______________________ _ 

Position County Librarian 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 

Email jqriffin@co.qila.az.us 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 14 of 59 



Phone 928-402-8770 x Fax.-=9:.:2:.::.8-4....:.:2=.5--=3:....:.4=62=--________ _ 
Program Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the Program 
contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for program or 
data collection purposes only. 

Program Contact Person ...:.M=a!..Jry~S~t~e~m~m~ _____________________ _ 

Position Library Assistant Senior 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 

Email mstemm@qlcd.az.orq 

Phone __ .l.:f9:.:2::::;8L.:,}4:.::::0;:2-=-8:.:,.7.:::.68::::..-______ x. ____ Fax 928-425-3462 

Financial Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the financial 
contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for financial 
purposes only. 

Position Library Assistant Senior 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501 

Email mstemm@qlcd.az.orq 

Phone _ _ --1f=92::,:8=}4..:.:0::;.::2:....;-8::.:7;..:6;.::::8 ___ _____ x. ____ Fax 928-425-3462 

Evaluation Contact Information - This should be information for the person designated as the 
Evaluation contact for this grant award and this person can view information related to this grant for 
data collection purposes only. 

Evaluation Contact Person :..:M..:.:a""ry...L...:S:.::t.:;em:.:.=m:..:-____________________ _ 

Position Library Assistant Senior 

Address 1400 E Ash St 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 15 of 59 



City, State, Zip Globe, AZ 85501 

Email mstemm@qlcd.az.orq 

Phone {928}402-8768 x Fax 928-425-3462 
In addition, your application may have included information about a collaborating partner/agency. 
Please replicate this information as many times as necessary to document the participation and 
agreement to be involved with the application as a collaborating agency/partner. 

Collaborator 

Agency Son Carlos Public Library ConmctPe~on.~£~m~m~a~~~i~ct~o~r _________ _ 

Address PO BOX 545 Position Library Manager 

Address __________________ _ Email emmavictor08@vahoo.com 

City, State, Zip San Carlos. AZ 85550 Phone 928-475-2611 Fax 928-475-2611. ____ _ 

County ""G.....,lIa"--________________ _ 

Collaborator 

Agency Gila County WIC Contact Pe~on Ursula Donovan 

Address 5515 S Apache Ave Position WIC Manager 

Address _ _________________ _ Email udonovan@co.qila.az.us 

City, State, Zip Globe. AZ 85501 Phone 928-402-8815 x __ Fax. ____ _ 

County~G~/~1a~ _______________ ___ 

Collaborator 

Agency __________________ _ Contact Pe~on _____________ _ 

Address. __________________ _ Position, ________________ _ 

Address __________________ _ Email, _ _________________ _ 

City, State, Zip _ _______________ _ Phone _ ________ x __ Fax. _____ _ 

Courny __________________ __ 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 16of59 



Attachment B 

PERSONNEL OVERVIEW 

--
STAFF MEMBER ~ ... -.,- .. ' , --- BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL :'~.J:'. --: ,'L .'\. ,.. ~ .! -_ ~': .. ' ' ' "; .~; 

Name: TBA Community Liaison for San Carlos, Peridot, and Bylas 
Title: Community Liaison 
FTE on this project: .4 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 
Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

Name: 
Title: 
FTE on this project: 

*In addition to this overview, please attach a resume (for current personnel) or a job 
description (for positions to be hired) for individuals involved in the project. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 17 of 59 

.",: . .... ~: 



Attachment C 

Narrative Questions and Responses 

Narrative Responses Required 
To complete your Application, provide a narrative response that addresses each of the items 
below. 

a) Provide a description of the program being proposed. 

The Gila County Library District will coordinate a collaborative early literacy effort 
among the District, San Carlos Public Library, and Gila County Health Department 
(WIC) to promote early literacy development in young children, birth to age five, by 
conducting presentations to parents/caregivers at various locations throughout the 
San Carlos Apache Reservation. The District will enroll the children of the 
parents/caregivers who attend the information sessions on the importance of early 
literacy with REvery Child Ready to Read" and '7he Imagination Library." The 
Imagination Library Program will mail age appropriate, professionally selected books 
monthly to each child enrolled. 

This project will build on the work that the San Carlos Public library already does 
regarding early childhood literacy efforts. Since 2005, those efforts have included 
information regarding the importance of early literacy development for young 
children, providing training to parents and caregivers at public gathering places and 
community events outside the public library setting, and including the foundational 
building blocks to early literacy development in story times and other preschool 
activities in the library setting. 

Library staff at the San Carlos Public Library and the District office will register 
eligible children based upon residence (determined by zip code) and birth dates, enter 
the data in the Imagination Library database, pay the monthly invoice (average of $ 
25 per child per year), and pick up undeliverable books at the Post Offices throughout 
the service area. The Project Director, a Community Liaison and the San Carlos Public 
Library Manager will evaluate the program on a regular basis, create the evaluation 
forms and collect the required FTF evaluation data. Staff at library in the service 
area will be involved in enrolling children and assisting with the collection of 
evaluation data. The Project Director, a Community Liaison and the San Carlos Public 
Library Manager will promote the project in the libraries and in other venues and at 
events that happen in each of the communities. The Community Liaison will offer 
parent and caregiver early literacy trainings with the local partners, i.e. San Carlos 
Apache Tribe Women, Infant and Children program, San Carlos Head Start, 
etc ... while the Gila County Library District staff will provide additional parent and 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 18 of 69 



caregiver trainings in partnership with the San Carlos WIC offices and throughout the 
service area. 

The Gila County Library District staft the local liaison, and the staff at the San Carlos 
Public Library will be actively involved in enrolling children at the libraries, at other 
venues and at community events throughout the San Carlos Apache Reservation in 
order to access hard-to-reach families. Library District staff has already set up a 
collaborative effort with the Gila County Health Department WIC program which 
provides contact and training for 400 families countywide which includes the families 
of the San Carlos Apache Nation. Where many WIC programs around Arizona are 
experiencing a decline in the number of families served, Gila County WIC program 
has been experiencing an increase in service population. Other access points for 
reaching families will be at community events in each local community, social service 
agencies, and typical gathering places for parents such as grocery stores, churches, 
and doctor's offices. 

Outcomes will be measured according to the performance measures required by First 
Things First as outlined on page 4 of the Grantee Agreement. Information will be 
gathered through a May survey mailed to the families participating in the program. 
The Community Liaison will conduct a survey of the Kindergarten Teachers at all 
schools located on the San Carlos Apache Reservation and the Fort Thomas Unified 
School District. 

b) Identify and describe the target population to be served by the proposed strategy, 
including: 

The Gila County Library District will target 861 children ages birth to five in the 
region to be registered and receive books through the Imagination Library Book Club 
program. This is number of children of the birth to five population in the region 
accounted for in the 2010 U.S. Census. 

The Gila County Library District will also specifically target children who are 
participating in existing First Things First programs in the region to be enrolled in or 
take part in Imagination Library Book Program. 

By hiring a local Community Liaison who knows the needs of the targeted population 
in terms of cultural competency, the District hopes to successfully reach a large 
percentage of the targeted population in the first year. 

c) Identify capacity or infrastructure building which will be needed, including 
agreements and partnerships with other departments and agencies, additional 
resources, and training and technical assistance to provide the proposed service. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 19 of 59 



The Gila County Library District will partner with the San Carlos Public Library, the 
San Carlos WIC program, Apache Kid Child Care and the Head Start Programs to 
provide the proposed service. 

d) Identify barriers to providing the service or program proposed and plans for 
addressing these barriers. 

Permission to access some of the venues may be needed in order to set up 
information booths at various locations. Arrangements to do so will be one of the 
duties of the Community Liaison. The Gila County Library District will reach out to the 
Regional Director of the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council for guidance 
and direction in beginning the process to gain permission to implement services in 
the regional area. 

e) Describe plans to recruit and locate personnel within the geographical region of the 
provided service and that are linguistically and culturally competent for the 
population to be served. 

By hiring a temporary part-time employee who lives on the San Carlos Apache 
Reservation as a community liaison, the District hopes to avoid any barriers such as 
linguist and cultural conflicts between the promoter and the parents/caregivers that 
would come up if the promoter were not from the local communities. 

f) Describe steps that will be taken to promote collaboration with other tribal 
departments and partners working with the tribe. 

The District will instruct the Community Liaison to seek out tribal departments and 
partners by becoming an active member of the San Carlos Apache Regional 
Partnership Early Childhood Development and Health Collaborative in order to help 
promote the program so that as many children as possible will get an opportunity to 
enroll in the Imagination Library. 

g) Describe the plan and resources necessary to meet FTF basic reporting 
requirements, maintain data securely and confidentially, and utilize data to assess 
progress in achieving outcomes of the proposed strategy. 

The Gila County Library District will use Imagination Library Registration forms in 
order to gather information necessary to enroll each child in the program. The 
District agrees to participate in the FTF quarterly evaluations and any program 
specific evaluation or research efforts adhering to tribal data/research protocols and 
procedures. Data collection and FTF evaluation activities will be directly connected 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 20 of 59 



with the Goals, Performance Measures and Units of Service aligned to the strategy 
described in this scope of work. 

GRA·RC029·13-0533-01 Page 21 of 59 



Attachment 0 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: August 1, 2012 -June 30, 2013 

. j~i.~:~ ~_~. '~y . Activities 
~(" ~,~7;'~' . ~~:~::·~'( .. ~·t~I::.' ~:1~~'~t'~:::~~ :!" Ta~k . ~'9~. :}d-~:~. >. ~ .. ~! :.:7<;; ~ .;. '.: Person Responsible :, .~ I t Date Task Will Be -. ' .. , . Support Documentation .. " ... , . .. 

. , . "- . .. . - .. ' .. . .... ' 'Completed/Tlmeline " • ~. oR • _ ' •• ~ •••• ~"' .. .. .. • :' •• :~ .. .' ': '!: J 

Jacque Griffin and/or August 2012 Memorandum of Understanding to be 
Establish affiliation between the Find a "Champion" to complete the Mary Stemm mailed to Dollywood Foundation 
Dollywood Foundation and the Memorandum of Understanding in order 
Gila County Library District as to get the Non-Profit mall rates for 
the affiliate for the San Carlos books for the children in the program. 
Reservation Children Mary Stemm August 2012 Order forms and Invoices on File at 

Order Program Supplies from GClD. 
Imagination library 
Obtain official Tribal permission to Jacque Griffin August 2012 Inter-Governmental Agreement and 
provide services on Tribal land. San Carlos Apache Tribe Resolution 

Hire Community liaison Recruit Liaison Jacque Griffin/Gila August 2012 
Cou nty H R Dept. 

Hire Liaison Jacque Griffin/Gila August 2012 Online applications 
County HR Dept . 

Add new staff to FTF PGMS Mary Stemm August 2012 Filed with FTF PGMS 
Promotion of Early Mandatory meeting between GClD Jacque Griffin August 2012 Sign-up Sheet will be utilized 
LIteracy Programming in library Staff and Liaison to plan the 
Communities of San promotion of Early Literacy Programming 
Carlos Apache 
Reservation Register Children for Imagination library Community LIaison August 2012 through Registration forms will be input in Il 
Registration of Children Februa ry 2013 System 
into imagination Library locate Ven ues for Reaching Children Community Liaison August 2012 through Liaison will report to Mary Stemm for 

Whose parents don't come to library February 2013 quarterly narrative. 
Join San Carlos Apache Regional Community liaison September 2012 and on- Meeting calendar and meeting agendas 
Partnership Council's Early Childhood gOing bi-monthly 
Development and Health Collaborative 
and attend all scheduled meetings. 

Input Imagination Library Mary Stemm/Community Monthly Found on Il System online 
Registrations into Dollywood Data Input for new registrations liaison 
Foundation Site Mary Stemm Monthly Handled online through Il System 

Data updates for change of address 
Mary Stemm Monthly Monthly reports online at first of each 

NCOA Alerts for "Bad" addresses month. 
Invoicing Process invoices for book orders from Mary Stemm Monthly Filed with Gila County Finance 

Dollywood Foundation Imagination Department 
Library 
Process all other invoices for Early Mary Stemm As the need arises Flied with Gila County Finance 
Literacy programming Department 

'------
Input Paid Invoices to First Things First _ _Mary Stemm Monthly Flied with FTF PGMS 

_. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 22 of 59 



Data / Narrative Reports Report Trainings to District Staff Liaison Monthly Email Mary Stemm 
Upload Data Report to FTF Mary Stemm Monthly Filed with FTF PGMS 

Upload Narrative Report to First Things Mary Stemm Quarterly Filed with FTF PGMS 
First 

Eval uatlon Poll Kindergartens in all public schools liaison August 2012 Keep on file in Gila County Library 
for number of children not prepared for District Office and report to FTF PGMS 
enrollment. 
Evaluate Survey Responses Lia ison September 2012 Email report to County Librarian and 

Mary Stemm 
Mary Stemm October 2012 Filed with FTF PG MS 

Include Survey results in quarterly , 

report 
Satisfaction Survey to Mall Survey to parents of children Mary Stemm April 2013 Copy of Survey on File in GClD Office 
Parents registered as of February l't during 4th and report to FTF PGMS 

qtr. 
Mary Stemm June 2013 Include survey results In Final 

Receive surveys and report on results quarterly report to FTF PGMS 
Train parents/caregivers by attending Jacque Griffin, Mary As often as possible Filed with FTF PGMS Data Reports 

I Early UteracyTraining parent meetings of various community Stemm, Community when the occasions arise 
entities during the year Liaison 
Train parents/caregivers by video Jacque Griffln/WIC Clinic Weekly Data reports and quarterly narratives 
presentation at San Carlos WIC Clinics Employees to FTF PGMS 
and take new registrations for 
Imagination Library 
Continue one on one training w/parents Public librarians, Daily as the need arises Filed with FTF PGMS quarterly reports 

Community liaison -

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 23 of 59 



Attachment E and F Instructions 

How to Complete the Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 

Complete a ll-month budget for the period of Augustl, 2012 through June 30, 2013 using the template 
provided in Attachment E. Please make sure you include a budget narrative as Attachment F. 

Please keep in mind items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative should 
describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related successfully 
implementing the project. Please assure that all requested funds follow these guidelines: 

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of First 
Things First funds. 

• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 

• Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs charged 
and expended by the agency - consistent treatment of costs. 

o For example - a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect cost if any 
other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has been allocated to the 
First Things First award as a direct cost. 

o For example - a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another source of 
funding and a different rate to First Things First - this would not be consistent treatment of 
costs. 

• Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

• Be adequately documented. 

• All travel related costs for these trainings and meetings should be included in the Applicant's 
budget and calculated using the State of Arizona travel rate limitations for mileage, per diem and 
lodging as described on the budget narrative worksheet. For more information about the state 
requirements, visit http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/. 

• Requests for line item modifications, which do not change the total program funding, shall be 
requested in writing and shall only be made following receipt of written authorization from First 
Things First. 

Please note the line items included in the budget template represent the types of costs possible for a line 
item budget these line items mayor may not be applicable or appropriate for your Application. Your 
budget line items requested must fit within one ofthe categories listed. However, it is expected that you 
would not need to utilize all of the sample line items. 



Attachment E 
Line Item Budget 

While you ~ use this format, you may reproduce it with Word Processing or Spreadsheet software. Limit your 
budget line items to the following categories: Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Professional Services, Travel, Pass-Through 
(i.e. Sub grants" other Operating Expenses and Administrative/Indirect Costs. 

Budget period: August 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013 

... . , ':', ' '.;-; " . ,.' Bud8et catesorv '-- .- '# f' ~ ; . .. '.' ~ J ~ '" Una Item Description Ar . •• , ... . •• ".. Requested Funds " ........ , TotalCost • -', ' 

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel SeNices Sub Total $10,683.048 

Salaries Part time Community liaison 12.05 $10683.048 
hrs/week for 48 weeks 

$884.95z 1 EMPLOYEE RElATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total 

Fringe Benefits or Other ERE 7.65% of $20.00 for FICA and Social $884.952 
Security 587.4 hrs 

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES Professional & Outside SeNices Sub Total $22,099.00 
, Contracted Services Dollywood Foundation $22,099.00 

Rate of $28.oo/year per child with a 
goal of 861 = $24,108.00. Prorated 
for 11 months totals: $2,009.00 x 11 
months = $22,099.00 

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $778.75 

In-State Travel 1750 miles $778.75 

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals SUb Total $ 
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $Z,017.25 

• Postage 600 postcards @ .32 each $192.00 
600 letters @ .45 each $270.00 

• Shipping Shipping $100.00 

• Printing/Copying 600 Surveys, letters, envelopes $236.00 

• Program Materials SO posters @ $6.00 each $300.00 
2 Retractable Banners @ $100 each $200.00 
2500 Registration Brochures @ .204 $510.00 
5 Brochure Holders @ $8.45 $ 42.25 
1 Promotional News Packet $ 2.00 
1 Train Display $165.00 

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-tapital Sub Total $ZOO.OO 

Equipment $4,999 or less in value Pop-up Shade $140.00 
Table $50.00 
Chair $10.00 

SUbtotal Direct Program Costs: ' - .... "" ' . ' .- .,... ..... - , "-," $0 
ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIREcr COS'fS I Total Admin/Indirect $0 

Indirect/Admin Costs $0 $0 

Total $ $36,663.00 i 

Authorized signature ____________________ _ Date ________ _ 

~I:I A ell,..""" A., ftc.,.., tw 



Attachment F 

Budget Narrative 

The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line items. 
The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the budget form. 
Please verify that the narrative and budget form correspond and the calculations and totals are accurate. 
Please include one narrative that matches the 11 month line Item budget categories and subcategories. 

Personnel Services: Include information such as position title{s), name of employee (if known), salary, 
time to be spent on this program (hours or %), number of months aSSigned to this program, etc. Explain 
how the salary rate for each position was determined. If salaries are expected to increase during the 
project year, indicate the percentage increases for each position and justify the percent ofthe salary 
increase. Also, be sure to include the scheduled salary increases on the Budget Form. 

Community Liaison for the San Carlos Reservation Communities will be hired on a part-time basis by Gila 
County at a gross rate of $20.00 per hour for the county with $18.47 per hour for the employee after 7.65% 
for FICA and Social Security. (Tax to be determined by the employee). The Community Liaison will be working 
12.05 hours per week x $18.47 = $222.5635/week x 48 weeks (11 months) = $10,683.048 

Total $10,683.048 

Employee Related Expenses: Include a benefit percentage and what expenses make up employee 
benefit costs. Indicate any special rates for part-time employees, if applicable. Explain how the benefits for 
each position were determined. If using a fringe benefit rate, explain how this percentage is justified or 
approved by your agency. 

Gila County deducts 7.65% for FICA and Social Security. This will be $884.952 for 587.4 hrs 

Total $884.952 

Professional and Outside Services: If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in the 
budget, define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for the services 
related to the project. Explain how all contracts will be procured. 

Gila County Library District will contract with the Dol/ywood Foundation Imagination Library to supply a 
book a month by mail to any child registered in the program. Rate of $28.00/year per child with a goal of 
861 = $24,108.00. Prorated for 11 months totals: $2,009.00 x 11 months = $22,099.00 

Total $22,099.00 

Travel: Separate travel that is in-state and out-of-state. Include a detailed breakdown of hotel, 
transportation, meal costs, etc. Indicate the location{s) of travel, the justification for travel, how many 
employees will attend and how the estimates have been determined. Explain the relationship of each cost 
item to the project {e.g., if training or training expenses are requested, explain the topic of the training and 



its relationship to the project). Applicants must use the State of Arizona Travel Policy on rates limitations 
for mileage, lodging, and meals {http://www.gao.az.gov!travel! for both in-state and out-of-state travel. 

Travel monies will be set aside for the liaison to travel from their community to Globe in order to 
meet with the Gila County Library Director to complete plans for the awareness campaign and to 
insure that there is a unified message presented to the prospective parents/caregivers. 
Travel monies will also be reserved for travel for the liaison to do outreach in the communities of 
Cutter, San Carlos~ Peridot~ and Bylas at least once a month. 

Travel for outreach 1750 miles @ .44 M per mile =$778.75 

Total $778.75 

Aid to Organizations or Individuals: In the event that this application represents collaboration and the 
contract will be utilizing other sub grantees or subcontractors to perform various components of the 
program, include a list of sub grantees, programmatic work each sub grantee will perform, and how costs 
for each sub grantee are determined. N/A 

Other Operating Expenses: Explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and 
justify the need for the items. All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures. All items should be categorized in the following categories: Telephones / 
Communications Services, Internet Access, General Office Supplies, Food, Rent/Occupancy, Evaluation 
(non-contracted and non-personnel expenses), Utilities, Furniture, Postage, Software (including IT supplies), 
Dues/Subscriptions, Advertising, Printing/Copying, Equipment Maintenance, Professional 
Development/Staff Training, Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff, Insurance, Program Materials, 
Program Supplies, Scholarships, and Program Incentives 

Postage for 600 surveys (letters and return address postcards) for parents estimated at $462.00 
600 postcards @ .32 each = $192.00 and 600 letters @ .45 each = $270.00 

Shipping total is an estimate due to costs difference per shipment on order and is determined by 
Imagination Library. Estimated at $100. 

Printing for 600 4th quarter surveys to parents (includes letters to parents~ postcard surveys~ and 
envelopes) estimated at $236.00 

Program Materials for Imagination Library 
50 posters @ $6.00 each = $300 
2 Retractable Banners @ $100 each =$200 
2500 Registration Brochures @ .204 =$510 
5 Brochure Holders @ $8.45 =$42.25 
1 Promotional News Packet =$2.00 
1 Train Display =$165 

Total $2,917.25 

a .... __ "'., -c en 



Non-capital Equipment: For items with a unit cost less than $5,000 and an initial estimated useful life 
beyond a single year, explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and justify the 
need for the items. All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established purchasing 
procedures. For example, items such as computers, printers, projectors, etc. each with a unit cost less than 
$5,000. 

Equipment/or outreach at various venues, i.e. Community Events, Shopping Centers, Post Offices, etc.: 

1 Pop-up Shade 
1 Folding Table 
1 Folding Chair 

Total 

$140.00 
$ 50.00 
$ 10.00 

$200.00 

Administrative/Indirect Costs: Administrative costs are general or centralized expenses of overall 
administration of an organization that receives grant funds and does not include particular program costs. 
For organizations that have an established federally approved indirect cost rate for Federal awards, indirect 
costs mean those costs that are included in the organization's indirect cost rate. Such costs are generally 
identified with the organization's overall operation and are further described in 2 CFR 220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 
CFR 230. N/A 

Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses included: 

o Option A - Administrative Costs: with proper justification, sub grantees may include an allocation 
for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct funds requested of the grant request. 
Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for: costs of financial, accounting, 
auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including overall 
organization's management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance that 
protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely 
attributable to the project. Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and 
benefits of the project's director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in 
support of a specific project. 

OR 

o Option B - Federal/v Aoproved Indirect Costs: If your organization has a federally approved indirect 
cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up to 10% of 
the grant request. Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved Indirect cost rate 
agreement. 

Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project. The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs that 
are usually treated as indirect. 

Authorized signature ~: ~11~ oate<b46-
7 



Attachment G 

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES* 

Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public Agencies, 
Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for the proposed 
Program*. Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state funds by First Things 
First expenditures, meaning that no FTF monies expended are to be used to take the place of any 
existing state or federal funding for early childhood development and health programs. 

Use a continuation sheet if necessary. The following form may be reproduced with word processing 
software or another form may be created that contains all the information requested. 

Type of Funding 
r,I If used for 

Received From Amount match on 
(Federal, State, local, other) 

this grant 

N/A 

TOTAL: 0.00 

*Thls table should Include only those funds that will support the program detailed in this Application. 

Authorized Signature: ~ Date: c:;,,¥-
7 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

1. 

2. 

Attachment H: 

FIRST THINGS FIRST FINANCIAL SYSTEMS SURVEY 

Name of Applicant: Gila County Library District 

Please answer every question by filling in the circle next to the correct answer. Attach materials and 
document comments as required. 

As stewards of federal and state funds, First Things First awards funds to organizations (regardless of how 
small or large) that are both capable of achieving project goals/objectives and upholding their 
responsibility for properly managing funds as they achieve those objectives. 

This survey will be used primarily for initial monitoring of the organization. This survey may also be used 
in evaluating the financial capability of the organization in the award process. Deficiencies should be 
addressed for corrective action and the organization should consider procuring technical assistance in 
correcting identified problems. 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Has your organization received a Federal or State Grant within the last two years? X YES 
0 NO 

Has your organization completed an A-133 Single Audit within the past two years? If yes, please X YES 

attach a complete copy of your A-133 Audit, including, but not limited to, your Management Le 0 NO 

Findings and Questioned Costs. 

If your organization has not completed an A-133 Single Audit, have your financial statements be 0 YES 

audited, reviewed or compiled by an independent Certified Public Accountant within the past t\l 0 NO 
years? If yes, please attach a complete copy of the most recent audited, reviewed or compiled 
financial statements. NOTE THAT ONLY ONE COPY OF YOUR AUDIT NEEDS TO BE INCLUDED WIT N/A 
THE APPLICATION MARKED "ORIGINAL". It is not necessary to include additional copies with ea 
copy of the completed Application. 

Please attach a schedule showing the TOTAL federal funds (by granting agency) expended by yo Attached 3 pages 

agency for the most recent fiscal year. Note: If your organization had an A-133 Single Audit, a 
copy ofthe "Schedule of Expenditures for Federal Awards" can be submitted. ONLY ONE COpy I 
NEEDED, TO BE INCLUDED WITH THE APPLICATION MARKED "ORIGINAL" 

Has your organization been granted tax-exempt status by the Internal Revenue Service? 0 YES 
X NO 
0 N/A 

If you answered YES to question #5, under what section of the IRS code? 
o 501 C (3) o 501 C (4) 0 501 C (5) o 501 C (6) o Other Specify: 

Does your organization have established poliCies related to salary scales, fringe benefits, travel X YES 

reimbursement and personnel poliCies? 0 NO 

B. FUNDS MANAGEMENT 
Which of the following describes your organization's accounting system? 0 Manual 

0 Automated 
X Combination 

How frequently do you post to the General Ledger? X Daily 

D ___ 41)1\ ~I:'n 



0 Weekly 
0 Monthly 
0 Other 

3. Does the accounting system completely and accurately track the receipt and disbursements of X YES 
funds by each grant or funding source? 0 NO 

4. Does the accounting system provide for the recording of actual costs compared to budgeted co X YES 
for each budget line item? 0 NO 

5. Are time and effort distribution reports maintained for employees working fully or partially on X YES 
state or federal grant programs that account for 100% of each employee's time? 0 NO 

6. Is your organization familiar with Federal Cost Principles (Le. 2 CFR 220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 CFR X YES 
230)? 0 NO 

7. How does your organization plan to charge common/indirect costs to this grant? 0 Direct Charges 
NOTE: Those organizations using allocable direct charges must attach a copy of the methodology and X Utilizing an 

calculations in determining those charges. Indirect Cost 
Those organizations using a federally approved indirect cost rate must attach a copy of the approval Allocation Plan or 
documentation issued by the federal government. Rate 

C. INTERNAL CONTROLS 
1. Are duties of the bookkeeper/accountant segregated from the duties of cash receipt or cash X YES 

disbursement? 0 NO 

2. Are checks signed by individuals whose duties exclude recording cash received, approving X YES 
vouchers for payment and the preparation of payroll? 0 NO 

3. Are all accounting entries and payments supported by source documentation? X YES 
0 NO 

4. Are cash or in-kind matching funds supported by source documentation? X YES 
0 NO 

5. Are employee time sheets supported by appropriately approved/signed documents? X YES 
0 NO 

6. Does the organization maintain poliCies that include procedures for assuring compliance with X YES 
applicable cost principles and terms of each grant award? 0 NO 

D. PROCUREMENT 

1. Does the organization maintain written codes of conduct for employees involved in awarding X YES 
or administering procurement contracts? 0 NO 

2. Does the organization conduct purchases in a manner that encourages open and free X YES 
competition among vendors? 0 NO 

3. Does the organization complete some level of cost or price analYSis for every major purchase? X YES 
0 NO 

4. Does the organization maintain a system of contract administration to ensure Grantee X YES 
conformance with the terms and conditions of each contract? 0 NO 

5. Does the organization maintain written procurement policies and procedures? X YES 
0 NO 

E. CONTACT INFORMATION 



Please indicate the following information. In the event that First Things First has questions about 
this survey, this individual will be contacted. 

Prepared By: Jacque Griffin 

Job Title:, __ ..:C=.o=.;un:...:.;t:,Ly-=L::.:ib:..:,r..=a.:...:.ri=.;an:...:..-_____________ _ 

Date:, ___ =5!<..::1""'I2=O=1=2 _______________ _ 

Phone/Fax/Email:. __ 9~2::::8:...-4..:.:0:.::2=_-8:.;7:..:7_=0:...._ ___________ _ 

F. CERTIFICATION 

I certify that this report is complete and accurate, and that the Grantee has accepted the 
responsibility of maintaining the financial systems. 

~#.z ~ 

G. COMMENT AND ATTACHMENTS 

Please use the space below to comment on any answers in Sections A - D. Please indicate the 
Section and Question # next to each comment. Number of Attachments (please number each 
attachment): ___ _ 

COMMENTS: 

A. 4. 2011 Audit can be found at 
http:Uwww.gilacountyaz.gov!DepartmentFiles!Finance!FINALFINANCIALANDSINGLEAUDITAUDITREPORT201 



Attachment I 
Data Collection Form 

-
I Performance Measure Plan for Data Collection Plan for Using the Data Quality Assurance 

Number of books Reporting to PGMS for use in County Librarian will review reports'l 
distributed Monthly reports from Imagination quarterly reports for FTF 

Library 
Number of workshops Monthly reports from Community Reporting to PGMS for use in County Librarian will review reports 
held/proposed Liaison to District Staff quarterly reports for FTF 
Number of events Monthly reports from Community Reporting to PGMS for use in County librarian will review reports 
held/proposed number Liaison to District Staff quarterly reports for FTF 
Number of children Monthly reports from Imagination Reporting to PGMS for use in County librarian will review reports 
receiving books Library quarterly reports for FTF 
Number of adults Signup sheet at workshops Reporting to PGMS for use in County Librarian will review reports 
attending workshops Monthly reports from Community quarterly reports for FTF 

liaison to District Staff 



Exhibit A: 

Scope of Work 

-

Overview of First Things Firs't 

On November 7, 2006, Arizonans made an historic decision on behalf of our state's youngest citizens. By 
majority vote, they made a commitment to all Arizona children 5 and younger, that children would have the 
tools they need to arrive at school healthy and ready to succeed. The voters backed that promise with an 80-
cent per pack increase on tobacco products to provide dedicated and sustainable funding for early childhood 
services for our youngest children. The initiative created the statewide First Things First board and the 31 
regional partnership councils that share the responsibility of ensuring that these early childhood funds are 
spent on strategies that will result in improved education and health outcomes for kids 5 and younger. 

First Things First is designed to meet the diverse needs of Arizona communities. The regional councils are 
comprised of community volunteers, with each member representing a specific segment of the community 
that has a role in ensuring that Arizona's children grow up to be ready for school, set for life: parents, leaders 
of faith communities, tribal representatives, educators, health professionals, business leaders, and 
philanthropists. 

First Things First Strategic Direction 
FTF's commitment to young children means more than simply funding programs and services. It means having 
a shared vision about what being prepared for kindergarten actually means. First Things First specifies that 
programs and services funded by the FTF Board and Regional Partnership Councils are to address one or more 
of the following Goal Areas as defined by the statute: 

• Improve the quality of early childhood development and health programs. 

• Increase the access to quality early childhood development and health programs. 

• Increase access to preventive health care and health screenings for children through age five. 

• Offer parent and family support and education concerning early childhood development and literacy. 

• Provide professional development and training for early childhood development and health providers. 

• Increase coordination of early childhood development and health programs and provide public 
information about the importance of early childhood development and health. 

The FTF Board established a strategic framework with a set of school readiness indicators that provide a 
comprehensive composite measure to show whether young children are ready for success as they prepare to 
enter kindergarten. The strategies funded by FTF work collectively to develop a comprehensive system across 
the state and regionally to address the school readiness indicators. The FTF Board and Regional Partnership 
Councils determine the priorities and strategies to be funded across the state and throughout the regions 
assessing the challenges and building on the resources and assets in place. 

School Readiness Indicators 
1. #/% children demonstrating school readiness at kindergarten entry in the development domains of 

social-emotional, language and literacy, cognitive, and motor and physical 

2. #/% of children enrolled in an early care and education program with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 34 of 69 



3. #/% of children with special needs enrolled in an inclusive early care and education program with a 

Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

4. #/% of families that spend no more than 10% of the regional median family income on quality care and 

education with a Quality First rating of 3-5 stars 

5. % of children with newly identified developmental delays during the kindergarten year 

6. # of children entering kindergarten exiting preschool special education to regular education 

7. #/% of children ages 2-5 at a healthy weight (Body Mass Index-BMI) 

8. #/% of children receiving timely well child visits 

9. #/% of children age 5 with untreated tooth decay 

10. % of families who report they are competent and confident about their ability to support their child's 

safety, health and well being 

Scope of Work: What Strategy Will This Grant Fund and How Will It Mal<e a 
I 

Difference for Children? 

Statement of need 
Recognizing that children are active participants in the world from day one is critical for supporting a child's 
healthy brain development and learning. Developmental and neuroscience research emphasizes the 
importance of infants engaging in discovery through everyday explorations shared by a sensitive, attentive 
caregiver (National Scientific Council on the Developing Child, 2007; Stamm, 2007). According to the First 
Things First Family and Community Survey on Early Childhood, A Baseline Report on Families and Coordination 
2008, when asked at what age babies sense and react to their surroundings, about half of Arizona parents 
acknowledged that this occurs in the first month of life (51%). Although this represents a larger proportion of 
parents than in the national survey (35%), nearly half of Arizona parents (48%) still believe that children do not 
respond to their environment until two months of age or later. This suggests that almost half of Arizona 
parents do not fully understand the importance of the child's very early interactive experiences with his or her 
environment for healthy development. Overall, research based knowledge about what to expect from their 
child at each age helps parents interact positively with their child and set appropriate expectations and 
boundaries throughout their daily routines. Furthermore, Arizona's parents understand that early childhood 
development is important, with over 75% of parents acknowledging that they can Significantly impact 
children's brain development at or before birth. While Arizona's parents understand the importance of early 
brain development, not all are sure what they can do to best support their child's optimal development. 
Results from the Family and Community Survey in 2008 also indicate that parents can benefit from clear, 

research-based information to help them support their child. 

Research shows that the first three years of life are a period of incredible growth in all areas of a baby's 
development. A newborn's brain is about 25 percent of its approximate adult weight. By age three, it has 
grown dramatically by producing billions of cells and hundreds of trillions of connections, or synapses, 
between these cells. While we know that the development of a young child's brain takes years to complete, 
we also know there are many things parents and caregivers can do to assist children to get off to a good start 
and establish healthy patterns for life-long learning. 

GRA-RC029-13·0533-01 Page 35 of 59 



Data on parental reading for children between birth and five years, drawn from the National Survey of 
Children's Health (2003) indicates that in our state only 43.2 percent of children ages birth to five years are 
read to daily, placing Arizona near the bottom of the ranking at 44th. Only 40.6 percent of children ages birth 
through three years are read to daily-placing Arizona at the flat bottom of the ranking at 51st. Parents 
reading frequently to their children provide language and literacy skills that help children learn to read. 
Helping children to prepare for the challenge of learning to read before school entry is better than helping 
them catch up later. Reading aloud is the single most important activity for building the knowledge required 
for eventual success in reading. 

Furthermore, the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council is aware that children from the region are 
not arriving to school with the literacy skills they need in order to succeed and that a high number of children 
in the region are living in poverty therefore prompting them to fund this new strategy in SFY2013-2015. The 
Regional Council also knows that, as reported in the Needs and Assets report, 32.7% of all live births reported 
for the region in 2009 were born to mothers that had not achieved a high school diploma causing concern 
among the Regional Council that mothers may not be as excited to read to their child. 

FTF Parent Outreach and Awareness strategies provide families of young children with information, materials 
or connections to resources and activities that increase awareness of early childhood development and health 
and the resources, supports or programs available for young children and their families. Having identified 
these gaps, it is important to deliver parent outreach and awareness strategies with consideration for local 
needs. The San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council would like this strategy to implement Imagination 
Library for children ages birth to five in the region. By implementing this strategy it is the hope of the Regional 
Council that families get excited about reading to their children and have a home environment rich with 
books. 

Description of strategy including Standards of Practice 
Parent outreach and awareness strategies strive to increase all families' awareness of positive parenting and 
knowledge of services, supports and information on child development, child health and early learning to 
support their child's overall development. In other words, the goal of this strategy is to change parent 
behavior through a variety of complementary tactics so that their child is ready for school at kindergarten 
entry. 

Parent outreach and awareness activities include the following: 
A. Resource Distribution: Distribution of children's books, audio discs, community resource guides, child 

development and child health fact sheets, parenting tip sheets, brochures, pamphlets, andlor 
newsletters. Resources can be offered and distributed during established community festivals, fairs, or 
exhibitions at community settings and through community-based partners. For example, parents and 
children can be provided with developmentally appropriate books to take home that encourage daily 
family reading activities. 

B. ParentI Family Workshop: One-time informational sessions for parents and families to increase 
awareness about child development or child health topics. These may include, for example, library 
story times, an informational session about programs or services available in the community, or a 
session on brain development, child development or child health. For example, child health workshops 
may be offered to increase parent's knowledge about topics such as injury prevention, oral health, 
preventative health care, or nutrition. One or more of these activities can be implemented in 
conjunction with other FTF early learning, health and/ or family support strategies as part of regional 
funding plan implementation. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 36 of 59 



C. Earned Media and Paid Advertising: Earned media is defined as stories strategically placed in major 
broadcast print or emerging media as well as information placed in smaller community newspapers, 
newsletters, and public service announcements. Paid advertising is defined as advertising through 
billboards, print ads, multimedia campaigns (TV), radio and online ads. Paid advertising requires a 
substantial financial investment and must be accompanied by other strategies in order to be effective 
in changing behavior. The advertising itself must be research-based and the information prOVided 
should be about a specific early childhood development or child health topic related to critical time 
periods to address trends in child rearing and parenting practices that target parents and families. For 
example, print ads displayed on buses with the message "read with your child every day", includes a 
phone number and web address for a community resource that provides additional information and 
support on reading with young children. This may bring parents' attention to the issue and further 
create interest in seeking out the listed resources. 

This program will: 
./ Implement the Imagination Library Book Club through the Gila County Library District and services 

provided at the San Carlos Apache library branch on the reservation which is part of the Gila County 
Library District to deliver an age appropriate book each month to the homes of the 800 registered children 
in the region. Earned Media Paid Advertising are not components of this strategy for the San Carlos 
Apache Regional Partnership Council. 

./ Provide information on developmentally appropriate learning opportunities that support early language 
and literacy development which prepares children for success in school and life . 

./ Deliver the program at community locations convenient and easily accessible for families. Family 
participation is voluntary and must be provided free of charge to the family . 

./ Carry out the program model in accordance with the First Things First Parent Outreach and Awareness 
Standards of Practice/ Refer to Exhibit B. 

The grantee implementing this strategy in the San Carlos Apache region will need to have previous experience 
working in rural or tribal communities and understand some of the cultural aspects of working with these 
populations. 
The grantee will need to connect with the Regional Director prior to implementation on the reservation. The 
San Carlos Apache region associates First Things First with the Regional Director, who has established a 
relationship and trust with the region. Therefore, it is important for the program, to connect with the Regional 
Director. 

First Things First School Readiness Indicators related to this strategy: 
FTF is seeking successful applicants to implement this strategy and work collectively with FTF to impact the 
school readiness indicators below: 

• % of families who report they are competent and confident about their ability to support their child's 
safety, health and well being 

First Things First Goal Area to be addressed: 
• Family Support and Literacy 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 37 of 59 



Target Population to serve 
The San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council will target 800 children ages birth to five in the region to 
be registered and receive books through the Imagination Library Book Club program. This is approximately 
50% of the birth to five population in the region. The Regional Council would like intentional collaboration of 
existing grantees with this strategy in the region. 

Geographic Area 
Programs funded under this agreement must provide services throughout the region. 
The San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council serves the communities of the San Carlos Apache Tribe 
located on the San Carlos Apache Reservation. 

Coordination and Collaboration 
First Things First supports coordination and collaboration among early childhood service providers in order to 
develop a seamless service delivery system for children and families. As a result of coordination and 
collaboration, services are often easier to access and are implemented in a manner that is more responsive to 
the needs of the children and families. Coordination and collaboration may also result in greater capacity to 
deliver services because organizations are working together to identify and address gaps in service. Grant 
partners are asked to demonstrate capacity to work with and participate in coordination and collaboration 
activities occurring within the First Things First region being served. This may include but is not limited to 
participating in regular meetings. Depending upon the strategy, there may be additional statewide meetings 
which the Grant partners may be asked to attend, as noted in the Scope of Work. In order to accomplish this, 
Grant partners should plan the appropriate staffing and budget to support travel to and attendance at 
monthly meetings within the regional area or statewide meetings, as appropriate. 

The grantee will need to be an active member of the San Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council's Early 
Childhood Development and Health Collaborative so that the grantee will effectively collaborate and 
coordinate their efforts with existing tribal and non-tribal programs. 

Program Specific Data Collection and First Things First Evaluation 

Grant partners agree to participate in the FTF evaluation and any program speCific evaluation or research 
efforts adhering to tribal data/research protocols and procedures. Data collection and FTF evaluation 
activities are directly connected with the Goals, Performance Measures and Units of Service aligned to the 
strategy described in this scope of work. 

Unit of Service and related Target Service Number Definition: 
A Unit of Service is a FTF designated indicator of performance specific to each FTF strategy. It is composed of a 
unit of measure and a number (Target Service Number). A Unit of Measure/Service can be a target population 
and/or a service/product that a grantee is expected to serve as part of an agreement. The Target Service 
Number represents the number of units {e.g. target population} proposed to be served or number of 
products/services proposed to be delivered during the contract year. 

For example, for the FTF strategy Home Visitation the FTF Unit of Service is "number of families served" and a 
Target Service Number of 50 represents the number of families the Applicant proposes to serve during the 
contract period. All FTF applicants must clearly state in the proposal a target service number for each strategy 
specific Unit of Service. 

GRA-RC029-13..()533-01 Page 38 of 59 



Performance Measures Definition: 
Performance Measures measure (1) key indicators of performance (i.e. Unit of Service); (2) basic 
implementation of strategy; (3) alignment of program activities to strategy specific standards of practice, (4) 
performance or progress toward pre-established strategic goals. Performance measures may include the level 
or type of program activities conducted (e.g. serving families/children through home visits) and/or the direct 
services and products delivered by a program (e.g., providing scholarships). 

Grant partners must have capacity to collect and submit FTF data requirements, securely and confidentially 
store client data, and utilize data to assess progress in achieving desired outcomes of the proposed strategy. 
Units of Service, Target Service Numbers, and Performance Measures outline how quarterly data submissions 
will be evaluated according to the contracted deliverables and standards of practice for that contract. 
Additionally, they are used by FTF to determine the key impacts of the strategies, programs and approaches 
being implemented. 

Grant partners will be provided with data reporting requirements by FTF and will meet the requirements of 
the FTF evaluation including, but not limited to, timely and regular reporting and cooperation with all FTF 
evaluation activities, with respect to tribal datal research protocols and procedures. Timely and regular 
reporting of all performance and evaluation data includes the electronic submission of data (as identified in 
data reporting templates designed for each strategy) through the FTF secure web portal known as PGMS. 

FTF may undertake various external evaluation activities. Tribal data/research protocols and procedures, 
including obtaining tribal permission to participate in evaluation activities must be obtained before any data 
collection can occur under this agreement. Evaluation activities may include tracking and reporting data 
pertaining to participant attendance, enrollment, and demographic information. In addition, and following 
tribal protocols and procedures, grant partners agree to allow FTF and evaluation consultants of FTF to 
observe program activities on site and collaborate with FTF led and initiated evaluation activities to encourage 
parent consent for data collection. (Standards for data security for this strategy are found in Exhibit C.) 

Units of Service and Performance Measures that are aligned to the Goal for the purposes of this RFGA are as 
follows: 

Unit of Service: 
Number of books distributed 
o local resource guides distributed 
Number of workshops held 
o events held 

Performance Measures: 
Number of books distributed/proposed number 
Number of local resource guides distributed /proposed number 
Number of workshops held/proposed number 
Number of events held/proposed number 
Number of children receiving books 
Number of adults attending workshops 
Number of adults attending event 
Number of paid media 
Number of earned media 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 39 of 59 



Number of impressions 
Number of education reinforcement items distributed 

For more information on FTF Goal Areas, Goals and Performance Measures, please reference the FTF Strategy 

Toolkit at: http://azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BAeque 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 40 of 59 



Exhibit B: 

"'1+ iw~ FIRST THINGS FIRST 
Ready for School. Set for Life. 

Standards of Practice 

Parent Outreach and Awareness 

I. Strategy Description 

Recognizing that parents and families are their young child's first and most important teacher, family support 

is a component of Arizona's comprehensive early childhood system. Within family support, a continuum of 

strategies exists to meet the universal needs of all families to the targeted needs of families who may be at 

risk, such as English language learners, teen parents, and low income families. Information gaps exist that have 

implications for how adults interact with and raise young children. Providing specific knowledge and tools 

about the importance of early interactions in healthy brain development is the first step in assisting parents in 

making choices that will support and optimize their child's development. 

Parent outreach and awareness strategies strive to increase all families' awareness of positive parenting and 

knowledge of services, supports and information on child development, child health and early learning to 

support their child's overall development. In other words, the goal ofthis strategy Is to change parent 

behavior through a variety of complementary tactics so that their child is ready for school at kindergarten 

entry. 

It is important to note that increasing general public awareness of the importance of early childhood is not the 

objective ofthe parent outreach and awareness strategy. Instead, increasing general public awareness falls 

under the purview of the FTF statewide community awareness strategy, while this parent outreach and 

awareness strategy is targeted specifically for and directly to parents. 

Recognizing that children are active participants in the world from day one is critical for supporting a child's 

healthy brain development and learning. Developmental and neuroscience research emphasizes the 

importance of infants engaging in discovery through everyday explorations shared by a sensitive, attentive 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 41 of59 



caregiver (National Scientific Council on the Developing Child, 2007; Stamm, 2007). According to the First 

Things First Family and Community Survey on Early Childhood, A Baseline Report on Families and Coordination 

2008, when asked at what age babies sense and react to their surroundings, about half of Arizona parents 

acknowledged that this occurs in the first month of life (51%). Although this represents a larger proportion of 

parents than in the national survey (35%), nearly half of Arizona parents (48%) still believe that children do not 

respond to their environment until two months of age or later. This suggests that almost half of Arizona 

parents do not fully understand the importance of the child's very early interactive experiences with his or her 

environment for healthy development. Overall, research based knowledge about what to expect from their 

child at each age helps parents interact positively with their child and set appropriate expectations and 

boundaries throughout their daily routines. Furthermore, Arizona's parents understand that early childhood 

development is important, with over 75% of parents acknowledging that they can significantly impact 

children's brain development at or before birth. While Arizona's parents understand the importance of early 

brain development, not all are sure what they can do to best support their child's optimal development. 

Results from the Family and Community Survey (INSERT DATE) also indicate that parents can benefit from 

clear, research-based information to help them support their child. 

FTF parent outreach and awareness strategies provide families of young children with information, materials 

or connections to resources and activities that increase awareness of early childhood development and health 

and the resources, supports or programs available for young children and their families. Having identified 

these gaps, it is important to deliver parent outreach and awareness strategies with consideration for local 

needs. For example, if a community has data that indicates parents and families are not reading regularly with 

their young children, a parent outreach and awareness strategy may be an appropriate approach to increase 

families' awareness about the importance and value of daily reading activities through messaging, story times 

at the local library that may also include a book distribution component or book club, and identification of 

additional community resources. 

Outreach and awareness alone, in most cases though, may not be sufficient to change parent behavior. While 

parents' awareness has increased, as noted in the example above, parents may not have the resources or 

tools to effectively implement the change. Parents may be aware of the need to read to children, but that 

does not mean that they can actually read to their child (adult literacy), feel that they know how to read to 

their young child (e.g., which books are developmentally appropriate;, how to read to a child at different 

developmental stages) or that they have access to books (e.g., may not be able to afford books; may not live 
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 42 of 59 



close to a library or have transportation). These are some of the considerations in determining whether to 

implement an outreach and awareness strategy. 

Parent outreach and awareness activities include the following: 

D. Resource Distribution: Distribution of children's books, audio discs, community resource guides, child 

development and child health fact sheets, parenting tip sheets, brochures, pamphlets, and/or 

newsletters. Resources can be offered and distributed during established community festivals, fairs, or 

exhibitions at community settings and through community-based partners. For example, parents and 

children can be provided with developmentally appropriate books to take home that encourage daily 

family reading activities. 

E. Parenti Family Workshop: One-time informational sessions for parents and families to increase 

awareness about child development or child health topics. These may include, for example, library 

story times, an informational session about programs or services available in the community, or a 

session on brain development, child development or child health. For example, child health workshops 

may be offered to increase parent's knowledge about topics such as injury prevention, oral health, 

preventative health care, or nutrition. One or more of these activities can be implemented in 

conjunction with other FTF early learning, health and/ or family support strategies as part of regional 

funding plan implementation. 

F. Earned Media and Paid Advertising: Earned media is defined as stories strategically placed in major 

broadcast print or emerging media as well as information placed in smaller community newspapers, 

newsletters, and public service announcements. Paid advertising is defined as advertising through 

billboards, print ads, multimedia campaigns (TV), radio and online ads. Paid advertising requires a 

substantial financial investment and must be accompanied by other strategies in order to be effective 

in changing behavior. The advertising itself must be research-based and the information provided 

should be about a specific early childhood development or child health topic related to critical time 

periods to address trends in child rearing and parenting practices that target parents and families. For 

example, print ads displayed on buses with the message "read with your child every day", includes a 

phone number and web address for a community resource that provides additional information and 

support on reading with young children. This may bring parents' attention to the issue and further 

create interest in seeking out the listed resources. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 43 of 59 



II. Standards of Practice 

A. Implementation Standards 

Utilize a family centered and strengths-based approach. 

1. Provide parents and families with readily accessible information about child development and child 

health, including one or more of the following topics: 

• The domains of child development (social emotional, language and communication - including 

emergent literacy, cognitive, physical and motor development), including understanding when 

to have concerns related to children's development; 

• The parents' role as the child's primary teachers and partners in the education of their children; 

• Appropriate child-adult interactions and development of positive and supportive parenting 

skillsj 

• Early language and emergent literacy including typical early language and emergent literacy 

development for infants, toddlers and preschoolers and the importance of reading daily with 

their young child including maintaining a literacy-rich home environment; 

• The impact of media and the importance of limited screen time (TV, computers, smart phones, 

pads and tablets, video games) for young children; 

• Child health information and/or community resources for child health including topics such as 

preventative health care and wellness, developmental and sensory screening, immunizations, 

oral health, injury prevention, and nutrition; 

• Available community resources such as the Women, Infants and Children Program (WIC), food 

banks, employment services or adult education, early intervention services, school programs, 

child care resource and referral, libraries, parent education classes, home visitation programs, 

and health care including oral health; 

• Parent tips and resources on how to use toys and other educational items to enrich interactions 

with their child, but not substitute interactions between adult and child. 

2. All information provided through media, resource distribution and/or workshops must be evidence 

based, developmentally appropriate, culturally responsive and strengths based. Activities 

implemented must take into account local families and children's needs, desires, histories, 
GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 44 of 69 



lifestyles, concerns, strengths, resources, culture, ethnicity, and priorities. In addition, appropriate 

developmental guidance is to be provided to parents and families on behalf of their very young 

children when providing workshops or distributing information. Information provided to families is 

to be offered to parents and families in a manner that strengthens early relationships with 

infants/toddlers and young children. Print materials must be provided at a 5th grade reading level 

using common language and resources and information provided must be accurate and regularly 

updated to ensure information is current. Permission for the use of copyright materials must be 

documented and cited. 

Workshops are flexible and continuallv responsive to emerging family and community issues. 

1. Structured workshop activities must be accessible for families by being provided at times and locations 

that are convenient for families including weekend and evening hours. 

2. Workshops should be manageable in size and have appropriate staffing patterns. 

For adult-only sessions, there shall be a maximum of 50 participants with a ratio of 1 staff per 25 adult 

participants (2 staff: 50 adult participants). Room size and space must be adequate to support the 

number of adults participating. 

3. Open and honest communication is supported and opportunities for formal and informal feedback are 

integrated into the structure of the workshop. 

4. Confidentiality is maintained with workshops being respectful of family members and protective of 

their legal rights. 

5. Families are engaged as partners to ensure that the program is beneficial by providing families the 

opportunity to provide regular input and feedback in programmatic planning to better meet their 

needs. 

6. Staff Standards 

• Staff developing materials or providing workshops demonstrate extensive knowledge of the 

community, the culture, and the community's resources. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 45 of 59 



• The length of employment and experience/education are reflective of high quality staff. 

Supervisory staff are required to have a minimum of a Bachelors degree in early childhood 

development, education, family studies, social work, nursing or a closely related field. 

• The grantee must establish an effective, consistent supervisory system that provides support for 

all staff members and ensures accountability to participants, funders, and the community. 

• All staff work as a team, modeling respectful relationships consistent with program goals and 

whose top priority is the well-being of families and children. 

• Staff skills and abilities are regularly assessed to ensure they are able to engage families while 

maintaining a professional rapport. 

• Ongoing staff development/training on the FTF Parent Outreach and Awareness Standards of 

Practice principles is provided. 

• Ongoing staff development/training to ensure program quality and give staff an opportunity to 

develop professionally is provided. 

• Supervisors work with staff to prepare professional development plans. 

Evaluation and monitoring is a collaborative, ongoing process that includes input from staff, families, program 

administrators, and communitv members. 

1. Mechanisms to assess program effectiveness and ability to implement quality improvements must 

be demonstrated. 

2. Participation in data collection and reporting of performance measures to First Things First is 

required. 

B. Branding and Earned and Paid Media Standards 

1. All parent outreach and awareness activities will adhere to the FTF communications guidelines 

including branding protocols which can be found in the First Things First Communications 

Toolkit, The toolkit is a "living document" and is not meant to be downloaded. Appendix One to 

this document outlines the Table of Contents of the Communications Toolkit and provides 

readers a comprehensive view of the tools available. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 46 of 59 



2. Earned media activities are to center around various topics that raise parent awareness, 

including: identification of an awareness gap as a community issue to be addressed; 

announcement of a new program or service to help change a parent's behavior; new or 

updated research about the behavior identified for change; milestones achieved in changing 

behaviors; and/or a success story about a specific child or family benefitting from a service. All 

earned media must include: early childhood information that illustrates how the behavior 

change benefits the education/health of young children and information on how to access 

additional information or support in changing the behavior. See the FTF branding protocols for 

additional requirements. 

3. Paid advertising must be research-based, outcome focused and professionally developed. 

Development of such a campaign can cost upwards of $200,000, in addition to the cost of 

placing the advertising (actually paying for the billboard, cinema or newspaper ad, television or 

radio spot, etc.). Advertising that seeks to change behavior requires significant repetition in 

order to achieve market saturation (ensuring that people see or hear the message enough 

times to change behavior). In addition, strategies and tactics must be in place to support those 

who are willing to move from awareness to action (change behavior). Before a paid advertising 

campaign is utilized as an approach for parent awareness and outreach the following 

information is necessary: 

• Information about the root cause of the issue to be addressed (is it really a need for 

awareness, or something else); 

• Is the source of the information credible (specific issue or anecdotal information); 

• Evidence that the paid advertising will change this behavior; 

• Sufficient resources are available to achieve the saturation required to effect change; and 

• Strategies/tactics that will be implemented in addition to the paid advertising that will 

support behavior change (moving from awareness to action). 

When an existing paid advertising effort is being utilized, information on the following is required: 
• Length of time the current creative has been used; 

• The financial investment in the current campaign and where has it been used (specific 

markets) to determine effectiveness for the target population and geographic region 

proposed under this strategy; 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 47 of 59 



• Evidence that the campaign has had an impact on behavior AND in the markets where the 

campaign was used (for example, for a campaign that sought to increases immunization 

rates, did immunization rates go up in that area when the campaign was in use?); 

• Identification of other activities that were in place to support the paid advertising campaign 

and their effect on the impact achieved; and 

• Knowledge of and understanding of the ability for co-branding or adding additional calls to 

action; restrictions on paid media time vs. gratis media time; and, restrictions on copyright 

use. 

C. Cultural Competence 

Affirm, strengthen and promote families' cultural, racial and linguistic identities and enhance their ability 

to function in a multicultural society. 

• Create opportunities for families of different backgrounds to identify areas of common ground and 

to accept and value differences between them. 

• Hire staff who reflect the cultural and ethnic experiences and language of the families with whom 

they work and integrate their expertise into the entire program. 

• Early childhood practitioners /early childhood service providers shall ensure that children and 

families receive from all staff members effective, understandable, and respectful care that is 

provided in a culturally competent manner- a manner compatible with their cultural beliefs and 

practices, and in their preferred language. Early childhood practitioners /early childhood service 

providers should ensure that staff at all levels and across all disciplines receive ongoing education 

and training in culturally and linguistically appropriate service delivery. Early childhood 

practitioners/early childhood service providers should develop participatory, collaborative 

partnerships with communities and utilize a variety of formal and informal mechanisms to facilitate 

community and family-centered involvement to ensure that services are delivered in a manner that 

is consistent with the National Standards on Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services 

and/or the National Recommendations on Cultural and Linguistic Competence for the National 

Association for the Education of Young Children." 

http://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/templates/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvIID=15 ; 

http://www.naeyc.org/positionstatements/linguistic 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 48 of 59 



• Service providers should understand that individual Tribes/Nations are distinct and separate 

communities from other Tribes/Nations and their governmental systems and structures are not 

reflective of each other. Services to Tribal communities and on reservations must be provided in a 

manner compatible with the Tribe's/Nation's cultural beliefs and practices, to include the preferred 

language of the community. Services must also be provided in accordance with the Tribe's/Nation's 

laws, policies and procedures. The effectiveness of services is directly related to the provider's 

consideration of the beliefs, customs and laws of the Tribe/Nation. 

• Service providers can obtain information about providing services on tribal lands from a variety of 

sources. These include the FTF Regional Director, Regional Council members, tribal websites and 

publications, as well as official representatives of the Tribe/Nation such as the governing body, 

standing committees and authorized departments. It is highly recommended that service providers 

seek guidance from one or more of these sources before initiating services on reservations. Failure 

to do so could result in contraventions of cultural beliefs, Tribal laws or sovereignty. 

• Programs will demonstrate their ability to operate within these parameters through prior 

experience working with Tribes/Nations, demonstrating that staff is culturally competent, 

partnerships with agencies serving Native American families, knowledge of cultural beliefs, customs 

and laws of the Tribe/Nation or a combination of these elements. 

• In the United States, Native American Tribes are considered autonomous nations with all of the 

rights and responsibilities of a nation. Understanding this, Native American Tribes are charged with 

protecting the health and safety of their people. To this end, Tribes have full ownership over any 

data collected within their reservation boundaries. This means that Tribes can allow or not allow 

any program to collect data from or related to any early childhood development and health 

program or activities on the reservation. 

Any grantee implementing programs in tribal communities must have official tribal permission to 

collect and utilize sensitive data from or related to any early childhood development and health 

program or activities. 

GRA·RC029·13·0533·01 Page 49 of 59 



Exhibit c: 

Parent Outreach and Awareness 

Data reporting requirements for the Parent Outreach and Awareness Strategy are not yet final for State Fiscal 
Year 2013. This document was created to inform applicants of possible data requirements and includes 
information regarding Target Service Units, Performance Measures and a table representing the draft data 
reporting fields. 

Unit of Service and related Target Service Number 

A Unit of Service is a FTF designated indicator of performance specific to each FTF strategy. It is composed of a 
unit of measure and a number (Target Service Number). 
A Unit of Measure/Service can be a target population and/or a service/product that a grantee is expected to 
serve as part of an agreement. Target Service Number represents the number of units (e.g. target population) 
proposed to be served or number of products/services proposed to be delivered during the contract year. 

For example, for the FTF strategy Home Visitation the FTF Unit of Service is "number of families served" and a 
Target Service Number of SO represents the number of families the program proposes to serve during the 
contract period. All FTF applicants must clearly state in the proposal a target service number for each strategy 
specific Unit of Service. 

For Parent Outreach and Awareness, the units of service are: 
Number of books distributed 
Number of local resource guides distributed 
Number of workshops held 
Number of events held 

Determining and Interpreting Torget Service Numbers 

Number of books distributed should reflect the total number of books to be distributed for one grant contract 
period (in most cases, one year). If book distribution is not proposed as part of your contract, reflect zero as 
the target service number. 

Number of local resource guides distributed should reflect the total number of local resource guides to be 
distributed for one grant contract period (in most cases, one year). If local resource guide distribution is not 
proposed as part of your contract, reflect zero as the target service number. 

Number of workshops held should reflect the total number of workshops for parents targeted to be 
held for one grant contract period (in most cases, one year). If conducting workshop is not proposed as part 
of your contract, reflect zero as the target service number. 

Number of events held should reflect the total number of events for parents targeted to be held for one grant 
contract period (in most cases, one year). If conducting events is not proposed as part of your contract, reflect 
zero as the target service number. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 50 of 59 



Performance Measures 

Performance Measures measure (1) key indicators of performance (Le. Unit of Service); (2) basic 
implementation of strategy; (3) alignment of program activities to strategy specific standards of practice, (4) 
performance or progress toward pre-established strategic goals. Performance measures may include the level 
or type of program activities conducted (e.g. serving families/children through home visits) and/or the direct 
services and products delivered by a program (e.g., providing scholarships). 

For Parent Outreach and Awareness, performance measures are: 
Number of books distributed/proposed number 
Number of local resource guides distributed /proposed number 
Number of workshops held/proposed number 
Number of events held/proposed number 
Number of children receiving books 
Number of adults attending workshops 
Number of adults attending event 
Number of paid media 
Number of earned media 
Number of impressions 
Number of education reinforcement items distributed 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 51 of 59 



Are you contracted to distribute books to children? 
Are you enrolling children as a part of your book distribution program? If Yes, please complete Section A. If No, skip to Section B 
Section A 
Number of books distributed 
Number of children newly enrolled into book distribution program 
Number of children receiving books (continuing and newly enrolled) 
Section B 
Number of books distributed 
Number of children receiving books 

I Resource Guide Distribution 

YES/NO 
YES/NO 

TSU 

Are you contracted to distribute resource guide? YES/NO 
Number of local resource guides distributed TSU 

I Education Reinforcement Items Distributed _ =:J 
Number of Education Reinforcement Items Distributed 

discs 
Type of education reinforcement items distributed (choose all that apply) 

Audio 

I Are you contracted to do earned media and/or paid advertising ·-----1 
Number of Earned Media 
Type of earned media (e.g. paper, radio) 
Number of paid advertising 
Number of impressions by each type of paid advertising 
Frequency of paid advertising 

I Are you a program that conduct workshops for parents 
Number of workshops held 
Number of adults attending workshop 
topic check box 
number of workshop cancelled 

I Events Held , 

Billboard 
Billboard --- -----1 
TSU 

text 

Number of events held TSU 
Number of adults attending events 
topic check box (diaper drive, health fair) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 52 of 59 



Exhibit D 

First Things First - Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board 
Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators 

BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of First Things First is to aid in the creation of a system that offers opportunities and 
supports for families and communities in the development of all children so they can grow up 
healthy and ready to succeed. Our work is accountable and transparent to decision-makers and 
the citizens of Arizona. Collaboration and direct funding of grantees to undertake work on behalf 
of the children and families of Arizona is fundamental to the purpose and mission of FTF. Regular 
submission of data related to funded work is an important part of ensuring accountability and 
maximum positive impact for young children. 

Data Security Guidelines for Data Submission to FTF 
The Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Thing First - FTF) will ensure 
that resources allocated have maximum impact for the benefit of children and families. To ensure 
this accountability, FTF will establish data reporting requirements for all state and regional 
grantees. All funded providers will regularly submit programmatic and financial reports as 
identified in the FTF reporting requirements. 
FTF data submissions are classified in one of three levels: 

• Public data 

• Umited distribution data 

• Confidential data 

The majority of FTF reporting submissions are completed through the FTF Partner and Grants 
Management System (PGMS). Subsequent to the award of a FTF contract, the grantee will receive 
general training on login and navigation within the PGMS system. With this login the grantee will 
be able to manage their contract information. An additional training on strategy-specific data 
submission requirements will also be conducted. During that training the grantee will be informed 
on submission of data reporting requirements through PGMS. All data submitted through PGMS is 
public data or limited distribution data. Because PGMS is located in a secure extranet 
environment, grantees using PGMS for data submission are not required to undertake additional 
security measures related to their data submission above those identified in the general and data 
submission orientations (password and login security, guidelines for upload of narrative and other 
reports). 

A small group of grantees submit data requirements, through agreement between the grantee 
and FTF, directly through the FTF extranet, rather than a PGMS web-based entry form. These data 
are likely to contain limited distribution data and must follow the following protocols. Data 
structure agreement, login, ftp, revision request. Grantees that submit data through the FTF 
extra net must ensure that limited distribution data may not be intercepted or viewed at any time 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 53 of 59 



by parties other than the grantee and FTF and that throughout the reporting and submission 
process the data are secured. 

Any grantee submitting data identified as confidential must file a formal data security policy with 
FTF. Confidential data will not be a part of standard data submission requirements. Grantee 
general orientation and data reporting orientation will identify data requirements as public data, 
limited distribution data, and/or confidential data. 

Data Security Guidelines for Grantee Maintenance of Data 
In order to submit data to FTF in fulfillment of reporting requirements, grantees must keep all data 
collected for their program(s) within their system (database) or hardcopies. While FTF data 
submissions are generally aggregated and contain no individually identifying information, grantee 
data is likely to contain highly sensitive information on individuals, their education and their 
health. These guidelines and requirements are for the maintenance of those data. 

All grantees must have a data security policy in force which identifies how the organization 
ensures that data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from inappropriate 
access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. 

All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA, GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and 
maintain those approvals for all data. If HIPAA, FERPA or other data regulation requires that 
participating individuals give consent to data collection on their person and if in the course of 
regular data submissions to FTF such data will be provided to FTF, submission of personal data to 
FTF must be reflected in all data regulation documents. 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 54 of 59 



JOB SUMMARY 

Gila County Library District 
lob Title 

Early Literacy San Carlos Apache Community Outreach Liaison 
Temporary Part-time 

The primary responsibilities of the individual in this position are to develop and coordinate 
outreach activities for early literacy promotion to parents of children ages birth to five years. This 
inciudes taking the early literacy experience to populations that do not have direct access to a 
library facility, promoting library services and resources to community groups, with an emphasis on 
early literacy and reading. The individual will conduct a survey of Kindergarten Teachers of all 
schools located on the San Carlos Apache Reservation to find out how many children entered 
school in August 2012 unprepared for reading readiness 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Maintains patron confidentiality in compliance with Arizona state law. 
2. Conducts early literacy outreach for parents/caregivers of children, birth to five years. 
3. Conducts a survey of Kindergarten Teachers in all schools on San Carlos Apache Reservation. 
4. Develops and implements a plan for providing outreach services for assigned areas of San 
Carlos Apache Reservation by working closely with the County Librarian. 
5. Works with schools, daycares, W/~ Head Start, teen parenting groups, Boys & Girls Club, and 

other community organizations that serve children to promote Early Literacy. The critical age 
group of focus is on birth to five years. 

6. Is aware of other community entities providing services to children and coordinates activities as 
appropriate. The focus is on entities that provide service to birth to five years of age. 

7. Seeks out opportunities and makes early literacy presentations to community groups. Focus on 
groups that include target populations. 

8. Works closely with the County Librarian planning distribution of informational early literacy 
brochures and registers children for the Imagination Library Book Program. 

9. Prepares monthly reports and forwards as directed. 
10. Per/orms other related and necessary duties as assigned. 

REQUIRED CERTIFICA TIONS, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
• Must have a current driver's license valid in the State of Arizona and a vehicle to do site visits. 
• Must live on San Carlos Apace Reservation. 
• Education and/or experience in early literacy programming. 
• Proficiency with word processing and email. 
• Ability to work with limited supervision, with an aptitude for detailed work and proficiency in 

prioritizing tasks 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 Page 55 of 59 



REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS 
Reports to: County Librarian, Library Assistant Senior 

GRA-RC029-13-D533-D1 Page 56 of 59 



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF feDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

OJ. bllHlGftint of ADIlGu1tulV 
N.HdOnoughlll._noDopa_ntofHw."" __ 

SpodoIS......-NWtIlGnP_far-.t_tt. __ 

Comtnadi1y ~1IfIFood~ 
_ ,..".. .. ""S_,_Cc>unII .. Cm .... f.gFedorol lJIndo 
Pa __ ug"u..u.s.Pornt~~"-lfoUon.IP"",.t 
_"-""fIIr_IIIIII~CIaIoIIIoG_1JIOds 

_"",,-b Staloo OIIdOcu&oOonllllfng Fedorot lJIndo 

CFDA 
Numbo< 

IIl.667 
10.565 
1111115 

to.se& -T .... _Peymon\Ifor8l!(, .. ond~ConIIII*IDF_lM1d.CftI ..... 
Po ..... III_" "'"U.s.,_'IlS ....... TonIDIIIU .... 1 Fo_ FcftJl __ U_P\oIod 

r .... u.s. __ gfAgriou1Uw 

u.s. DIpIIItm.nlaIOonuna .... 
_1IVDUtII>1hI_SIo18~"_hIoI .... _c _ 
_ ".IT_D1IJ~l"'-

WJ.~ar~I""IIdM~ 
_a_",QlalcOoYoludlets 
........ U."' ..... 1ho __ oep.tmOlltor_loS .. u"" 

EfI10fgenty --1'rqJ1m 
.......... _" .... _oe,-ontal_ ... 

AARc\-_P_andRa,PldRNIDU_"."...., CGoom\IIIY DnIIopmont __ CUter 

~~--ComInIftllr DoWIopmonI_ Granl _._"".",.,.,...,...--
_HdIlltolllloVIICl1l>orGIobe 
Com~~ __ 

Td'll CcrMtuatI\I~onI __ CIdIior 

TOI81 U.8. Dep<tIn .. ,'gfHouolnllond IIdIM DnoIoi>mMI 

U.S. De\II_otU.ol_. 
"",-_UouofT_ 

_Hdtll_hVIIIh.U.s._S_.Tonto __ Foroot 

a.tiI_CooIS_ 
T""" U.S. De9OIImllllo1 ... lnt<ttor 

WI.~tof_ 
.... sed 11" .... 1111 U.._CrlmInlI.hoall .. CGmmlaolon CdmI_ 0InIpen00I0D 
_AIIIllf ___ QJI1IIr 

_1IJmo ......... ~_.-G .... "-
ARRA-EdwonI&,nIe_ ..... IIot_GI1II1I ToIlIIJu ___ P_CIuoIor 

ToIlII U.s. DtIF"'1mllllcf ... _ 

u.s. Dopoltmont 0/ Lallo. 
"'-'_III""'!1htll._"._nt .. _cSocur!ly __ ~CIuoIoc; 

IMAMIft Prv;-
WlAV __ 

WIA-..._ 
NlSlAWIA ...... Prograa 
ARRAWlAV __ ~ 

ARRAWIA __ 

T .... -..kIV ..... onIAda.* 

I_GIwdo· WIA_1S03 
Tor>! WI. DojWII1m .. 1 of 1Jlba< 

IO.u.tcaovm 

11.651 

14.871 

14.231 

14.212 

14.228 
14.228 
14.255 

14.228 

lli2211 

15..238 

18.t70 

18.1111 
18.811S 

11.2118 

17.269 

17.2eO 

11.2&11 

17.2611 

17.2110 

17.287 

See aocompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of fedenll awards. 
(6) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

"" .... nn .... "h Orl._ Humbo. 

_1141. HG05D277 
HI3SII115902. HG88tlS8-3 

NIA-1lhcI 

t0-0G11010121018 
11·DG-11Oa012I-G011 

aropfl10S20IO 

IWo·DncI 

DE111073001 

000-10 

1_ 
174-10 

l iZ-11ft 

146.09 

NIA-_ 

D9-CS-ll03012GO-01S 

VC-l1_ 

IlA-l1-G211 
DC1IJ.427. oc.1O-038 

CEOtt208001. DEll1_. 
001_ 

DEoet208001. DElll_. 
DEl0_1 

DEOln2OllOO1.DE111_ . 
DEtOI045OO1 

DEIl81201lOO1. DEU1_I. 
CE1Ot04liOOl 

DEOII12OIID01. OEll1_. 
OE1OtIK5OO1 

DEOIII201OO1.DE111_. 
DEl_ 

DE070295OII1. DEOII1208001. 
1lE081217OO1. ~ 

a787 -S7.7D4 

9,48a 

17_ 
371S 

-
1ta.732 

1.18,112 

101,487 

~1.lse 

234,1lIM 

2.'127.148 

l11iS,401I 

2,7lIO 

lmI.lIiSO ... 
1<44.412 

f84,W 
855,81!6 

3.023.345 

~~ 
S.147.840 

tI,4!IS 

_S8DJ32.. 
3£~,615 

2.1_ 

37,721 
2.117'-

~""" 

Page 57 of 59 



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS CCONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

CFoA 
FIIft1aI EiI.ntorlP .. ~tbro~b Gnnrt .. lPlogram lJUf Num ..... POH·1h_hG,antots NUdlMt 

u.s. DepartonentOlTAMpo ... aon 
P_ UtIoughllle _n. DopoolmOlll OfTro.opo_. 

IflIIIMiar 1'Iann1lg81111 Conc/nIc6oR 2U.205 1000JPA IJ8.1321.II3M1'A 10-161 
ARRA Highway -.nIng"'" CcImIrudIon 20.205 IGNJPAOII-128 

TcIoIU.s.~.,~ 

FecfenJ LlbroIYS ....... Teo/maIogy Acl 
P ...... _.gII ... _._LIIo-._ ..... Pulllrc_. 

ua-y_,a!ldToo:IIncIIDgyGranl 015.310 201~1.2OICJ.390C8..4.11-A4 

u.s. OOperlm.nl 0/ enormr 
_ ... "'.g11Ih._.OO...-OfCDmal .... 
__ 1411110""" &I< Low 1 __ • 

81.1l4~ cooz.lJ9.02.l3043-_ 
NIRA·wa_ .......... &I<LowI.-nePeno .... 81.1l42 C031-1l6-O% 

T .... U.s. DepallmonlotEm!Qw 

u.s. ~orEcl....u ... 
ImpaclAid 84.041 NlA·DIn!c:I 

........ Ihrough Ille Adzon. Gevemot._Of_le_1V 
ARRA·Slalefloeal __ Fill<! 84.394 GOER.FY201Ba18-E , 
ARRA·SI, te __ FlI1CI 

84.3lI4 OER-ll~QA..GS.$ ARRA-S ..... __ FrnI 
84.394 OEll-11·1eA-(aS..143 

ToIIIlARRA·Slal8f __ FUndC .... 

ARRA·EducoIlClaJOboF .... 84.4fD ISlHlER-11I8A-EJOOI 
Pasl. 11110l1:li" the AdIoaa o..,. ..... nt of Edue.11an. 
lIIIel_to ~ EducollonalAgeluit.) 84.010 801_ 
Enol'" Longuag ........ _Gllnrs B4.38S S386AIl8OII03 
MIIII1IIm,lIcoand _ ParInaIsNpa 84.888 ~ S38C309QIJII3 

MuilEducallcn-Ball._toSlatea 84.002 --RuralErluoaBan 84.358 --Po_1hlGllllhlh._eoperimontOfEd_ SpedaI--
Sper:iIIII;rIucolIon._toSlaI& 84.027 H027Al00007 

ARRASpedBI_ 84~~1 HS91_7 

... _Uuougbthe_ .. 8u_oeourt 
SpedBl_-Go1nlSlO 810. 84.O2l lOA 
ARRASpooIoIEducatIoft 84.391 lOA 

T«d SpedIIar.- CIImM 
Pusod IhIOlQlh Ih. ArIoo.o Dopartmllntof EclucolIIIn 

_TeoI>IIGIcgySlaleGr<.lICIUIier. _TooIInoIogy __ 
84.318 

831_ 
_·_Tl~_Gno"'" B4.388 -_ ... Ih"'uah '!nI. County 

EnIIondog EclraIl!cIIl-.gh_ogy 84.318 lIFETSTP·l_ 
T~" EdU<a1iOn T_ogy s ... te Grant auster. 

P.ged UtIough Iho AtIzono S.......,. COVtt 
TIlle I PfOgIllm &I<~end OoIIaquonIa.onn 84.ot3 ~U3 
~TI_Qu"'y __ • 84.387 S387_iJ 

in1pRJYIng T_QuO;ty_G ... la IM.387 211823 
""_IIII_gh Iho_ Do!IOrtmenlOfEduooUon 

!nIpro\I!IIaT_QllllltySl-ojeGrwdo 84.387 8367_ 
T .... IlI\PIDIlngT_QuoIIyStaloGronis 

ToIaIU.S.~ofE_ 

U.8.00partmenlofHooIlh_ HumanS.IYIc .. 
P ... ed III"""" Iho Artzano Ooporlmohlof _ 80M"" 
PublcHt-_""",""",",Ha~&I<_ 93.1X'1 HG784185 __ c...Act __ ",-,>, 

93.235 EII138O!1$ 

Im..-IlnoIIIIClII"'" 
1 .... _- lI3.2(;3 HG8e284Z8-O 
ARRA fmmuAiZeDans 93.112 -ToIllllmmunllllUan(llBnlllc-HrV_-. -_ DeperlmenlllaOed 9U40 ~·1 

Hll854_2, _H-
Mo"""'1i ondCllild """It __ GnInI.Sped!I_ 113.* _IJ45.4103 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
(7) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

~IIU_ 

$ 1,418.023 

:!!a!!2!! 
1.452.829 

-
241.164 
~.3'l9 

1,<J81.0Il3 

134,138 

10,1)34 
230,7811 

IlO,CIGO 
~ 
2B.327 

36.752 
12.36<1 

428,614 
11.-

1,614 

14.7a 
134 

31.017 7_ 
Ii3,77D 

In -
72,Q11C1 

72,7411 

3),z.t$ 

0.71. 

83,1340 
tD,863 

1,247,327 

ZI8.052 
1.000 

2S,000 

23 
25.023 
4.8E8 

21.850 

(Qldirlued) 

Page 58 of 59 



GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

u.s. Dlpalbntntor""''' end Rum.n stMcea (ContInued) 
"" ..... Ih""'g/lIII.~.,.,..,.,...ntolEconamJo80GUl11y T __ ""_co farNllOll1 F ... _ 

QI;Id SU-, Enfcxcom ... 1 LcwH.-.. _ ""'-_ ...... 
CGmmunlr_ Block GnlnlCblIor. ComrnaniIy 1IOnd __ 0I1I1II 

ARRA·COmmUftilr ___ 1 

T<lIoI~_,aiodIGniotCluOter 
___ 0t0nI 

HlVCorel'<lllrul,G ..... 
ToIaIU.8.~of",,""'ond H."",,_ 

U.S. DoporlnlOfll oIHClmOlond_urlIy; Pa_ ..... "IIb 1110_ Do"" ...... '" of Homeland 8 .... ~1Y 

Cl'DA 
Humblr 

-8:1._ 
83J568 -83.710 

8:1.881 
8:l.1n1 

__ IyGIIIIIlProg.... f11J1ff1 

P ...... UV"""h III. AdlonoDoporInIont of E'm.I1I.ncyS ........... MIIItaI)fNrlI .. 

e-gonoy ~/'IrfOmISICO _ f11.D4Z 

T .... u.s.~oI_S.' .. lIy 

T<lIoIEIrjIeoIftI_oIFedORll_ 

See accompanyIng notea 10 scheduta of expenditures of radersl awards. 
(8) 

GRA-RC029-13-0533-01 

, .... 1l'U'DIfI'h GrantoR H'umblr 

DElllf11SOOt 
1IESOenS-1. OEl111oeoo1 

DE111f113001 

DElllf113OO1 
IlIitltfl1300l 

DE111D7l1OO1 
HP852141-OO1.o 

EMW-:zotl-B'-APP-GOOOII 
EMP-2OIl RCGOt-.ADEM Rro-OO ~ 

2010 

• 83.m 
21~8 

1S9,287 

l.l09.1I'l7 
3a).111 

114,673 
lB.I72 
68{179 

192.7119 

Page 59 of 59 



First Things First 
Notice of Renewal Consideration

DATE: March 6, 2014

TO: Gila County Library District

FROM: Marjorie Bennett
Fiscal Specialist

RE: Renewal Information for Fiscal Year 2015

The current Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 grant awards are approaching renewal consideration from the First 
Things First San Carlos ApacheRegional Partnership Council. Receipt of this packet does not guarantee 
renewal of the grant award; it indicates eligibility for renewal consideration. First Things First may renew 
grant awards based on a number of factors including past performance and response to this renewal 
package.  

If renewed, the responsibility for adherence to all rules, regulations and terms and conditions set forth 
in the original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement will remain in effect for the 
contract period.  This includes compliance with the appropriate standards of practice, program 
implementation, as well as timely submission of data and narrative reportsand financial 
reimbursements. 

The renewal package includes instructions and the following attachments:

Attachment A - Program Implementation Questions
Attachment B -Program Implementation Plan
Attachment C -Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative
Attachment D - Key Personnel
Attachment E - Disclosure of Other Funding
Attachment F - First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form 

The completed renewal package (Attachments A-F) must be receivedno later than 3:00 PM onApril 4, 
2014.  Submit via email tombennett@azftf.gov. Electronicsubmission is preferred but if sending by 
standard mail, please send to my attention, First Things First, 4000 N. Central Avenue, Suite 800, 
Phoenix, AZ 85012.

Once received, responses will be reviewed and funding recommendations will be made to the San Carlos 
ApacheRegional Partnership Council and the Board of First Things First.  First Things First staff may 
contact you for clarifications prior to making recommendations. Grant awards will be in effect from July 
1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.

For questions, please contact me via email or phone, (602) 771-5084.

Thank you.



1

First Things First 
Grant Renewal Instructions

July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015

The following First Things First (FTF) grant is eligible for renewal by extending the current FY 2014 grant 
award. Programs in FY 2015 cannot be different in scope than from what was originally awarded.  

Grantee Name: Gila County Library District
FTF Grant Number: GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y2
Strategy Name: Parent Outreach and Awareness
Data Template(s) Assigned: Parent Outreach and Awareness
Eligible Renewal Amount: $ 70,000.00

The amount is subject to change pending legal and procurement review at 
First Things First.  If a different amount is approved for renewal, an updated 
line item budget & budget narrative will be required.

The renewal package includes the completion and submission of Attachments A-F.

Program Implementation Questions(Attachment A)
Provide a narrative response to each question in Attachment A.

Program Implementation Plan (Attachment B)
Provide an updated implementation plan for FY 2015.  The implementation plan should be related to the 
originally approved program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and process.

2015 Budget Forms (Attachment C – must include both the line item budget and budget narrative)

Key Personnel(Attachment D)
List all staff that will be paid from this grant program during FY 2015. The staff listed should correspond 
with your line item budget and budget narrative.  Submit resumes for any new staff or for those that 
have not yet been submitted to First Things First.

Disclosure of Other Funding Sources (Attachment E)
List any other funding utilized for this program administered by your agency.

First Things First Standard Agency InformationCollection Form (Attachment F)

FTF Regional Boundary Changes:  Regional boundary changes that impact the North Phoenix, Central 
Phoenix, South Phoenix, Northeast Maricopa, Central Maricopa, Central Pima, North Pima and South
Pima regions will go intoeffect July 1, 2014.  Any grant that is approved for renewal in the affected 
regions will continue to serve the same geographic area they were originally awarded to serve, with the 
expectation of maintaining current service delivery and service numbers from FY14 into FY15, unless 
otherwise indicated.



2

Standards of Practice Updates: Utilization of the Standards of Practice are part of the requirements for 
all awarded grants and represent the intent for how specific strategies are to be implemented.  Prior 
authorization is needed if the program deviates from the Standards of Practice.  Grantees are 
responsible for reviewing and implementing the most recent versions of the Standards of Practice, 
located in the FTF Strategy Toolkit, 
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA.  

Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation: It is the responsibility of the grantee to 
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models. Grantees are to include staff 
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in 
budgets, as needed. Programs will need to refer to their national office and/or administrative home for 
cost information, if applicable.

Compliance with State and Federal Law:As a reminder, all other state rules, regulations, and special 
terms and conditions will remain in effect for the grant period. This renewal application information 
becomes part of the agreement and expectations for program implementation and performance. A 
complete listing of the state uniform terms and conditions can be found via the State Procurement 
Office website at: http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp.

Quality Assurance:  It is the intent that each FTF grantee receives a targeted quality assurance (QA) visit 
within the cycle of their full grant period.  The findings from targeted QA visits will also be used to assess 
grantee/program performance for renewal considerations.  A grantee’s performance is reviewed 
individually and not in comparison with other grantees when considerations are made.

Program Performance and Data Reporting Requirements: First Things First provides program 
information to the public, regional partnership councils, and the Board of First Things First. The 
information regularly provided includes data related to performance measures and target service units; 
prior program performance, including QA findings; information provided in program narrative reports; 
and financial/expenditure information. Regional partnership councils utilize this information in strategic 
planning efforts, to identify annual funding priorities, to assist with renewal decisions, to develop new or 
modified strategies, to review the impact of programs in the region and state, and to highlight 
achievements in system building.

Grantee Data Reporting Requirements are identified in each grant award and can be accessed in the FTF 
Strategy Toolkit, 
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA. Please 
review the latest Data Reporting Requirements in preparation for implementation upon grant renewal.

Renewal Package Due Date:  The renewal package must be receivedno later than 3:00 PM onApril 4, 
2014.  Submit via email or standard mail to:

Marjorie Bennett, Fiscal Specialist
Michael Strawther, Fiscal Specialist
First Things First
4000 N. Central
Phoenix, AZ  85012
mbennett@azftf.gov
mstrawther@azftf.gov
(602) 771-5084



3

Attachment A

Program Implementation Questions

1. Provide a brief narrative description of your current approved program and your plan for 
continuation in SFY15, including context for the activities listed in the Program 
Implementation Plan. (Attachment B)

Gila County Library District and the San Carlos Library will continue encouraging the 
existing "Every Child Ready to Read" and “Brain Time” early literacy programs that 
provide training to parents about the importance of early literacy development for 
young children from birth through age five.  The Community Liaisons and the Children’s 
Programming Coordinator will conduct outreach in locations where parents of children 
ages birth to five years might be found. As an incentive and reward, each month, each 
child whose parents listen to the early literacy information will receive a book in the mail 
addressed to the child.  Gila County Library District will persist in its collaborative efforts 
striving to reach as many parents/caregivers of children birth through age 5 with our 
Early Literacy message as possible.

Gila County policy requires all grants to include 10% for indirect costs, including financial 
accounting, auditing, and general administrative costs. We have included the maximum 
allowable 10% for indirect costs in this grant.

2. If applicable, explain any proposed modifications for SFY15, including the change(s) to be 
made, how they were determined to be necessary, and how they will contribute to the 
success of your program.  Please note that program modifications cannot deviate from the 
original scope of work or applicable standards of practice. 

In addition to the current push to locate parents of children ages birth through five years 
for enrollment in the Dolly Parton Imagination Library Books Program, Gila County 
Library District would like to propose the following modifications moving forward in FY 
2015.

 Increase staff by one part-time Community Liaison for the Bylas area. This 
staff person would answer to the Library District Librarian. This modification 
would aid in meeting the requirements of better serving the whole 
reservation. Bylas residents would respond better to someone from their 
locale.  In addition this modification would provide more opportunities for 
reinforcement of the important message of Early Literacy to the Bylas parents 
of children birth to five years of age. This would be a temporary-part-time 
position of 5 hours per week at $17.25 per hour. Preference would be given to 
hiring a person who lives in the Bylas area.



4

 The current Community Liaison will continue to canvass the San Carlos and 
Peridot areas while the Early Literacy Programming Coordinator will conduct 
Parent/Child Workshops throughout the reservation.

 Due to the amount of Library District staff time spent directly implementing 
the strategy for this grant, beginning in FY 2015 the District will be charging 
this grant 16% of the Salary and Employee Related Expenses of the Public 
Services Librarian. 

 Over the last one and one-half years, each month an average of 9 children 
have graduated from the Dolly Parton Imagination Library Program because 
they reached their fifth birthday. This leaves a gap in the First Things First 
Parent Outreach Strategy of twelve months of non-service.  This coming year 
the Gila County Library District would like to add a new element to our grant 
that we feel falls within the Scope of Work. We would like to purchase a 
subscription to an award winning publication for each of the children 
graduating from the program. We feel that this would extend the parent/child 
interaction through the gap. The magazines of choice would be LADYBUG and 
CLICK. LADYBUG offers 40 pages of enchanting stories and poems to read 
aloud that are just the right length for a cozy cuddle. CLICK introduces children 
to science, art, nature, and environmental issues.  Ladybug would be the 
primary magazine with Click being a second choice in families of two children 
of the same age (twins).

 Gila County Library District, with the help of the Community Liaisons and the 
Early Literacy Program Coordinator, will continue a one-on-one satisfaction 
survey of parents with children enrolled in the Imagination Library Program in 
the early spring of 2014.

3. Describe how the program data will be utilized to improve program implementation.  Include 
assurances that data collection and submission will be timely and ongoing.

Gila County Library District will continue to collect data from the Dolly Parton Imagination 
Library Book Order Program, our Community Liaisons, and the San Carlos Public Library Staff. 
This data will be used to concentrate efforts to find children that have not yet been registered in 
the program.  Data collected from the upcoming parent survey this spring will help us to 
understand if our program is effective, and we will be able to make adjustments as necessary.



5

ZIP CODES 2010 U.S. 
CENSUS 
CHILDREN 
UNDER 5 YR

IMAGINATION 
LIBRARY 
REGISTRATIONS*

% SERVED

85530 (BYLAS) 237 105 44
85542 
(PERIDOT)

409 184 45

85550 (SAN 
CARLOS)

557 426 77

* The table above shows the number of children ages birth to five years that have beenregistered 
in Imagination Library. 



6

Attachment B
Program Implementation Plan

2015

A ct iv i t ie s Task Perso n Res po ns ib le Date  T ask  Wi l l  Be  
Com ple ted / Ti mel ine

Hire Community Liaison and 
Children’s Programming 
Coordinator

Recru i t  BylasLiaison  and reh i r e  
San  Car los  Lia ison  andEar ly 
Li t eracy ProgramCoordinator

Jacque Gri f f in /Gi la  
County HR Dept .

Ju ly 2014

Hire  BylasLiai son  Jacque Gri f f in /Gi la  
County HR Dept .

Ju ly 2014

Add n ew s t a f f  to  FTF PGMS Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Ju ly 2014

Promot ion o f Ear ly Li te racy 
P rogrammin g in  
Co mmuni t ie s  o f San  Car lo s  
Ap ache Rese rvat ion

Regi s t r a t ion  o f Chi ld ren  in to  
Imaginat ion  Libra ry

Mandatory meet in g b etween  GCLD 
Library S ta f f ,  San  Car los  
Librar ian ,  Chi ld ren’s  Coordinator,  
and  Lia isons to  p l an  th e  p ro mot ion  
of Ear ly Li t eracy P rogrammin g

Jacque Gri f f in /
Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Ju ly 2014

Regi s te r  Chi ld ren  for  Imagina t ion  
Library

Co mmuni ty Lia isons Ju ly 2014 throu gh
June 2015

Lo cate  Venu es  fo r  r each in g 
ch i ld ren whose pa ren t s  do n’ t  co me 
to  the  l ib rary

Co mmuni ty Lia isons Ju ly 2014 throu gh
June 2015

San  Car los  Apach e Regional  
Par tnersh ip  Counci l
Meet ings

Jo in  San  Car los  Ap ache Regional  
Par tnersh ip  Counci l ’s  Ear ly 
Chi ldhood  Deve lop ment  and  
Heal th  Col laborat ive  and  a t tend  
sch eduled  meet in gs .

Co mmuni ty Lia isons
Gi la  County Library 
Dis t r ic t  S t a f f

Bi-month ly meet ings

Ear ly Li te racy P rogramming Hold  “Bab y Time  Brain  Time” at  
San  Car los  Library

Chi ld ren’ s  
P rogrammin g 
Coordinator

Weekly

Hold  “Bab y Time  Brain  Time”in  
Bylas  (P lace to  b e  det ermined)

Month ly

Hold  P re-school Chi ld /Paren t  
S tory Time at  San  Car los  Library

Weekly

Hold  Ear ly Li t eracy P rograms at  
Co mmuni ty V enues  as  yet  to  be  
dete rmin ed

Weekly

Data  Input  fo r  new reg is t r a t ions
Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian /Co mmuni ty 
Liai sons

Month ly

Input Imagination Library 
Registrations into Dollywood 
Foundation Site

Data  updates  fo r  chan ge  of address
Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Month ly

NCOA Aler ts  fo r  “Bad” ad dresses
Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Month ly

Process  invo ices  fo r  book orders  
f ro m Dol lywood Foundat ion  
Imaginat ion  Libra ry

Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Month ly

Invoicing  P rocess  a l l  o ther  invo ices  fo r  
Ear ly Li te racy pro gramming

Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

As th e  need  a r i ses

Input  Paid  Invoices  to  F i r s t  
Th in gs  F i rs t

Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Month ly

Repor t  Train ings  to  Dis t r i c t  S t a f f Liai son Month ly
Upload  Data  Repor t  to  FTF Publ ic  Services  

Librar ian
Month ly

Data / Narrative Reports Upload  Nar rat ive  Repor t  t o  F i rs t  
Th in gs  F i rs t

Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Quar t er ly

Pol l  Kindergar ten s  in  a l l  p ub l ic  
schools  fo r  nu mb er  o f ch i ld ren  no t  
p repared  fo r  enro l lment .

Liai sons Au gu st  2014



7

Evaluat ion  Evaluat e  Survey Responses Liai sons September  2014

Include Su rvey r esu l t s  in  quar te r ly  
repor t

Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Octob er  2014

Sat i s fact ion  Survey to  
Paren ts

Dis t r ibu te  Su rvey to  p aren ts  o f 
ch i ld ren  regi s t ered  as  o f February 
1 s t   dur ing 4 t h q t r .

Liai sons  and  Ear ly 
Li t eracy Coord ina tor  
Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

Ap ri l  2015

Receive su rveys  and  r epor t  on  
resu l t s

Publ ic  Services  
Librar ian

June 2014

Early Literacy Training
Train  p aren ts / caregiver s  b y 
a t t end ing p aren t  meet in gs  o f 
va r ious  co mmuni ty en t i t i e s  dur ing  
the  year

Jacque Gri f f in ,  Publ ic  
Servi ces  Librar i an ,  
Co mmuni ty Lia ison  

As o ft en  as poss ib l e  
wh en  th e  occas ions  
ar i se

Cont inue one on  one t ra in ing 
w/paren t s

San  Car los Librar i an ,  
Co mmuni ty Lia ison  

Dai ly as  the  n eed  
ar i ses



8

Attachment C (Instructions)

How to Complete the Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative

Complete a 12-month budget for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 using the template 
provided.  Please make sure to include the provided budget narrative which describes the proposed line 
item budget.  

Please keep in mind items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative 
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related successfully 
implementing the project.  Requested funds must follow these guidelines:

 Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of First 
Things First funds.

 Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations.
 Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs charged 

and expended by the agency – consistent treatment of costs.
o For example – a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect cost if 

any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has been allocated 
to the First Things First award as a direct cost.

o For example – a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another source 
of funding and a different rate to First Things First - this would not be consistent 
treatment of costs.

 Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
 Be adequately documented. 
 All travel related costs for these trainings and meetings should be included in the Applicant’s 

budget and calculated using the State of Arizona travel rate limitations for mileage, per diem 
and lodging as described on the budget narrative worksheet.  For more information about the 
state requirements, visit http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/.  

 Budget modification requests must be submitted via the FTF Partner Grant Management System 
(PGMS) Communication Log and approval received prior to the implementation of any of the 
modifications.



9

Attachment C
Line Item Budget

While you must use this format, you may reproduce it in Word or Excel.  Limit your budget line items to the budget categories 
listed below. 

Budget period:  July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015

Budget Category Line Item Description Requested Funds Total Cost
PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total $31,133.00

Salaries 16% of Public Services Lib. Salary
2 Community Liaisons
Early Literacy Program Coordinator

  5,120.00
15,249.00
10,764.00

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $4,285.87
Fringe Benefits or Other ERE Soc. Security, Medicare, Work Comp

Health Ins. & AZ Retirement
2,443.95
1,841.92

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES Professional & Outside Services Sub 
Total

$19,190.83

Contracted Services Dollywood Foundation Imagination 
Library Books  

19,190.83

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $956.75
In-State Travel 
Out of State Travel

2150miles @ .44 ½ per 956.75

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total $
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $8,069.92
 Telephones/Communications Services
 Internet Access
 General Office Supplies
 Food

 Rent/Occupancy
 Evaluation (non-contracted & non-

personnel expenses)
 Postage
 Software (including IT supplies)
 Dues/Subscriptions
 Advertising
 Printing/Copying
 Program Materials

 Program Supplies
 Scholarships
 Program Incentives

Nutritious snacks for 75 workshops
@$15per workshop

Printing of 800 Surveys 
1000 Registration Brochures
108 Graduate Magazine Subscriptions
Craft Supplies

Promo first books
Shipping for books

1,125.00

216.18
450.00
3,780.00
718.74

1,680.00
   100.00

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total $
Equipment $4,999 or less in value

Subtotal Direct Program Costs: $63,636.37

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect 6,363.63
Indirect/Admin Costs $7,000

Total $ $70,000.00

Authorized signature___________________________________ Date



10

Attachment C (Continued)

Budget Narrative

The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line 
items.  The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the 
budget form.  Please verify that the narrative and budget form correspond and the calculations and 
totals are accurate.  Please include one narrative that matches the 12-month line item budget 
categories and subcategories.    

Personnel Services:Include information such as position title(s), name of employee (if known), salary, 
time to be spent on this program (hours or %), number of months assigned to this program, etc.  Explain 
how the salary rate for each position was determined.  If salaries are expected to increase during the 
project year, indicate the percentage increases for each position and justify the percent of the salary 
increase.  Also, be sure to include the scheduled salary increases on the Budget Form.

The Public Services Librarian spends approximately 16% of their time annually as staff for this 
grant. This is direct staffing, and includes data input for new registrations to the Imagination 
Library, data updates for address changes, collection of statistics from libraries and Liaisons, 
processing invoices, ordering and distributing first books, tracking timesheets for the Liaisons
each week, monthly reimbursements and quarterly reports. In addition, this position will be 
responsible for subscribing to magazines for the ‘Graduates’ each month. In an attempt to 
more accurately reflect the true cost of staffing this grant, 16% of the Public Services Librarian 
salary will be allocated to this grant. Gila County Library District is in the process of advertising 
for this position, and it is anticipated that beginning salary will likely be approximately 
$32,000.00 - the figure used to create this budget. 

32,000 x 16% = $5,120.00

Community Liaison for San Carlos and Peridot Reservation Communities will be hired on a part-
time basis by Gila County at a gross rate of $17.25 per hour (FICA and Social Security 7.85% and 
tax withheld as determined by the employee) The Community Liaison will be working 12 hours 
per week x 52 weeks= $10,764.00.

Community Liaison for Bylas will be hired on a part-time basis by Gila County at a gross rate of 
$17.25 per hour (FICA and Social Security 7.85% and tax withheld as determined by the 
employee). This liaison will work 5 hours per week x 52 weeks = $4,485.00.

Early Literacy Program Coordinator will be hired on a part-time basis by Gila County at a gross 
rate of $17.25 per hour (FICA and Social Security 7.65% and tax withheld as determined by the 
employee). The program Coordinator will be working 12 hours per week x 52 weeks = 
$10,764.00

Total for Personnel Services: $31,133.00



11

Employee Related Expenses:  Include a benefit percentage and what expenses make up employee 
benefit costs.  Indicate any special rates for part-time employees, if applicable.  Explain how the benefits 
for each position were determined.  If using a fringe benefit rate, explain how this percentage is justified 
or approved by your agency.

Gila County provides matching funds for:
FICA at 6.2% $1,930.25
Medicare at 1.45%       451.43

Workers Comp. Insurance at .20% 62.27
$2,443.95

In addition, Health Insurance (calculated at 16% of $7,800) and the County’s contribution for Arizona 
State Retirement (calculated at 26% of $3,712) is included, as follows:

Health Insurance $1,248.00
Arizona State Retirement       593.92

$1,841.92

Total for Employee Related Expenses:    $4,285.87

Professional and Outside Services:  If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in the budget, 
define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for the services related to 
the project.  Explain how all contracts will be procured.

Professional and Outside Services:  If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in 
the budget, define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for the 
services related to the project.  Explain how all contracts will be procured.

Gila County Library District will continue to contract with the Dollywood Foundation 
Imagination Library to supply a book a month by mail to any child registered in the program.  
This assumes an average rate of $28.00/year per child with an estimated goal of 685.4 children.
(Not all children get 12 books as they are not all registered from day one of the grant period.)

Total for Professional & Outside Services: $19,190.83

Travel:Separate travel that is in state and out-of-state.  Include a detailed breakdown of hotel, 
transportation, meal costs, etc.  Indicate the location(s) of travel, the justification for travel, how many 
employees will attend and how the estimates have been determined.  Explain the relationship of each 
cost item to the project (e.g., if training or training expenses are requested, explain the topic of the 
training and its relationship to the project).  Applicants must use the State of Arizona Travel Policy on 
rates limitations for mileage, lodging, and meals (http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/ for both in-state and 
out-of-state travel.

Travel monies will be set aside for the Community Liaisons and the Early Literacy Program 



12

Coordinator to travel from their community to Globe in order to meet with the Gila County 
Library District Director to complete plans for the awareness campaign and to insure that there 
is a unified message presented to the prospective parents/ caregivers. Travel monies will also 
be reserved for travel for the Community Liaisons and the Early Literacy Program Coordinator 
to do outreach in the communities of Cutter, Peridot and Bylas at least once a month.

Travel for outreach 2150miles @ .44 ½ per mile = $956.75

Total for Travel: $956.75

Aid to Organizations or Individuals:In the event that this application represents collaboration and the 
contract will be utilizing other sub grantees or subcontractors to perform various components of the 
program, include a list of sub grantees, programmatic work each sub grantee will perform, and how 
costs for each sub grantee are determined.

Other Operating Expenses:  Explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and 
justify the need for the items.  All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures.  All items should be categorized in the following categories: Telephones / 
Communications Services, Internet Access, General Office Supplies, Food, Rent/Occupancy, Evaluation 
(non-contracted and non-personnel expenses), Utilities, Furniture, Postage, Software (including IT 
supplies), Dues/Subscriptions, Advertising, Printing/Copying, Equipment Maintenance, Professional 
Development/Staff Training, Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff, Insurance, Program 
Materials, Program Supplies, Scholarships, and Program Incentives

Due to the lag time in receiving a book (6-8 weeks), we would like to continue to give every 
child a promo-age appropriate book so that parents can begin practicing the early literacy skills 
learned as soon as possible. 
320 Promo-Library Books @ 5.25 average: $1,680.00
Shipping: 100.00
Graduate Magazine Subscriptions: $3,780.00

(Average 9 per month per year at $35.00/ea.)

1000 Registration Brochures in English: $450.00 
(A vivid, 4 color registration brochure with a
complete description of the program and
room to include sponsor names and logos)

Craft Supplies for workshops: $718.74
(Colored paper, manila paper, crayons, markers,
glue sticks, play dough, tempera paint, scissors, 
brushes, etc.)

800 Parent Survey Printing (letters, postcards): $216.18
Nutritious food snacks for workshops: $1,125.00

(75 workshops @ $15ea.)
All workshops are for community participants.  Nutritious
snacks are for parents and children to encourage
attendance and participation at community workshops held
primarily by the Children’s Programing Coordinator

Total for Other Operating Expenses: $8,069.92



13

Non-Capital Equipment: For items with a unit cost less than $5,000 and an initial estimated useful life 
beyond a single year, explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and justify the 
need for the items.  All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures.  For example, items such as computers, printers, projectors, etc. each with a unit 
cost less than $5,000.

Administrative/Indirect Costs:Administrative costs are general or centralized expenses of overall 
administration of an organization that receives grant funds and does not include particular program 
costs.  For organizations that have an established federally approved indirect cost rate for Federal 
awards, indirect costs mean those costs that are included in the organization’s indirect cost rate.  Such 
costs are generally identified with the organization’s overall operation and are further described in 2 CFR 
220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 CFR 230.

Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses 
included:

X  Option A - Administrative Costs:  with proper justification, sub grantees may include an allocation 
for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct costs requested of the grant request.  
Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for:  costs of financial, accounting, 
auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including overall 
organization’s management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance that protects 
the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely attributable 
to the project.  Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and benefits of the 
project’s director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in support of a 
specific project.

OR
� Option B - Federally Approved Indirect Costs:  If your organization has a federally approved 

indirect cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up 
to 10% of the direct costs.  Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved indirect 
cost rate agreement.

Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project.  The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs 
that are usually treated as indirect.

Total of Administrative Costs: $6,363.63

Authorized signature      Date



14

Attachment D

Key Personnel

*In addition, please attach a resume (for current personnel) or a job description (for positions to be 
hired) for the key personnel involved in the project and listed above.  If awarded and there is a change 
in staff or a vacant position filled, a Staff Change Notification form and resume must be uploaded via 
the Communication Log in PGMS within 14 days of hire.

KEY PERSONNEL INCLUDE ANYONE WHO WILL BE PAID FROM THE GRANT

Gila County Library District
Job Title

Early Literacy Community Outreach
Temporary Part-time

JOB SUMMARY
The primary responsibilities of the individual in this position are to develop and coordinate outreach activities for early literacy 
promotion to parents of children ages birth to five years.  This includes taking the early literacy experience to populations that do 
not have direct access to a library facility, promoting library services and resources to community groups, with an emphasis on 
early literacy and reading.

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL
Name:  TBA
Title: Community Liaison
FTE on this project: .30

Community Liaison for San Carlos and Peridot, and surrounding areas. Must be 
familiar with local communities and events.

Name:TBA
Title: Children’s Program 
Coordinator
FTE on this project: .13

Knowledge of Early Literacy Programming. Communicates well with Adults 
and Children alike.

Name: TBA
Title: Community Liaison
FTE on this project: .30

Community Liaison for Bylas. Must be familiar with community.

Name: TBA
Title: Public Services Librarian
FTE on this project: .16

Grant Administration, Financial, Program, Evaluation Contact for FTF PGMS

Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:



15

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
1. Maintains patron confidentiality in compliance with Arizona state law.
5. Conducts early literacy outreach for parents/caregivers of children, birth to five years.
6. Develops and implements a plan for providing outreach services for assigned areas of Gila County by working closely with 

the County Librarian.
7. Works with schools, daycare centers, WIC, Head Start, teen parenting groups, Boys & Girls Club, and other community 

organizations that serve children to promote Early Literacy.  The critical age group of focus is on birth to five years.
8. Is aware of other community entities providing services to children and coordinates activities as appropriate.  The focus is 

on entities that provide service to birth to five years of age.
9. Seeks out opportunities and makes early literacy presentations to community groups. Focus on groups that include target 

populations.
10. Works closely with the County Librarian planning distribution of informational early literacy brochures and registers 

children for the Imagination Library Book Program.
11. Prepares monthly reports and forwards as directed. 
12. Performs other related and necessary duties as assigned.

REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS, SKILLS AND ABILITIES
 Must have a current driver’s license valid in the State of Arizona and a vehicle to do site visits.
 Education and/or experience in early literacy programming. 
 Proficiency with word processing and email.
 Ability to work with limited supervision, with an aptitude for detailed work and proficiency in prioritizing tasks

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS
Reports to:  County Librarian, Public Services Librarian



16

Gila County Library District
Job Title

Children’s Programming Coordinator
Temporary Part-time

JOB SUMMARY
The primary responsibilities of the individual in this position are to develop and coordinate weekly early literacy programming in 
the San Carlos Public Library and other community venues for parents of children ages birth to five years.  This includes Baby 
Time Brain Time and Pre-school Story Time with parent and child.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
1. Maintains patron confidentiality in compliance with Arizona state law.
2. Conducts early literacy outreach for parents/caregivers of children, birth to five years at San Carlos Library and other 

community venues weekly.
3. Develops and implements a plan for providing Baby Time Brain Time and Pre-School Story Time at San Carlos 

Library and other community venues weekly.
4. Works with schools, daycare centers, WIC, Head Start, teen parenting groups, Boys & Girls Club, and other 

community organizations that serve children to promote Early Literacy.  The critical age group of focus is on birth to 
five years.

5. Is aware of other community entities providing services to children and coordinates activities as appropriate.  The focus 
is on entities that provide service to birth to five years of age.

6. Seeks out opportunities and makes early literacy workshops to community groups. Focus on groups that include target 
populations.

7. Works closely with the County Librarian planning distribution of informational early literacy brochures and registers 
children for the Imagination Library Book Program.

8. Prepares monthly reports and forwards as directed. 
9. Performs other related and necessary duties as assigned.

REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS, SKILLS AND ABILITIES
 Education and/or experience in early literacy programming. 
 Proficiency with word processing and email.
 Ability to work with limited supervision, with an aptitude for detailed work and proficiency in prioritizing tasks

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS
Reports to:  County Librarian, Public Services Librarian



17

Attachment E

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES

Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public Agencies, 
Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for the funded 
program*.  Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state funds by First Things 
First expenditures, meaning that no First Things First monies expended are to be used to take the place 
of any existing state or federal funding for early childhood development and health programs.  

Use a continuation sheet if necessary.  The following form may be reproduced with word processing 
software or another form may be created that contains all the information requested.  

Type of Funding
(Federal, State, local, other) Received From Amount

 If used for 
match on 
this grant

TOTAL:

*Should include only those funds that will support the program detailed the awarded First Things First grant award



18

Attachment F

First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form

A. Agency Information:

Program Name (if applicable) Parent Outreach and Awareness

Agency  Gila County Library District Contact Person  Jacque Griffin

Address  1400 E Ash St Position  Library District Director

Address Email  jgriffin@gilacountyaz.gov

City, State, Zip  Globe, AZ 85501 Phone  928-402-8770 Ext 

County  Gila Fax   928-425-3462

Employer Identification Number:86-6000444

Agency Classification:     _____State Agency         __X___County Government         _____Local Government         _____Schools

_____Tribal          _____Faith Based          _____Non Profit           _____Private Organization          _____Other

Have you previously conducted business with First Things First using this EIN?   ___X_Y             ____N
If not, please go to http://www.gao.az.gov/Vendor/account_setup_home.asp, 
download the State of Arizona Substitute W-9 Form, and submit with your application

Congressional district (federal) in which agency provides most services: District # ___1,4______

Legislative district (state) in which agency provides most services: District # ___6,7,8______
Go to http://www.azredistricting.org  and click on Final Maps to identify your 
Congressional and legislative district

Approximate federal funding (from a federal source) to be received in current fiscal year?          $ 0.00

Agency’s fiscal year-end date:  June 30th

Agency’s accounting method:        ___X__ Cash             __ ___ Accrual

Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?    _X_Y             _____N

Contact information for firm conducting agency audit: 

Audit firm:    Moss-Adams

Address:   8800 E. Raintree, Suite 210                Scottsdale, AZ 85260

Phone:   480-444-3424



19

B. Proposed Program Information / Description:

Amount requested: $70,000

Service area of proposed program: San Carlos Apache Indian Reservation (Zip Codes 85530, 

85542, 85550)

Target population of proposed program: 1203 (Reference 2010 U.S. Census Data)

Lead Strategy - Parent Outreach and Awareness
There are assigned Service units for the strategy award from First Things First.  Given the Listed Service 
Unit, provide a contracted number for FY 14. 

Number of books distributed: 14,436
Number of events held: 
Number of resource guides distributed: 
Number of workshops held: 75

Important Items to note:
 If you are providing a different contracted service number than what was contracted in FY 

14, provide a brief description explaining the change.
 If you are not providing services for a particular service unit within a strategy that has 

more than one service unit, please indicate “NA.”
 A complete listing of First Things First Target Service Unit descriptions can be found in 

PGMS under the Grantee Resources folder. 

Please provide a brief description (250 words or less) of the proposed program.  This description will be used by First Things 
First for all public information regarding the grant.  

Gila County Library District and the San Carlos Library will continue encouraging the existing 
"Every Child Ready to Read" and “Brain Time” early literacy programs that providetraining to 
parents about the importance of early literacy development for young children birth through 
age five.  The Community Liaisons and the Children’s Programming Coordinator will conduct 
outreach in locations where parents of children ages birth to five years of age might be found. 
As an incentive and reward, each month, each child whose parents listen to the early literacy 
information will receive a book in the mail addressed to the child.Gila County Library District will 
persist in its collaborative efforts striving to reach as many parents/caregivers of children birth 
through age 5 with our Early Literacy message.



20

Contact Information:

For each contract in the Partner and Grants Management System (PGMS), there are four contact slots available 
that provide a varying degree of access.  The four slots are the Main Contact (all access), the Program Contact 
(access to narrative and data reports), the Evaluation Contact (access to only data reports) and the Finance 
Contact (budget and reimbursements.)  The same person may be assigned to more than one slot.

Main Contact: This person has overall responsibility for ensuring the program is successfully implemented and will 
have access to all financial, programmatic, and data reports in PGMS.

Main Contact:   Jacque Griffin

Position:   County Librarian

Address:   1400 E Ash Street

City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ  85501

Email:    jgriffin@gilacountyaz.gov

Phone:   _928-402-8770___________________________Ext. _________   Fax:  928-425-3462

Program Contact: This person has responsibility for the regular program operations.  They will be able to access 
program narrative and data reports in PGMS.  

Program Contact:   TBA

Position:   Public Services Librarian

Address:   1400 E Ash Street

City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ  85501

Email:   

Phone:   __928-402-8768______________________________Ext. _________   Fax:  928-425-3462

Financial Contact: This person has the responsibility for financial accounting and reporting including submitting 
reimbursement request through PGMS.  They will be able to access financial information in PGMS.



21

Financial contact person:   TBA ___________________________________________

Position:   Public Services Librarian ____________________________________________

Address:   1400 E Ash St ____________________________________________

City, State, Zip:   __Globe, AZ 85501_______________________________________________________

Email:   ____________________________________________

Phone:   928-402-8768___________________Ext. _________   Fax:  ____________________________________________

Evaluation contact information: This contact person has responsibility for the program’s evaluation and data collection 
activities.  They will be able to view evaluation information in PGMS.

Evaluation contact person:   TBA ____________________________________________

Position:    Public Services Librarian ____________________________________________

Address:    1400 E Ash St. ____________________________________________

City, State, Zip:   _Globe, AZ 85501_______________________________________________________________

Email:    ____________________________________________

Phone:   ___928-402-8768___________________Ext. _________   Fax:  ____________________________________________

PGMS Training
If any of the contacts are new or in need of technical assistance with PGMS, please indicate the type of training 
and which contact:

x  Accessing/Navigating PGMS  Contact(s): ___new Public Services Librarian, when hired._________
x  Narrative/Data Report Entry   Contact(s): ________________________________________________
x  Reimbursements/Budget Modifications Contact(s): ________________________________________________
x  Other: ________________________ Contact(s): ________________________________________________



   

ARF-2620     Regular Agenda Item      4. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 -June 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
First Things First Grant Renewal GRA-004-14-0616-01-Y2 Gila Early Literacy Grant.

Background Information
On April 1, 2014, the Gila County Library Board of Directors gave authorization to apply for this Grant
Renewal. This is a continuation of the Library District's early literacy initiative. The total grant renewal
award is for $85,000 to be used for parent education within each community and to enroll children ages
birth to five in the Imagination Library Program, which mails an age appropriate book each month to
each enrolled child. In addition, children who turn five during the grant year, will be registered to receive
an age appropriate magazine mailed to their home for one year. This grant also provides for temporary
part time Community Outreach Liaison's to provide parent contact and education throughout the
service area.

Evaluation
The current Early Literacy Grant from "First Things First" has been highly successful in providing
curriculum materials and educational training to the library and the community on the importance of
early literacy skills and the importance of reading to children.  The Community Outreach Liaisons have
worked throughout the region to contact parents and provide information and enroll children in the
program. To date, there are 1,644 children enrolled and receiving books monthly in the Gila Region
service area.  The libraries in the Gila Region have held 135 Early Literacy themed workshops and
programs in the first three quarters of the current fiscal year.

Conclusion
This grant allows the Library District the opportunity and ability to provide early literacy training and
materials to families and children ages birth through five years within the Gila Region Service area. This
grant has a goal of providing materials to 1,800 children.

Recommendation
Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve and accept this Grant
Renewal between the Gila County Library District and the Gila Regional Partnership Council, and the
Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) in the amount of $85,000
for the period of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal Amendment



Regular Agenda Item      4. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District
Library District
Yes

Yes

Replacement



Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal Amendment
GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-Y2 Gila Parent Outreach and Awareness which is a "Community-Based
Literacy Grant" in the amount of $85,000 for the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015. (Jacque
Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and re-convene
as the Gila County Board of Supervisors)

Attachments
Renewal Gila Early Literacy
County Attorney Legal Explanation
Original Grant GRA-RC04-0610-01
Grant Application GRA-RC04-14-0616-01



Grant Renewal Amendment
.&.,..:.
• •--• •--• •

Page

1

of

1

Early Childhood Health and
Development Board (First

Things First)

4000 North Central
Avenue, Suite 800

Phoenix, Arizona 85012

(602) 771-5000
(602) 265-0009 fax

2015 Grant Award
GRA-R C004-14-0616-0 1- Y2

Gila
Parent Outreach and Awareness

1. Pursuant to Special Terms and Conditions, "Contract Renewal", of the above referenced Grant
Agreement/Contract Award, the State of Arizona hereby exercises its sole option to renew the Grant
Agreement/Contract Award number referenced above. The renewal start date is July 1, 2014 and end
date is June 30, 2015.

FIRST THINGS FIRST
Ready for School. Set for Life.

CONTRACTOR:

Gila County Library District
1400 E.Ash St.
Globe, Arizona 85501

PURPOSEOFAMENDMENT:

2. Total award amount for the contract period is $85,000.00

3. The Grantee is responsible for all updated Standards of Practice located for reference in the First
Things First Grant Management System known as PGMS under Grantee Resources.

The above referenced amendment is hereby executed
effective July I, 2014 once signedand dated below:

4. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

Contractor hereby acknowledgesreceipt and understanding
of the contract amendment.

Date

Name Michael A. Pastor
JoshAllen
CFO/COO

Date June 24, 2014

Signature. _

Title Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisor s--------------------

Approved as to form:

Date: June 24, 2014
Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 







































































































































First Things First  
Notice of Renewal Consideration 

 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2014 
 
TO:  Gila County Library District   
 
FROM:  Marjorie Bennett 

Fiscal Specialist 
 
RE:  Renewal Information for Fiscal Year 2015 
 
 
The current Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 grant awards are approaching renewal consideration from the First 
Things First Gila Regional Partnership Council.  Receipt of this packet does not guarantee renewal of the 
grant award; it indicates eligibility for renewal consideration.  First Things First may renew grant awards 
based on a number of factors including past performance and response to this renewal package.   
 
If renewed, the responsibility for adherence to all rules, regulations and terms and conditions set forth 
in the original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement will remain in effect for the 
contract period.  This includes compliance with the appropriate standards of practice, program 
implementation, as well as timely submission of data and narrative reports and financial 
reimbursements.  
 
The renewal package includes instructions and the following attachments: 
 

Attachment A - Program Implementation Questions 
Attachment B - Program Implementation Plan 
Attachment C - Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 
Attachment D - Key Personnel 
Attachment E - Disclosure of Other Funding 
Attachment F - First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form  

 
The completed renewal package (Attachments A-F) must be received no later than 3:00 PM on April 4, 
2014.  Submit via email to mbennett@azftf.gov.  Electronic  submission is preferred but if sending by 
standard mail, please send to my attention, First Things First, 4000 N. Central Avenue, Suite 800, 
Phoenix, AZ 85012. 
 
Once received, responses will be reviewed and funding recommendations will be made to the Gila 
Regional Partnership Council and the Board of First Things First.  First Things First staff may contact you 
for clarifications prior to making recommendations. Grant awards will be in effect from July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015.   
 
For questions, please contact me via email or phone, (602) 771-5084. 
 
 
Thank you. 



First Things First  
Grant Renewal Instructions 

July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015 
 
 
The following First Things First (FTF) grant is eligible for renewal by extending the current FY 2014 grant 
award. Programs in FY 2015 cannot be different in scope than from what was originally awarded.   
 
 
Grantee Name: Gila County Library District 
FTF Grant Number: GRA-RC004-14-0616-01 
Strategy Name: Parent Outreach and Awareness 
Data Template(s) Assigned: Parent Outreach and Awareness 
Eligible Renewal Amount: $ 85,000.00 

 
The amount is subject to change pending legal and procurement review at 
First Things First.  If a different amount is approved for renewal, an updated 
line item budget & budget narrative will be required. 

 

 
The renewal package includes the completion and submission of Attachments A-F. 
 
Program Implementation Questions (Attachment A) 
Provide a narrative response to each question in Attachment A. 
 
Program Implementation Plan (Attachment B) 
Provide an updated implementation plan for FY 2015.  The implementation plan should be related to the 
originally approved program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and process. 
 
2015 Budget Forms (Attachment C – must include both the line item budget and budget narrative) 
 
Key Personnel (Attachment D) 
List all staff that will be paid from this grant program during FY 2015. The staff listed should correspond 
with your line item budget and budget narrative.  Submit resumes for any new staff or for those that 
have not yet been submitted to First Things First. 
 
Disclosure of Other Funding Sources (Attachment E) 
List any other funding utilized for this program administered by your agency. 
 
First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form (Attachment F) 

 
 
FTF Regional Boundary Changes:  Regional boundary changes that impact the North Phoenix, Central 
Phoenix, South Phoenix, Northeast Maricopa, Central Maricopa, Central Pima, North Pima and South 
Pima regions will go into effect July 1, 2014.  Any grant that is approved for renewal in the affected 
regions will continue to serve the same geographic area they were originally awarded to serve, with the 
expectation of maintaining current service delivery and service numbers from FY14 into FY15, unless 
otherwise indicated.   
 

  1 



Standards of Practice Updates: Utilization of the Standards of Practice are part of the requirements for 
all awarded grants and represent the intent for how specific strategies are to be implemented.  Prior 
authorization is needed if the program deviates from the Standards of Practice.  Grantees are 
responsible for reviewing and implementing the most recent versions of the Standards of Practice, 
located in the FTF Strategy Toolkit, 
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA.   
 
Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation: It is the responsibility of the grantee to 
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models. Grantees are to include staff 
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in 
budgets, as needed.  Programs will need to refer to their national office and/or administrative home for 
cost information, if applicable. 
 
Compliance with State and Federal Law:  As a reminder, all other state rules, regulations, and special 
terms and conditions will remain in effect for the grant period.  This renewal application information 
becomes part of the agreement and expectations for program implementation and performance.  A 
complete listing of the state uniform terms and conditions can be found via the State Procurement 
Office website at: http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp. 
 
Quality Assurance:  It is the intent that each FTF grantee receives a targeted quality assurance (QA) visit 
within the cycle of their full grant period.  The findings from targeted QA visits will also be used to assess 
grantee/program performance for renewal considerations.  A grantee’s performance is reviewed 
individually and not in comparison with other grantees when considerations are made. 
 
Program Performance and Data Reporting Requirements:  First Things First provides program 
information to the public, regional partnership councils, and the Board of First Things First.  The 
information regularly provided includes data related to performance measures and target service units; 
prior program performance, including QA findings; information provided in program narrative reports; 
and financial/expenditure information.  Regional partnership councils utilize this information in strategic 
planning efforts, to identify annual funding priorities, to assist with renewal decisions, to develop new or 
modified strategies, to review the impact of programs in the region and state, and to highlight 
achievements in system building. 
 
Grantee Data Reporting Requirements are identified in each grant award and can be accessed in the FTF 
Strategy Toolkit, 
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA.  Please 
review the latest Data Reporting Requirements in preparation for implementation upon grant renewal. 
 
Renewal Package Due Date:  The renewal package must be received no later than 3:00 PM on April 4, 
2014.  Submit via email or standard mail to:  

 
Marjorie Bennett, Fiscal Specialist 
Michael Strawther, Fiscal Specialist 
First Things First 
4000 N. Central 
Phoenix, AZ  85012 
mbennett@azftf.gov 
mstrawther@azftf.gov 
(602) 771-5084 
 

  

  2 

http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA
http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA
mailto:mbennett@azftf.gov
mailto:mstrawther@azftf.gov


Attachment A 
 

Program Implementation Questions 
 

1. Provide a brief narrative description of your current approved program and your plan for 
continuation in SFY15, including context for the activities listed in the Program 
Implementation Plan. (Attachment B) 

 
Gila County Library District will continue encouraging the existing "Every Child Ready to 
Read" and “Brain Time” early literacy programs in libraries that provide training to 
parents about the importance of early literacy development for young children birth 
through age five.  Community Liaisons will conduct outreach in locations where parents 
of children ages birth to five years of age might be found. We have increased the number 
of hours that the liaison will be working to reflect a need to provide opportunities to 
reach parents and enroll children year round.  As an incentive and reward, each month, 
each child whose parents listen to the early literacy information will receive a book in the 
mail addressed to the child.  Gila County Library District will persist in its collaborative 
efforts with the Gila County WIC program, Battered Women’s shelters, Teen Pregnancy 
Programs, and local hospitals striving to reach as many parents/caregivers of children 
birth through age 5 as possible with our Early Literacy message. 

 
Gila County policy requires all grants to include 10% for indirect costs to cover financial 
accounting, auditing, and general administrative costs. We have included the maximum 
allowable 10% for indirect costs in this grant. 

 
2. If applicable, explain any proposed modifications for SFY15, including the change(s) to be 

made, how they were determined to be necessary, and how they will contribute to the 
success of your program.  Please note that program modifications cannot deviate from the 
original scope of work or applicable standards of practice.  
 
In addition to the current push to locate parents of children ages birth through five years 
for enrollment in the Dolly Parton Imagination Library Books Program, Gila County 
Library District would like to propose the following modifications moving forward in FY 
2015. 
 

• Due to the lag time in receiving the first book (6-8 weeks) from Dolly Parton 
Imagination Library, we would like to continue to give every child a beginning 
book (The Little Engine That Could) or if multiple children in a family are 
registered by a parent at the same time, one starting book and a promo-age 
appropriate book for the other child(ren) at the time of registration so that 
parents can begin practicing the early literacy skills learned as soon as 
possible. This allows each family to have an immediate “take home” to 
reinforce both the importance of reading and the program itself. 

 
• Each month, over the last three and one half years, thirty-three children have 

graduated from the Dolly Parton Imagination Library Program because they 
reached their fifth birthday. This leaves a gap in the First Things First Parent 
Outreach Strategy of twelve months of non-service.  This coming year the Gila 

  3 



County Library District would like to add a new element to our grant that we 
feel falls within the Scope of Work. We would like to purchase a subscription to 
an award winning publication for each of the children graduating from the 
program. We feel that this would extend the parent/child interaction through 
the gap. The magazines of choice would be LADYBUG and CLICK. LADYBUG 
offers 40 pages of enchanting stories and poems to read aloud that are just 
the right length for a cozy cuddle. CLICK introduces children to science, art, 
nature, and environmental issues.  Ladybug would be the primary magazine 
with Click being a second choice in families of two children of the same age 
(twins). 

 
• Gila County Library District will again conduct a satisfaction survey of all 

parents with children enrolled in the Imagination Library Program in the early 
spring of 2015. 

 
• Due to the amount of staff time spent directly implementing the strategy for 

this grant, beginning in FY 2015 the District will be charging this grant 16% of 
the Salary and Employee Related Expenses of the Public Service Librarian.  

 
3. Describe how the program data will be utilized to improve program implementation.  Include 

assurances that data collection and submission will be timely and ongoing. 
 

Gila County Library District will continue to collect data from the Dolly Parton 
Imagination Library Book Order Program, our community liaisons, and the public library 
staffs. This data will be used to concentrate efforts to find children that have not yet 
been registered in the program.  Data collected from the upcoming parent survey this 
spring will help us to understand if our program is effective, and we will be able to make 
adjustments as necessary. 
 

Target Areas 2010 
Census 
Data  
Birth 
to 5 
yrs. 

Enrollments 
in 

Imagination 
Library 

from 2010 
to 2013 * 

Graduates 
2010 to 

2013 

Currently 
Registered 

Globe/Miami 1101 1218 487 731 
Hayden/Winkelman 78 133 53 80 

Payson/Star 
Valley/Gisela 

953 1076 337 739 

Pine/Strawberry 55 83 29 54 
Tonto 

Basin/Roosevelt 
108 83 24 59 

Young 17 48 17 31 
        * Totals include all children registered although 947 have aged out of the program. 

 
While the above table only shows 1694 currently registered as of December, 2013, there are, as 
of January 14th, 1706 children receiving books. 

  4 



 

Attachment B 
Program Implementation Plan 

2015 
 

A ct iv i t ie s  Task  Perso n Res po ns ib le  Date  T ask  Wi l l  Be  
Com ple ted / Ti mel i ne  Su p por t  D o cu men tat i on  

 
 
Hire Community Liaisons & 
Evaluator(Survey taker) 
 
 
 

 
Recr u i t  L ia iso ns  &  Eva lu at or  

Jacque 
Griff in/Gi la 
County HR Dept.  

June 2014  

Hire Liaisons &Evaluator  July 2014 Online applications 

Add new staff  to FTF PGMS PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

July 2014 Filed with FTF PGMS 

Timesheets/Payroll Collect t imesheets from 
Liaisons 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Weekly on 
Mondays 

Fi led with Gi la County 
Payrol l  (Finance Dept) 

Process reimbursement 
request for Payroll  from FTF 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Fi led with FTF PGMS 

Promotion of Early 
Literacy Programming 
in Gila County 
Registration of 
Children into 
Imagination Library 
 

Mandatory meeting 
between GCLD Library 
Staff,  Evaluator and 
Liaisons to plan the 
promotion of Early L iteracy 
Programming 

Jacque Griff in  July 2014 Sign-up Sheet wil l  be 
uti l ized 

 
Register Children for 
Imagination Library 

Community 
Liaisons 

July 2014 through 
June 2015 

Registration forms wil l  
be turned over to 
PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN for input in IL 
System 

L ocate  V e nu e s  fo r  R eac hi n g 
Ch i l dr e n  
Whos e pa re n ts  do n’ t  co m e to  
l i br ary  
 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Fou n d o n IL  S ys te m o nl in e  
http : //www. imag inat i on l i b rary .
co m/  

5 
 

http://www.imaginationlibrary.com/
http://www.imaginationlibrary.com/


 

Foundation Site Data updates for change of 
address  

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Handled online through 
IL System 

NCOA Alerts for “Bad” 
addresses  

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Monthly reports onl ine 
2n d week of each month. 

Invoicing Process invoices for book 
orders from Dol lywood 
Foundation Imaginat ion 
Library 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Fi led with Gi la County 
Finance Department 

Process al l  other invoices 
for Early Literacy 
programming 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

As the need 
arises  

Fi led with Gi la County 
Finance Department 

Input Paid Invoices to First 
Things First  

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Fi led with FTF PGMS 

Data / Narrative Reports Report Trainings to District 
Staff  

Liaisons Monthly Email  PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Upload Data Report to FTF  
 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Monthly Fi led with FTF PGMS 

Upload Narrative Report to 
First Things First  
 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Quarterly  Fi led with FTF PGMS 

Evaluation Poll  Kindergartens in all  
public schools for number 
of children not prepared 
for enrollment.  
 

Evaluator /  
Surveyor  

August 2014 Keep on f i le in Gi la 
County Library District 
Office and report to FTF 
PGMS 

Evaluate Survey Responses 
 

Evaluator/  
Surveyor 
 

September 2014 Email  report to County 
Librarian and PUBLIC 
SERVICES LIBRARIAN 

Include Survey results in 
quarterly report  
 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

October 2014 Filed with FTF PGMS 

6 
 



 

Satisfaction Survey to 
Parents  

Mail  Survey to parents of 
children registered as of 
February 1s t  during 4t h qtr.  

Public Services 
Librarian  

April  2014 Copy of Survey on File in 
GCLD Office and report 
to FTF PGMS 

Receive surveys and report 
on results  
 

Public Services 
Librarian  

June 2014 Include survey results in 
Final quarterly report to 
FTF PGMS 

Early Literacy Training 
 

Train parents/caregivers 
by attending parent 
meetings of various 
community entit ies during 
the year  
 

Jacque Griff in, 
Public Services 
Librarian, 
Community 
Liaison staff  

As often as 
possible when the 
occasions arise  

Fi led with FTF PGMS 
Data Reports  

Train parents/caregivers 
by video presentation at 
WIC Cl inics and take new 
registrations for 
Imagination Library 
 

WIC Cl inic 
Employees 

Weekly  Data reports and 
quarterly narratives to 
FTF PGMS 

Continue one on one 
training w/parents  
 

Public L ibrarians, 
Community 
Liaison staff  

Daily as the need 
arises  

Fi led with FTF PGMS 
quarterly reports  

7 
 



 

Attachment C (Instructions) 
 

 

How to Complete the Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 
 

Complete a 12-month budget for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 using the template 
provided.  Please make sure to include the provided budget narrative which describes the proposed line 
item budget.   
 
Please keep in mind items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative 
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related successfully 
implementing the project.  Requested funds must follow these guidelines: 
 

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of First 
Things First funds. 

• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 
• Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs charged 

and expended by the agency – consistent treatment of costs. 
o For example – a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect cost if 

any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has been allocated 
to the First Things First award as a direct cost. 

o For example – a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another source 
of funding and a different rate to First Things First - this would not be consistent 
treatment of costs. 

• Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
• Be adequately documented.  
• All travel related costs for these trainings and meetings should be included in the Applicant’s 

budget and calculated using the State of Arizona travel rate limitations for mileage, per diem 
and lodging as described on the budget narrative worksheet.  For more information about the 
state requirements, visit http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/.   

• Budget modification requests must be submitted via the FTF Partner Grant Management System 
(PGMS) Communication Log and approval received prior to the implementation of any of the 
modifications. 

 

8 
 

http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/


 

Attachment C 
Line Item Budget 

While you must use this format, you may reproduce it in Word or Excel.  Limit your budget line items to the budget categories 
listed below.  

Budget period:  July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015 

Budget Category Line Item Description  Requested Funds Total Cost 
PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total  $27,803.75 

Salaries 3 Community Liaisons  
Public Services Librarian 16% of FTE 

 22,683.75 
  5,120.00 

 

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $4,024.51 
Fringe Benefits or Other ERE Social Security, Medicare, Worker’s 

Comp. 
Health Insurance and AZ Retire 

    2,182.59 
 
  1,841.92 

 

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES  Professional & Outside Services Sub 
Total 

$23,800.00 

Contracted Services Dollywood Foundation Imagination 
Library Books 
Kindergarten Evaluator 

 22,800.00 
 
   1,000.00 

 

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $1,043.24 
In-State Travel  
Out of State Travel 

Mileage Between Tonto Basin and 
Payson and/or Pine 32 Trips/2,371 
miles 

     1,043.24  

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total  
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 

    
 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $20,601.23 
• General Office Supplies 

 
 

• Postage 
 
 
• Printing/Copying 
 
 
• Program Materials 
• Program Supplies 

 
• Program Incentives 

 
• Shipping 

 
• Booth Rental – Rim Country Farmers 

Market 
 

• Graduate Magazine Subscriptions 

1500 Labels for Survey envelopes 
 
 
1500 postcards and letters for parent 
survey 
 
Printing 1500 Letters, postcards & 
envelopes 
 
 
Misc. office supplies 
 
Take Home Books for Children 
 
Shipping for books 
 
10 weeks @ $5.00 per week 
 
 
Average 33 /month @ $35.00 each 

       30.00 
 
 
 1,245.00 
 
 
    400.00 
 
 
     
    374.73 
 
 4,441.50 
 
     200.00 
 
       50.00 
 
 
13,860.00 

 
 

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total  
Equipment $4,999 or less in value     

Subtotal Direct Program Costs:    

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $7,727.27 
Indirect/Admin Costs 10%  $7,727.27  

Total  $ $85,000.00 

 
 
Authorized signature___________________________________  Date      

9 
 



 

Attachment C (Continued) 
 

Budget Narrative 
 
The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line 
items.  The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the 
budget form.  Please verify that the narrative and budget form correspond and the calculations and 
totals are accurate.  Please include one narrative that matches the 12-month line item budget 
categories and subcategories.     
 
Personnel Services:  Include information such as position title(s), name of employee (if known), salary, 
time to be spent on this program (hours or %), number of months assigned to this program, etc.  Explain 
how the salary rate for each position was determined.  If salaries are expected to increase during the 
project year, indicate the percentage increases for each position and justify the percent of the salary 
increase.  Also, be sure to include the scheduled salary increases on the Budget Form. 
 
The Public Services Librarian spends approximately 16% of their time annually as staff for this grant. This 
is direct staffing, and includes data input for new registrations to the Imagination Library, data updates 
for address changes, collection of statistics from libraries and Liaisons, processing invoices, ordering and 
distributing first books, tracking timesheets for the Liaisons each week, monthly reimbursements and 
quarterly reports. In addition, this position will be responsible for subscribing to magazines for the 
‘Graduates’ each month. In an attempt to more accurately reflect the true cost of staffing this grant, 
16% of the Public Services Librarian salary will be allocated to this grant. Gila County Library District is in 
the process of advertising for this position, and it is anticipated that beginning salary will likely be 
approximately $32,000.00 - the figure used to create this budget.  
 

32,000 x 16% = $5,120.00 
 
 
Community Liaisons for 3 areas, including: (1) Globe-Miami, Wheatfields, and Claypool;  (2) Hayden-
Winkelman; and (3) Payson-Star Valley-Pine-Strawberry and Tonto Basin-Roosevelt will be hired on a 
temporary part-time basis by Gila County at a gross rate of $17.25 per hour (before 7.85% for FICA and 
Social Security and Tax to be determined by the employee). Since the community of Young already has 
more children enrolled than their census figures report, the existing outreach in that area is sufficient. 
 
Hours allocated to each Liaison are based on the percentage of the target population in each area. While 
Hayden/Winkelman represents only 3% of the children, they are a hard to reach population.  Therefore, 
we have allocated 10% of the hours and reduced each of the other two positions to balance the total 
hours. Liaisons will be expected to spread their hours throughout the entire grant year, with an 
emphasis on striving to reach as many parents as possible in the first half of the year to ensure that 
children are receiving as many books as possible. Because the Liaisons will be temporary and part time, 
they will not be allowed to work more than 20 hours per week for the duration of the grant period. 
 
 
 
 

10 
 



 

Community Areas New Census 
Data  

Birth to 5 yrs. 

Percent  $17.25 
per hour 

Hours 

 
Globe/Miami, 

Wheatfields, Claypool 

 
1101 

 
48 

 
10,212.00 

 
592 (45%) 

 
Hayden/Winkelman 

 
78 

 
3 

 
2,259.75 

 
131 (10%) 

 
Payson/Star Valley/ 

Pine/Strawberry/ 
Tonto Basin/Roosevelt 

 
 

1116 
 

 
 

49 

 
 

10,212.00 
 

 
 

592 (45%) 
 

 
Totals 

 
2295 

 
100 

 
22,683.75 

 
1315 

 
Summary of Personnel Services: 

   Public Services Librarian - $  5,120.00    
   Community Liaisons  - $22,683.75 
 
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES:      $27,803.75 
 
Employee Related Expenses:  Include a benefit percentage and what expenses make up employee 
benefit costs.  Indicate any special rates for part-time employees, if applicable.  Explain how the benefits 
for each position were determined.  If using a fringe benefit rate, explain how this percentage is justified 
or approved by your agency. 
 
Gila County provides matching funds for: 
  FICA at 6.2%    $1,723.83 
  Medicare at 1.45%         403.15 
 Workers Comp. Insurance at .20%          55.61 
        $2,182.59 
 
In addition, Health Insurance (calculated at 16% of $7,800) and the County’s contribution for Arizona 
State Retirement (calculated at 26% of $3,712) is included, as follows: 
 Health Insurance   $1,248.00 
 Arizona State Retirement        593.92 
        $1,841.92 
 
TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES:     $   4,024.51 
      
Professional and Outside Services:  If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in the budget, 
define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for the services related to 
the project.  Explain how all contracts will be procured. 
 
• Funds will be used to contract with an evaluator at the rate of $20.00 per hour for 50 hours , a total 

of $1,000.00, in order to conduct a survey of all the Kindergarten teachers at all the schools to find 
out how many children entered school in August 2014 unprepared for reading readiness.   

11 
 



 

• Gila County Library District will continue to contract with the Dollywood Foundation Imagination 
Library to supply a book a month by mail to any child registered in the program. In past years the 
average monthly invoice has been under $2,000. This year we would like to budget for $1,900 per 
month for a total of $22,800.00. 

 
Total Professional & Outside Services:     $23,800.00 
 
Travel:  Separate travel that is in state and out-of-state.  Include a detailed breakdown of hotel, 
transportation, meal costs, etc.  Indicate the location(s) of travel, the justification for travel, how many 
employees will attend and how the estimates have been determined.  Explain the relationship of each 
cost item to the project (e.g., if training or training expenses are requested, explain the topic of the 
training and its relationship to the project).  Applicants must use the State of Arizona Travel Policy on 
rates limitations for mileage, lodging, and meals (http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/ for both in-state and 
out-of-state travel. 
 
Travel for the Community Liaisons of the Northern Areas of Gila County is estimated at $.44/mile, as 
follows: 
• 5 round trips - Tonto Basin to Pine/Strawberry at 92.6 miles each -    463 miles 
• 27 trips - Tonto Basin to Payson/Star Valley at 70.7 miles each - 1,908 miles         
        2,371 miles 
Total Travel:         $ 1,043.24 
 
Aid to Organizations or Individuals:  In the event that this application represents collaboration and the 
contract will be utilizing other sub grantees or subcontractors to perform various components of the 
program, include a list of sub grantees, programmatic work each sub grantee will perform, and how 
costs for each sub grantee are determined. 
 
Other Operating Expenses:  Explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and 
justify the need for the items.  All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures.  All items should be categorized in the following categories: Telephones / 
Communications Services, Internet Access, General Office Supplies, Food, Rent/Occupancy, Evaluation 
(non-contracted and non-personnel expenses), Utilities, Furniture, Postage, Software (including IT 
supplies), Dues/Subscriptions, Advertising, Printing/Copying, Equipment Maintenance, Professional 
Development/Staff Training, Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff, Insurance, Program 
Materials, Program Supplies, Scholarships, and Program Incentives 
 

• 1500 Labels for Envelopes for Parent Survey at an estimated cost of $30.00 
• Postage for 1500 surveys (letters and return address postcards) for parents estimated at 

$1,245.00 
• Printing for 1500 4th quarter surveys to parents (includes letters to parents, postcard surveys, 

and envelopes) estimated at $400.00 
• Office Supplies = $374.73 
• 846 Books @ estimated $5.25 per = $4,441.50 
• Shipping for Books = $200 
• Booth Rental @ Farmers Market in Payson for 10 Saturdays, July thru September for $50.00 
• Graduate Magazine Subscriptions average 33 per month at $35.00 = $13,860.00 

Total Other Operating Expenses:      $20,601.23 

12 
 

http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/


 

Non-Capital Equipment: For items with a unit cost less than $5,000 and an initial estimated useful life 
beyond a single year, explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and justify the 
need for the items.  All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures.  For example, items such as computers, printers, projectors, etc. each with a unit 
cost less than $5,000. 
 
Administrative/Indirect Costs:  Administrative costs are general or centralized expenses of overall 
administration of an organization that receives grant funds and does not include particular program 
costs.  For organizations that have an established federally approved indirect cost rate for Federal 
awards, indirect costs mean those costs that are included in the organization’s indirect cost rate.  Such 
costs are generally identified with the organization’s overall operation and are further described in 2 CFR 
220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 CFR 230. 
 
Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses 
included: 
 

X   Option A - Administrative Costs:  with proper justification, sub grantees may include an 
allocation for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct costs requested of the grant 
request.  Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for:  costs of financial, 
accounting, auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including 
overall organization’s management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance that 
protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely 
attributable to the project.  Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and 
benefits of the project’s director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in 
support of a specific project. 

OR 
� Option B - Federally Approved Indirect Costs:  If your organization has a federally approved 

indirect cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up 
to 10% of the direct costs.  Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved indirect 
cost rate agreement. 

 
Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project.  The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs 
that are usually treated as indirect. 
 
Total Administrative Costs:        $  7,727.27 
 
 
 
Authorized signature            Date     

13 
 



 

Attachment D 
 

Key Personnel 
 

 
*In addition, please attach a resume (for current personnel) or a job description (for positions to be 
hired) for the key personnel involved in the project and listed above.  If awarded and there is a change 
in staff or a vacant position filled, a Staff Change Notification form and resume must be uploaded via 
the Communication Log in PGMS within 14 days of hire. 
 

KEY PERSONNEL INCLUDE ANYONE WHO WILL BE PAID FROM THE GRANT 

 
 

 
See next pages for Key Personnel information. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL 
Name: TBA 
Title: Public Services Librarian 
FTE on this project:  .16 

Grant Administration, Financial, Program, Evaluation Contact for FTF PGMS 
 
 

Name: Deborah Leverance 
Title: Evaluator/Surveyor 
FTE on this project:.02 

Technology Integration Specialist, July 2011 to present ;  Teacher, August 
2009 to June 2011 ; Holy Angels School Principal, 2005 to June 30, 2009 ;  
Assistant Principal, 2000 to 2005 ;  Liberty High School Instructor, 2000 to 
2005 ;  Holy Angels’ Teacher, 1995 to 2005 

Name: TBA 
Title: Hayden/Winkelman 
Community Liaison 
FTE on this project: .06 

Community outreach for Hayden Public Library ; Hayden / Winkelman  Area 
Community Liaison 

Name: TBA 
Title: Northern Gila County 
Community Liaison 
FTE on this project: .28 

Community outreach for Payson/Star Valley/Pine-Strawberry/Tonto 
Basin/Gisela/Roosevelt 

Name: TBA 
Title: Globe/Miami  
Community Liaison 
FTE on this project: .28 

Community Liaison for Globe/Miami/Wheatfields/Claypool 

14 
 



 

Gila County Library District 
Job Title:  Public Services Librarian 
 
Purpose of the Job 

The purpose of this position is to provide library paraprofessional support and grant management to the County Library District, the eight 
affiliate libraries, and four special resource centers to enable access to information, programming, and resources for the constituents of 
Gila County. 
This position maintains the library website, develops the collection and processes materials, collects data, performs some accounting 
duties, and administers grants. The assistant participates in managing and promoting programs, provides training, and manages the 
interlibrary loan service. 

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Assigns work to other employees and supervises related activities. 
Provides recommendations on hiring employees; on scheduling work hours of employees; employee training; granting time off; employee coaching;  
and managing assistants. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES TIME SPENT 

• Maintains content of library district website and virtual library while monitoring affiliate public library pages for currect 
content and encouraging updates. 

15% 

• Develops collection and processes library materials in variety of formats; promotes Wellness Program for county under 
direction of Wellness Coordinator. 

15% 

• Collects data from various library resources for district monthly. 10% 

• Completes grant applications, manages successful grants, writes necessary reports, attends mandatory grantee meetings, 
and conducts presentations at grantors meetings. 

10% 

• Collects data to complete annual Arizona Library Statistical Report for Library District and assists affiliate librarians in 
completion of their reports. 

10% 

• Manages registrations for First Things First Early Literacy Program (Imagination Library); conducts annual direct mail 
parent satisfaction survey. 

10% 

• Conducts early literacy training of temporary part-time employees and caregivers of children up to five years of age; 
conducts library system training for affiliate library staff. 

10% 

• Logs requisitions and invoices; maintains projects in New World system. 10% 

• Manages interlibrary loan service, which involves help desk service and training for ILL clerks at each library 10% 

• Performs other duties as assigned 10% 
 

BUDGET RESPONSIBILITIES 
Provides research support in the preparation of departmental and project budget. 

PROJECT RESPONSIBILITIES 
Provide project research support organizational planning projects; process improvement projects; technology projects; and employee training &  
development projects. 

ORAL COMMUNICATION DUTIES 
This position trains colleagues; explains County procedures; responds to public inquiries 
 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATION DUTIES 
This position creates or edits emails; writes grants; reports, letters, etc. 

INTERACTIONS WITH THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
Interacts extensively with employees, thepublic, Board of Supervisors, regulatory bodies, and other instituations over the telephone,  
by email, and/or in person. 

INTERACTIONS SPECIFICALLY WITH CUSTOMERS 
Continuously (More than 70% but less than 85% in a year). 

MINIMUM EDUCATION REQUIRED 
Baccalaureate Degree in library Science or related field, Master’s Degree preferred. 

MINIMUM YEARS OF EXPERIENCE REQUIRED 

                  
                            

               
                    

                         
                     

       

15 
 



 

Two (2) years Librarian experience. 

PROFESSONAL CREDENTIALS REQUIRED 
None. 

KNOWLEDGE REQUIRED 
Customer and personal service; training; library science; information technology; grant writing and management. 

SKILLS REQUIRED 
Active learning, creative writing, reading, customer service, presentation (small to medium groups), delivering training, multi-tasking, typing and data entry. 

ABILITIES REQUIRED 
Express one’s self orally, categorize and group data, multi-task, read and write at college level, other, catalog resources for libraries using marc formatting. 

 PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

• Regularly sits to complete report; regularly sits to operate computers; occasionally sits to complete a program; rarely sits to attend to reception areas. 
• May be required to lift work related materials, equipment, tools, and/or gears; up to 50 lbs. 
• Regularly requires dexterity for keyboard operation. 
• Incumbents in this position may be required to occasionally bend; occasionally stoop; and occasionally kneet to comlete tasks. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 
Incumbents in this position constantly spend time in office environment; in lobby environment; and in library. 

SAFETY RISK EXPOSURE 
Incumbents in this position are generally not exposed to safety risk. 

PROTECTIVE GEAR & SAFETY MANUALS 
Incumbents in this position are required to constantly follow written safety procedures and manuals relevant to the division or department.  
Incumbents in this position may constantly require to wear safety footwear. 

CONSEQUENCES OF ERROR 
Potential errors can cause inconveniences to other employees, and/or delays in related work areas. Delays of service are possible. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gila County Library District 
Job Title: Early Literacy Community Outreach Liaison 

16 
 



 

  (Temporary Part-time) 
 
 
JOB SUMMARY 
The primary responsibilities of the individual in this position are to develop and coordinate outreach 
activities for early literacy promotion to parents of children ages birth to five years.  This includes taking 
the early literacy experience to populations that do not have direct access to a library facility and 
promoting library services and resources to community groups, all with an emphasis on early literacy and 
reading. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Maintains patron confidentiality in compliance with Arizona state law. 
5. Conducts early literacy outreach for parents/caregivers of children ages birth to five years. 
6. Develops and implements a plan for providing outreach services for assigned areas of Gila 

County by working closely with the County Librarian. 
7. Works with schools, daycare providers, WIC, Head Start, teen parenting groups, the Boys & 

Girls Club, and other community organizations that serve children to promote Early Literacy.  
The critical age group of focus is birth to five years. 

8. Is aware of other community entities providing services to children and coordinates activities 
as appropriate.  The focus is on entities that provide services to ages birth to five years. 

9. Seeks out opportunities and makes early literacy presentations to community groups; 
focuses on groups that include target populations. 

10. Works closely with the County Librarian in planning distribution of informational early 
literacy brochures and registers children for the Imagination Library Book Program. 

11. Prepares monthly reports and forwards as directed.  
12. Performs other related and necessary duties as assigned. 

 
REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
• Must have a current driver’s license valid in the State of Arizona and a vehicle to do site 

visits. 
• Education and/or experience in early literacy programming.  
• Proficiency with word processing and email. 
• Ability to work with limited supervision, with an aptitude for detailed work and proficiency in 

prioritizing tasks 
 

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS 
Reports to:  County Librarian, Public Services Librarian 
 
 
 
 

Deborah Diana Leverance 
654 North Cochise Street                                                               
928-275-0577 
Globe, Arizona 85501                                                               
dleverance@gmail.com 

17 
 

mailto:dleverance@gmail.com


 

        
EXPERIENCE IN EDUCATION 
 Coordinator of Special Projects, July 2014 - Present: Globe Unified School District, Serve and support district 
administrators and supervise staff in the area of Title I, Special Needs, Federal Projects, ELL and other pilot projects. Assist Title I 
budget and academic planning, coordinating needs assessment, data collection, acquiring services of school 
psychologists/consultants, counselors, gifted program personnel, program specialists, special education teachers and others. 
Develop and deliver training to staff in related areas.  
 
 Project Director, July 2012 to June 2013: Gila County Education Service Agency, Facilitate the effective and successful 
implementation, management and oversight of the Arizona Rural Tri-County Education Innovation Initiative Project (ARTEII) in Gila, 
Graham and Greenlee counties. This is a three-year Helios-supported grant endeavoring to support a more collaborative and 
rigorous culture among educators. 

 
 Technology Integration Specialist, July 2011 to June 2012: Gila County Education Service Agency, Facilitate and 
provide professional development, Promote the integration of  technology in  effective classroom practice, Communicate resource 
and training opportunities to educators throughout county, Produce and deliver statewide online learning through a variety of 
platforms. 
 
 Teacher, August 2009 to June 2011: Southern Gila County Preparatory Academy, Research, develop and deliver higher 
level curriculum units for classes of highly-motivated students in grades three through eighth. Work with teachers throughout the 
county to suggest and facilitate implementation of effective classroom strategies, simplify access to a variety of standard-enhancing 
resources and working with teachers exploring alternative approaches to meeting the needs of challenging students.   
 
 Principal, 2005 to June 30, 2009: Holy Angels School, private school community with 150 students, grades PreK – 8th. 
 
 Assistant Principal, 2000 to 2005: Holy Angels School, Responsible for curriculum review, professional development, 
grant writing, technology planning and implementation, oversight of school improvement process, school emergency planning.  

 
Evening Instructor, 2000 to 2005: Liberty High School, Led evening program with students who could not adjust to 

daytime classes due to behavior issues, parenting obligations, or because of participation in the work/study program, Responsible 
for transcript analysis, course design, monitor and record progress and develop community resources to provide variety and 
motivation. 
  
 Teacher, 1995 to 2005: Holy Angels School, Sixth grade homeroom, math teacher grades 5 – 8. Student Council 
Advisor, Science Olympiad Coach, Chair of two Accreditation/Self-evaluation teams, (1996, 2002) Special Education and federal 
programs teacher/coordinator.  
 
 Teacher, 1994 to 1995: Saint Charles Mission School, Kindergarten 
 
EDUCATION AND SIGNIFICANT PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

ADE AZ Certified Common Core Trainer: Math and ELA, 2012 Leadership Seminar on Mathematics PD, 2012     

Intel Teach Facilitator Training, 2011  Differentiated Instruction Train the Trainer, 2011 

Facilitating Online Professional Development, 2011  PeerEd Peer Coaching Facilitator Training, 2011 

Differentiated Instruction: It’s Not Your Average Process, 
Participant and Coach, 2009 -  2010 

Masters of Education Leadership, Marymount University, 2008 

National Board Teacher Certification, Middle Childhood 
Generalist, 2002  

Northern Arizona University, Special Education Certification 
training, 2002 

Arizona School Service through Educational Technology, 
Master Teacher Training, 2001 

Bank of America Exemplary Teachers for Arizona, Arizona State 
University, 1999 - 2000 

Environmental Protection Agency Institute for Teachers, 
Morgan State University, 1998 

Prescott College, Elementary Education, Teacher certification 
program, 1995, 4.0 GPA 

University of Arizona, Literature for Adolescents, 1992  Northern Arizona University, B.S., Business Administration, 
Management, 1983, Magna cum Laude  

 
 
 

18 
 



 

Attachment E 
 

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES 
 

Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public Agencies, 
Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for the funded 
program*.  Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state funds by First Things 
First expenditures, meaning that no First Things First monies expended are to be used to take the place 
of any existing state or federal funding for early childhood development and health programs.   
 
Use a continuation sheet if necessary.  The following form may be reproduced with word processing 
software or another form may be created that contains all the information requested.   
 
 

Type of Funding 
(Federal, State, local, other) Received From Amount 

 If used for 
match on 
this grant 

 
N/A 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

TOTAL:    
 

*Should include only those funds that will support the program detailed the awarded First Things First grant award 
 

19 
 



 

Attachment F 
 

First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form 
 

A. Agency Information: 
 
Program Name (if applicable)  Parent Education and Community Based Training  
 
Agency  Gila County Library District  Contact Person   Jacque Griffin  
 
Address   1400 E Ash Street.  Position   County Librarian  
 
Address  Email   jgriffin@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
City, State, Zip   Globe, AZ 85501  Phone (928) 402-8770    Ext   
 
County  Gila  Fax   (928) 425-3462  
 
Employer Identification Number:  86-6000444     
 
Agency Classification:     _____State Agency         ____X_County Government         _____Local Government         _____Schools 
 
  _____Tribal          _____Faith Based          _____Non Profit           _____Private Organization          _____Other 
 
Have you previously conducted business with First Things First using this EIN?   __X      Y             ___      _N 

If not, please go to  http://www.gao.az.gov/Vendor/account_setup_home.asp,  
download the State of Arizona Substitute W-9 Form, and submit with your application 

 
Congressional district (federal) in which agency provides most services:  District # _____1____ 
 
Legislative district (state) in which agency provides most services:   District # ____6, 8___ 

Go to http://www.azredistricting.org  and click on Final Maps to identify your  
Congressional and legislative district 

 
Approximate federal funding (from a federal source) to be received in current fiscal year?          $  0.00  
 
Agency’s fiscal year-end date:   June 30  
 
Agency’s accounting method:        ____  _ Cash             __ X___ Accrual 
 
Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?    ___X__Y             
_____N 
 
Contact information for firm conducting agency audit:  
 
Audit firm:    Moss-Adams  

 
Address:   8800 E. Raintree, Suite 210                Scottsdale, AZ 85260  
 
Phone:   480-444-3424  
 
B. Proposed Program Information/Description: 
 
Amount requested: $85,000          
 

20 
 

http://www.gao.az.gov/Vendor/account_setup_home.asp
http://www.azredistricting.org/


 

Service area of proposed program: The communities of Gila County and Tribal Lands including the Tonto Apache Tribe, not 
including the portion of the Fort Apache Indian Reservation within Gila County, and not including the portion of the San Carlos 
Apache Indian Reservation within Gila County 
 
Target population of proposed program:    1800 (78 % of the 2321 children ages birth to 5 years per 2010 U.S. Census Data) 
   
 
Lead Strategy - Parent Outreach and Awareness 
There are assigned Service units for the strategy award from First Things First.  Given the Listed Service 
Unit, provide a contracted number for FY 14.  
 
Number of books distributed:  21,600  
Number of events held: N/A  
Number of resource guides distributed:  N/A  
Number of workshops held:  10  
 
Important Items to note: 

• If you are providing a different contracted service number than what was contracted in FY 
14, provide a brief description explaining the change. 

• If you are not providing services for a particular service unit within a strategy that has 
more than one service unit, please indicate “NA.” 

• A complete listing of First Things First Target Service Unit descriptions can be found in 
PGMS under the Grantee Resources folder.  

 
 
Please provide a brief description (250 words or less) of the proposed program.  This description will be used by First Things 
First for all public information regarding the grant.   
 
Gila County Library District will continue encouraging the existing "Every Child Ready to Read" and “Brain 
Time” early literacy programs in libraries that provide training to parents about the importance of early 
literacy development for young children birth through age five. 
 
Community Liaisons will conduct outreach in locations where parents of children ages birth to five years 
might be found.  As an incentive and reward, each month, each child whose parents listen to the early 
literacy information will receive a book in the mail addressed to the child. Upon reaching 5 years of age, 
each child will receive a one year subscription to a high quality magazine to extend our efforts to include 
those five year olds. 
 
Gila County Library District will persist in its collaborative efforts with the Gila County WIC program, 
Battered Women’s shelters, Teen Pregnancy Programs, and local hospitals in an effort to reach as many 
parents/caregivers of children birth through age 5 with our Early Literacy message. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

21 
 



 

Contact Information:  
 
For each contract in the Partner and Grants Management System (PGMS), there are four contact slots available 
that provide a varying degree of access.  The four slots are the Main Contact (all access), the Program Contact 
(access to narrative and data reports), the Evaluation Contact (access to only data reports) and the Finance 
Contact (budget and reimbursements.)  The same person may be assigned to more than one slot. 
 
Main Contact: This person has overall responsibility for ensuring the program is successfully implemented and will 
have access to all financial, programmatic, and data reports in PGMS. 
 
Main Contact:   Jacque Griffin   
 
Position:   County Librarian    
 
Address:   1400 E Ash Street    
 
City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ  85501  
 
Email:     jgriffin@gilacountyaz.gov   
 
Phone:   _(928) 402-8770_______________________________Ext. _________   Fax:   (928) 425-3462  
 
Program Contact:  This person has responsibility for the regular program operations.  They will be able to access 
program narrative and data reports in PGMS.   
 
Program Contact:    TBA   
 
Position:   Public Services Librarian    
 
Address:   1400 E Ash Street    
 
City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ  85501  
 
Email:      
 
Phone:   __(928) 402-8768______________________________Ext. _________   Fax:   (928) 425-3462  
 
Financial Contact:  This person has the responsibility for financial accounting and reporting including submitting 
reimbursement request through PGMS.  They will be able to access financial information in PGMS. 
 
Financial Contact:  TBA   
 
Position:   Public Services Librarian    
 
Address:   1400 E Ash Street    
 
City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ  85501  
 
Email:      
 
Phone:   ___(928) 402-8768_____________________________Ext. _________   Fax:   (928) 425-3462  
 

22 
 



 

Evaluation Contact:  This contact person has responsibility for the program’s evaluation and data collection 
activities.  They will be able to access the data reports in PGMS. 
 
Evaluation Contact:   TBA   
 
Position:     Public Services Librarian    
 
Address:    1400 E Ash Street    
 
City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ  85501  
 
Email:       
 
Phone:   _(928) 402-8768_______________________________Ext. _________   Fax:   (928) 425-3462  
 
PGMS Training 
If any of the contacts are new or in need of technical assistance with PGMS, please indicate the type of training 
and which contact: 
 
X  Accessing/Navigating PGMS    Contact(s): __Public Services Librarian, when hired_______________ 
X  Narrative/Data Report Entry     Contact(s): ______Same as above__________________________ ___ 
X Reimbursements/Budget Modifications Contact(s): ______Same as above_____________________________ 
  Other: ________________________ Contact(s): ________________________________________________ 
 

23 
 



   

ARF-2618     Regular Agenda Item      4. Q.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 14-15 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

6-26-14 to
6-25-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 041414 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants.

Background Information
The current contract for a supplier to deliver bulk fuel and lubricants to Gila County
will expire on June 25, 2014.  The County is seeking a supplier for the fiscal year of
2014-2015. 

Invitation for Bid No. 041414 for a bulk fuel and lubricants was advertised in the
Arizona Silver Belt on May 28th and June 4th, 2014.  The bids were received and
opened in a public setting on June 11, 2014.

Evaluation
Bids were received from four (4) suppliers.  Three of the four bidders provided pricing
for both fuel and lubricants, and one bidder provided pricing for lubricants only.  Bid
responses were evaluated in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-2533, Competitive Sealed
Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose
bid conforms in all material respects to the requirements and criteria set forth in the
Invitation for Bid.

Based on the number of lines items of the lubricants and the responses received,
further analysis and review of the pricing is deemed necessary by the Finance
Department in order to provide maximum savings to the County.  A recommendation
for award for the lubricant portion of Invitation to Bid No. 041414 will take place at
the August 5, 2014, Board of Supervisors' meeting.

Conclusion
After extensive review, based on the bid responses received, it is the goal of the
Finance Department and the Public Works Department to award a contract to the
lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder (s).



Recommendation
The Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Invitation
for Bids No. 041414 for bulk fuel and lubricants for Gila County to Canyon State Oil -
for the fuel portion of the solicitation for a term of 12 months from June 26, 2014, to
June 25, 2015, with the option for two (2) one- (1) year contract term renewals.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids
No. 041414 for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel and lubricants; award to the
lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
IFB 041414 Bid Tabulation Form
IFB 041414 Bid Tabulation Breakdown Spreadsheet
Contract 041414 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants
Addenda 1 & 2 for IFB 041414 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants
Legal Explanation





























DESCRIPTION

Estimated 

Gas Usage 

FY 14-15

Estimated 

Diesel 

Usage              

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. 

Rack 

Price  Gas

Estimated 

Gas Cost for                   

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. Rack 

Price  Diesel

Estimated 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

Estimated 

Gas and 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. Rack 

Price  Gas

Estimated 

Gas Cost for                   

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. Rack 

Price  Diesel

Estimated 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

Estimated 

Gas and 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. Rack 

Price  Gas

Estimated 

Gas Cost for                   

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. Rack 

Price  Diesel

Estimated 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

Estimated 

Gas and 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

BULK FUEL       

Globe Shop 52,600 25,750 0.0235 1,236.10 0.0535 1,377.63 2,613.73 0.0800 4,208.00 0.0800 2,060.00 6,268.00 -0.0140 -736.40 0.0700 1,802.50 1,066.10

 Courthouse 37,420 0 0.0563 2,106.75 0.0000 0.00 2,106.75 0.1000 3,742.00 0.0000 0.00 3,742.00 0.1150 4,303.30 0.0000 0.00 4,303.30

Tonto Basin Maint. Yard 16,940 10,350 0.0642 1,087.55 0.0942 974.97 2,062.52 0.1500 2,541.00 0.1500 1,552.50 4,093.50 0.2500 4,235.00 0.3200 3,312.00 7,547.00

Payson Maintenance Yard 53,120 41,900 0.0235 1,248.32 0.0535 2,241.65 3,489.97 0.1500 7,968.00 0.1500 6,285.00 14,253.00 0.1650 8,764.80 0.1650 6,913.50 15,678.30

Young Maintenance Yard 5,800 7,000 0.1440 835.20 0.1740 1,218.00 2,053.20 0.3000 1,740.00 0.3000 2,100.00 3,840.00 0.7100 4,118.00 0.3800 2,660.00 6,778.00

AVERAGES 165,880 85,000 0.0623 6,513.91 0.0750 5,812.25 12,326.16 0.1560 20,199.00 0.1360 11,997.50 32,196.50 0.2452 20,684.70 0.1870 14,688.00 35,372.70

DESCRIPTION

Estimated 

Gas Usage 

FY 14-15

Estimated 

Diesel 

Usage              

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. 

Rack 

Price  Gas

Estimated 

Gas Cost for                   

FY 14-15

O.P.I.S. Rack 

Price  Diesel

Estimated 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

Estimated 

Gas and 

Diesel Cost 

for                               

FY 14-15

BULK FUEL   

Globe Shop 52,600 25,750 No Bid 0.00 No Bid 0.00 0.00

 Courthouse 37,420 0 No Bid 0.00 No Bid 0.00 0.00

Tonto Basin Maint. Yard 16,940 10,350 No Bid 0.00 No Bid 0.00 0.00

Payson Maintenance Yard 53,120 41,900 No Bid 0.00 No Bid 0.00 0.00

Young Maintenance Yard 5,800 7,000 No Bid 0.00 No Bid 0.00 0.00

AVERAGES 165,880 85,000 0.0000 0.00 0.0000 0.00 0.00

BULK FUEL AND LUBRICANTS

BID NO 041414

Canyon State Oil

Western Refining

Estimated Gas & Diesel Cost is the 

percentage the vendor proposes to add or 

(subtract) from the O.P.I.S. weekly average 

rack price, as published every Monday

Senergy PetroleumMV Enterprises













































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2574     Regular Agenda Item      4. R.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Bryan
Chambers,
Deputy
Attorney
Principal

Submitted By:

Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney
Principal, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: Tax Years

2012, 2013,
and 2014

Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Tax Years
2012, 2013,
and 2014

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Proposed Stipulated Judgments in three Tax appeals regarding Rim Country Express
LLC. (TX 2011-000854, TX 2012-000780, and TX 2013-000666.)

Background Information
Rim Country Express LLC has filed property tax appeals for tax years 2011, 2012, and
2013 regarding a parcel it owns in Gila County.  Rim Country Express and the Gila
County Assessor's Office have negotiated a proposed settlement of those appeals.  The
Board of Supervisors must approve any settlement of the lawsuits.

Evaluation
The proposed stipulated judgments would resolve the three pending lawsuits.

Conclusion
The Board may choose to accept the proposed stipulated judgments, reject them or
propose other terms.  If there is no settlement, the dispute would be resolved by trial
in tax court.

The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)
for legal advice and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to instruct its attorneys
regarding its position in settlement discussions.  

Recommendation
The County Attorney recommends that the Board consider the proposed stipulated



The County Attorney recommends that the Board consider the proposed stipulated
settlements and determine whether to accept them, reject them, or suggest other
terms.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Stipulated Judgments in Rim Country
Express LLC. v. Gila County, TX 2011-000854, TX 2012-000780, and TX
2013-000666.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) the Board may vote to go into
executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney.  Pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(4) the Board may vote to go into executive session in order to consider
its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the Board’s position in settlement
discussion to resolve the lawsuit. 
(Bryan Chambers)

Attachments
2013 Judgment
2012 Judgment
2011 Judgment



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

BRADLEY D. BEAUCHAMP, Gila County Attorney
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney
AZ State Bar # 014371
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501
PH: (928) 425-3231 ext. 8630
FX: (928) 425-3720
bchambers@co.gila.az.us

Attorneys for Defendant Gila County

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

IN THE ARIZONA TAX COURT

RIM COUNTRY EXPRESS INN LLC, 
an Arizona limited liability company,

Plaintiff,
v.

GILA COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Arizona,

Defendant.

No. TX 2013-000666

STIPULATED JUDGMENT

The parties having stipulated to the entry of Judgment and good cause appearing:

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED,

1. That the full cash values of Gila County tax parcel number 30403020A shall 

be changed to $975,000 for the 2014 tax year.

2. That the limited property value of the said parcel for the 2014 year shall be 

derived in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §42-13301 to 42-13304, as 

applicable.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

2

3. Plaintiff shall pay property taxes levied and assessed against the Subject 

Property for the 2014 tax year in accordance with A.R.S. §42-16210.  Plaintiff is 

responsible for timely payment of taxes for the 2014 tax years regardless of whether a 

property tax statement is issued which is consistent with this judgment.

4. In the event that Plaintiff pays all of the property taxes that were levied and 

assessed on the Subject Property for the 2014 tax year, the Treasurer’s Office will 

determine the amount of such taxes due on the Subject Property based upon the full cash 

and limited property values as set forth herein, and shall calculate the excess taxes that 

have been paid for the 2014 tax year plus interest at the legal rate payable from the date of 

overpayment until the Judgment is paid in full as provided in A.R.S. § 42-16214. Under 

A.R.S. § 44-1201(B) and (F), the applicable rate of interest is 4.255%.  Defendant shall 

refund such excess taxes to the trust account of Frazer Ryan Goldberg and Arnold, LLP, 

with interest thereon to be calculated in accordance with A.R.S. §42-16214.

5. In the event Plaintiff pays only the first half of the 2014 taxes due on the 

subject property for the 2014 tax year, as provided by A.R.S. §42-16210, any refund due 

Plaintiff shall first be applied to the second-half of taxes due for the 2014 tax year, and 

shall then be applied to any prior year’s taxes, interest and penalties that are unpaid and 

delinquent on the property.  

Any remaining balance due Plaintiff after deduction of second-half taxes and 

delinquent prior tax year’s taxes, interest and penalties shall be refunded to the trust 

account of Frazer Ryan Goldberg and Arnold, LLP, with interest thereon to be calculated 

in accordance with A.R.S. § 42-16214.  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

3

6. That the above amounts shall be calculated by the Gila County Treasurer 

and shall be paid by Gila County.

7. That the parties shall bear their own costs and attorney’s fees.

8. This judgment is the result of a settlement between the parties and shall not 

be used by either party for any other purpose except as a determination of values for the 

tax year indicated herein.

DONE IN OPEN COURT this _____ day of _____________, 2014.

Judge Dean M. Fink
Judge of the Arizona Tax Court

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE

BRADLEY D. BEAUCHAMP
GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

Bryan B. Chambers
Attorneys for Defendant Gila County

Douglas S. John
Giselle C. Alexander
Attorneys for 

ORIGINAL, TWO COPIES of the foregoing and
envelopes LODGED this ___ day of June, 2014 with: 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

4

Honorable Dean M. Fink
Judge of the Arizona Tax Court
125 W. Washington
Courtroom 202
Phoenix, AZ  85003
__________________________________
COPIES mailed by the Tax Court to:

Bryan B. Chambers
Deputy County Attorney
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ  85501

Douglas S. John
Giselle C. Alexander
FRAZER, RYAN, GOLDBERG & ARNOLD, L.L.P.
3101 North Central Avenue, Suite 1600
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2615

Deborah Hughes, Gila County Assessor
1400 E., Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

BRADLEY D. BEAUCHAMP, Gila County Attorney
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney
AZ State Bar # 014371
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501
PH: (928) 425-3231 ext. 8630
FX: (928) 425-3720
bchambers@co.gila.az.us

Attorneys for Defendant Gila County

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

IN THE ARIZONA TAX COURT

RIM COUNTRY EXPRESS INN LLC, 
an Arizona limited liability company,

Plaintiff,
v.

GILA COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Arizona,

Defendant.

No. TX 2012-000780

STIPULATED JUDGMENT

The parties having stipulated to the entry of Judgment and good cause appearing:

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED,

1. That the full cash values of Gila County tax parcel number 30403020A shall 

be changed to $975,000 for the 2013 tax year.

2. That the limited property value of the said parcel for the 2013 year shall be 

derived in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §42-13301 to 42-13304, as 

applicable.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

2

3. Plaintiff shall pay property taxes levied and assessed against the Subject 

Property for the 2013 tax year in accordance with A.R.S. §42-16210.  Plaintiff is 

responsible for timely payment of taxes for the 2013 tax years regardless of whether a 

property tax statement is issued which is consistent with this judgment.

4. In the event that Plaintiff pays all of the property taxes that were levied and 

assessed on the Subject Property for the 2013 tax year, the Treasurer’s Office will 

determine the amount of such taxes due on the Subject Property based upon the full cash 

and limited property values as set forth herein, and shall calculate the excess taxes that 

have been paid for the 2013 tax year plus interest at the legal rate payable from the date of 

overpayment until the Judgment is paid in full as provided in A.R.S. § 42-16214. Under 

A.R.S. § 44-1201(B) and (F), the applicable rate of interest is 4.255%.  Defendant shall 

refund such excess taxes to the trust account of Frazer Ryan Goldberg and Arnold, LLP, 

with interest thereon to be calculated in accordance with A.R.S. §42-16214.

5. In the event Plaintiff pays only the first half of the 2013 taxes due on the 

subject property for the 2013 tax year, as provided by A.R.S. §42-16210, any refund due 

Plaintiff shall first be applied to the second-half of taxes due for the 2013 tax year, and 

shall then be applied to any prior year’s taxes, interest and penalties that are unpaid and 

delinquent on the property.  

Any remaining balance due Plaintiff after deduction of second-half taxes and 

delinquent prior tax year’s taxes, interest and penalties shall be to the trust account of 

Frazer Ryan Goldberg and Arnold, LLP, with interest thereon to be calculated in 

accordance with A.R.S. § 42-16214.  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

3

6. That the above amounts shall be calculated by the Gila County Treasurer 

and shall be paid by Gila County.

7. That the parties shall bear their own costs and attorney’s fees.

8. This judgment is the result of a settlement between the parties and shall not 

be used by either party for any other purpose except as a determination of values for the 

tax year indicated herein.

DONE IN OPEN COURT this _____ day of _____________, 2014.

Judge Dean M. Fink
Judge of the Arizona Tax Court

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE

BRADLEY D. BEAUCHAMP
GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

Bryan B. Chambers
Attorneys for Defendant Gila County

Douglas S. John
Giselle C. Alexander
Attorneys for 

ORIGINAL, TWO COPIES of the foregoing and
envelopes LODGED this ___ day of June, 2014 with: 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

4

Honorable Dean M. Fink
Judge of the Arizona Tax Court
125 W. Washington
Courtroom 202
Phoenix, AZ  85003

__________________________________
COPIES mailed by the Tax Court to:

Bryan B. Chambers
Deputy County Attorney
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ  85501

Douglas S. John
Giselle C. Alexander
FRAZER, RYAN, GOLDBERG & ARNOLD, L.L.P.
3101 North Central Avenue, Suite 1600
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2615

Deborah Hughes, Gila County Assessor
1400 E., Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

BRADLEY D. BEAUCHAMP, Gila County Attorney
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney
AZ State Bar # 014371
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501
PH: (928) 425-3231 ext. 8630
FX: (928) 425-3720
bchambers@co.gila.az.us

Attorneys for Defendant Gila County

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

IN THE ARIZONA TAX COURT

RIM COUNTRY EXPRESS INN LLC, 
an Arizona limited liability company,

Plaintiff,
v.

GILA COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Arizona,

Defendant.

No. TX 2011-000854

STIPULATED JUDGMENT

The parties having stipulated to the entry of Judgment and good cause appearing:

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED,

1. That the full cash values of Gila County tax parcel number 30403020A shall 

be changed to $975,000 for the 2012 tax year.

2. That the limited property value of the said parcel for the 2012 year shall be 

derived in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §42-13301 to 42-13304, as 

applicable.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

2

3. Plaintiff shall pay property taxes levied and assessed against the Subject 

Property for the 2012 tax year in accordance with A.R.S. §42-16210.  Plaintiff is 

responsible for timely payment of taxes for the 2012 tax years regardless of whether a 

property tax statement is issued which is consistent with this judgment.

4. In the event that Plaintiff pays all of the property taxes that were levied and 

assessed on the Subject Property for the 2012 tax year, the Treasurer’s Office will 

determine the amount of such taxes due on the Subject Property based upon the full cash 

and limited property values as set forth herein, and shall calculate the excess taxes that 

have been paid for the 2012 tax year plus interest at the legal rate payable from the date of 

overpayment until the Judgment is paid in full as provided in A.R.S. § 42-16214. Under 

A.R.S. § 44-1201(B) and (F), the applicable rate of interest is 4.255%.  Defendant shall 

refund such excess taxes to the trust account of Frazer Ryan Goldberg and Arnold, LLP, 

with interest thereon to be calculated in accordance with A.R.S. §42-16214.

5. In the event Plaintiff pays only the first half of the 2012 taxes due on the 

subject property for the 2012 tax year, as provided by A.R.S. §42-16210, any refund due 

Plaintiff shall first be applied to the second-half of taxes due for the 2012 tax year, and 

shall then be applied to any prior year’s taxes, interest and penalties that are unpaid and 

delinquent on the property.  

Any remaining balance due Plaintiff after deduction of second-half taxes and 

delinquent prior tax year’s taxes, interest and penalties shall be refunded to the trust 

account of Frazer Ryan Goldberg and Arnold, LLP, with interest thereon to be calculated 

in accordance with A.R.S. § 42-16214.  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

3

6. That the above amounts shall be calculated by the Gila County Treasurer 

and shall be paid by Gila County.

7. That the parties shall bear their own costs and attorney’s fees.

8. This judgment is the result of a settlement between the parties and shall not 

be used by either party for any other purpose except as a determination of values for the 

tax year indicated herein.

DONE IN OPEN COURT this _____ day of _____________, 2014.

Judge Dean M. Fink
Judge of the Arizona Tax Court

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE

BRADLEY D. BEAUCHAMP
GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

Bryan B. Chambers
Attorneys for Defendant Gila County

Douglas S. John
Giselle C. Alexander
Attorneys for RIM COUNTRY EXPRESS INN LLC

ORIGINAL, TWO COPIES of the foregoing and
envelopes LODGED this ___ day of June, 2014 with: 

Honorable Dean M. Fink
Judge of the Arizona Tax Court



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

4

125 W. Washington
Courtroom 202
Phoenix, AZ  85003

__

COPIES mailed by the Tax Court to:

Bryan B. Chambers
Deputy County Attorney
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ  85501

Douglas S. John
Giselle C. Alexander
FRAZER, RYAN, GOLDBERG & ARNOLD, L.L.P.
3101 North Central Avenue, Suite 1600
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2615

Deborah Hughes, Gila County Assessor
1400 E., Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



   

ARF-2579     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Sadie
Bingham,
Recorder

Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder,
Recorder's Office

Department: Recorder's Office
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015
(year to year
basis)

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Payson for Election Services

Background Information
The Gila County Recorder's Office performs election services for various governmental
agencies and special districts.  

Historically, the Recorder's Office creates the documents required to be signed by the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the participating entities for each election
whereby the assistance of the Gila County Recorder's Office is requested.

Each Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)  presented to the Board of Supervisors for
approval is first reviewed and approved by Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney
Principle. 

Evaluation
The County Attorney's Office has reviewed and approved the IGA to provide election
services to the Town of Payson and the next step in the process would be to present
this IGA for the Board of Supervisors' approval. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Recorder's Office has been requested to conduct the Town
of Payson's "Vote by Mail" election which will be held on August 26, 2014, and, if
needed, their run-off election on November 4, 2014.

Recommendation
The Gila Country Recorder's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this IGA.

Suggested Motion



Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between the Gila
County Recorder's Office and the Town of Payson to provide "Vote by Mail" election
services on August 26, 2014, and, if needed, run-off  election services on November 4,
2014.

Attachments
IGA/Election Services
Legal Explanation













 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2561     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2013/2014

and 2014/2015
Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 7,
2014 to
January 6,
2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services for Gila County.

Background Information
On January 7, 2014, Gila County entered into Professional Services Agreement No.
062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione for Medical Examiner Services for Gila County.  The
contract was issued for a period of one year in a not to exceed amount of $30,000
without prior written approval from Gila County.  Additionally, the contract allows for
the option to renew the contract term for three (3) additional one- (1) year periods. 
During the first four months of the contract term, an amount of $26,320 has been
expended.  

Evaluation
There is a need to increase the contract amount of Professional Services Agreement
No. 062813 for Medical Examiner Services with Dr. Mark Fischione to cover the
remainder of Fiscal Year 2013/2014, as well as going into Fiscal Year 2014/2015 for
the remainder of the contract term, which expires on January 6, 2015.  As there is no
way to predict what the costs incurred will be during the course of the contract term,
Amendment No.1 has been issued to increase the contract amount from $30,000 to
$70,000.

Conclusion
Almost the entire original contract amount of $30,000 for medical examiner services
with Dr. Mark Fischione has been expensed in a four-month period.  Amendment No.
1 has been issued to increase the contract amount from $30,000 to $70,000 for the
remainder of the contract term, which expires on January 6, 2015.  



Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 1 to increase the contract amount
of Professional Services Agreement No. 062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione for Medical
Examiner Services for Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC, to
increase the contract amount from $30,000 to $70,000 to cover the remainder of the
original contract term which expires on January 6, 2015. 

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Professional Services Agreement No. 062813 Medical Examiner Services with Dr.
Fischione
Legal Explanation















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2565     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014
to June 30,
2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai County and Gila County for
Restoration to Competency Services

Background Information
On September 7, 2010, the Gila County Board of Supervisors entered into an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai County and Gila County for
Restoration to Competency (RTC) Services. The initial term of the IGA was from June
1, 2010, to June 30, 2011, and allowed for three (3), one- (1) year renewal periods
upon mutual agreement of the Parties.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors also designated Yavapai County RTC as Gila
County's primary competency restoration program effective June 1, 2010, by
Resolution No. 10-09-02.

On July 5, 2011, the Board approved the extension of said IGA through FY 2011-2012.

On June 26, 2012, the Board approved the extension of said IGA through FY
2012-2013.

On June 25, 2013, the Board approved the extension of said IGA through FY
2013-2014.

Evaluation
Yavapai County currently contracts with Wexford Health Sources for RTC services



Yavapai County currently contracts with Wexford Health Sources for RTC services
within Yavapai County's Adult Juvenile Facilities and has bed space sufficient to
accept Gila County's Rule 11 inmates. 

The cost to Gila County to contract with Yavapai County will remain the same at $350
for the first day and $250 for each day thereafter.  Some additional costs may arise
for non-formulary mediations, court testimony, etc.

Conclusion
Approval of the new IGA between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to
Competency Services will run for a one-year term from July 1, 2014, to June 30,
2015, with the option to renew for three (3) one- (1) year periods upon mutual
agreement of the Parties.  All terms and conditions under Resolution 10-09-02 apply.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval the Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai
County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for a term effective
July 1, 2014, and continuing in effect until June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai County and Gila
County for Restoration to Competency Services for one year from July 1, 2014, to
June 30, 2015, with the option for three (3) one (1) year renewals upon mutual
agreement of the Parties.

Attachments
IGA Between Gila County & Yavapai County for Restoration to Competency Services
07-01-14 to 06-30-15
IGA Ext'd to 6-30-14
IGA Ext'd to 6-30-13
IGA Ext'd to 6-30-12
IGA Between Gila County & Yavapai County for Restoration to Competency Services
06-01-10 to 06-30-11
Resolution
Legal Explanation



















































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2564     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Celena Cates, Executive Administrative
Assistant, Health & Emergency Services
Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Fiscal Year: 2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/01/2013 - 09/30/2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
To amend the amount of FFY2014 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Fund Application from
$114,719 to $110,000 as previously requested on ARF-2496.

Background Information
On May 6, 2014, a consent agenda item, the FFY2014 EMPG Fund Application in the amount of $114,719, was
submitted to the Board of Supervisors for approval.  The application amount has been reduced based on the award
amount from previous years.

Evaluation
This amendment facilitates adjustments to the EMPG Fund Application.

Conclusion
EMPG is a 50/50 funding match (federal/local) for the federal grant cycle for October 1, 2013, through September
30, 2015.  The purpose for this amendment of the application is to facilitate the 50/50 funding match based on the
award amount from previous years.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health and Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors approve
the amended Emergency Management Performance Grant Fund FFY2014 Application in the amount of $110,000.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the amended amount to the Emergency Management Performance Grant Fund Application in the
amount of $110,000 for FFY2014 for re-submission to Arizona Division of Emergency Management, and approval of
the Chairman's signature on the Application.

Attachments
FFY2014 EMPG Application
FFY2014 Budget Information Sheet



   Request for EMPG Funds  
Federal Fiscal Year 2014 

Arizona Division of Emergency Management 
 

Application for Emergency Management Performance Grant Funds 
 
Please contact Wendy Smith-Reeve at wendy.smith-reeve@azdema.gov or 602-464-6203 if you have any 
questions regarding this application. 
 

Jurisdiction: Gila 

EMPG Status 
 Current EMPG Program 

participant   
 New EMPG Program applicant 

Total Amount 
Requested $ 110,000 

 
1. Provide a brief description of your jurisdiction’s emergency management priorities and initiatives 

that will be addressed with these EMPG funds.  
 
Contribute to the implementation of the National Preparedness System (NPS) by supporting the building, 
sustainment, and delivery of core capabilities by focusing on plans, training and exercise activities. 
 

 Prevention  Protection  Mitigation  Response  Recovery  
Planning 

Public Information and Warning 
Operational Coordination 

Intelligence and 
Information 
Sharing  
  

  Community 
Resilience  
 
Long-term 
Vulnerability 
Reduction  
 
Risk and Disaster 
Resilience 
Assessment  
 
Threats and 
Hazard 
Identification  

Situational 
Assessment  

 

 
2. Select which description best describes the status of the designated emergency 

manager/coordinator for your jurisdiction. 
 
               
               Full–time, permanent staff whose primary responsibility is as the emergency manager/coordinator 
               Emergency manager/coordinator duties are assigned to full–time staff with other significant duties 
               Emergency manager/coordinator is a part–time, or seasonal position, or contracted    
               Emergency manager/coordinator duties are assumed as needed by other staff or elected officials 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   

mailto:wendy.smith-reeve@azdema.gov


3.  List the name and position title of each staff member whose position is funded through the EMPG 
Program, or used as EMPG Match. 

 

Local EMPG Program Funded Staff Indicate whether Full-
time or Part-time Staff 

If Part-time indicate 
number of hours worked 

per week 
Name:  Michael O’Driscoll 

Part Time 50% Position: Division Director, Health & Emergency 
Services 
Name:  Debra Williams Full Time 100% Position:  Deputy Director 
Name:  Celena Cates Part Time 50% Position:  Executive Administrative Assistant 
Name:  Debra Blevins Part Time 25% Position:  Financial Clerk 
Name:     Position:   
Name:    Position:  
 
4. Briefly describe the method used to code or track funded staff time spent on emergency 

management activities charged to the grant and/or used to meet local match requirement. 
 

Gila County General Ledger budget account: 
1005-106_4010.10 Regular Salaries and Wages-Emergency Management 

 
 
 
Jurisdiction Point of Contact: 
 
1. Name: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director  
2. Address: 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 
3. Telephone Number: 928-402-8743 
4. Fax Number: 928-425-7056 
5. Email Address: jhessenius@gilacountyaz.gov 
 
Authorization to Submit Application: 
 
By signature below the undersigned acknowledge they have been duly authorized by the jurisdiction to 
submit this application and will comply with the assurances, agreements, and/or special conditions set forth 
upon receipt of grant award. 

Jurisdiction Financial Officer: 

 

   

                                                                                                             
Jurisdiction Signatory Official:  

Printed Name: Jeff Hessenius                                                         ________________       
                        Finance Director     Signature 
 

Printed Name: Michael A. Pastor                                                   ________________             
                          Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors      Signature 



 
 
 

Complete the EMPG Detailed Budget and Annual Work Plan below and include with application. 
  

   



Federal Fiscal Year 2014 
Emergency Management Program Grant Detailed Budget 

 
 
A. Personnel 

 
List each position by title and name of employee, if available.  Show the annual salary rate and the percentage of 
time to be devoted to the EM PG pr ogr am .  Compensation paid for employees engaged in grant activities must be 
consistent with that paid for similar work within the applicant organization. 

 
 

Personnel 

 
Position Title 

 
Annual Salary 

% of Time Devoted to 
Grant 

 
Total Personnel 

Costs 

Division Director $    87,415 50% $ 43,707 

Emergency Management Deputy Director $    49, 537  100% $  49,537 

Division Executive Administrative Assistant $    35,580 50% $  17,790 

Financial Clerk $    24,812 25% $    6,203 

    
Total Personnel $  117,237 

Total Federal Contribution $  58,618.50 
Total Non-Federal Contribution $  58,618.50 

 
 
B. Fringe Benefits 
 
Fringe benefits should be based upon actual known costs or an established formula. Fringe benefits are for the 
personnel listed in budget category (A) and only for the percentage of time devoted to the project.  Fringe benefits on 
overtime hours are limited to FICA, Workman’s Compensation and Unemployment Compensation. 
 

Fringe Benefits 
 
 
 

Position Title 

 
 

Annual Fringe 
Benefit 

 

% of Time Devoted 
to Grant 

 

Total Fringe 
Benefit Cost 

Division Director $  34,966 50%  $  17,483 
Emergency Management Deputy $  19,815 100%  $  19,815 
Division Executive Administrative Assistant $  14,232 50%  $  7,116  

Financial Clerk $  9,925 25%  $  2,481 

    

Total Fringe Benefits $46,895 
Total Federal Contribution $23,447.50 

Total Non-Federal Contribution $23,447.50 
 

   



C. Travel 
 
Itemize travel expenses of personnel by trip. Show the basis of computation (e.g., six people to 3-day training at $X 
airfare, $X lodging, $X subsistence).  

 
Travel 

Travel Description Location 

 
 
 
 
 

Number of 
People 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Days/Miles 

Total cost 
(Number of 

People 
X Rate X 
Days or 

Qty) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travel Dates 

NIMS/ICS  
Compliant Training In-State 

 

Meals & Incidentals  1 $ 40 4 $  160 TBD 
Airfare       
Lodging  1 $ 75 4 $  300  
Rental Vehicle       
Other       

NIMS/ICS Compliant Preparedness 
Conference/Seminars 

  
  

Out of 
State 

 

Meals & Incidentals  2 $ 55 6 $  520 TBD 
Airfare  2 $ 605 

 
 $  1220  

Lodging  2 $150.00 6 $  1800  
Rental Vehicle       
Other       

Total Travel $4,000 
Total Federal Contribution $2,000 

Total Non-Federal Contribution $2,000 

   



D. Equipment 
 
List all non-expendable equipment to be purchased. Non-expendable equipment is tangible property having a useful 
life of more than one year.  (Note: Organization’s own capitalization policy and threshold amount for classification of 
equipment may be used). Expendable items should be included either in the “Supplies” category or in the “Other” 
category.  Applicants should analyze the cost benefits of purchasing versus leasing equipment, especially high cost 
items. In the narrative explain how the equipment is necessary and what funds will be utilized to sustain the 
equipment. 
 

Equipment 

AEL Category Item Description 

 
Number 
of Items 

 
Cost per 

Item 

 
Total Cost of 

Items 

N/A     

     

     
Total Equipment 0 

 Total Federal Contribution 0 
 Total Non-Federal Contribution 0 
  

 
Equipment Narrative- N/A 

   



E. Supplies 
 

Generally, supplies include any materials that are expendable or consumed during the course of a year. List items by 
type (office supplies, postage, training materials, copying paper, and other expendable items.) and show the basis for 

computation.   
 

Supplies 

 
 

Item description 

 
 

Number of items 

 
 

Cost per item 

Cost = Number of 
items X Cost 

per item 

Copy Paper Annual-1     $500     $500 

Postage Annual-1 $350 $350 

Office Supplies Annual-1 $1150 $1150 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Total Supply $  2000 
Total Federal Contribution $  1000 

Total Non-Federal Contribution  $  1000 
 
Supplies Narrative  

Describe what the supplies will be used for and how you derived at your estimate.  If possible, please describe the types 
of supplies you are projecting to purchase.   
 
Copy Paper:  Public outreach flyers/brochures; operational documents/plans; day to day operations. 
 
Postage: certified mail; public outreach flyers/brochures 
 

   



F. Contractual 
 

Consultants/Contracts 
 
 
 

Description 

 
 

Name of 
Organization 

 
 

Number of 
Hours 

 
Cost Per 

Hour 

Cost = (Number 
of 

hours X Cost 
Per Hour) 

Monthly Copier Maintenance 

Konica Minolta 
Business Solutions 
Inc., USA Annual Contract 1 year $1,000 

Monthly Radio Maintenance 

Canyon State 
Wireless 
Communications Annual Contract 1 year $  2,900 

     
     
     

Total Contractual $  3,900 
Total Federal Contribution $  1,950 

Total Non-Federal Contribution $  1,950 
 
Contractual Narrative 
 
Describe what the contractual services are providing to you and how they support your emergency management work 
plan. 
 
Monthly Copier Maintenance: supports operational activities 
 
Monthly Radio Maintenance:  supports radio communications equipment such as tower repeaters, handheld and mobile 
radios for field response. 

   



G. Other Costs 
 
In this list any other items or services that do not fall under the above listed categories.  
 

Other Costs 

 
 

 
 

Number 
of Units 

 
 

Cost Per 
Unit 

Total Cost 
= Number of Units X 

Cost Per Unit 

Telephone services 
Annual 

Estimate  $3,970 

Utilities (Electric and Natural Gas) 
Annual 

Estimate  $2,000 

Professional Services Software 
Annual 

Estimate  $3,000 

Lease and Rental Autos 
Annual 

Estimate  $7,098 

Lease for building and grounds 
Annual 

Estimate  $9400 
Employee Training & Dues 
 
 

Annual 
Estimate 

 
 
 

 

 $500 

Total Other $25968 

Total Federal Contribution $12,984 
Total Non-Federal Contribution $12,984 

 
Other Narrative 
 
Describe what these costs are and how they support your emergency management work plan.    
 
Telephone services: operational office connectivity plus and a 24/7 cell phone dedicated to emergency 
management. 
 
Utilities:  supports emergency planning and operations 24/7 
 
Professional Services Software for emergency messaging. 
 
Lease for Auto to support employee travel and emergency operations. 
 
Lease for supporting employee office space and EOC. 
 
Employee training and dues for supporting NIMS compliance 
 
 
 
  

   



Federal Fiscal Year 2014 
Emergency Management Program Grant Annual Work Plan 

 
Jurisdiction: GILA 

 
Your jurisdiction will be required to report quarterly on your progress for each identified activity. 
 
Reminder: The Arizona Division of Emergency Management directs the local jurisdiction pass through EMPG funding 
can only be used for salary and benefits of the EM program individual(s) identified on the attached application. Only 
salary and benefits associated with the EM staff time used to achieve the emergency management goal(s) can be 
reimbursed or used as local match through EMPG. 
 
2014 EMPG Special Conditions/Grant Assurances 
Check the boxes below indicating your understanding and concurrence with the following conditions and 
assurances:  
 

  ADEM staff will conduct an Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) on-site grant review during the 
period of performance. Jurisdictions may be required, during this site visit, to provide a spending plan to ADEM. 

 Participate in the development of the State’s annual Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA) 
and/or Tribal partners can choose to independently develop and submit a Threat and Hazard identification and Risk 
Assessment and submit directly to DHS/FEMA by December 31, 2014. 

  Develop a multi–year Training and Exercise Plan (TEP) and/or participate in the state multi-year Training and 
Exercise Plan Workshop (TEPW). 

  Establish and maintain compliance with the National Incident Management System (NIMS). 
  
Select from the following items and check the boxes below indicating the emergency management (EM)goals 
your jurisdiction’s emergency management program plans to accomplish this grant performance period.  The 
items checked will require updates in your quarterly programmatic reports. 
 
2014 EMPG Grant Activities 
 
Mitigation Plans 

  Conduct a hazard analysis and risk assessment prior to mitigation plan development 
  Develop/enhance all-hazards mitigation plans 

 
Emergency Management/ Operation Plans 

  Modify existing incident management and emergency operations plans aligning them with the guidelines of 
Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101 Version 2 (CPG 101 V2) 

 Modify existing incident management and emergency operations plans 
 Develop/enhance comprehensive emergency management plans 
 Develop/enhance large-scale and catastrophic event incident plans 

 
Communications Plans 

 Develop/enhance communication interoperability plans 
 Develop/enhance tactical interoperability communications plans 

 
Continuity/ Administrative Plans 

 Develop/enhance Continuity of Operation (COOP)/Continuity of Government (COG) plans 
 Develop/enhance financial and administrative procedures for use before, during, and after disaster events in support 

of a comprehensive emergency management program 
 
Whole Community Engagement/ Planning 

 Develop/enhance emergency management and operations plans to integrate citizen/volunteer and other non-
governmental organization resources and participation 

 Provide training and other support as necessary to assist local jurisdictions to further develop preparedness through 
community, school, and private sector/business outreach 

 Build new partnerships to expand planning and citizen capabilities 
 Community-based plans to advance “whole community” security and emergency management 

 

   



Federal Fiscal Year 2014 
EMPG Annual Work Plan (continued) 

 

Jurisdiction: GILA 
 

 Public education and awareness on emergency management and preparedness 
 Plans to foster public-private sector partnerships 
  Brief civic groups and senior citizens on local hazards and family preparedness plans 
  Conduct awareness, individual response training, and evacuation drills in schools 
  Conduct workshops on the local Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) / Emergency Response Plan (ERP) 
  Arrange for disaster preparedness and response information to be included in utility bills, or as inserts in the local 

newspaper 
  Publish emergency preparedness information in the local telephone directory 
  Prepare an emergency preparedness calendar for distribution throughout the community 
  Work with Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) (where LEPC exists) 
  Public education and awareness 
  Develop or formalize agreements through letters or memorandums of understanding (MOU) to clarify mutual 

expectations, if existing, with local agencies or private organizations that can assist with emergency planning 
preparation, response, or recovery 

  Develop intra-state mutual aid agreements that encourage building partnerships across all levels of government, 
tribal organizations, non-governmental organizations, and private entities in neighboring jurisdictions 

 Program evaluations 
      
Resource Management Planning 

 Develop/enhance logistics and resource management plans 
 Develop/enhance volunteer and/or donations management plans 
 Acquisition of critical emergency supplies such as: shelf stable food products, water and/or basic medical supplies.  

(Acquisition of such items requires FEMA’s approval and additional planning strategy.) 
 
Evacuation Planning 

 Develop/enhance evacuation plans, including plans for: alerts/warning, crisis communications, pre-positioning of 
equipment for areas potentially impacted by mass evacuations sheltering, and re-entry 

 
Recovery Planning 

 Develop/enhance disaster housing plans (such as create/support a local disaster housing task force)  
 Develop/enhance short-term, intermediate and long-term recovery plans 

 
Training and Exercise 

  Develop, update, enhance, or conduct exercise activities  
  Develop, update, enhance, or conduct training activities  

 
Equipment  

  Intend to purchase allowable equipment identified within the Authorized Equipment List (AEL) identified by FEMA 
at https://www.llis.dhs.gov/knowledgebase.  Please identify type of equipment by checking appropriate box below. 
  

 Information Technology (Category 4) 
 Cyber security Enhancement Equipment (Category 5) 
 Interoperable Communications Equipment (Category 6) 
 Detection Equipment (Category 7) 
 Power Equipment (Category 10) 
 Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear, and Explosive (CBRNE) Reference Materials (Category 11) 
 CBRNE Incident Response Vehicles (Category 12) 
 Physical Security Enhancement Equipment (Category 14) 
 CBRNE Logistical Support Equipment (Category 19) 
 Other Authorized Equipment (Category 21) 

 
 
 
Complete, scan and submit the EMPG Application and Work Plan to federalgrants@azdema.gov not 
later than April 4, 2014. 

   

https://www.llis.dhs.gov/knowledgebase
mailto:federalgrants@azdema.gov


Previous Edition Usable 

7. Program Income 

k. TOTALS (sum of 6i and 6j) 

j. Indirect Charges 

i. Total Direct Charges (sum of 6a-6h) 

h. Other 

g. Construction 

f. Contractual 

e. Supplies 

d. Equipment 

c. Travel 

b. Fringe Benefits 

a. Personnel 

6. Object Class Categories 

SECTION B - BUDGET CATEGORIES 

5. Totals 

4. 

3. 

2. 

1. 

Grant Program 
Function 

or Activity 
(a) 

SECTION A - BUDGET SUMMARY 
Catalog of Federal 

Domestic Assistance 
Number 

(b) 

$ 

$ 

$ 
(1) (2) (3) (4) 

GRANT PROGRAM, FUNCTION OR ACTIVITY 

$ 

$ 

Federal 
(c) 

Estimated Unobligated Funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Non-Federal 
(d) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Federal 
(e) 

New or Revised Budget 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Non-Federal 
(f) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

(5) 

$ 

$ 

Total 
(g) 

BUDGET INFORMATION - Non-Construction Programs OMB Approval No. 0348-0044 

Authorized for Local Reproduction 
Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 
Standard Form 424A (Rev. 7-97) 



Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form 424A (Rev. 7-97) Page 2 

23. Remarks: 

21. Direct Charges: 

SECTION F - OTHER BUDGET INFORMATION 

20. TOTAL (sum of lines 16-19) 

19. 

18. 

17. 

16. 

(a) Grant Program 

SECTION E - BUDGET ESTIMATES OF FEDERAL FUNDS NEEDED FOR BALANCE OF THE PROJECT 

15. TOTAL (sum of lines 13 and 14) 

14. Non-Federal 

13. Federal 

SECTION D - FORECASTED CASH NEEDS 

12. TOTAL (sum of lines 8-11) 

11. 

10. 

9. 

8. 

(a) Grant Program 
SECTION C - NON-FEDERAL RESOURCES 

$ 

$ 

Total for 1st Year 

$ 

$ 

(b) First 
FUTURE FUNDING PERIODS (Years) 

$ 

$ 

1st Quarter 

$ 

$ 

(b) Applicant 

22. Indirect Charges: 

$ 

$ 

(c) Second 

$ 

$ 

2nd Quarter 

$ 

$ 

(c) State 

$ 

$ 

(d) Third 

$ 

$ 

3rd Quarter 

$ 

$ 

(d) Other Sources 

$ 

$ 

(e) Fourth 

$ 

$ 

4th Quarter 

$ 

$ 

(e) TOTALS 



   

ARF-2559     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department

Information
Request/Subject
Revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan for the period of July 1, 2014 through
June 30, 2017

Background Information
On December 17, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area
Business Plan (Plan) for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2017. 

The Plan was sent to the Arizona Department of Economic Security Department (DES) for approval, and
after review by said department, the plan was returned to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board
to be revised as recommended by DES.  DES requested information that was not included in the Plan.

Information requested by DES included more economic analysis, strategic plans, and current labor
market information.

The Plan was presented to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board on May 22, 2014, at which time
a vote was taken and the Plan was accepted.

If approved by the Gila County Board of Supervisors, the Plan will then be resubmitted to DES for
approval.

Evaluation
By approving the revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan for the period of July 1,
2014, through June 30, 2017, the Plan will include information that was recommended by DES to be
included in the Plan.

Conclusion
The revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan for the period of July 1, 2014, to June
30, 2017, includes information requested by DES to be included in the Plan.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the BOS approve this revised
Business Plan.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan for the period of July 1,
2014, to June 30, 2017, of which said revisions were requested by the Arizona Department of Economic
Security.

Attachments
Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan 2014-2017 revised
Original Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan 2014-2017

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































   

ARF-2585     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa
Buzan,
Community
Services
Division
Director

Submitted By:

Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Community Services Division

Information
Request/Subject
Revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws

Background Information
Until recently, the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board (GPWIB) Bylaws hadnot
been updated since October 2010. 

On May 22, 2014, the GPWIB approved various revisions to its Bylaws.  At that
meeting, there was a suggestion that the Mission Statement be slightly revised, so it
was agreed that revision would be presented to the GPWIB for approval at its next
meeting on June 5, 2014.

On June 5, 2014, the GPWIB approved one additional revision to the Bylaws,
specifically, the Mission Statement. 

Evaluation
The revised Bylaws which have been approved by the GPWIB include a statement that
any revisions to the Bylaws shall also be approved by the Boards of Supervisors of
Gila and Pinal Counties.  

Conclusion
The revised GPWIB Bylaws need to be presented to the Gila County Board of
Supervisors for approval.  They will also be presented to the Pinal County Board of
Supervisors for approval.

A marked up copy of all the proposed revisions, including the most recent revision to
the Mission Statement is attached to this agenda item.  In addition, a final copy of the
revised Bylaws is also attached

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve the revised GPWIB Bylaws.

Suggested Motion
Approval of revisions to the Bylaws of the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board.  



Approval of revisions to the Bylaws of the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board.  

Attachments
Revised WIB Bylaws with proposed changes
Revised WIB Bylaws - final version



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gila/Pinal Workforce 
Investment Board 

Bylaws 
 
 
 

Proposed to Gila County Board of Supervisors on 6-24-14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Equal Opportunity Employer/Program. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with a disability 

 

 

 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 1 of 13  

 

BYLAWS 

 

 

ARTICLE I – NAME, AREA OF SERVICE AND AUTHORIZATION 

This advisory board will be known as the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board 

(hereinafter referred to as the “GPWIB”). 

 

The Chief Elected Officials are defined as the Gila and Pinal Counties’ Boards of 

Supervisors. 

 

The area served shall be Gila and Pinal Counties, state of Arizona, inclusive of all 

municipalities and unincorporated areas.  This area shall be known as the Local 

Workforce Investment Area (LWIA). 

 

The GPWIB and its committees derive their authority from the Workforce 

Investment Act (WIA)  (hereinafter referred to as the “Act WIA”), Public Law 

105-220. 

 

ARTICLE II – MISSION STATEMENT 

 To serve the interests of the citizens of both Gila County and Pinal County: 

 

1. Enhancing existing training programs and/or developing new training 

programs and service delivery systems to better meet the immediate and long-

term needs of the local area. 

 

2. Developing job training and curricula in concert with the input and needs of 

existing employers and businesses, and to consider the anticipated demand for 

targeted job opportunities as specified by the training clusters and foundations 

at the local level. 

 

3. Eliminating program redundancy and provide easier access to clients. 

 

4. Supporting the Arizona Strategic Five-Year State Workforce Investment Plan 

to ensure that the legislative intent of the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 

is adhered to. 

 

The GPWIB’s mission is to act as a catalyst for change by identifying and 

utilizing community resources and broad-based partnerships to improve the 

vitality of the economy, through the quality of the workforce; and to strengthen 

the business community in Gila and Pinal Counties through partnerships, 

education and employment opportunities to help drive economic development. 

 

ARTICLE III – PURPOSE 

The GPWIB is established in accordance with the State of Arizona Workforce 

Investment Board.  The GPWIB will serve the public interest by selection and 

oversees the funding for the sole purpose of providing youth and adults with 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 2 of 13  

workplace experience and supporting re-engaging into the workforce in an ethical 

and responsible manner.  The GPWIB is subject to the State of Arizona laws 

applicable to public bodies.  requirements outlined in the WIA. The GPWIB, in 

partnership with the Boards of Supervisors of Gila and Pinal Counties, plan and 

oversee the local system.  Local plans are submitted for the Governor’s approval.  

The GPWIB oversees the funding for all programs provided to eligible youth, 

adults and dislocated workers within the LWIA.  The GPWIB designates “One-

Stop” operators and identifies providers of training services, monitors system 

performance against established performance measures, negotiates local 

performance measures with the State board and the Governor, and helps develop 

the labor market information system.  

 

The GPWIB will increase the involvement of the business community in 

employment and training activities and increase private sector employment 

opportunities through marketing and local input. 

 

The GPWIB will encourage maximum feasible coordination of programs under 

the One-Stop System with related activities supported by the U. S. Department of 

Labor and federal, state, and local agencies. 

 

The GPWIB will strive to meet performance standards that demonstrate an 

increase in employment, retention and earnings of participants, and increase 

occupational skill attainment by participants, which will improve the quality of 

the workforce, reduce welfare dependency, and enhance the productivity and 

competitiveness of the local, state and national economy. 

 

The GPWIB shall facilitate and be the catalyst for training and educational 

services, which are responsive to the employment needs of Gila and Pinal 

Counties.   

 

ARTICLE IV – RESPONSIBILITIES/GOALS 

The eight seven functions of the board GPWIB are as follows: 

 

1. Develop and submit a Five (5) –Year 

Business Plan to the Governor, in partnership with the Chief Elected Officials.  

Thus, the GPWIB is responsible for the development of a local strategic 

workforce plan. 

 

2. With the agreement of the Chief Elected Officials, designate or certify One-

Stop Operators and terminate the eligibility of such operators for cause; 

identify eligible providers of youth activities in the local area by awarding 

grants or contracts on a competitive basis, based on the recommendations of 

the Youth Council; identify eligible training services for adults and dislocated 

workers; and identify eligible providers for intensive services by awarding 

contracts if the One-Stop Operators do not provide such intensive services in 

the local workforce area LWIA. 

 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 3 of 13  

3. Develop a budget for purposes of carrying out the duties of the Board 

GPWIB.  The Board GPWIB may solicit and accept grants and donations 

from sources other than federal funds. 

 

4. In partnership with the Chief Elected Officials, conduct oversight with respect 

to local programs of youth activities and local employment and training 

activities for adults and dislocated workers, and the One-Stop Delivery 

System in the local Workforce Investment Area LWIA.  

 

5. Negotiate and reach agreement on local performance measures with the State 

of Arizona. 

 

6. Coordinate the workforce investment activities carried out in the local area 

LWIA with economic development strategies and develop other employer 

linkages. 

 

7. Promote the participation of private sector employers in the statewide 

workforce investment systems and ensure connecting brokering and coaching 

activities through intermediaries such as One-Stop Operators in the local area 

LWIA or through other organizations. 

 

ARTICLE V – MEMBERSHIP [Public Law 105-220, section 117 (b)] 

 

Membership 

a. Appointment.  The GPWIB shall be comprised of 51% of private business 

members and 49% public sector, who shall be appointed by the Gila and Pinal 

County Board of Supervisors.  Members shall be appointed for terms of 4 

years and may serve unlimited terms.  The GPWIB members recommend 

proposed members to the Board of Supervisors for appointment.  Once new 

members are voted on by a quorum of the GPWB, names will be submitted to 

the Gila or Pinal County Board of Supervisors for review, approval, and 

appointment of the individuals from within their respective jurisdictions.  It is 

anticipated that the appointment by the Board of Supervisors shall take place 

within (60) days of the recommendation of appointment by the GPWIB.  

Members of the GPWIB may seek new members for the GPWIB board from 

businesses within Gila and Pinal County. 

 

b. Representation.  Criteria for membership will consist of no less than 30% 

from one county from the 51% for private business sector.  Private Business 

Sector membership should be equally balanced between Gila and Pinal 

County as reasonable as possible. 

 

c. Duties/expectations.  Each members of the GPWIB will attend four board  

meetings per year and sit on any sub-committee board if asked by the board 

chairman 

 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 4 of 13  

“Members will complete tasks assigned by the chair and will carry out 

assignments from committees to which they have been appointed.  Members 

are expected to be knowledgeable about the essential matters confronting the 

GPWIB, including policy guidelines.  Members are expected to assist each 

other in orientation and education related to GPWIB responsibilities.” 

 

Termination 

a. Removal by the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board.  If the 

GPWIB determines by a majority vote that a member should be removed, 

the chair of the GPWIB shall report to the full GPWIB. 

 

b. Resignation.  Resignations by members shall be submitted in writing to 

the GPWIB chair and announced at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

c. Reasons for dismissal.  The GPWIB chairperson may remove a member 

when it determines that it is in the interest of the GPWIB or the county to 

do so. 

 

Attendance 

a. All GPWIB members are expected to attend regularly scheduled meetings.  

More than two consecutive unexcused absences by any member during 

any 12-month period may result in removal of the member of the GPWIB.  

A member’s absence is unexcused if the member fails to notify county 

staff in advance of a meeting.  A quorum of members at a regular 

scheduled meeting may remove the member in question 

 

Four (4) excused absences, during a twelve (12) month period, shall also 

result in an Executive Committee review, at whose direction termination 

of membership may result. 

 

b. All GPWIB members can phone into the regular scheduled  board meeting 

via conference call.  A cell phone call into a member’s phone maybe used 

in case the conference call is not available for the meeting. 

 

c. Annual Board Meeting – missing more than two unexcused absences in a 

12-month period shall warrant that the board member not be invited to 

attend the annual board meeting.  The Executive Committee will review 

membership on a case-by-case basis. 

 

By regulations, the Governor of the State, in partnership with the State board, 

shall establish criteria for use by the Chief Elected Officials in the local areas for 

appointment of members of the local boards.  Such criteria shall require, at a 

minimum, that the membership of the local board include: 

1. Private business sector; 

2. Local educational representatives; 

3. Labor representatives; 

4. Community-based organizations; 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 5 of 13  

5. Economic development; 

6. WIA adult, youth, dislocated worker program; 

7. Job Corps; 

8. Native American Programs; 

9. Veteran’s workforce programs, migrant and seasonal farm worker 

programs, Wagner Peyser/TAA programs; 

10. Adult education and literacy; 

11. Vocational rehabilitation programs; and 

12. Senior community service employment activities. 

 

 Any GPWIB vacancy shall be filled by using the same nomination and 

appointment process as that for original board members.  A member appointed to 

fill a vacancy shall be appointed for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor in 

office and must come from the same sector.  GPWIB members who leave the 

sector from which they were nominated shall be replaced in the original 

nomination and appointment process, but may maintain their membership until a 

replacement has been nominated and appointed. 

 

Three (3) consecutive absences from scheduled meetings of the full WIB shall 

result in an Executive Committee review, at whose direction termination of 

membership may result, except where a leave of absence, or an excused absence 

has been applied for and granted by vote of the GPWIB.  Four (4) excused 

absences, during a twelve (12) month period, shall also result in an Executive 

Committee review, at whose direction termination of membership may result. 

 

A member may be recommended for removal by a majority vote of the GPWIB.  

Notification will be given to governmental agencies of any action taken. 

 

Representation/Criteria 

The GPWIB shall be comprised of 51% of private business members and 49% 

public sector members, who shall be appointed by the Gila and Pinal Counties’ 

Boards of Supervisors.   

 

Criteria for membership will consist of no less than 30% from one county from 

the 51% for private business sector.  Private business sector membership should 

be equally balanced between Gila and Pinal Counties, as reasonable as possible.  

  

By regulations, the Governor of the State, in partnership with the State workforce 

investment board, shall establish criteria for use by the Chief Elected Officials in 

the local areas for appointment of members of the local boards.  Such criteria 

shall require, at a minimum, that the membership of the local board include: 

 

1.  Private business sector; 

2.  Local educational representatives; 

3.  Labor representatives; 

4.  Community-based organizations; 

5.  Economic development; 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 6 of 13  

6.  WIA adult, youth, dislocated worker program; 

7.  Job Corps; 

8.  Native American Programs; 

9.  Veteran’s workforce programs, migrant and seasonal farm worker programs,        

 Wagner Peyser/TAA programs; 

10.  Adult education and literacy; 

11.  Vocational rehabilitation programs; and 

12.  Senior community service employment activities. 

   

Duties/Expectations  
Each member of the GPWIB is expected to attend at least four GPWIB meetings 

per year and may be requested by the GPWIB Chairperson to serve on a standing 

committee of the GPWIB. 

 

“Members will complete tasks assigned by the GPWIB Chairperson and will 

carry out assignments from committees to which they have been appointed.  

Members are expected to be knowledgeable about the essential matters 

confronting the GPWIB, including policy guidelines.  Members are expected to 

assist each other in orientation and education related to GPWIB 

responsibilities.” 

 

Appointment 

An application for membership on the GPWIB is presented to the GPWIB, and 

upon a majority vote of the GPWIB, a recommendation for appointment is made 

to the respective Board of Supervisors; those members working within or in close 

proximity to Pinal County are appointed by the Pinal County Board of 

Supervisors, and those members working within or in close proximity to Gila 

County are appointed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  It is anticipated 

that the appointment by the Board of Supervisors shall take place within sixty 

days of the recommendation of appointment by the GPWIB.   

 

Term of Office 

The terms of the members shall be for four years, except for those initially 

appointed.  Of those members initially appointed, half shall be appointed to a two 

year term and half shall be appointed to a four year term by each respective Board 

of Supervisors.  Thereafter, each term shall be four years.   

 

If a vacancy occurs otherwise than by expiration of term, the vacancy shall be 

filled by appointment by the Board of Supervisors for the unexpired portion of the 

term.  The nomination process will be the same as outlined in these Bylaws under 

Article V - Appointment.  The new member filling the vacancy shall represent 

the same sector as the outgoing member, as outlined in these Bylaws under 

Article V - Representation/Criteria, numbers 1 through 12. 

 

Attendance 

All GPWIB members are expected to attend regularly scheduled meetings.  A 

member’s absence is unexcused if the member fails to notify county staff in 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 7 of 13  

advance of a meeting.  More than two consecutive unexcused absences by any 

member during any 12-month period shall result in an Executive Committee 

review.  The Executive Committee would then present a recommendation to the 

GPWIB with regard to removing the member.  The GPWIB, by a majority vote, 

may remove a member from the GPWIB.   

 

Four excused absences during a twelve month period shall also result in an 

Executive Committee review.  The Executive Committee would then present a 

recommendation to the GPWIB with regard to removing the member. 

 

All GPWIB members may attend the meeting in person or telephonically.  A cell 

phone call to a member’s phone may be used in case the conference call is not 

available for the meeting. 

 

Termination 

Resignation by members shall be submitted in writing to the GPWIB Chairman.  

An agenda item will be placed on the next GPWIB meeting for the GPWIB to 

“acknowledge” that member’s resignation. 

 

Removal of any member from the GPWIB requires a review by the Executive 

Committee.  Should the Executive Committee determine that it is in the best 

interest of the GPWIB to remove a member; a recommendation for removal will 

be presented to the GPWIB for official action to remove the member.  Ten days’ 

written must be provided to the member being considered for removal from 

the GPWIB before a recommendation for removal is placed on a GPWIB 

meeting agenda. 

 

Notification will be given to the Chief Elected Officials of any actions taken to 

remove a member from the GPWIB, and when any member submits a resignation.  

 

ARTICLE VI– OFFICERS 

Section 1.  Chairperson 

The Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the GPWIB.  The 

Chairperson shall be the Chief Officer of the GPWIB and shall preside at all 

meetings of the GPWIB.  The Chairperson of the GPWIB shall appoint the 

Chairperson of standing committees and ad hoc committees, subject to ratification 

by vote of the GPWIB.  The GPWIB Chairperson shall be responsible for 

carrying out the policies of the Gila/Pinal GPWIB.  He/she is the attester to all 

documents containing necessary concurrences required by the Governor and/or 

the GPWIB recommendations deemed necessary to the Boards of Supervisors.  

The term of office for the Chairperson shall be two (2) years, and no one 

individual may hold this office for more than one (1) consecutive term unless so 

voted by a majority of GPWIB.  In general, he/she shall perform the duties of the 

Chairperson pursuant to these Bylaws and procedural decisions resulting from a 

duly cast vote of the GPWIB.  The Chairperson shall be a representative of the 

business community on the GPWIB. 

 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 8 of 13  

Section 2:  Vice-Chairperson 

The Vice-Chairperson shall be representative of the business community on the 

GPWIB.  The Vice Chairperson shall be nominated and elected by a majority vote 

of the GPWIB.  He/she shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in his/her 

absence.  The term of office for the Vice-Chairperson shall be two (2) years, and 

no one individual may hold this office for more than one (1) consecutive term. 

 

Section 3:  Election of Officers 

Election of officers shall be held bi-annually at the regularly scheduled monthly 

meeting of the GPWIB prior to the end of the program year with the term of 

office to begin at the start of a new program year. 

 

ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES 

The Chairperson of the GPWIB shall appoint the Chairpersons of the standing 

committees, subject to ratification by vote of the GPWIB.  All standing and ad 

hoc committees shall function and operate at the discretion of the GPWIB and any 

recommendation by the standing or ad hoc committees shall be forwarded to the 

GPWIB for action.  Any council member may raise an issue duly considered by 

the appropriate committee. 

 

Standing Committees 

The GPWIB has authority to establish standing committees in order to address 

specific issues.  All standing committee recommendations are presented to the 

GPWIB for official action.  All standing committees must operate according to 

Open Meeting Law requirements.  If the GPWIB determines that a specific 

standing committee is no longer needed, it shall officially disband the committee.  

The Bylaws will thereafter be amended to remove the standing committee. 

 

Operational, Management and Planning 

The Operational, Management and Planning Committee shall review and discuss 

program and strategic planning issues and make recommendations to the GPWIB 

as a whole.  The committee is responsible for the process of selections and 

training of service providers and shall review and discuss strategic planning. 

 

The committee shall also be responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of all 

WIA programs and report its’ findings and/or recommendations to the GPWIB. 

 

The following standing committees have been established by the GPWIB: 

 

Fiscal Committee 

The Fiscal Committee shall be responsible for annual preparation and 

review of the WIA Allocations for the Adult, Youth, and Dislocated 

Worker Programs.  The committee shall have the responsibility for the 

oversight and approval of the budget throughout the year.   



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 9 of 13  

Public and Community Relations Committee 

The Public and Community Relations Committee shall be responsible for the 

development and implementation of marketing tools and strategies to promote the 

Workforce Investment Act (WIA) within Gila and Pinal Counties. 

 

The committee shall also be responsible for the recruiting of individuals to apply 

for membership.  Members will orientate, educate, and train new board members. 

 

One-Stop Committee 

The One-Stop Committee shall collaborated to create a unified, seamless 

customer friendly system of service delivery that will enhance access to programs, 

and ensure all core services are available in the One-Stop Center. 

 

Workforce Development Committee  

The Workforce Development Committee shall collaborate to create a 

unified, seamless customer friendly system of service delivery that will 

enhance access to programs, and ensure all core services are available at 

the One-Stop Centers. 

 

The Workforce Development Committee shall review and discuss 

program and strategic planning issues and make recommendations to the 

GPWIB.  The Committee is responsible for the process to select and train 

service providers. 

 

The Workforce Development Committee shall also be responsible for 

evaluating the effectiveness of all WIA programs and will report its 

findings and/or recommendations to the GPWIB. 

 

The Workforce Development Committee shall be responsible for the 

development and implementation of marketing tools and strategies to 

promote the WIA within Gila and Pinal Counties. 

 

The Workforce Development Committee shall also be responsible for the 

recruitment of individuals to apply for membership on the GPWIB.  

Committee members will orientate, educate, and train new board GPWIB 

members. 

 

Youth Committee 

The Youth Committee shall be responsible for the development of the 5-

year plan relating to youth, and will recommend providers of youth 

services to the GPWIB.  The committee will coordinate local youth 

programs and initiatives. 

 

Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairperson, the Vice-

Chairperson, past Chairperson of the GPWIB and two GPWIB members 

appointed by the GPWIB Chairperson with the approval of the full 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 10 of 
13  

GPWIB subject to ratification by vote of the GPWIB.  The Chairperson of 

the GPWIB shall call and The Executive Committee preside at all 

meetings of the Executive Committee.  The GPWIB Chairperson shall 

serve as the Chairman of the Executive Committee. 

 

The Executive Committee shall meet as necessary between scheduled 

meetings of the entire GPWIB membership and shall be responsible for 

interpreting and putting into effect the decisions, policies and programs of 

the GPWIB.  If a GPWIB meeting has been cancelled and action items are 

needed to continue the programs, the Executive Committee shall put into 

effect and vote on the action items.  All actions are subject to ratification 

by vote of the full GPWIB at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

Ad Hoc Committee 

An ad hoc committee may be formed for addressing a specific use established by 

the GPWIB for a specific purpose with a specific time frame.  After the specific 

issue is addressed to the GPWIB, the Committee shall be dissolved.  Once the 

Committee has presented its findings/report to the GPWIB, the GPWIB will take 

official action to disband the Committee.  

 

Standing Committee and Ad Hoc Committee Officers 
The GPWIB Chairperson appoints the Chairperson of the standing committees 

and ad hoc committees subject to ratification by a vote of the GPWIB.   

 

The committee Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the 

specific standing committee or ad hoc committee. 

 

ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS 

The GPWIB shall hold at least four (4) meetings per year on the date, time and 

place as may be designated by the Chairperson of the GPWIB.  Special meetings 

of the GPWIB and its standing committees and ad hoc committees may be called, 

as needed, by the Chairperson of the GPWIB or the respective committee. 

 

If one or more members are unable to be present in person, members may 

participate by telephone or video conference.  The agenda should state that one or 

more members will participate by telephonic or video conference.  The meeting 

agenda will state “Members of the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board will 

attend either in person or by telephone conference call.”  Members participating 

in a telephone conference shall be clearly identified in the minutes.  

 

All meetings of the GPWIB and its standing committees and ad hoc committees 

shall be held in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting Law (Arizona 

Revised Statutes, Section 38-43 Title 38-Public Officers and Employees, Chapter 

3-Conduct of Office, Article 3.1-Public Meetings and Procedures). 

 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 11 of 
13  

ARTICLE VIII IX – VOTING 

Per A.R.S. § 38-231, an execute/notarized Loyalty Oath of Office must be on file 

with the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department.  Members 

have no voting rights until they have executed and filed their Loyalty Oath. 

 

Each member of the GPWIB shall be entitled to one (1) vote on all matters 

brought before the GPWIB at any scheduled meeting.  Whenever these Bylaws 

specify that an action is to be taken by vote of the GPWIB, the approval shall be 

granted by a simple majority of the members present and qualified to vote at any 

scheduled meeting of the GPWIB at which a quorum exits.   

 

ARTICLE IX X – CONFLICT OF INTEREST, LIABILITY COVERAGE 

The GPWIB shall follow Arizona law on Conflict of Interest law as set forth in 

Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-501 following, and Section 38-447.  

GPWIB members shall avoid both conflict of interest and the appearance of 

conflict of interest in the conduct of the GPWIB business.  A potential conflict of 

interest exists if a GPWIB member takes any action, which would be to his/her 

private financial gain or loss, or to that of his/her family or employer, or any other 

apparent legal conflict of interest.  A potential conflict does not exist if the 
financial gain or losses affect to the same degree all people in the Workforce 

Investment Area LWIA or a large class of people with which the member is 

associated.  Each individual serving on the GPWIB must sign a Conflict of 

Interest Statement on an annual basis. 

 

If a potential conflict of interest arises, the affected GPWIB member must give 

notice before taking action.  Such disclosure of potential conflict of interest 

including the source of conflict will be made part of the minutes of the meeting.  

The affected GPWIB member must refrain from discussing and/or voting on that 

issue. 

 

The GPWIB may spend such funds as are needed to protect the Board GPWIB 

and its individual members from liability incurred in the performance of their 

duties as members of the Workforce Investment Board GPWIB. 

 

ARTICLE XI – QUORUM 

A majority of the current membership of the GPWIB must be present at any 

meeting of the GPWIB to constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business 

to come before the GPWIB.  A quorum, once attained, is still attained even if a 

member leaves early or abstains from voting. 

 

ARTICLE XII – AMENDMENTS 

These Bylaws may be amended by a majority of the GPWIB upon 

recommendation of the Bylaws, Policies and Procedures Committee.  The written 

text of the proposed revision or revisions shall have been distributed and read at 

the previous regularly scheduled meeting of the GPWIB.   

 



 

Resolution 14-05-04                                                                                                                                                                           Page 12 of 
13  

Amendments to these Bylaws may be necessary from time to time.  Any proposed 

changes to the Bylaws must be presented to the members of the GPWIB and 

approved by a vote of the GPWIB.  The amended Bylaws are then presented to 

the Boards of Supervisors for final approval.  Each time the Bylaws are amended, 

a copy of the updated Bylaws will be distributed to all GPWIB members, and 

Pinal and Gila Counties’ Boards of Supervisors. 

 

ARTICLE XII – POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Policies and Procedures shall be established for the GPWIB, which will govern 

and/or provide clarification of issues such as reimbursement for meals, lodging 

and incidental expenses relating to travel, membership and recruitment of new 

members, and conflict of interest.   

 

ARTICLE XIII – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

The Rule for Parliamentary Practice in Robert’s Rules of Order newly revised 

shall govern all processing of the Workforce Investment Board and the Executive 

Committee.  In the case of conflict between Robert’s Rules and these Bylaws, or 

between Robert’s Rules and a special rule adopted by the GPWIB, the Bylaws or 

special rule shall prevail.   

 

Attachment 

Conflict of Interest Statement 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila/Pinal Workforce 
Investment Board 

Bylaws 
 
 

 
Approved by the Gila County Board of Supervisors on 6-24-14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer/Program. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with a disability 

 
 



 
 

BYLAWS 
 
 

ARTICLE I – NAME, AREA OF SERVICE AND AUTHORIZATION 
 

This advisory board will be known as the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board 
(hereinafter referred to as the “GPWIB”). 
 
The Chief Elected Officials are defined as the Gila and Pinal Counties’ Boards of 
Supervisors. 
 
The area served shall be Gila and Pinal Counties, state of Arizona, inclusive of all 
municipalities and unincorporated areas.  This area shall be known as the Local 
Workforce Investment Area (hereinafter referred to as the “LWIA”). 
 
The GPWIB and its committees derive their authority from the Workforce 
Investment Act (hereinafter referred to as the “WIA”), Public Law 105-220. 
 

ARTICLE II – MISSION STATEMENT 
  

The GPWIB’s mission is to act as a catalyst for change by identifying and 
utilizing community resources and broad-based partnerships to improve the 
vitality of the economy through the quality of the workforce; and to strengthen the 
business community in Gila and Pinal Counties through partnerships, education 
and employment opportunities to help drive economic development. 

 
ARTICLE III – PURPOSE 
 

The GPWIB is established in accordance with the requirements outlined in the 
WIA. The GPWIB, in partnership with the Boards of Supervisors of Gila and 
Pinal Counties, plan and oversee the local system.  Local plans are submitted for 
the Governor’s approval.  The GPWIB oversees the funding for all programs 
provided to eligible youth, adults and dislocated workers within the LWIA.  The 
GPWIB designates “One-Stop” operators and identifies providers of training 
services, monitors system performance against established performance measures, 
negotiates local performance measures with the State board and the Governor, and 
helps develop the labor market information system.  
 

ARTICLE IV – RESPONSIBILITIES/GOALS 
 

The seven functions of the GPWIB are as follows: 
 
1. Develop and submit a Five–Year Business Plan to the Governor, in 

partnership with the Chief Elected Officials.  Thus, the GPWIB is responsible 
for the development of a local strategic workforce plan. 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  1 



 
2. With the agreement of the Chief Elected Officials, designate or certify One-

Stop Operators and terminate the eligibility of such operators for cause; 
identify eligible providers of youth activities in the local area by awarding 
grants or contracts on a competitive basis, based on the recommendations of 
the Youth Council; identify eligible training services for adults and dislocated 
workers; and identify eligible providers for intensive services by awarding 
contracts if the One-Stop Operators do not provide such intensive services in 
the LWIA. 

 
3. Develop a budget for purposes of carrying out the duties of the GPWIB.  The 

GPWIB may solicit and accept grants and donations from sources other than 
federal funds. 

 
4. In partnership with the Chief Elected Officials, conduct oversight with respect 

to local programs of youth activities and local employment and training 
activities for adults and dislocated workers, and the One-Stop Delivery 
System in the LWIA.  

 
5. Negotiate and reach agreement on local performance measures with the State 

of Arizona. 
 

6. Coordinate the workforce investment activities carried out in the LWIA with 
economic development strategies and develop other employer linkages. 

 
7. Promote the participation of private sector employers in the statewide 

workforce investment systems and ensure connecting brokering and coaching 
activities through intermediaries such as One-Stop Operators in the LWIA or 
through other organizations. 

 
ARTICLE V – MEMBERSHIP [Public Law 105-220, section 117 (b)] 
 

Representation/Criteria 
The GPWIB shall be comprised of 51% of private business members and 49% 
public sector members, who shall be appointed by the Gila and Pinal Counties’ 
Boards of Supervisors.   
 
Criteria for membership will consist of no less than 30% from one county from 
the 51% for private business sector.  Private business sector membership should 
be equally balanced between Gila and Pinal Counties, as reasonable as possible.  
  
By regulations, the Governor of the State, in partnership with the State workforce 
investment board, shall establish criteria for use by the Chief Elected Officials in 
the local areas for appointment of members of the local boards.  Such criteria 
shall require, at a minimum, that the membership of the local board include: 
 
1.  Private business sector; 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  2 



2.  Local educational representatives; 
3.  Labor representatives; 
4.  Community-based organizations; 
5.  Economic development; 
6.  WIA adult, youth, dislocated worker program; 
7.  Job Corps; 
8.  Native American Programs; 
9.  Veteran’s workforce programs, migrant and seasonal farm worker programs,        

 Wagner Peyser/TAA programs; 
10.  Adult education and literacy; 
11.  Vocational rehabilitation programs; and 
12.  Senior community service employment activities. 
   
Duties/Expectations  
Each member of the GPWIB is expected to attend at least four GPWIB meetings 
per year and may be requested by the GPWIB Chairperson to serve on a standing 
committee of the GPWIB. 
 
“Members will complete tasks assigned by the GPWIB Chairperson and will 
carry out assignments from committees to which they have been appointed.  
Members are expected to be knowledgeable about the essential matters 
confronting the GPWIB, including policy guidelines.  Members are expected to 
assist each other in orientation and education related to GPWIB 
responsibilities.” 
 
Appointment 
An application for membership on the GPWIB is presented to the GPWIB, and 
upon a majority vote of the GPWIB, a recommendation for appointment is made 
to the respective Board of Supervisors; those members working within or in close 
proximity to Pinal County are appointed by the Pinal County Board of 
Supervisors, and those members working within or in close proximity to Gila 
County are appointed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  It is anticipated 
that the appointment by the Board of Supervisors shall take place within sixty 
days of the recommendation of appointment by the GPWIB.   
 
Term of Office 
The terms of the members shall be for four years, except for those initially 
appointed.  Of those members initially appointed, half shall be appointed to a two 
year term and half shall be appointed to a four year term by each respective Board 
of Supervisors.  Thereafter, each term shall be four years.   
 
If a vacancy occurs otherwise than by expiration of term, the vacancy shall be 
filled by appointment by the Board of Supervisors for the unexpired portion of the 
term.  The nomination process will be the same as outlined in these Bylaws under 
Article V - Appointment.  The new member filling the vacancy shall represent 
the same sector as the outgoing member, as outlined in these Bylaws under 
Article V - Representation/Criteria, numbers 1 through 12. 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  3 



 
Attendance 
All GPWIB members are expected to attend regularly scheduled meetings.  A 
member’s absence is unexcused if the member fails to notify county staff in 
advance of a meeting.  More than two consecutive unexcused absences by any 
member during any 12-month period shall result in an Executive Committee 
review.  The Executive Committee would then present a recommendation to the 
GPWIB with regard to removing the member.  The GPWIB, by a majority vote, 
may remove a member from the GPWIB.   
 
Four excused absences during a twelve month period shall also result in an 
Executive Committee review.  The Executive Committee would then present a 
recommendation to the GPWIB with regard to removing the member. 
 
All GPWIB members may attend the meeting in person or telephonically.  A cell 
phone call to a member’s phone may be used in case the conference call is not 
available for the meeting. 
 
Termination 
Resignation by members shall be submitted in writing to the GPWIB Chairman.  
An agenda item will be placed on the next GPWIB meeting for the GPWIB to 
“acknowledge” that member’s resignation. 
 
Removal of any member from the GPWIB requires a review by the Executive 
Committee.  Should the Executive Committee determine that it is in the best 
interest of the GPWIB to remove a member; a recommendation for removal will 
be presented to the GPWIB for official action to remove the member.  Ten days’ 
written must be provided to the member being considered for removal from 
the GPWIB before a recommendation for removal is placed on a GPWIB 
meeting agenda. 
 
Notification will be given to the Chief Elected Officials of any actions taken to 
remove a member from the GPWIB, and when any member submits a resignation.  
 

ARTICLE VI – OFFICERS 
 

Chairperson 
The Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the GPWIB.  The 
Chairperson shall be the Chief Officer of the GPWIB and shall preside at all 
meetings of the GPWIB.  The Chairperson of the GPWIB shall appoint the 
Chairperson of standing committees and ad hoc committees, subject to ratification 
by vote of the GPWIB.  The GPWIB Chairperson shall be responsible for 
carrying out the policies of the GPWIB.  He/she is the attester to all documents 
containing necessary concurrences required by the Governor and/or the GPWIB 
recommendations deemed necessary to the Boards of Supervisors.  The term of 
office for the Chairperson shall be two years, and no one individual may hold this 
office for more than one consecutive term unless so voted by a majority of 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  4 



GPWIB.  In general, he/she shall perform the duties of the Chairperson pursuant 
to these Bylaws and procedural decisions resulting from a duly cast vote of the 
GPWIB.  The Chairperson shall be a representative of the business community on 
the GPWIB. 
 
Vice-Chairperson 
The Vice-Chairperson shall be representative of the business community on the 
GPWIB.  The Vice Chairperson shall be nominated and elected by a majority vote 
of the GPWIB.  He/she shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in his/her 
absence.  The term of office for the Vice-Chairperson shall be two years, and no 
one individual may hold this office for more than one consecutive term. 
 
Election of Officers 
Election of officers shall be held bi-annually at the regularly scheduled monthly 
meeting of the GPWIB prior to the end of the program year with the term of 
office to begin at the start of a new program year. 
 

ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES 
 
Standing Committees 
The GPWIB has authority to establish standing committees in order to address 
specific issues.  All standing committee recommendations are presented to the 
GPWIB for official action.  All standing committees must operate according to 
Open Meeting Law requirements.  If the GPWIB determines that a specific 
standing committee is no longer needed, it shall officially disband the committee.  
The Bylaws will thereafter be amended to remove the standing committee. 
 
The following standing committees have been established by the GPWIB: 
 

Fiscal Committee 
The Fiscal Committee shall be responsible for annual preparation and 
review of the WIA Allocations for the Adult, Youth, and Dislocated 
Worker Programs.  The committee shall have the responsibility for the 
oversight and approval of the budget throughout the year.   

 
Workforce Development Committee  
The Workforce Development Committee shall collaborate to create a 
unified, seamless customer friendly system of service delivery that will 
enhance access to programs, and ensure all core services are available at 
the One-Stop Centers. 

 
The Workforce Development Committee shall review and discuss 
program and strategic planning issues and make recommendations to the 
GPWIB.  The Committee is responsible for the process to select and train 
service providers. 

 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  5 



The Workforce Development Committee shall also be responsible for 
evaluating the effectiveness of all WIA programs and will report its 
findings and/or recommendations to the GPWIB. 

 
The Workforce Development Committee shall be responsible for the 
development and implementation of marketing tools and strategies to 
promote the WIA within Gila and Pinal Counties. 

 
The Workforce Development Committee shall also be responsible for the 
recruitment of individuals to apply for membership on the GPWIB.  
Committee members will orientate, educate, and train new GPWIB 
members. 

 
Youth Committee 
The Youth Committee shall be responsible for the development of the 5-
year plan relating to youth, and will recommend providers of youth 
services to the GPWIB.  The committee will coordinate local youth 
programs and initiatives. 

 
Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, past Chairperson of the GPWIB and two GPWIB members 
appointed by the GPWIB Chairperson subject to ratification by vote of the 
GPWIB.  The GPWIB Chairperson shall serve as the Chairman of the 
Executive Committee. 

 
The Executive Committee shall meet as necessary between scheduled 
meetings of the entire GPWIB membership and shall be responsible for 
interpreting and putting into effect the decisions, policies and programs of 
the GPWIB.  If a GPWIB meeting has been cancelled and action items are 
needed to continue the programs, the Executive Committee shall put into 
effect and vote on the action items.  All actions are subject to ratification 
by vote of the GPWIB at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Ad Hoc Committee 
An ad hoc committee may be established by the GPWIB for a specific purpose 
with a specific time frame.  Once the Committee has presented its findings/report 
to the GPWIB, the GPWIB will take official action to disband the Committee.  
 
Standing Committee and Ad Hoc Committee Officers 
The GPWIB Chairperson appoints the Chairperson of the standing committees 
and ad hoc committees subject to ratification by a vote of the GPWIB.   
 
The committee Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the 
specific standing committee or ad hoc committee. 
 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  6 



ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS 
 

The GPWIB shall hold at least four meetings per year on the date, time and place 
as may be designated by the Chairperson of the GPWIB.  Special meetings of the 
GPWIB and its standing committees and ad hoc committees may be called, as 
needed, by the Chairperson of the GPWIB or the respective committee. 
 
If one or more members are unable to be present in person, members may 
participate by telephone or video conference.  The agenda should state that one or 
more members will participate by telephonic or video conference.  The meeting 
agenda will state “Members of the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board will 
attend either in person or by telephone conference call.”  Members participating 
in a telephone conference shall be clearly identified in the minutes.  
 
All meetings of the GPWIB and its standing committees and ad hoc committees 
shall be held in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting Law (Arizona 
Revised Statutes, Title 38-Public Officers and Employees, Chapter 3-Conduct of 
Office, Article 3.1-Public Meetings and Procedures). 
 

ARTICLE IX – VOTING 
 

Per A.R.S. § 38-231, an executed/notarized Loyalty Oath of Office must be on 
file with the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department.  
Members have no voting rights until they have executed and filed their Loyalty 
Oath. 
 
Each member of the GPWIB shall be entitled to one (1) vote on all matters 
brought before the GPWIB at any scheduled meeting.  Whenever these Bylaws 
specify that an action is to be taken by vote of the GPWIB, the approval shall be 
granted by a simple majority of the members present and qualified to vote at any 
scheduled meeting of the GPWIB at which a quorum exits.   

 
ARTICLE X – CONFLICT OF INTEREST, LIABILITY COVERAGE 
 

The GPWIB shall follow Arizona law on Conflict of Interest law as set forth in 
Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-501 following, and Section 38-447.  
GPWIB members shall avoid both conflict of interest and the appearance of 
conflict of interest in the conduct of the GPWIB business.  A potential conflict of 
interest exists if a GPWIB member takes any action, which would be to his/her 
private financial gain or loss, or to that of his/her family or employer, or any other 
apparent legal conflict of interest.  A potential conflict does not exist if the 
financial gain or losses affect to the same degree all people in the LWIA or a large 
class of people with which the member is associated.  Each individual serving on 
the GPWIB must sign a Conflict of Interest Statement on an annual basis. 
 
If a potential conflict of interest arises, the affected GPWIB member must give 
notice before taking action.  Such disclosure of potential conflict of interest 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  7 



including the source of conflict will be made part of the minutes of the meeting.  
The affected GPWIB member must refrain from discussing and/or voting on that 
issue. 
 
The GPWIB may spend such funds as are needed to protect the GPWIB and its 
individual members from liability incurred in the performance of their duties as 
members of the GPWIB. 
 

ARTICLE XI – QUORUM 
 

A majority of the current membership of the GPWIB must be present at any 
meeting of the GPWIB to constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business 
to come before the GPWIB.  A quorum, once attained, is still attained even if a 
member leaves early or abstains from voting. 

 
ARTICLE XII – AMENDMENTS 
 

Amendments to these Bylaws may be necessary from time to time.  Any proposed 
changes to the Bylaws must be presented to the members of the GPWIB and 
approved by a vote of the GPWIB.  The amended Bylaws are then presented to 
the Boards of Supervisors for final approval.  Each time the Bylaws are amended, 
a copy of the updated Bylaws will be distributed to all GPWIB members, and 
Pinal and Gila Counties’ Boards of Supervisors. 

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws (June 24, 2014)  8 



   

ARF-2583     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Fiscal Year: Program 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101 with Central Arizona College.

Background Information
On June 19, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract No. Gila 10101.

On March 19, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to said contract.

On August 19, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to said contract.

On December 17, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to said contract.

Evaluation
Central Arizona College shall provide employment and training services to Workforce Investment Act
Title 1 eligible youth in Gila and Pinal counties.  These services will be provided in accordance with
federal and state regulations.

The youth contract is being extended to July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Additional carryover funds have been added to include the following:

Total additional funds include: Youth Program Year 2013 carryover funds-$590,000; and Youth Program
2014-$842,587 for a total amount of $1,432,587.

The total number of participants to serve including carryover is 172.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101 includes carryover funds in the amount of $590,000.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101 between Gila County and Central Arizona
College for Program Year 2014, to add carryover funds in the amount of $590,000 bringing the total
contract amount to $1,432,587, and to extend the contract period to July 1, 2014, through June 30,
2015.



Attachments
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. 10101 CAC
Amendment No. 3 Contract No. 10101 CAC
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. 10101 CAC
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 10101 CAC
Original Contract Gila 10101 CAC
Legal Explanation





































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2576     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Fiscal Year: Program 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 with Central Arizona Governments.

Background Information
On July 17, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract No. Gila 10102 which allowed Central
Arizona Governments (CAG) to provide Workforce Investment Act services to the Gila/Pinal Workforce
Investment Area from July 1, 2012, to December 31, 2012, and to allow adult carryover funds to be
utilized.

On January 22, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to said contract.

On August 19, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to said contract.

On November 19, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No 3 to said contract.

Evaluation
Central Arizona Governments shall provide employment and training services to Workforce Investment
Act eligible adults in Gila and Pinal counties.  These services will be provided in accordance with federal
and state regulations. 

The adult contract is being extended to July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Additional funds have been added to include Fiscal Year 2014 carryover as follows:

Adult Fiscal Year 2014 approximate carryover-$400,000; Adult Program Year 2014-$66,652; and Adult
Fiscal Year 2015-$806,927 for a total amount of $1,273,579.00.

The total number of participants to be served including carryover is 196.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 includes carryover funds in the amount of $400,000.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102.

Suggested Motion



Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 between Gila County and Central Arizona
Governments for Program Year 2014 to add carryover funds to provide Workforce Investment Act Adult
Services in the amount of $400,000 bringing the total contract amount to $1,273,579, and to extend
the contract period to July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 Gila 10102 CAAG
Amendment No. 3 Gila 10102 CAAG
Amendment No. 2 Gila 10102 CAAG
Amendment No. 1 Gila 10102 CAAG
Original Contract Gila 10102 CAAG
Legal Explanation





































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2591     Consent Agenda Item      5. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30,
2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 for  Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4.

Background Information
On July 17, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved the Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On December 4, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to a Weatherization Low
-Income Assistance Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On July 16, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Weatherization Low-Income
Assistance Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3.  On this amendment, the last two
digits of the contract number change to "Y3."

On January 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to Weatherization
Low-Income Assistance Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3.

On Amendment No. 4, the last 2 digits of the contract number have been changed to "Y4."

Evaluation
This amendment provides a new contract award amount for the fourth year of operations for a period of
twelve months.  The contract renewal period shall be effective July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Amendment No. 4 also amends this contract to provide up to $99,692 as a reimbursement ceiling for
FY15, inclusive of administrative and program funds.

Except as specifically stated herein, all other terms and conditions of this Weatherization Low-Income
Assistance Agreement remain unchanged.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this amendment, the Gila County Weatherization Program will
receive funding to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement (Contract No.



Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement (Contract No.
LW-ESA-2182-02Y4) between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and Gila County
amending the contract to provide up to $99,692 to be used to provide weatherization services to eligible
citizens residing in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
Amendment No. 3 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 2 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 1 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2 OEP
Contract LW-ESA-12-2182-OEP
Legal Explanation



































































































































cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Gila County Office of Community Services

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
$108,719.65

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
81.042

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Globe	

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
AZ

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
1

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
02407139

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
X

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
X

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Weatherization Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2599     Consent Agenda Item      5. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 -June 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. DE111073001 with Arizona
Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
Contract No. DE111073001 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 6, 2010.

Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on May 3, 2011.
Amendment No. 2 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 7, 2011.
Amendment No. 3 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on November 15, 2011.
Amendment No. 4 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 26, 2012.
Amendment No. 5 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 7, 2012.
Amendment No. 6 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on November 13, 2012.
Amendment No. 7 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on January 22, 2013.
Amendment No. 8 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 25, 2013.
Amendment No. 9 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on October 22, 2013.

Evaluation
Case Management - This type of service provides assistance to low-income families and individuals by
providing case management services that are intended to assist the household in resolving crisis
situations and move closer to self sufficiency.  Components of this service include short-term crisis
services, utility assistance services, and any other program or service the Contractor deems necessary
and appropriate, according to local community needs and priorities.

Community Services - The primary objectives of this type service are to strengthen community
capabilities for planning and coordinating the use of a broad range of resources related to the
elimination of poverty; and the organization of a range of services so that these services may have a
measurable and potentially major impact on the causes of poverty and help families and individuals
become self-sufficient.

Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. DE111073001 will provide funding for the contract period beginning
July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

The reimbursement ceiling for the service for Case Management is $319,381.  The reimbursement
ceiling for the service for Community Services is $150,000.  The cumulative reimbursement ceiling for
the contract period July 1, 2010, to June 30, 2015, is increased to $2,789,074.13.

Itemized Service Budgets for the service of Case Management (Attachment A) and Community Services
(Attachment B) are revised and attached.



Conclusion
Amendment No. 10 will provide funding which will be used to  to provide Case Management and
Community Services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111073001)
between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila County Division of Community
Services, Community Action/Housing Services, to provide funding in the amount of $319,381 for the
service of Case Management and $150,000 for the service of Community Services, to be used to provide
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period beginning July 1, 2014, through
June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Amendment No. 10 Contract DE111073001 DES
Amendment No. 9 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 8 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 7 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 6 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 5 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 4 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 3 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 2 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No.1 Contract DE111073001
Original Contract No. DE111073001 DES
Legal Explanation



















































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2607     Consent Agenda Item      5. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for May,
2014

Submitted For: Mary Navarro Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations
Mgr, Justice Court-Globe Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for May 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for May, 2014









   

ARF-2608     Consent Agenda Item      5. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2014

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Administrative Clerk
Senior, Constable - Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2014









































































   

ARF-2566     Consent Agenda Item      5. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2014

Submitted For: Kaycee
Stratton

Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder,
Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office. 

Attachments
Recorder's Monthly Report March 2014





















   

ARF-2600     Consent Agenda Item      5. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Reporting
Period:

May 6, 2014, and May 13, 2014

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
May 6, 2014, and May 13, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 6, 2014, and May 13, 2014, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Attachments
BOS 05-13-14 Meeting Minutes
BOS 05-06-14 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
 
Date:  May 13, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.    
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a special session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Eric Mariscal led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. 042814) between Gila County and Gila 
Community College District (Provisional) to provide an economic 
development grant in the amount $84,535 to be used for the site 
preparation for a cosmetology lab at the Payson Campus of Gila 
Community College.   
 
Tommie Martin, District 1 Supervisor, stated that the additional information 
requested by the Board at the May 6th Board meeting with regard to funding 
the project as stated above has now been provided by the Board of Directors of 
the Gila Community College (College) and is agreed upon as indicated in the 
language contained in the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) referenced 
above.  The College will provide $60,000 and the Northern Arizona Vocational 
Institute of Technology (NAVIT) has pledged to fund approximately $160,000 in 
order to move forward with the site preparation for a cosmetology lab at the 
Payson Campus of Gila Community College.  Vice-Chairman Martin 

Page 1 of 5 
 



recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve the economic 
development grant request.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated for clarification that he has reviewed the IGA with 
Jeannie Sgroi, Contract Support Specialist, and it is understood by all parties 
to the IGA that no in-kind services will be provided by the County.  
Furthermore, if approved, the $84,535 contribution from the County is the 
extent of its involvement.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti added that the prior concern with regard to this item was 
having the funds to complete the project.  The funding has now been addressed 
in the aforementioned IGA.  Supervisor Marcanti advised that he is comfortable 
with the County moving forward with this project.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin made a motion to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. 042814) between Gila County and Gila Community 
College District (Provisional) to provide an economic development grant in the 
amount $84,535 to be used for the site preparation for a cosmetology lab at the 
Payson Campus of Gila Community College. 
 
Chairman Pastor stated that an amended motion was provided to each Board 
member by Don McDaniel, County Manager.  Vice Chairman Martin withdrew 
her motion and suggested that another Board member make the motion.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti then made a motion to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. 042814) between Gila County and Gila Community 
College District (GCC) to provide GCC an Economic Development Grant in the 
amount of $84,535 to be used to fund a contract for site preparation for a 
cosmetology lab at the Payson Campus which the Board of Supervisors 
determines will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
Gila County; said grant to be provided from the Natural Resources Fund of the 
approved County FY 2013-2014 Budget.  Vice-Chairman Martin seconded the 
motion, which was unanimously approved by the Board. 
  
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 041414 for the purchase of bulk fuel and lubricants 
to be used by the Gila County Fleet/Fuel Management Department.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director, requested that the Board approve the 
advertisement of the invitation for bids in order to continue to receive fuel and 
lubricants without a lapse in service as the current contract will expire on June 
25, 2014.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if the award of the contract for fuel and lubricants 
would be presented to the Board at its June 24th meeting, and whether there 
were any changes to the contract.  Mr. Hessenius replied that there were some 

Page 2 of 5 
 



minor changes to the contract, but there were no material changes to the 
contract.  Chairman Pastor verified that the Oil Price Information Service 
(OPIS) was present in the contract, to which Mr. Hessenius affirmed that was 
correct.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that he had requested this item to be placed on this 
meeting agenda to ensure that there was time to advertise an invitation for 
bids, as time ran out last year and an invitation for bids was not issued by the 
County, so the Board extended the current contract for one additional year.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin commented regarding recent fuel/lubricant spills in Star 
Valley and Young.  She asked, “Who is paying for the cleanup of these spills?”  
She also inquired if the contract contains language regarding the handling of 
this type of incident, should it occur in the future.  Chairman Pastor replied 
that the contract does address concerns such as oil spills.  He added that all of 
his questions regarding the details and specifications of the contract were 
answered prior to this meeting. 
 
Mr. Hessenius directed Vice-Chairman Martin’s inquiry to Steve Stratton, 
Public Works Division Director, to speak specifically to the spill in Star Valley.   
Mr. Stratton stated that the County most recently received a bill which was for 
the oil spill in Star Valley and that the spill was cleaned up inside the 
containment area using clay cat litter and the labor was charged to the 
contractor.  The previous bills were for a spill in Pleasant Valley which was 
more extensive and required more work and the contractor turned the bill in to 
their insurance company for payment.  Mr. Stratton added that Rich Petrus, a 
geologist with Atwell, LLC and the County’s consultant on the landfills and 
environmental spills, was contacted to assist with the remediation of the 
situation.  Chairman Pastor inquired if the County was required to report the 
incident to the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) and if the 
spill was due to equipment failure.  Mr. Stratton replied that the amount of the 
spill was approximately 30 to 50 gallons and it was reported; however, he 
clarified that the spill was not due to equipment failure.  The fuel/lubricant 
was delivered on a holiday and when the spill was discovered by a local 
resident, Eddie E. Wisdom, he informed Mr. Stratton and it was determined 
that the County did not have the expertise to handle the remediation of the 
contaminated soil under the tank.  
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked if the County was notified of the spill and if the 
County had ever known of an oil spill such as this one.  Mr. Stratton replied 
that the contractor did not inform the County and that he didn’t know of any 
other oil spills during his tenure with the County.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if there were spill containers located outside the 
tanks and if the County had ever been cited for not having adequate 
equipment.  Mr. Stratton explained that the tanks are double-wall tanks and 

Page 3 of 5 
 



one is located in Star Valley.  Mr. Stratton added that all County facilities are 
in compliance in having double-wall tanks and the County had not been cited 
to his knowledge.  He then stated that the accumulation of related costs of this 
spill has been forwarded to Juley Bocardo-Homan, Human Resources 
Assistant, assisting in Risk Management, to contact the petroleum company. 
 
Chairman Pastor directed Mr. McDaniel and Mr. Hessenius to request a status 
report from Mr. Stratton regarding the series of events that occurred thus far 
related to this incident and until such time as this matter has been concluded.    
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 
041414 for the purchase of bulk fuel and lubricants to be used by the Gila 
County Fleet/Fuel Management Department. 
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 
Larry Stephenson, Gila Community College District governing board member 
and a resident of Payson, thanked the Board on behalf of the residents in 
northern Gila County for approving the cosmetology program in Payson, thus 
benefiting both northern and southern Gila County to promote economic 
health.  He also thanked the Board for the partnership with the Gila 
Community College and the Northern Arizona Vocational Institute of 
Technology.   
 
Samuel Moorhead, President Gila Community College District and a resident of 
Globe, thanked the Board for its continued support of educational services in 
Gila County.   
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 



There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:24 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  May 6, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Bryan B. 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
ABSENT:  Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Kendall Rhyne led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Gary Bowser of the Star Valley Baptist Church 
in Payson delivered the invocation.   

  
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-05-03, 
which approves Gila County Planning & Zoning Department Case No. CUP-
14-03, an application submitted by James Thibault for a Conditional Use 
Permit on Assessor's tax parcel number 301-28-008T located at 5752 W. 
Brybegil Lane, Pine, in order to allow construction of a shed prior to the 
construction of the residence upon this parcel.   
 
Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director, stated that per County 
policy the applicant as stated above submitted an application for a conditional 
use permit (CUP). The Gila County Planning & Zoning Commission held a 
public hearing that was duly advertised and posted on April 17, 2014.  The 
vote was unanimous to recommend the Board of Supervisors’ approval of said 
CUP request contingent on the stipulations as set forth in Exhibit A of 
Resolution No. 14-05-03.  The applicant stated that the recreational vehicle 
(RV) currently on the parcel was present when the parcel was purchased.  It is 

Page 1 of 26 
 



not inhabitable and will be removed prior to any new structures being placed 
on the parcel.  Planning and Zoning Department staff recommend approval 
contingent upon the applicant complying with the following conditions, which 
are attached to the resolution:   
 
1)  The shed is only used for storage. 
2)  All outdoor lighting shall be shielded from adjoining residential uses. 
3)  The RV will be removed prior to adding the shed to the property. 
4)  No business activities will be carried out with this shed. 
5)  This conditional use permit will become effective when the RV is removed 
from the property. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if the shed would be removed or remain upon 
completion of the construction of the residence, to which Mr. Gould stated that 
the applicant would not need permission to keep the shed on the property once 
the residence is constructed and inhabited.  She then verified that the CUP 
would be null and void once the residence is constructed, and Mr. Gould 
replied that she was correct.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that he didn’t have any issues with approving the 
CUP request as long as there were no objections or complaints from 
neighboring residents.  Mr. Gould stated that there were no objections or 
complaints received from the public during the comment period.   
 
Chairman Pastor clarified that the RV is currently located on the property and 
is not inhabited and that it will be removed from the property upon approval of 
the CUP request.  Mr. Gould replied that currently the RV is not connected to 
any utilities and it will be removed from the property upon approval of the CUP 
request.  There will also be a property inspection by the Community 
Development staff to verify compliance with the conditions of the CUP.  
Chairman Pastor stated that once the primary use has been established by the 
construction of a house, the CUP would no longer be necessary because the 
applicant would be in compliance, whether or not the shed was located on the 
property.  Mr. Gould affirmed that Chairman Pastor was correct.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were received; 
therefore, he closed the public hearing.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 14-05-03, which approves Gila 
County Planning & Zoning Department Case No. CUP-14-03, an application 
submitted by James Thibault for a Conditional Use Permit on Assessor's tax 
parcel number 301-28-008T located at 5752 W. Brybegil Lane, Pine, in order to 
allow construction of a shed prior to the construction of the residence upon 
this parcel.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board 
of Supervisors’ Office.) 

Page 2 of 26 
 



B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-05-04, 
which approves Gila County Planning & Zoning Department Case No. CUP-
14-02, an application submitted by Ray Stephens for a Conditional Use 
Permit on Assessor's tax parcel number 301-19-007R located at 3465 
Harps Way, Pine, in order to operate a wine making business in the 
basement of his home.   
 
Mr. Gould stated that Ray Stephens submitted an application for a conditional 
use permit (CUP) as stated above.  Mr. Stephens has agreed to abide by all 
conditions recommend by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board 
of Supervisors.  The location for the wine-making business is in an R1-D12 
zoning district which allows for a cottage industry.  Mr. Stephens currently 
operates a cannery business at this location and adoption of the resolution as 
stated above would allow for adding wine-making to his business.  Staff 
concurs with the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation of 
approval of this application contingent upon the following stipulations:   
 
1) That no more than three employees that are nonresidents may be employed 
at any given time. 
2) That the current floor area being used in the business, in the basement of 
the home is acceptable with no expansions into other areas of the home. 
3) That prior to initiating the winery business the applicant shall submit 
approval to operate from the Gila County Health Department. 
4) No business activities or advertising shall be visible from the roadway or 
adjacent properties. 
5) That the use does not cause any sustained or unpleasant or unusual noises 
or vibrations or noxious fumes or odors, or cause any parking or traffic 
congestion in the immediate neighborhood. 
6) No on-street parking. 
7) Prior to opening a winery business, the applicant shall submit a copy of a 
Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery License issued by the Arizona Department of 
Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
Mr. Gould stated that there was a letter received from one of the adjoining 
neighbors recommending approval of the CUP.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated 
that considering the fact that Mr. Stephens currently has the cannery 
business, adding another product wouldn’t have any negative impact.   
Supervisor Marcanti inquired if Mr. Stephens would be selling bottles of wine 
out of his home to visiting customers.  Mr. Gould replied that Mr. Stephens 
indicated that there wouldn’t be any foot traffic to purchase wine out of his 
home.  Chairman Pastor asked for clarification regarding the concern of Mr. 
Stephens outgrowing the limitations of the cottage industry designation.  Mr. 
Gould assured the Board that Mr. Stephens is well aware of the restrictions of 
not having more than three non-residents employed and not having more than 
50% of the floor space used for production of goods and, finally, no customer 
traffic to the home would be permitted.  Chairman Pastor commented that if 

Page 3 of 26 
 



there are any complaints from neighboring residents, the Board would address 
them at a future Board meeting.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were received; 
therefore, he closed the public hearing.    
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 14-05-04, which approves Gila 
County Planning & Zoning Department Case No. CUP-14-02, an application 
submitted by Ray Stephens for a Conditional Use Permit on Assessor's tax 
parcel number 301-19-007R located at 3465 Harps Way, Pine, in order to 
operate a wine making business in the basement of his home.  (A copy of the 
Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Polsinelli Shughart P.C. to extend 
the contract term through September 30, 2014; increase the contract 
amount from $49,900 to $100,000; and incorporate the name change 
from Polsinelli Shughart P.C. to Polsinelli, P.C. within the contract 
documents. 
 
Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal, stated that this contract is 
currently in effect and due to the fact that the initial contract was under 
$50,000, it was signed by the County Manager per county policy.  The contract 
has now been increased to $100,000; therefore, it requires needs Board of 
Supervisors’ approval.  Additionally, this item incorporates the name change as 
described above.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if this would be the “end of the process” and if the 
County will soon receive the final bills.  Mr. Chambers stated that he believed 
that was correct due to the fact that the disciplinary presiding judge in the case 
has dismissed the case and the appeal time period has passed.  Chairman 
Pastor commented that it’s unfortunate that the County has to pay a much 
higher amount for this case.  Mr. Chambers added that the case was dismissed 
by the disciplinary presiding judge before any evidence was requested to be 
provided and that, in the event evidence would have been required to be 
presented, the result would have been a higher cost to the County.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Polsinelli Shughart P.C. to extend the contract term through 
September 30, 2014; increase the contract amount from $49,900 to $100,000; 
and incorporate the name change from Polsinelli Shughart P.C. to Polsinelli, 
P.C. within the contract documents. 
 

Page 4 of 26 
 



B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2014-07 
proclaiming May 2014 as “National Drug Court Month” in Gila 
County.  Presentation of plaque of appreciation by Kendall Rhyne, Chief 
Probation Officer/Court Administrator, to Honorable Robert Duber II, Gila 
County Superior Court Judge.   
 
Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer/Court Administrator, commented that 
there were a number of employees from the Probation Department as well as 
drug court participants in the audience.  He stated that Gila County has been 
involved with “problem solving courts” for approximately 15 years and Judge 
Robert Duber has been involved for 12 of those years, and the courts have 
served over 300 clients in both northern and southern Gila County.  He added 
that drug courts have saved the County a considerable amount of money over 
the last 15 years and they have been beneficial to many residents of Gila 
County.  Mr. Rhyne then read aloud the proclamation.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin recommended that everyone visit a drug court and view 
the phases of this impressive program. She gave kudos to this program where 
75% of the drug court participants do not return to drug court.  She added that 
she has witnessed young children giving thanks for drug courts having 
changed their parents.  Supervisor Marcanti added that he agreed that this 
program is very positive and stated that Judge Duber has done a good job.  
Chairman Pastor stated that he was proud to adopt this proclamation and 
present the award of appreciation to Judge Duber at this time.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 2014-07 proclaiming May 2014 
as “National Drug Court Month” in Gila County.  Presentation of plaque of 
appreciation by Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer/Court Administrator, to 
Honorable Robert Duber II, Gila County Superior Court Judge.  (A copy of the 
Proclamation is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Mr. Rhyne then read aloud the inscription on the appreciation plaque that was 
presented to Judge Duber.  Judge Duber thanked the participants for being in 
the audience and gave kudos to the Probation Department for administering 
their skills with a regard for helping participants using positive reinforcement.  
He implored the Board to be alert to finding funding sources and programs that 
will help women that would not be in jail if they had an alternative place to be 
such as the County’s “Steps” program which is only available to men.  Judge 
Duber stated that there is a need for women that, if fulfilled, would go a long 
way.     
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. 042814) between Gila County and Gila 
Community College District (Provisional) to provide an economic 
development grant in the amount $84,535 to be used for the site 

Page 5 of 26 
 



preparation for a cosmetology lab at the Payson Campus of Gila 
Community College.   
 
Tommie Martin, District 1 Supervisor, stated that this item was presented to 
the Board on February 4, 2014, with $40,000 being available from Northern 
Arizona Vocational Institute of Technology (NAVIT).  She then stated that at the 
time the cosmetology program was instituted in Globe, it was a Gila 
Community College (College) Board decision and a Gila County management 
decision to test the successfulness of the program before expanding the 
program to Payson.  The cosmetology program has been successful in Globe by 
not only paying for itself but providing income for the College.  NAVIT has now 
increased its pledge to $160,000 to help institute a cosmetology program in 
Payson contingent upon completion of the project by August 1, 2014.  This 
larger amount would be used to purchase, retrofit, and furnish the building.  
The College had $40,000 when this endeavor started, but has now increased 
the amount it can contribute to $60,000 to do part of the trenching and 
aesthetic work to the outside areas in order to make the building fit in with the 
rest of the campus.  An amount of approximately $85,500 is needed, so Vice-
Chairman Martin requested that the County partner in this endeavor by 
providing that amount to do the site preparation for the building.  She 
cautioned that the NAVIT money will not be available if the County and College 
don’t commence and complete this project by August 2014.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin advised that Pamela Butterfield, Gila Community College Payson 
Campus Dean/Advisor, was present in Payson to answer any questions. 
 
Supervisor Marcanti expressed concern with the costs outlined in the bid 
documents in the line item regarding alternates.  He mentioned the costs 
associated with the Arizona Public Service (APS) primary electrical line, the 
transformer, the electrical engineering and also the site work including 
trenching.  He estimated this portion of the cost to be approximately $40,000 
to $50,000.  He wanted assurance that the College will be able to “front” the 
money for this portion of the project before the Board authorizes the requested 
funding from the County. 
 
Dr. Stephen Cullen, Gila Community College Senior Dean, stated that when 
the request for proposal was released to the local newspapers of record in both 
northern and southern Gila County, there was a list of alternates that was 
provided to the College.  Upon a review of the list of alternates, it was 
determined that one of the line items could be removed, that being the covered 
sidewalk and a canopy at a cost of approximately $19,000.  It would be 
necessary to upgrade the electrical that exists in the modular building and the 
exterior would have to be finished using stucco at a cost of approximately 
$10,000.  Dr. Cullen stated that he believed that the amount the College would 
be required to contribute would be approximately $59,735.  Dr. Cullen added 
that when this issue was initially presented to the Board, it was discussed that 
an option may have included the County providing the trenching for water, 

Page 6 of 26 
 



sewer and power; cutting the asphalt; preparing the pad; and trenching for the 
conduit for the main campus for I.T. (information technology) purposes.   
Chairman Pastor clarified that this amount of $59,735 is for trenching, etc. 
and it is in addition to the approximate amount of $84,000 to be donated by 
the County.  Dr. Cullen affirmed that Chairman Pastor was correct and he feels 
confident that the College will be able to locate the funds for the project; 
however, he would need approval from the College District Board of Directors 
for the additional funding, the alternate list in the bid, and the additional 
trenching.  He advised that a College Board of Directors’ meeting is scheduled 
on May 15, 2014, to determine if the College Board will approve spending 
$60,000 in order to take advantage of the available NAVIT funds and possible 
County contribution.  Dr. Cullen advised that funding from the County and 
NAVIT would generate $237,000 for this project.  
 
Chairman Pastor advised that the bid documents include language that “the 
County has committed their resources per the direction of Gila County,” but he 
expressed frustration that all conversations regarding this issue have not been 
open and transparent.  He requested that the entire Board be provided an 
update of activities and discussions before a vote is taken to release County 
economic development funds.  Chairman Pastor commented that in February 
of this year Vice-Chairman Martin requested that a County Long Range Facility 
Management Plan be implemented in order to plan for projects such as this 
one; however, this particular project was not budgeted or planned.  He then 
stated that in discussions with County Manager Don McDaniel and Finance 
Director Jeff Hessenius, it was determined that the County doesn’t have 
$84,000 to spend on an unbudgeted project for the current fiscal year.  
Chairman Pastor stated that he has always been a strong supporter of the 
College and that he supports this project, but he wants some answers with 
regard to the funding for this project.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin responded that she and Steve Stratton, Public Works 
Division Director, had been to the site at the Gila Community College Payson 
Campus.  She believes there was a miscommunication regarding the work that 
was done by the County with respect to the Globe campus, which may have 
caused an unrealistic expectation of what the County could provide with regard 
to the Payson campus.  She advised that Mr. Stratton talked with Dr. Cullen 
with regard to assistance that could be provided by the County and it was 
determined that the only assistance the County could provide toward this 
project is a monetary contribution to do the site preparation for the placement 
of the building.  She believes that the alternates listed in the bid documents 
were discovered during the conversation between Mr. Stratton and Dr. Cullen.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she was not aware that the College had not 
approved spending their portion of funds for this project; therefore, she 
proposed that the Board of Supervisors’ motion should be contingent upon the 
College Board’s approval to spend these funds on this project.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin stated that in looking at the available funds left in the County current 

Page 7 of 26 
 



fiscal year budget, there is approximately $25,000 left in two funds; the 
economic development fund and the community agencies fund.  There is also 
approximately $85,000 in the natural resources fund that is not earmarked 
and has been approved for this type of project. 
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if Vice-Chairman Martin would be willing to utilize 
funds from the natural resources fund of which he believes those funds are 
specifically to be used for forest protection and forest projects.  He added that 
the heavy fire season is present and those funds may be needed.  Vice-
Chairman Martin suggested that the amount of $25,000 that remains in the 
economic development and community agencies funds should be used first and 
the remaining amount should be taken from the natural resources fund.  She 
emphasized that to her knowledge no deals were made nor were there any 
decisions made with regard to this project outside of today’s Board 
conversation.  She added that she didn’t want to lose the opportunity with 
NAVIT for the $160,000 nor did she want to take the funds out of the funds the 
County already provides to the College.  She did want to take action on this 
item contingent upon the College approving to spend $60,000 for their portion 
of this project.   
 
Chairman Pastor re-stated his concern about using natural resource funds for 
anything other than forest protection in Gila County.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti recalled that during the Board of Supervisors’ February 
4th meeting, there was a discussion regarding the assistance the County would 
be allowed to provide, such as performing site preparation work or purchasing 
the modular building.  His concern is that the College Board needs to approve 
funding a portion of this project and that language to that effect is not in the 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) at this time.  He stated that that language 
should be in the agreement before moving forward.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that once the College has the necessary approvals 
and makes the necessary changes to the IGA, this Board would be in a position 
to act quickly so as not to delay the project.  Chairman Pastor replied that it 
may have been possible to move forward on this item had there been better 
communication among the Board.   
 
Dr. Cullen stated that he would request the College Governing Board of 
Directors to schedule a special meeting in order to address and take action on 
this item.  Prior to that meeting, he felt it would be beneficial to revise the IGA 
to include language that the College Board has committed $60,000 to this 
project.   Vice-Chairman Martin asked if a special meeting could be held by the 
Board of Supervisors.  Chairman Pastor replied that the next scheduled Board 
meeting is May 20th and stated that he will be out of the office; Vice-Chairman 
Martin added that she, too, will be out of the office.  It was agreed that the 
Board of Supervisors would schedule a special meeting on May 13th and in the 

Page 8 of 26 
 



meantime, Finance Director Jeff Hessenius could review the budget to see if 
there are available funds.  He then directed Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney 
Principal, to review the IGA as it will change.  Vice Chairman Martin asked if 
this item should be continued until next week. 
 
Chairman Pastor advised that he would like Mr. Stratton to provide the Board 
with information as to the involvement and commitments made by Mr. Stratton 
thus far and to explain the involvement of the County with Jerry Farr.  Mr. 
Stratton replied that he had looked at the modular building site twice and he 
called upon Mr. Farr to also look at it.  He explained that Mr. Farr retired from 
the County; however, on occasion he is hired as a temporary employee to assist 
with employee training and for other purposes.  Mr. Farr recommended a 
different location which he feels would be better suited for this project.  
Chairman Pastor directed Mr. Stratton to provide a report on the services 
provided by Mr. Farr and a report as to his employment status with the 
County.  He also stated that he wasn’t aware that the County used Mr. Farr for 
construction consulting services.  He thought that the County utilized Mr. 
Farr’s services for training purposes.  Mr. Stratton added that he directed Mark 
Guerena, Gila County Engineer, to measure the invert elevation of the 
manhole.  Chairman Pastor clarified that this was the type of in-kind services 
provided for this project thus far prior to this agreement being approved, to 
which Mr. Stratton concurred.   
 
Mr. McDaniel requested clarification on the project with regard to the trenching 
and site preparation.  Dr. Cullen replied that moving forward with this project 
is contingent upon Board of Supervisors’ approval.  He clarified that the 
trenching and site preparation is included in the $60,000 to be funded by the 
College and it is included in the list of alternates contained in the bid 
documents, which are attached to this agenda item.  Supervisor Marcanti 
added for clarification that he understood that the County would not be 
responsible for any trenching or site work.  Chairman Pastor asked for 
clarification with regard to $30,000 that is not designated, and clarified that 
it’s part of the alternates and included with the $60,000.  Dr. Cullen added 
that the $30,000 is part of the $60,000 amount that the College will provide, 
and the funding request to the County is for the original amount as stated in 
the original IGA.  Chairman Pastor advised that the $60,000 amount to be 
provided by the College is contingent on the College Board approving the 
expenditure.  He stated that the Board needs to determine which County fund 
will be used to provide this funding request.  He then directed Mr. McDaniel 
and Mr. Stratton to meet and ensure that the details of this project are clearly 
stated prior to the May 13th meeting. 
 
Chairman Pastor asked for a motion to continue this item to a Special Meeting 
to be held on May 13, 2014.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded 
by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously continued this agenda item to 
a Special Meeting to be held by the Board of Supervisors on May 13, 2014. 

Page 9 of 26 
 



D.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2014-06 
proclaiming May 2014 as Building Safety Month in Gila County.   
 
Mr. Gould stated that Arizona Governor Jan Brewer has enacted a 
proclamation declaring the month of May as Building Safety Month.  Each year 
the International Code Council Foundation celebrates Building Safety Month 
during the month of May.  He described this year’s weekly topics as follows:  1) 
Code Officials Keeping Fire in its Place; 2) Code Officials Helping Homeowners 
Weather the Storm; 3) Code Officials Surround your building with Safety, and; 
4) Code Officials Building a Brighter More Efficient Tomorrow.  Chairman 
Pastor advised that it would be beneficial to have all of this information on the 
Gila County website.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 2014-06 
proclaiming May 2014 as Building Safety Month in Gila County.  (A copy of 
the Proclamation is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to request additional and revised 
financial information ensuring the viability of the successful purchase and 
operation of the Roosevelt Lakeview Park, and to continue this item for 
consideration at the June 3, 2014, Regular Board Meeting.   
 
Bob Gould stated that this item has been in process for approximately a year 
and a half.  The County has been provided with the business plan which 
contains quite a bit of financial information.  County staff has reviewed the 
financial data and Mr. Gould stated that it appears that Mr. Buckmaster is 
very capable of assuming the responsibility of the debt to purchase Roosevelt 
Lakeview Park.  A record of survey was submitted to the County which shows 
the site as being approximately 30.6 acres and an appraisal was submitted 
which shows a property value of approximately $322,000.  A loan packet was 
also included from “DKT” for a bridge loan for two years in the amount of 
$350,000.  Mr. Gould stated that the loan package isn’t satisfactory to County 
staff and there may not be sufficient time for Mr. Buckmaster to secure a 
permanent loan for the project in time for the June 3rd Board meeting.  He 
advised that Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director, and Don McDaniel, County 
Manager, have been involved in this review and may be able to answer 
questions regarding this item. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin commented that the County may want to put a little 
more time into this effort; however, at some point an agreement needs to be 
made whether or not it’s a viable pursuit.  Supervisor Marcanti commented 
that the discussion regarding this item at this time is a continuation of the 
process with the goal of helping the residents of Roosevelt Lakeview Park.   
Chairman Pastor inquired if Mr. Buckmaster has been cooperative in providing 
the requested information to the County.  Mr. Gould replied that the County 
has received all of the requested information from Mr. Buckmaster and that he 

Page 10 of 26 
 



has not requested that Mr. Buckmaster secure a permanent loan.  Chairman 
Pastor inquired if, to Mr. Gould’s knowledge, the Forest Service was pressuring 
Mr. Buckmaster to move forward with this project.  Mr. Gould stated that he 
has had discussions with Forest Service personnel and they have indicated 
that this process has taken much longer to complete than anticipated.   
 
Mr. Hessenius added that if Mr. Buckmaster is embarking on this long-term 
project, he should secure long-term funding rather than a short-term solution.   
Chairman Pastor inquired if Mr. Buckmaster has been advised to secure long-
term funding.  Mr. Hessenius replied that Mr. Buckmaster had not been 
advised to secure long-term funding. 
 
Mr. McDaniel cited the issues which prohibit the County from moving forward 
with this project at this time:  1) Short-Term Bridge Loan - There is a 
requirement that the lender be the first name on the deed, whereby in the 
event that Mr. Buckmaster defaults on the loan, the lender would take 
ownership; and 2) Forest Service Requirement - The jurisdiction that purchases 
the property must maintain the property through its ownership for a minimum 
of 15 years.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously requested additional and revised financial information 
ensuring the viability of the successful purchase and operation of the Roosevelt 
Lakeview Park, and continued this item for consideration at the June 3, 2014, 
Regular Board Meeting. 
  
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Sheriff's Office electronic 
submission of a Grant Application to the State of Arizona, Department of 
Homeland Security for SCUBA equipment in the amount of $37,375 for 
the period of October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.   
 
John France, Deputy Sheriff Sergeant, stated that the grant referenced above is 
entitled Critical Incident Responder Safety and Health Grant.  The funds will 
enable the Sheriff’s Office to purchase additional self-contained underwater 
breathing apparatus (SCUBA) equipment such as dive computers in order to 
enhance the effectiveness of the dive team, and the equipment the dive team 
uses and provide for consistency in computer equipment.  He added that Gila 
County serves as a training environment for other Arizona law enforcement 
agencies, and the new equipment will allow the Sheriff’s Office to enhance the 
ability to address hazard mitigations, conduct search and rescue activities, 
carry out underwater crime scene management, respond to critical incidents 
within the waters of Gila County and continue to provide resources to other law 
enforcement agencies in Gila County and throughout Arizona.  An item that the 
Sheriff’s Office will also be able to purchase via this grant is an underwater 
metal detector used to scan the water which will create a safer environment by 
reducing the amount of time divers are in the water.  A trolling motor will 

Page 11 of 26 
 



accompany the metal detector to reduce engine wear and tear, and fuel on the 
dive boat.  Since the time the grant application was submitted, the amount of 
the grant was reduced by $2,000 which makes the grant amount $35,375.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously ratified the Sheriff's Office electronic submission of a Grant 
Application to the State of Arizona, Department of Homeland Security for 
SCUBA equipment in the amount of $35,375 for the period of October 1, 2014, 
through September 30, 2015. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Sheriff's Office electronic 
submission of a Grant Application for speed enforcement to the 
Governor's Office of Highway Safety in the amount of $21,899.26.   
 
Keith Thompson, Deputy Sheriff Lieutenant, explained that the speed 
enforcement equipment in the patrol vehicles that the Sheriff’s Office is 
currently using is outdated.  The grant will allow for the purchase of 10 new 
speed enforcement radars that will actually be mounted in the console of the 
vehicles which is safer than the speed enforcement radars currently in use that 
are mounted on the dash boards of the patrol vehicles.  This grant will also 
allow for replacement of the inoperable speed enforcement radars the Sheriff’s 
Office has in inventory that would cost more to repair than to replace.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously ratified the Sheriff's Office electronic submission of a Grant 
Application for speed enforcement to the Governor's Office of Highway Safety in 
the amount of $21,899.26. 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Sheriff's Office electronic 
submission of a Grant Application to the State of Arizona, Department of 
Homeland Security for a communications upgrade in the amount of 
$77,738.  
 
Mr. Thompson described some of the challenges with the current 
communications system used by the Sheriff’s Office and stated that there have 
been issues communicating with Sheriff’s deputies in the field as well as 
difficulties communicating with intergovernmental agencies surrounding Gila 
County.  He stated that receiving this grant funding will allow for the purchase 
of updated and current communications equipment for use by the Sheriff’s 
Office.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously ratified the Sheriff's Office electronic 
submission of a Grant Application to the State of Arizona, Department of 
Homeland Security for a communications upgrade in the amount of $77,738. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Letter of Agreement 
(Number 2014-04) between the U.S. Department of Justice Drug 
Enforcement Administration and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the 
amount of $35,000 for the period of January 1, 2014, through December 

Page 12 of 26 
 



31, 2014, in order to provide overtime pay related to the Domestic 
Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program.   
 
Travis Baxley, Task Force Commander, stated that Gila County is the leader in 
marijuana eradication.  In 2013, the Sheriff’s Office investigated over 90 
marijuana eradication cases, successfully located 11 marijuana groves which 
included both indoor and outdoor suppression, and seized 12,890 marijuana 
plants which weighed approximately 19,335 pounds and had a “street value” of 
approximately $16,434,750,000.  These marijuana eradications spanned 
across the White Mountain Apache Tribe Reservation, Tonto National Forest, 
Yavapai County and San Carlos Apache Tribe Reservation.  He stated that this 
grant provided by the Drug Enforcement Agency will provide overtime pay only 
for time directly spent in marijuana eradication activities by the Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office and other involved law enforcement agencies at the pay rate of 
regular time and a half.  He added that the funds are not to be used for the 
purchase of any equipment.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded 
by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved a Letter of 
Agreement (Number 2014-04) between the U.S. Department of Justice Drug 
Enforcement Administration and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount 
of $35,000 for the period of January 1, 2014, through December 31, 2014, in 
order to provide overtime pay related to the Domestic Cannabis 
Eradication/Suppression Program. 
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Property Lease Agreement 
with Central Arizona College for office space at the Casa Grande One-Stop 
Center from May 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, for a monthly rental 
rate of $9,728.25.   
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, requested that the 
Board approve this lease agreement as stated above for the Workforce 
Investment Act Program, specifically the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area, 
and its One-Stop Center located in Casa Grande.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved a Property Lease Agreement with Central Arizona College for office 
space at the Casa Grande One-Stop Center from May 1, 2014, through June 
30, 2015, for a monthly rental rate of $9,728.25. 
 
K.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance Program (SNAP) Community Organization Partner Application 
for federal fiscal year 2015 between the Arizona Community Action 
Association and the Gila County Division of Community Services, 
Community Action Program which, if approved, will allow Gila County to 
become a SNAP Organization Partner and be reimbursed for expenses in 
an estimated amount of $9,568.95 for the period of October 1, 2014, 
through September 30, 2015.   
 

Page 13 of 26 
 



Ms. Buzan stated that the Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) 
provides for the above referenced statewide grant funding program for which 
the Gila County Community Action Program is eligible to apply.  The grant 
provides for financial reimbursement to the County for expenses relating to 
client case management and offers additional tools to assist the County in 
administering the program to the citizens of Gila County.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved a Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 
Community Organization Partner Application for federal fiscal year 2015 
between the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County 
Division of Community Services, Community Action Program which, if 
approved, will allow Gila County to become a SNAP Organization Partner and 
be reimbursed for expenses in an estimated amount of $9,568.95 for the period 
of October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015. 
 
Chairman Pastor recessed the meeting at 11:40 a.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 11:48 a.m.  
 
L.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of the NAPA 
Building at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an amount not to 
exceed $450,500 as part of the Long Range Facility Management Plan to 
expand the Payson County Complex, and authorize the Chairman's 
signature on the title documents and deed.   
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the County’s Long 
Range Facility Management Plan was discussed at the February 25, 2014, 
Board of Supervisors’ Work Session and, at that time, it was agreed by the 
Board that that the Gila County Courthouse Payson Complex needed an 
upgraded facility for security reasons and for the safety of the public and 
County employees.  There is a property that is being considered for purchase, 
which currently houses the NAPA (National Auto Parts Association) auto parts 
store and it is located near the Courthouse and jail in Payson.  An appraisal 
was ordered with the information that the building (store) will be demolished 
and it was for $320,000, and a copy of the appraisal was provided to Mr. 
Barcom.  An offer was made to Mr. Barcom in the amount of $350,000.  Mr. 
Barcom ordered an appraisal with the information that the property was an 
income property; consequently, that appraisal was in the amount of $430,000.  
There were discussions with Mr. Barcom and he researched Arizona Revised 
Statutes with regard to relocation fees and felt he was due an additional 
$20,000.  In discussions with Don McDaniel, County Manager, and Bryan 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal, a purchase offer was given to Mr. 
Barcom in the amount of $440,000 which Mr. Barcom did not accept.  Mr. 
Barcom stated that he wanted $450,500 which includes relocation expenses 
and emphasized that he had planned to use the rental income from the 
building currently used as the NAPA auto parts store as part of his retirement.   
 

Page 14 of 26 
 



Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she understood the difference in the two 
appraisals and felt that $430,000 to purchase the building and property was a 
fair price.  She explained that by using an approximate income amount of 
$50,000 per year and multiplying that number by 10 would equal a fair 
purchase price.  The amount would include relocating the business owner.  
She then stated that Mr. Barcom was present in Payson and wanted to provide 
additional comments.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired if Mr. Barcom was 
obligated by contract to pay for the relocation cost of the tenant if he owns the 
building?  Mr. Barcom is seeking to purchase another building in order to lease 
it to the current tenant and he asked for clarification as to the additional 
$20,000.  Mr. Stratton clarified that Mr. Barcom intends to lease the new 
building space to the same business owner.  Mr. Barcom has had discussions 
with the business owner regarding relocating him to a different location.   
 
Chairman Pastor verified with Mr. Stratton that the original appraisal was 
$320,000 and Mr. Barcom negotiated an amount of $430,500; further, the 
most recent price request was $450,500, to which Mr. Stratton replied that 
Chairman Pastor was correct.  Chairman Pastor added that Mr. Barcom should 
pay for any relocation costs resulting from the sale of the building, but stated 
that comment was his personal opinion.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that it’s not prudent for the County to use taxpayer 
money foolishly.  He added that staff has provided a proposal and not provided 
the information with regard to which County fund will be used for this 
proposed purchase, and he added that the County doesn’t need to spend 
money that was not budgeted.  Chairman Pastor advised that he understands 
long range facility planning; however, it doesn’t make sense to him at present 
to spend $450,500 to demolish a building and provide temporary parking.  He 
emphasized that he supports the expansion of County facilities, but not until 
he knows which County fund will be used for any expansions and he wants to 
ensure those funds have been budgeted.  He commented that there has been 
an ongoing Classification and Compensation Study that was budgeted and 
questions have been still been raised whether or not the County will be able to 
fund the Study.  He stated that Vice-Chairman Martin requested that a County 
Long Range Facility Management Plan be developed and implemented, which 
was done; however, it is not being followed.  He is looking forward to the 
update with regard to this issue which will be presented to the Board in the 
near future.  He was not in favor of taking a Board motion to approve this item 
at this time.  He offered that it may be more feasible to discuss this purchase 
as part of the Long Range Facility Management Plan as part of next year’s 
budget process.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that at the February 25, 2014, Work Session it was 
discussed that the direction of the Board was to address the security and 
safety concerns at the Payson Courthouse and make that a priority moving 
forward.  Staff took the direction of the Board and began preliminary steps so 

Page 15 of 26 
 



as not to lose opportunities with regard to acquiring property which would 
address security and safety issues at the Payson Courthouse in accordance 
with the Long Range Facility Management Plan.  Consequently, only portions of 
the Long Range Facility Management Plan are being presented to the Board 
thus far.  Chairman Pastor replied that he still didn’t agree with spending 
$450,500 for a property that will be used for a dirt parking lot.  Supervisor 
Marcanti stated that this information has been made available to the Board 
and it hasn’t been a secret.  He didn’t understand how the County could spend 
this money if it wasn’t in the budget.  Supervisor Marcanti is in favor of moving 
forward, but stated that the money will have to come from somewhere because 
it’s not in the budget. 
 
Mr. Stratton added that Mr. Barcom is fully aware that any decisions are 
contingent upon Board of Supervisors’ approval.  To answer part of the 
question posed regarding funding the project, he stated that $390,000 was 
remaining in the bond fund that was budgeted for the second floor remodel of 
the Globe Courthouse for which the request to authorize the advertisement of 
the Invitation for Bid is on today’s agenda for consideration by the Board.  Mr. 
Stratton stated the he expected the second floor remodel of the Globe 
Courthouse to be a line item on next year’s budget.  Jeff Hessenius, Finance 
Director, added that the intent was to fund this project from the Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP) fund.  Chairman Pastor verified that Mr. Hessenius 
was referring to the purchase of NAPA building in Payson.  Mr. Hessenius 
replied in the affirmative and stated that the intent was to use the CIP Revenue 
Bond to purchase the NAPA building.  Chairman Pastor inquired if Mr. 
Hessenius has talked to the judges regarding the funding, to which Mr. 
Hessenius replied that he had not spoken to the judges. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that it looks like the County has the funds to get 
started with this project.  She added that a message needs to be sent to 
citizens that the intent of the County is to reduce the liability and increase the 
safety and security of residents of Gila County.  She also stated that to delay 
this any further may require having to order another appraisal; also that she 
didn’t see the proposal in and of itself as being an issue.  She didn’t see a 
problem solving a liability issue in doing this project, but that she wanted to 
hear from Mr. Barcom before the Board makes a decision regarding this item.   
 
Gary Barcom, property owner of 110 West Main Street in Payson, stated that 
he could address the Board’s question with regard to the amount of funds 
being requested.  He explained that there were two appraisals that were 
essentially in agreement with regard to measuring the best and highest use of 
the property with the exception that the first appraisal used by the County 
used an “opinion” of what the rental rate should be for the building at 80 cents 
per square foot.  The second appraisal consisted of the actual rental rate that 
has been received from the tenant for the last six years that would continue to 
be received for the duration of the lease agreement which is approximately 

Page 16 of 26 
 



three and a half more years.  He added that with regard to the relocation 
expenses of $20,000 in addition to the $430,500, it will cost approximately 
$35,000 to $40,000 to move, so he feels the $20,000 amount is fair.  He 
doesn’t want to move, but he doesn’t’ want to be a part of the problem.  He 
wants to be a part of the solution; otherwise, he and the tenant would be happy 
to stay and continue to have a profitable business arrangement.  Consequently, 
he stated that he felt the asking price, which includes the relocation expense, 
is fair.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that the money budgeted for the second floor 
remodel of the Globe Courthouse should be used for what it was intended to be 
used and that it also is a life safety issue.  He is not opposed to the amount 
requested to purchase the NAPA building and property although he believes 
that the County should schedule this purchase to take place during the next 
fiscal year budget. 
 
Chairman Pastor stated that the Long Range Facility Management Plan is a 
viable plan; he is looking forward to receiving the revisions to the Plan from the 
consultant and proceeding with several of the projects within the Plan over the 
next two years.  He added that even if the County purchases the NAPA 
building, there is no guarantee that the County will be able to proceed with 
building and/or remodeling the Courthouse and jail facility in Payson.  He does 
not support the motion at this time. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin wanted to know from Mr. Barcom the answer to the 
question of his willingness to wait on this decision.  Mr. Barcom commented 
and Vice-Chairman Martin re-stated that Mr. Barcom has had two extensions 
as a result of waiting for a decision from the County.  He would be willing to 
ask for another extension from the owner of the new building that will be used 
to house the NAPA business; however, if he is unable to secure a new building 
then he may have to take the offer off the table. 
 
Chairman Pastor advised that Mr. Barcom has this tenant for another three 
and a half years.  He stated that the Board needs to have another discussion 
when there is funding that has been budgeted for this project.   
 
The Board had a brief discussion with Mr. McDaniel and Mr. Hessenius and 
agreed to continue this item to the date set to adopt the tentative budget for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  In doing so, it provides Mr. Barcom with the 
information regarding the intent of the County with regard to including this 
project in next year’s budget.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board continued this item to June 17th; however, this was an incorrect meeting 
date.  The correct date scheduled to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
Annual Tentative Budget is June 24, 2014. 

Page 17 of 26 
 



M. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Customer Purchase 
Agreement between Gila County and Empire CAT for the purchase of 
one 2011, 928HZ loader, serial numbers: 0CXK01508, 0ARJ10144, 
121000363707, 22029071RN, T100800799, in the total amount of 
$138,620.69 which includes a trade-in allowance of $25,000, and added 
costs for a handling arm, sales tax, warranty and job site delivery of the 
loader to the County's Star Valley yard.   
 
Mr. Stratton stated that the County would benefit by taking advantage of the 
20% ($36,000) savings in this case by using the County’s agreement with the 
National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company.   Currently the 
County uses integrated tool loaders in the southern region of Gila County and 
is in need of an integrated tool loader in the northern region of Gila County.  In 
purchasing this 2011 integrated tool loader (loader), it saves the County 
approximately $25,000 with the trade-in allowance and by not purchasing a 
new loader.  Mr. Stratton explained that this item was not included in the 
current budget; however, the Public Works Division has the option to 
unencumber the second half of the payment for one of the loaders currently in 
use for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and use those funds to purchase the 2011 
loader in Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and incur no interest.  The Public Works 
Division would then budget the second half of the payment for loader currently 
in use into the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Budget.  He added that this loader would 
be paid for using the half-cent transportation excise tax.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin commented that she believes that the Public Works 
Division Director knows what equipment is needed and she had no problem 
with this item.  Supervisor Marcanti stated that he agreed with that statement.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved a Customer Purchase Agreement between Gila 
County and Empire CAT for the purchase of one 2011, 928HZ loader, serial 
numbers: 0CXK01508, 0ARJ10144, 121000363707, 22029071RN, 
T100800799, in the total amount of $138,620.69 which includes a trade-in 
allowance of $25,000, and added costs for a handling arm, sales tax, warranty 
and job site delivery of the loader to the County's Star Valley yard.   
 
N.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement 
of Invitation for Bid No. 012114 for the 2nd floor renovations to the Globe 
Courthouse for the School Superintendent's Office and Assessor's Office 
Project. 
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that this item was a request 
to advertise the Invitation for Bid and move forward with the process of 
renovating the second floor of the Globe Courthouse, which is part of the 
County’s Long Range Facility Management Plan.   
 

Page 18 of 26 
 



Supervisor Marcanti inquired if this was part of the work that is currently 
being done to the front of the Globe Courthouse and if it included the 
restrooms.  Mr. Hessenius replied that portion of work Supervisor Marcanti 
referred to would be part of this project.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if the $390,000 that Mr. Stratton referred to in 
Regular Agenda Item 3-L regarding the NAPA building would come from the 
Capital Improvement Project (CIP) fund.  Mr. Hessenius replied that the 
Revenue Bond fund/CIP fund is the revenue fund earmarked for this project as 
stated above.   
 
Chairman Pastor asked if this project will renovate and remodel the first floor 
of the Globe Courthouse in the next budget year.  Mr. Stratton stated that this 
item is part of the Long Range Facility Management Plan to eliminate the 
renting of office space by the County.  The plan is to relocate the restrooms on 
the second floor to the front area of the second floor next to the Treasurer’s 
Office, and installing a security gate on the east side of the restrooms which 
would enable use of the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  There would be 
access to use of the restrooms but no access to the rest of the Courthouse.  He 
also explained that the School Superintendent’s Office would be relocated to 
the area of the hallway leading to the restrooms on the second floor and an 
additional four feet of the Assessor’s Office, of which funds are budgeted in the 
current budget year.  The first floor would then have space to relocate all 
County staff from the Michaelson Building to the Globe Courthouse; therefore, 
eliminating the need to rent office space at that location.   
 
Chairman Pastor advised that the County needs to seriously find a way to move 
the Probation Department out of rented space at the “hospital” (which was the 
former County hospital at 1100 Monroe Street) and into County buildings.  Mr. 
Stratton agreed. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 
012114 for the 2nd floor renovations to the Globe Courthouse for the School 
Superintendent's Office and Assessor's Office project. 
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval to adopt Resolution 14-05-01 authorizing the County's 
funding match requirement of $500.00 in order for the Gila County 
Probation Department to receive $2,000.00 of additional FY 2013-2014 
Family Counseling Program funding from the Arizona Supreme Court, 
Administrative Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division.  

Page 19 of 26 
 



(A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’  
Office.) 
 
B.  Approval of payment of annual dues to Eastern Arizona Counties 
Organization in the amount of $6,000 for FY 13/14.  
 
C.  Approval of AG Contract No. CTY14-0004-ASF-SFO - Arizona State 
Forester’s Cooperative Intergovernmental Agreement for the period of (4) 
years from the date of final signature to define the State and County 
partnership for the protection of forests and wild lands in terms of 
prevention and response activities and related costs.  
 
D.  Ratification of the Chairman's signature on Offer and Acceptance-
Solicitation No. ADHS14-00003830 and the Vice-Chairman's signature on 
Amendment Nos. 1 and 2 to Solicitation No. ADHS14-00003830, and the 
submission of those documents to the Arizona Department of Health 
Services by the Health and Emergency Services Division in order to 
provide continued Newborn Intensive Care Program services on a fee for 
service basis for the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2017.   
 
E.  Ratification of the Health and Emergency Services Division's 
electronic submission of an Application for Emergency Management 
Performance Grant funds for federal fiscal year 2014 in the amount of 
$114,719 to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management, and 
approval of the Chairman's signature on the Application.  
 
F.  Approval of a Request for Release of Funds between Gila County 
Housing Services and the Arizona Department of Housing, which will allow 
Housing Services to request a release of funds for multiple contracts and 
multiple years if contracts are awarded, for the period of Fiscal Year 2014 
through Fiscal Year 2016.  
 
G.  Approval to accept the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area's 
administrative modifications to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Plan 
for Program Year 2013.  
H.  Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 4 and Amendment No. 5 to 
Contract No. DE126000-001 between the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security (DES) and the Gila County Community Services 
Division, Gila Employment and Special Training, whereby Unilateral 
Amendment No. 4 pertains to background checks for employment through 
the Central Registry and Amendment No. 5 extends the contract period 
from July 1, 2014, through December 31, 2014.  
 
I.  Approval to reappoint Otto Weeden, Jr. to the Northern Gila County 
Range Commission for another 3-year term, retroactive from January 1, 
2014, through December 31, 2016.  

Page 20 of 26 
 



J.  Approval of an Acquisition of Control Application for Kohl's Ranch that 
was submitted by Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, all of which pertains to an 
existing liquor license for Kohl's Ranch. 
 
K.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Pleasant Valley Community Council to serve liquor during the 2nd Annual 
Cherry Creek Music Festival to be held at the Cherry Creek Lodge in 
Young on May 23-25, 2014.  
 
L.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Pleasant Valley Community Council to serve liquor at the Annual Pleasant 
Valley Days to be held on July 18-20, 2014.  
 
M. Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
N.  Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
O.  Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
P.  Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
Q.  Approval of the April 1, 2014, and April 15, 2014, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
R.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
April 1, 2014, April 8, 2014, April 15, 2014, April 22, 2014 and April 29, 
2014.  
 
APRIL 1, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Jessica Madrid – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 03/30/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 03/29/12  
NEW HIRES: 
2.  Jessica Palmer – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Regulations 
Enforcement Officer – 03/24/14 – Rabies Control Fund – Replacing Forrest 
Miller 
3.  Jose Frayrez – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/07/14 – General 
Fund – Replacing Courtland Bell 
4.  Juliane DeSpain – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/07/14 –
General Fund – Replacing Michelle Dooly 
5.  Susan O’Connor – School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative Assistant 
(.38) – 04/07/14 – General Fund – Replacing Victoria Sanchez 

Page 21 of 26 
 



DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Marcus Teague Jr. – Sheriff’s Office – From Property and Evidence 
Custodian – To Detention Officer – 03/28/14 – General Fund – Replacing 
Braxton Bittner 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
7.  Patty Comstock – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Services Specialist – 
03/24/14 – General Fund – Extending probationary period for 3 months 
REQUEST TO POST: 
8.  Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – Vacated by Jessica Madrid 
9.  Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Daniel 
Gregson 
10.  Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – Vacated by Derek Bartling 
11.  Public Works – Flood Control Technician – Vacated by Sine Scott 
 
APRIL 8, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Barbara Valencia – Community Services – Temporary WIA Program 
Coordinator – 03/27/14 – Workforce Investment Act Fund – DOH 01/01/14  
2.  Brittany Gonzales – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/26/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/10/14  
3.  Lyndi Roberts – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/05/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 04/13/09  
4.  Maria Brusoe – Community Services – Social Services Case Manager – 
04/25/14 – CAP Fund – DOH 11/13/00  
5.  Layne Johnson – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 03/31/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 06/01/09  
6.  Leitha Griffin – Recorder’s Office – Voter Registration Coordinator – 
04/04/14 – General Fund – DOH 08/12/13 
NEW HIRES: 
7.  Mary Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/14/14 – General 
Fund – Replacing Christopher Lisenbee 
8.  Anthony Curtis II – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/14/14 – General 
Fund – Replacing Clarence Rice 
9.  Zada Shafer – Payson Regional Constable’s Office – Deputy Constable (.48) – 
05/05/14 - General Fund – Replacing David Vaughn  
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
10.  Bethany Cheney – Health and Emergency Services – Worksite Wellness 
Coordinator (.50) – 04/07/14 – Population Health Policy Initiative Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
11.  Ashlie Enfield-Goss – Sheriff’s Office – From Accounting Clerk Specialist – 
To Acting Property and Evidence Custodian – 03/31/14 – General Fund – 
Replacing Marcus Teague 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
12.  Rachel Wright – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk (.40) – 03/17/14 – 
General Fund – Temporary assignment 
REQUEST TO POST: 

Page 22 of 26 
 



13.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Vacated by Melanie Boyer 
Recorder’s Office – Voter Registration Coordinator – Vacated by Leitha Griffin 
14.  Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 
Vacated by Fred Lavin and John Griffin 
15.  Community Services – Social Services Case Manager – Vacated by Maria 
Brusoe 
 
APRIL 15, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Tom Mann – Public Works – Temporary Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator – 04/07/14 – Public Works Fund – DOH 09/04/06  
2.  Lasandra LaFrance – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/03/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 01/06/14  
NEW HIRES: 
3.  Pamela Beerens – Library District – Public Services Librarian – 04/28/14 – 
Library Assistance Fund – Replacing Mary Stemm 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
4.  Charles Adornetto – From Globe/Payson Regional Justice Courts – To 
Payson Regional Justice Court - Temporary Judge Pro Tempore – 04/08/14 – 
From Globe/Payson Justice Court Surcharge Funds – To Payson Justice Court 
Surcharge Fund - Globe Regional Justice Court services no longer needed 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Sherlyn Willis – Sheriff’s Office – Inmate Counselor (.48) – 02/19/14 – 
General Fund 
6.  Johnny Sanchez – Sheriff’s Office – Chief Deputy Sheriff – 01/01/14 – 
General Fund 
7.  Bruce Tanner – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – 
04/21/14 – Public Works Fund 
8.  Shayla Rincon – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 03/15/14 – General Fund 
 
APRIL 22, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Karen George – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 04/21/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 6/26/06 
2.  Lorraine Dalrymple – Health and Emergency Services – Health Services 
Program Manager – 04/16/14 – Health Services Fund – DOH 08/30/01 
3.  Keri Fucci – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 04/15/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 03/10/14 
4.  Matthew Benson – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/27/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 12/31/12 
5.  Susan Dean – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 04/18/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 02/04/13 
NEW HIRES: 
6.  Debra Espinoza – Public Works – Administrative Clerk – 04/28/14 – Public 
Works Fund – Replacing Eleanor Pastor 

Page 23 of 26 
 



7.  Donald Simon – Health and Emergency Services – HIV Early Intervention 
Services Coordinator – 04/30/14 – HIV Consortium Fund – Grant funded 
position 
8.  Jennifer Meyer – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 04/28/14 – 
State Aid Enhancement Fund – Replacing Lauryn Mooney 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
9.  Vickey Zwall – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/13/14 – 
Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
10.  Christopher McGroarty – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff Detective 
(Temporary Assignment) – To Deputy Sheriff – 04/21/14 – General Fund – End 
of temporary assignment 
REQUEST TO POST: 
11.  Clerk of the Superior Court – Court Clerk – Vacated by Karen George 
12.  Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness Assistant – Grant funded position 
 
APRIL 29, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Dana Lindsey – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 04/18/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 09/20/12 
2.  Colt Maxwell – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 04/26/14 – General Fund 
– DOH 09/14/09 
NEW HIRES: 
3.  Cecelia Gonzales – Recorder’s Office – Voter Registration Coordinator – 
04/28/14 – General Fund – Replacing Leitha Griffin 
4.  April Fogle – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/05/14 – General 
Fund – Replacing Debra Tapia-Blair 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Jillian Velarde – Clerk of the Superior Court – Court Clerk – 05/06/14 – 
General Fund  
6.  Krystal Lopez – Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – 05/04/14 – General 
Fund 
7.  Gabriella Virgil – Finance – Accountant – 05/04/14 – General Fund  
8.  Joseph Bramlet – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/29/14 – General 
Fund  
9.  Sean Bowyer – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/29/14 – General 
Fund  
REQUEST TO POST: 
10.  Sheriff’s Office – Civil Clerk – Vacated by Susan Dean 
11.  Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk – Vacated by Keri Fucci 
12.  Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk (.48) – Vacated by Gabrielle Lininger  
 
 
 

Page 24 of 26 
 



S.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of March 31, 2014, to 
April 4, 2014; April 7, 2014 to April 11, 2014; and April 14, 2014, to April 
18, 2014.  
 
T.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of April 
22, 2014, April 29, 2014, and May 6, 2014.  
 
April 22, 2014 
 
$570,815.05 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 261123 
through 261288. 
 
April 29, 2014 
 
$1,586,648.80 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 261289 
through 261451. 
 
May 6, 2014 
 
$413,305.59 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 261452 
through 261604.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
 

Page 25 of 26 
 



There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:53 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 26 of 26 
 



   

ARF-2605     Consent Agenda Item      5. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/24/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Weeks Ending 5-23-14; 05-30-14; and 6-6-14

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
5-23-14; 05-30-14; and 6-6-14.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of May 19, 2014 to May 23, 2014; May 26, 2014 to
May 30, 2014; and June 2, 2014 to June 6, 2014.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
5-23-14, 5-30-14 and 6-6-14
Agreement No. 051414 with Pleasant Valley Community Council
Service Agreement No. 051214 with KWIK KOOL Refrigeration
Service Agreement No. 051214-1 with Pueblo Mechanical
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 051514-2 with Lin-Cum, Inc.
Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Contract with Horizon Human Services
Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Agreement with Amity Foundation
Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Contract with Norchem Testing Lab
Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Contract with Sage Counseling
Authorization to Utilize City of Avondale Contract No. 13412 with Stanley Security
Solutions
Empire Cat CSA for 911 Dispatch Generator-2014-2015
Polaris Leap Application
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041114IBR with Rodriguez Constructions
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 032514-1 with Rodriguez Constructions



Page 1 of 3 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
May 19, 2014 to May 23, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Agreement No. 051414 

Pleasant Valley 
Community Council 

 
  

 
Agreement No. 051414 

between Gila County and 
Pleasant Valley Community 

Council 
 
 

 
$10,000.00  

 

 
5-19-14 to 5-27-14 

 
5-19-14 

 
Expires 

 
Supervisor Marcanti received a request from the 
Pleasant Valley Community Council to contribute 
funding for electrical repairs that are needed at 
the Pleasant Valley Community Center.  A quote 
from a contractor was attached to the request. 
Any funds that are remaining after the electrical 
repair has been completed will go toward making 
the restrooms at the Community Center ADA 
compliant. 
 

 
051214 

Kwik Kool Refrigeration 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 051214 

PGC Climatization Work 
 
 

 
$2,745.13 

 
5-21-14 to 5-20-15  

 
5-21-14 

 
Option to renew 
for two (2) more  

one (1) year 
periods 

 
The purpose of this contract will follow the Pinal-
Gila Council for Senior Citizens mission to 
enhance the quality of life of elders and disabled 
through climate control services. The 
temperature is rising and this funding will allow 
the elderly and disabled to be able to live 
comfortably. 
 

 
051214-1 

Pueblo Mechanical & 
Controls, Inc. 

  

 
Service Agreement No. 051214-1 

Gila County Jail Water 
Treatment 

 
$2,393.04  

 

 
6-20-14 to 6-19-15 

 
5-21-14 

 
Option to renew 
for one (2) more  

one (1) year 
periods 

 
Contractor shall perform water treatment 
services on the boiler at the Globe jail every two 
months. 

 
051514-2 

Lin-Cum, Inc. 
  

 
Amendment No. 2 to Gila 

County Treasurer Contract No. 
051514-2 

Document Vault Storage 
 

 
$5,000.00  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
5-21-14 

 
Option to renew  

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to extend the 
term of the agreement from July 01, 2014 to June 
30, 2015. 
Contractor provides microfiche books vault 
storage service. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
May 26, 2014 to May 30, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
No Contracts were 

executed during this 
period 

 
  

      

 
 
 
 
June 2, 2014 to June 6, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Horizon Human Services 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Limited 

Services Contract 
General Mental Health 

Counseling 
 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15  

 
6-4-14 

 
Option to renew 

for three (3) more  
one (1) year 

periods 

 
Horizon Human Services provides general mental 
health counseling for court-mandated clients. 
Amendment No. 1 has been issued to extend the 
contract for one additional year. 
 

 
Amity Foundation 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Limited 

Services Contract 
In-Patient Treatment 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15  

 
6-4-14 

 
Option to renew 

for three (3) more  
one (1) year 

periods 

 
Amendment No. 1 has been issued to extend the 
contract for one additional year. Amity 
Foundation provides substance abuse in-patient 
treatment to probationer’s.  
 

 
TRM Technical Resource 

Management dba 
Norchem Drug Testing 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Limited 

Services Contract 
Professional Drug Testing 

Laboratory for Detection of 
Chemical Substances or Alcohol 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15  

 
6-4-14 

 
Option to renew 

for three (3) more  
one (1) year 

periods 

 
Norchem Drug Testing provides drug testing 
services for juvenile probation. Amendment No. 1 
has been issued to extend the contract term for 
one additional year. 

 
Sage Counseling 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Limited 

Services Contract 
General Mental Health 

Counseling 
 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15  

 
6-4-14 

 
Option to renew 

for three (3) more  
one (1) year 

periods 

 
Sage Counseling provides clinical and educational 
services to the criminal justice system and court-
mandated clients. Amendment No. 1 has been 
issued to extend the contract term for one 
additional year. 
 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
June 2, 2014 to June 6, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
13412 

Stanley Security 
Solutions  

 
  

 
Authorization to Utilize  

City of Avondale Contract No. 
13412 with Stanley Security 

Solutions 
 

 
$43,096.69 

 
6-4-14 to 6-30-14  

 
6-4-14 

 
Expires 

 
There has never been a card access system at the 
Payson Sheriff’s Office Substation. This will 
improve the security at the substation as well as 
set parameters for each employee’s access and 
the times. It will also record who is coming in and 
out and the times they accessed which doors. It is 
being funded by JEF funds. 
 

 
0GBE00636 
Empire CAT 

  

 
Client Support Agreement  

 
 

 
$1,339.00 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15  

 
6-4-14 

 
Expires 

 
Renewal agreement for maintenance support and 
inspections for the backup generator located at 
the Sheriff’s Office 911 Dispatch Center. 
 

 
2014-0671 

Polaris Library Systems 
  

 
Polaris LEAP Application 

 

 
$18,041.72 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15  

 
6-4-14 

 
Expires 

 
The Library system utilizes Polaris software 
throughout their system. Currently all libraries 
utilizing the Gila County database, can only access 
the library database by entering the IP address in 
a remote desktop. The Leap application will 
enable them to go to a website and click on a link 
for access to the library database. Polaris also 
provides the same technology for a phone 
application-which is included in this price. 
 

 
041114IBR 

Rodriguez Constructions, 
Inc. 

  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 

No. 041114IBR 
Globe Sheriff’s Office Jail 

Pedestrian Bypass & Entry Gate 
Modification 

 

 
$977.41 

 
6-1-14 to 6-30-14  

 
6-4-14 

 
Expires 

 
Facilities has requested the contractor to increase 
the amount of sidewalk that was in the original 
scope of work, by an additional 21 feet. 
Amendment No. 1 was issued to cover the cost of 
the additional sidewalk. 
 

 
032514-1 

Rodriguez Constructions, 
Inc. 

  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 032514-1 
Rehabilitation Project No. 

HH#8069 
 

 
$903.04 

 
4-2-14 to 6-30-14  

 
6-4-14 

 
Expires 

Community Services has requested contractor to 
replace a knob and a tube in the attic of the 
residence for which Contract No. 032514-1 was 
executed. In replacing wiring from the main panel 
to the attic, the old knob and tube wiring needs to 
be replaced with Rollmex Wiring. Amendment No. 
1 has been issued to cover the cost for the change 
in the scope of work. 

 












































































	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Washington, D.C. Legislative Update by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group
	Item2.B.  Presentation by the Southern Gila County Economic Development Corporation (SGCEDC)
	ATT.SGCEDC Presentation
	Southern Gila County Economic Development Corporation
	Collaborating Community and Economic Development Organizations�SGCEDC does not perform community and economic development activities in a vacuum. Rather, it is the vision of SGCEDC to coordinate and collaborate with many such organizations.  A listing of these collaborators is provided in the table below. �
	€�Transformation of SGCEDC = Increase the organization’s capacity�
	Community and Economic Development Context�
	2014-2016 Work Plan
	2014-2016 Work Plan
	Accomplishments to date
	What’s Ahead?

	Item3.A.  Road Naming of E Hunter Lane
	ATT.Resolution 14-06-05
	ATT.Signed Petition
	ATT.Letter to Residents
	ATT.Public Notice
	ATT.Map
	Item3.B.  Public Hearing-Order No. LL-14-03, a Liquor License Application for Sidewinders Saloon
	ATT.LL-14-03 Liquor License Application
	ATT.Interoffice Memorandums
	ATT.Affidavit of Posting
	Item4.A.  Gila County Library District FY 2014-2015 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Item4.B.  Gila County FY 2014-2015 Tentative Budget Adoption
	ATT.FY 2015 Gila County Tentative Budget
	Item4.C.  Town of Miami's FY 2014-2015 Economic Development Grant Request for its Cobre Valley Transit System's Dial-A-Ride Program
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.D.  Request for Approval of Various Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court
	ATT.Professional Services Contract 042514 -Anna Ortiz
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item4.E.  Resolution No. 14-06-06 to Declare Support for Gila County to Remain in the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) Service Area
	ATT.Resolution No. 14-06-06
	Item4.F.  Resolution No. 14-06-07 To Declare Support for Cenpatico of Arizona to Remain as the Regional Behavioral Health Authority For Gila County
	ATT.Resolution No. 14-06-07
	Item4.G.  Freeport-McMoRan Copper and Gold Grant Application and Award
	ATT.Freeport-McMoRan Application
	ATT.Freeport-McMoRan Copper and Gold Award letter and check
	Item4.H.  Amendment No. Two to ADOT File No. IGA_JPA 10-230I
	ATT.Resolution No. 14-06-08
	ATT.Amendment Two JPA_IGA 10-230I
	ATT.Amendment One JPA_IGA 10-230I
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.I.  Request to Advertise for Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project
	ATT.Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project
	Item4.J.  Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 060214 for Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela Road
	ATT.Invitation for Bid 060214 Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Service Road 417-Gisela Road
	Item4.K.  Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil
	Item4.L.  Request to Advertise for Request for Proposals No. 042314 for Janitorial Services in Northern Gila County
	ATT.Request for Proposals No. 042314 for Janitorial Services in Northern Gila County
	Item4.M.  Approval to proceed with the acquisition of the NAPA Building at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, AZ
	Item4.N.  Transportation Needs and Tax Levy Resolution No. 14-06-09
	ATT.Resolution No. 14-06-09
	ATT.Transporation Tax Distribution Formula per Resolution
	Item4.O.  Approve and accept Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) Grant Renewal GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y3 for San Carlos
	ATT.Renewal San Carlos Early Literacy 2015
	ATT.County Attorney Legal Explanation
	ATT.Original Grant GRA-RC029-13-0533-01
	ATT.Grant Application GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y2
	Item4.P.  First Things First Grant Renewal GRA-004-14-0616-01-Y2 Gila Early Literacy Grant
	ATT.Renewal Gila Early Literacy
	ATT.County Attorney Legal Explanation
	ATT.Grant Application GRA-RC04-14-0616-01
	July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015
	Program Implementation Plan

	Attachment C (Continued)
	Gila County Library District
	Purpose of the Job

	Gila County Library District
	JOB SUMMARY
	ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

	REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS

	Reports to:  County Librarian, Public Services Librarian
	Attachment E
	Disclosure of Other Funding Sources

	Item4.Q.  Contract Award for Bid No. 041414 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants
	ATT.IFB 041414 Bid Tabulation Form
	ATT.IFB 041414 Bid Tabulation Breakdown Spreadsheet
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item4.R.  Proposed Stipulated Judgments in three Tax appeals regarding Rim Country Express LLC
	ATT.2013 Judgment
	ATT.2012 Judgment
	ATT.2011 Judgment
	Item5.A.  Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Payson for Election Services
	ATT.IGA_Election Services
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.B.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services for Gila County
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	ATT.Professional Services Agreement No. 062813 Medical Examiner Services with Dr. Fischione
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item5.C.  Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.D.  FFY2014 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Application Amendment
	ATT.FFY2014 EMPG Application
	ATT.FFY2014 Budget Information Sheet
	Item5.E.  Revised Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan for the period of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017Revised Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment
	ATT.Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan 2014-2017 revised
	ATT.Original Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business Plan 2014-2017
	Item5.F.  Revised Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Board Bylaws
	ATT.Revised WIB Bylaws with proposed changes
	ATT.Revised WIB Bylaws - final version
	ARTICLE I – NAME, AREA OF SERVICE AND AUTHORIZATION
	ARTICLE III – PURPOSE
	ARTICLE IV – RESPONSIBILITIES/GOALS

	ARTICLE V – MEMBERSHIP [Public Law 105-220, section 117 (b)]
	ARTICLE VI – OFFICERS
	Chairperson
	Vice-Chairperson
	Election of Officers
	ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES
	Fiscal Committee
	Workforce Development Committee
	Youth Committee
	Executive Committee
	Ad Hoc Committee

	ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS
	ARTICLE IX – VOTING

	ARTICLE X – CONFLICT OF INTEREST, LIABILITY COVERAGE
	ARTICLE XI – QUORUM
	ARTICLE XII – AMENDMENTS



	Item5.G.  Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101 with Central Arizona College
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 Contract No. 10101 CAC
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 Contract No. 10101 CAC
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 Contract No. 10101 CAC
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 10101 CAC
	ATT.Original Contract Gila 10101 CAC
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.H.  Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 with Central Arizona Governments
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 Gila 10102 CAAG
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 Gila 10102 CAAG
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 Gila 10102 CAAG
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 Gila 10102 CAAG
	ATT.Original Contract Gila 10102 CAAG
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.I.  Amendment No. 4 for  Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement _LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4 
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2 OEP
	ATT.Contract LW-ESA-12-2182-OEP
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.J.  Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. DE111073001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 10 Contract DE111073001 DES
	ATT.Amendment No. 9 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 8 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 7 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 6 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 5 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Amendment No.1 Contract DE111073001
	ATT.Original Contract No. DE111073001 DES
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item5.K.  Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for May, 2014
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for May, 2014
	Item5.L.  Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2014
	Item5.M.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2014
	ATT.Recorder's Monthly Report March 2014
	Item5.N.  BOS May 6, 2014, and May 13, 2014, Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 05-13-14 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 05-06-14 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.O.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 5-23-14_ 05-30-14_ and 6-6-14
	ATT.Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 5-23-14, 5-30-14 and 6-6-14

